
 

Agenda 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Regular Council Meeting 
to be held at the City Hall, Council Chambers 

171 Main Street, Penticton, B.C. 
To view the Council Meeting, visit www.penticton.ca   

  
Tuesday, September 6, 2022 

at 1:00 p.m. 
 
 
1. Call Regular Council Meeting to Order 
 
2. Introduction of Late Items  
 
3. Adoption of Agenda  
 
4. Adoption of Minutes:  
 

4.1 Minutes of the August 16, 2022 Regular Council Meeting           1-8                     Adopt 
 
5. Consent Agenda: 

 
Recommendation: THAT Council approve the Consent Agenda.                      9-20 
 
Consent Agenda:  

 
1. Minutes of August 16, 2022 Public Hearings; and 

 
Bloomfield 2.        Community Sustainability Advisory Committee Meeting Draft Minutes of August 17, 2022. 

 
6. Committee and Board Recommendations: 

 
6.1 Community Sustainability Advisory Committee Recommendation from August 17, 2022 

 
Committee Recommendation: 
THAT the Community Sustainability Advisory Committee recommend that Council direct staff to prepare 
an amendment to the Zoning Bylaw to include provisions for electric vehicle charging requirements for 
new residential and commercial developments. 
 
Staff Comments: 
The recommendation from the Committee aligns with the Community Climate Action Plan.  Staff are 
supportive and, if Council endorses the recommendation, will bring forward the appropriate Zoning 
Amendments to a future meeting.  

 
 
 
 
 

http://www.penticton.ca/


 
    
 

7. Staff Reports: 
 

Kunka/  7.1 1042 Government Street:  Request for Notice on Title                      21-27 

Scandrett   Delegation: Building Official and Property Owner 
Staff Recommendation:  THAT Council direct the Corporate Officer to register a Notice on Title, under 
section 57 of the Community Charter, with respect to contraventions of the City of Penticton Building 
Bylaw No. 2021-21 on Lot 1, District Lot 249 Similkameen Division Yale District, Plan 3556 Except Plan 
KAP 68129 located at 1042 Government Street (the Property), stating the following: 
“Failure to complete a building permit, which is a violation of the City of Penticton Building Bylaw No. 
2021-21. Further information about it may be inspected at the municipal hall.” 

 
Haddad 7.2 Skaha Lake Marina – Marina Development Update          28-37 
  Staff Recommendation:  THAT Council receive into the record the report dated September 6, 2022 titled 

“Skaha Lake Marina – Marina Development Update”. 
 

Goodwin/  7.3 Social Framework Update                                               38-50 

Laven Delegation: Kim Lyster, WRH Consulting (via Zoom) 
 Staff Recommendation:  THAT Council endorse the work-to-date on the development of the Social 
Framework;   
AND THAT Council direct staff to continue working with community partners and City departments on 
finalizing the Social Framework and associated action plans.  

 
Seibert  7.4 2023 UBCM Community Resiliency Investment (CRI) FireSmart Funding                    51-52 
  Staff Recommendation:  THAT Council support the application for grant funding up to $200,000 from 

the Union of British Columbia Municipalities (UBCM) under the Community Resiliency Investment 
(CRI) program, which provides 100% funding for the City of Penticton FireSmart Program. 

 
Goodwin/  7.5 2023 UBCM Community Emergency Program Funding (CEPF) – Emergency Support                        53-64 
Seibert Services Funding 
 Staff Recommendation:  THAT Council direct staff to submit an application on behalf of the 

Corporation of the City of Penticton for the Union of BC Municipalities’ Community Emergency 
Preparedness Fund’s 2023 Emergency Support Services funding program to invest in the Penticton 
Emergency Support Services team’s training, exercises, purchasing of equipment, and recruitment 
and recognition of ESS team members in 2023-2024;  
AND THAT the Fire Chief sign and submit the application;  
AND THAT Council direct staff to send a thank you to all 2022 Penticton Emergency Support Services 
team members and partners thanking them for their contributions to the Penticton ESS program in 
2022.  

 
Goodwin/  7.6 2023 UBCM Community Emergency Program Funding (CEPF) – Cultural Humility                             65-74 
Seibert Training Funding 

Staff Recommendation:  THAT Council direct staff to apply for the Union of BC Municipalities’ Cultural 
Safety and Cultural Humility Training Grant in the amount of up to $30,000 to offer training to any 
responder with an identified role in the Penticton emergency management plan;  
AND THAT Council direct the Fire Chief to sign and submit the application. 

 
Goodwin/  7.7 Supporting Penticton Families: Bugaboo University Memorandum of Understanding                      75-87 

Johnson  Staff Recommendation:  THAT Council direct the Mayor and Corporate Officer to sign and execute the 
Memorandum of Understanding, as included in Attachment A, with the YMCA of the Southern Interior 
of BC, establishing the partnership between the YMCA and the City in the development of a child care 
centre within the Community Centre. 



 
    
 

 
Coates 7.8 In-Year Grant Request         88-90 

Staff Recommendation:  THAT Council approve a $20,000 cash grant to the Penticton Peach Festival, 
funded through general surplus. 

 
Sparrow 7.9 2023 Permissive Tax Exemption Bylaw No. 2022-49          91-105 

Staff Recommendation:  THAT Council give first, second and third reading to the “2023 Permissive Tax 
Exemption Bylaw No. 2022-49”, a bylaw granting permissive tax exemptions as listed in Schedule A for the 
2023 Tax Year. 

 
Capewell/ 7.10 1050 Spiller Road Official Community Plan Amendment Engagement Results    106-148 
Kleb/ Tanguay Staff Recommendation: THAT Council receive into the record the report dated September 6, 2022 

titled “1050 Spiller Road Official Community Plan Amendment Engagement Results”; 
AND THAT staff be directed to utilize the “1050 Spiller Road Official Community Plan Amendment 
Engagement Results” report in the evaluation of any applications for land use change of the subject 
lands at 1050 Spiller Road.  

  
Capewell 7.11 Development Variance Permit PL2022-9329      149-167 
  Re: 903 Moosejaw Street         

Staff Recommendation:  THAT Council approve “Development Variance Permit PL2022-9329”, for Lot 1 
District Lot 4 Group 7 Similkameen Division Yale (Formerly Yale-Lytton) District Plan 5380, located at 
903 Moosejaw Street, a permit to vary the following sections of Zoning Bylaw No. 2021-01: 
1. Section 8.2.3.6: to reduce the interior side yard for a carriage house in the R1 zone from 1.5m to 

0.9m; 
2. Section 8.2.3.6: to reduce the rear yard for a carriage house from 1.5m to 0.2m; and 
3. Section 8.2.5.3: to allow vehicle access to the carriage house to be from the street. 
AND THAT Council direct staff to issue “Development Variance Permit PL2022-9329”. 

 
Laven 7.12 Development Variance Permit PL2022-9403        168-182 
  Re: 114 Chambers Place 

Staff Recommendation:  THAT Council approve “Development Variance Permit PL2022-9403” for Lot 
11 District Lot 116 Similkameen Division Yale District Plan 25568, located at 114 Chambers Place, a 
permit to vary Section 10.2.2.6.a of Zoning Bylaw 2021-01, to reduce the minimum interior side yard 
from 1.5 m to 1.19 m, in order to legalize an existing enclosed sundeck; 
AND THAT Council direct staff to issue “Development Variance Permit PL2022-9403”. 

 
Capewell 7.13 Development Variance Permit PL2022-9381        183-273 
  Development Permit PL2022-9380 
  Re: 603 Main Street 

Staff Recommendation:  THAT Council approve “Development Variance Permit PL2022-9381”, for Lot 
A District Lot 202 Similkameen Division Yale District Plan 24480, located at 603 Main Street, a permit 
to vary the following sections of Zoning Bylaw 2021-01,  
1. Section 11.5.2.5.a: to increase the maximum height of a building located in the 600 block of Main 

Street from 15.0m to 17.4m; and 
2. Section 6.1.5.4: to increase the maximum number of small car parking spaces permitted from 25% 

to 53%. 
AND THAT Council direct staff to issue “Development Variance Permit PL2022-9381”; 
AND THAT Council, subject to approval of “Development Variance Permit PL2022-9381”, approve 
“Development Permit PL2022-9380”, for Lot A District Lot 202 Similkameen Division Yale District 
Plan 24480, located at 603 Main Street, a permit to allow for the construction of a 5-storey, mixed-
use development containing 28 residential units and approximately 1,300 sq. ft. of commercial 
space.  

 
 



 
    
 

Collyer 7.14 Development Variance Permit PL2022-9389       274-294 
  Re: 4025 Lakeside Road 

Staff Recommendation:  THAT Council approve “Development Variance Permit PL2022-9389” for Lot 1 
District Lot 190 Similkameen Division Yale District Plan EPP120561, located at 4025 Lakeside Road, a 
permit to vary the following sections of Zoning Bylaw 2021-01 to allow for an addition onto the 
existing single detached dwelling: 
• Section 10.1.2.4.a: to increase the maximum principal building height from 10.5m to 11.4m; 
• Section 10.1.2.5: to reduce the minimum front yard setback from 6.0m to 4.0m; 
AND THAT Council direct staff to issue the permit. 

 
Laven 7.15 Development Variance Permit PL2022-9363        295-309 
  Re: 3923 Lakeside Road 

Staff Recommendation:  THAT Council approve “Development Variance Permit PL2022-9363” for 
Amended Lot 1 (DD 244322F) District Lot 190 Similkameen Division Yale District Plan 5524 Except Plan 
KAP47795, located at 3923 Lakeside Road, a permit to vary the following sections Zoning Bylaw 2021-
01: 

• Section 8.2.3.8: to allow the siting of a carriage house in the R1 zone to be located closer to 
the front lot line than the principal dwelling; and 

• Section 8.2.3.3: to allow the maximum building footprint to be increased from 90 m2 to 124 
m2  

AND THAT Council direct staff to issue “Development Variance Permit PL2022-9362”. 
 

Collyer/ 7.16 Hillside Development Permit PL2021-9206         310-393 
Tanguay  Re: 850 Wiltse Boulevard and 160 Crow Place 

Staff Recommendation:  THAT Council approve “Hillside Development Permit PL2021-9206”, a permit 
to allow for the phased development of a 686 unit residential development at Lot B District Lot 2710 
Similkameen Division Yale District Plan 43260 Except Plans KAP72732 and EPP74771 and Lot A District 
Lot 2710 Similkameen Division Yale District Plan KAP70035, located at 850 Wiltse Boulevard and 160 
Crow Place; 
AND THAT Council direct staff to issue the permit. 

 
8. Bylaws and Permits: 

 
Collison 8.1 Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-35  394-395   Adopt 
  Development Variance Permit PL2021-9198      Approve 

  Re: 650 and 666 Eckhardt Avenue West 
 

Collison 8.2 Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-43  396-397     Adopt 
  Re: 747 and 755 Revelstoke Avenue 
 
9. Public Question Period 

 
10. Recess to a Closed Meeting:  

Resolution: THAT Council recess to a closed meeting of Council pursuant to the provisions of the Community 
Charter as follows:  Section 90 (2)  

(b) the consideration of information received and held in confidence relating to negotiations 
between the municipality and a provincial government or the federal government or both, or 
between a provincial government or the federal government or both and a third party. 

 
11. Reconvene the Regular Council Meeting following the Public Hearing at 6:00 p.m. 
 
 
 



 
    
 

 
12.          Bylaws and Permits:      
 

Capewell 12.1 Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-45  398-401     See Memo 
  Re: 1603 Dartmouth Road 

 
Collyer 12.2 Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-46 and  402-405     2nd/3rd/Adopt 

  Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-47      2nd/3rd/Adopt  
  Re: 655 Ellis Street 
 

Capewell 12.3 Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-48  406-410   2nd/3rd/Adopt 
  Development Variance Permit PL2022-9411      Approve 

  Re: 221 and 241 Nelson Avenue 
 
13. Notice of Motion 
 
14. Business Arising 
 
15. Public Question Period 

 

 If you would like to ask Council a question with respect to items that are on the current agenda, please visit 
our website at www.penticton.ca to find the telephone number or Zoom link to ask your question before the 
conclusion of the meeting.  Please do not try to join the meeting early, you will not be let in to participate 
electronically until Council approaches the Public Question Period.  Watch the livestream on our website and 
prepare to call or join during the Business Arising.  

 
16. Council Round Table  
 
17. Adjournment 

http://www.penticton.ca/


 
 

Minutes 

 

 
 

 
 
 

      Regular Council Meeting 
held at City Hall, Council Chambers 

171 Main Street, Penticton, B.C.  
 

Tuesday, August 16, 2022 
at 1:00 p.m. 

   
                           Present:  Mayor Vassilaki   
   Councillor Bloomfield 

  Councillor Miller 
     Councillor Robinson  
      Councillor Sentes 
     Councillor Watt   
 
  Absent:  Councillor Regehr  
 

 Staff:   Donny van Dyk, Chief Administrative Officer 
     Angie Collison, Corporate Officer 
     Angela Campbell, Director of Finance & Administration    
     Kristen Dixon, General Manager of Infrastructure  
     Anthony Haddad, General Manager, Community Services (via Zoom) 
     Kelsey Johnson, Manager of Recreation, Arts and Culture 
     Blake Laven, Director of Development Services  
     Paula McKinnon, Deputy Corporate Officer  
       
 

1. Call to Order 
 

The Mayor called the Regular Council Meeting to order at 1:00 p.m. 
      

2. Introduction of Late Items 
 

3. Adoption of Agenda 
  

276/2022 It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Council adopt the agenda for the Regular Council Meeting held on August 16, 2022 as 
presented. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

4. Adoption of Minutes: 
 

  4.1 Minutes of the July 19, 2022 Regular Meeting of Council  
 

277/2022 It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Council adopt the Regular Council Meeting minutes of July 19, 2022 as presented.  

 CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

- 1 -



    
Minutes of August 16, 2022 Regular Council Meeting  Page 2 of 8 
 
 

5. Consent Agenda: 
 

278/2022 It was MOVED and SECONDED 
 THAT Council approve the Consent Agenda: 
1. Minutes of the July 19, 2022 Public Hearings; and 
2. Heritage and Museum Advisory Committee Meeting Draft Minutes August 3, 2022. 

 CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

6. Staff Reports: 
 

6.1  Food Security Strategy  

 Delegation:  Alison Rustand, Urban Systems 

279/2022  It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Council endorse the ‘Penticton Food Security Strategy’ as included in Attachment A.  

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

6.2  In-Year Grant Request 
 

280/2022  It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Council approve a $10, 628 cash grant to the South Okanagan Similkameen Medical 
Foundation, funded through general surplus. 

DEFEATED 
Councillors Miller, Robinson and Watt, Opposed 

 
Councillor Miller declared a conflict of interest due to the Penticton Herald’s participation with the Heritage 
Awareness Project and left the meeting at 1:54 p.m. 
 

6.3  Heritage Awareness Project – Phase Two 
 

281/2022   It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Council, with the consent of the property owners, support phase two of the Heritage 
Awareness Project and the installation of heritage plaques on buildings and properties currently 
on the City of Penticton Heritage Register. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
Councillor Miller returned to the meeting at 2:06 p.m. 
 

6.4  Civic Places & Spaces Implementation – Public Safety and Protective Services Centre 
 

282/2022   It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Council endorse the proposed work plan for the Public Safety and Protective Services 
Centre; 
AND THAT Council allocate $75,000 for the commencement of the first phase of planning for 
the future Public Safety and Protective Services Centre to be funded from administrative 
savings for the purpose of project scoping, needs analysis and site selection. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
 

- 2 -



    
Minutes of August 16, 2022 Regular Council Meeting  Page 3 of 8 
 
 

6.5  Second Quarter 2022 Economic Development Update 
   

283/2022   It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Council receive into the record the report dated August 16, 2022 titled “Second 
Quarter 2022 Economic Development Update”. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

6.6  Second Quarter 2022 Recreation and Culture Services Update 
 

284/2022  It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Council receive into the record the report dated August 16, 2022 titled “Second 
Quarter 2022 Recreation and Culture Services Update”. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

6.7  Second Quarter 2022 Financial Update 
 

285/2022   It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Council receive into the record the report dated August 16, 2022 titled “Second 
Quarter 2022 Financial Update”. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

6.8  Second Quarter 2022 Corporate Business Plan Update 
 

286/2022   It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Council receive into the record the report dated August 16, 2022 titled “Second 
Quarter 2022 Corporate Business Plan Update”. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

The Mayor recessed the meeting at 2:53 p.m. and the meeting reconvened at 3:08 p.m. 
 
6.9  2023 Council Meeting Schedule 

 
287/2022   It was MOVED and SECONDED 

THAT Council select the following dates for the 2023 Regular Meetings of Council: January 
17; February 7; March 7, 21; April 4, 18; May 2, 16; June 6, 20; July 18; August 1, 15; September 
12; October 3, 17; November 7, 21; and December 5, 19; 
AND THAT Special Council meetings be held on March 14, 15, 16, 2023 for budget 
deliberations. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
6.10 Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-46 
 Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-47 
 Development Permit PL2022-9296 
 Re: 655 Ellis Street 

 
288/2022   It was MOVED and SECONDED 

THAT Council, prior to consideration of “Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw No. 
2022-46”, and in accordance with Section 475 of the Local Government Act, consider 
whether early and on-going consultation, in addition to the required Public Hearing, is 
necessary with: 

- 3 -



    
Minutes of August 16, 2022 Regular Council Meeting  Page 4 of 8 
 
 

1. One or more persons, organizations or authorities; 
2. The Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen; 
3. Local First Nations; 
4. School District #67; 
5. The provincial or federal government and their agencies; 

AND THAT it is determined that the community engagement period carried out from July 11, 
2022 to August 7, 2022 is sufficient; 
AND THAT Council give first reading to “Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw No. 
2022-46”, a bylaw that amends Map 1: Future Land Use of Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 
2019-08, by amending the future land use designation for Lot 1 District Lot 202 Similkameen 
Division Yale District Plan EPP120346, located at 655 Ellis Street, from ‘Ground Oriented 
Residential’ to ‘Urban Residential’; 
AND THAT Council give first reading to “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-47” for Lot 1 
District Lot 202 Similkameen Division Yale District Plan EPP120346, located at 655 Ellis Street, 
a bylaw to rezone the subject property from ‘P1 (Public Assembly)’ to ‘RM5 (Urban 
Residential)’; 
AND THAT Council forward “Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-46” and 
“Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-47” to the September 6, 2022 Public Hearing; 
AND THAT Council require a 0.914m road dedication along the eastern property line (Ellis 
Street) to be registered with the Land Title Office prior to issuance of an Occupancy Permit; 
AND THAT Council, subject to adoption of “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-47”, 
approve “Development Permit PL2022-9296”, a permit to approve the form and character of 
the proposed three-storey, 16-unit apartment building. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
6.11  Development Variance Permit PL2022-9357 
 Development Permit PL2022-9356 
 Re: 303 Nanaimo Avenue West 

 
289/2022   It was MOVED and SECONDED 

THAT Council approve “Development Variance Permit PL2022-9357” for Lot 1 District Lot 4 
Group 7 Similkameen Division Yale (Formerly Yale-Lytton) District Plan 3669, located at 303 
Nanaimo Avenue West, a permit to vary Section 10.10.2.7 of Zoning Bylaw 2021-01, to 
reduce the minimum required interior side yard setback (west) from 4.5m to 3.0m; 
AND THAT Council direct staff to issue “Development Variance Permit PL2022-9357”; 
AND THAT Council, subject to approval of “Development Variance Permit PL2022-9357”, 
approve “Development Permit PL2022-9356”, a permit to approve the form and character of 
the proposed four-unit townhouse development. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
6.12  Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-45 
 Re:  1603 Dartmouth Road 

 
290/2022   It was MOVED and SECONDED 

THAT Council give first reading to “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-45, a bylaw to add 
the following section to the M1 (General Industrial) zone: 12.1.4.4 “In the case of Lot 1 District 
Lots 250, 2710, 3429S and 3821S Similkameen Division Yale District Plan 37288, located at 

- 4 -



    
Minutes of August 16, 2022 Regular Council Meeting  Page 5 of 8 
 
 

1603 Dartmouth Road, an indoor amusement, entertainment and recreation facility shall be 
permitted”; 
AND THAT Council forward the bylaw to the September 6, 2022 Public Hearing. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

6.13  Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-48 
 Development Variance Permit PL2022-9411 
 Re: 221 and 241 Nelson Avenue 

 
291/2022   It was MOVED and SECONDED 

THAT Council give first reading to “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-48”, for Lot A District 
Lot 250 Similkameen Division Yale District Plan EPP116347, located at 221 Nelson Avenue 
and Lot B District Lot 250 Similkameen Division Yale District Plan EPP116347, located at 241 
Nelson Avenue, a bylaw to rezone the subject properties from RD2 (Duplex Housing: Lane) to 
RD4 (Low Density Cluster Housing); 
AND THAT Council forward “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-48” to the September 6, 
2022 Public Hearing; 
AND THAT Council, subject to adoption of “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-48”, 
consider “Development Variance Permit PL2022-9411”, for Lot A District Lot 250 
Similkameen Division Yale District Plan EPP116347, located at 221 Nelson Avenue and Lot B 
District Lot 250 Similkameen Division Yale District Plan EPP116347, located at 241 Nelson 
Avenue, a permit to vary Section 10.7.3.1 of Zoning Bylaw No 2021-01, to allow vehicle 
access to be from the street. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

6.14  Development Permit PL2022-9352 
 Re:  970 Dynes Avenue 

 
292/2022   It was MOVED and SECONDED 

THAT Council approve “Development Permit PL2022-9352”, for Lot A District Lot 3 Group 7 
Similkameen Division Yale (Formerly Yale Lytton) District Plan EPP92730, located at 970 
Dynes Avenue, a permit to allow for the construction of a 26-unit, six-storey apartment 
building; 
AND THAT Council direct staff to issue “Development Permit PL2022-9352”. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
6.15  Development Variance Permit PL2022-9351 
 Re:  93-3245 Paris Street 
 
Council invited the Applicant to speak to the DVP application and answer any questions. 

 
293/2022   It was MOVED and SECONDED 

THAT Council approve “Development Variance Permit PL2022-9351” for Lot 4 District Lots 
189 and 372 Similkameen Division Yale District Plan 43502, located at 93-3245 Paris Street, a 
permit to vary Section 10.13.2.7.b of Zoning Bylaw 2021-01, to reduce the minimum interior 
side yard from 6.0 m to 2.1 m, in order to facilitate the placement of a mobile home; 
AND THAT Council direct staff to issue “Development Variance Permit PL2022-9351”. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

- 5 -



    
Minutes of August 16, 2022 Regular Council Meeting  Page 6 of 8 
 
 

 
7. Bylaws and Permits: 

 
7.1  Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw No. 2021-35 and Zoning Amendment  
 Bylaw No. 2021-36 
 Re: 955 Timmins Street 
 

294/2022   It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Council adopt “Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw No. 2021-35” and “Zoning  
Amendment Bylaw No. 2021-36”. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
7.2  Fees and Charges Amendment Bylaw 2022-07 
 

295/2022   It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Council adopt “Fees and Charges Amendment Bylaw 2022-07”. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
7.3  Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-10 
 Re: 585 Jermyn Avenue 
 

296/2022   It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Council adopt “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-10”. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
7.4  Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-36 
 Re: 169 Maple Street 
 

297/2022   It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Council adopt “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-36”. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

8. Public Question Period 
 

9. Recess into a Closed Meeting 
 

298/2022  It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Council recess at 4:13 p.m. to a closed meeting of Council pursuant to the provisions of 
the Community Charter as follows:  Section 90(1)  
(e) the acquisition, disposition or expropriation of land or improvements, if the Council 
considers that disclosure could reasonably be expected to harm the interests of the 
municipality. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY   
 

10. Reconvene the Regular Council Meeting following the Public Hearing at 6:00 p.m. 
 
 
 
 

- 6 -



    
Minutes of August 16, 2022 Regular Council Meeting  Page 7 of 8 
 
 

11. Bylaws and Permits: 
 

11.1  Road Closure (Nanaimo Ave E between the left and right banks of Penticton 
 Creek) Bylaw No. 2022-39 

 

Delegations/Submissions: Nil. 
 

299/2022   It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Council adopt “Road Closure (Nanaimo Ave E between the left and right banks of 
Penticton Creek) Bylaw No. 2022-39”. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

11.2  Road Closure (Kinney Ave between South Main St and Skaha Lake Rd) 
Bylaw No. 2022-40 

 

Delegations/Submissions: Brigid Kemp, George Stayberg and James Brown spoke to the bylaw. 
 

300/2022   It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Council adopt “Road Closure (Kinney Ave between South Main St and Skaha Lake Rd) 
Bylaw No. 2022-40”. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

11.3  Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-41 and Zoning  
Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-42 

 Re: 770 Argyle Street 
 

301/2022   It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Council request the applicant for 770 Argyle Street work with staff to address 
comments from the August 16, 2022 Public Hearing held for OCP Amendment Bylaw No. 
2022-41 and Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-42.  

CARRIED 
Councillor Miller, Opposed 

 
11.4  Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-43 
 Re: 747 and 755 Revelstoke Avenue 

 
302/2022   It was MOVED and SECONDED 

THAT Council give second and third reading to “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-43”. 
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 
11.5  Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-44 
 Development Variance Permit PL2022-9395 
 Re: 561 Jermyn Avenue 

 
303/2022   It was MOVED and SECONDED 

THAT Council give second and third reading to “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-36”; 
AND THAT Council adopt “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-36”; 
AND THAT Council approve “Development Variance Permit PL2022-9395”. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
 
 

- 7 -



    
Minutes of August 16, 2022 Regular Council Meeting  Page 8 of 8 
 
 

 
12. Notice of Motion 

 
13. Business Arising 

 
14. Public Question Period 

 
15. Council Round Table 

 
16. Adjournment  
 

304/2022   It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Council adjourn the August 16, 2022 Regular meeting of Council at 8:27 p.m. 
 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
 
 
 

Certified correct:      Confirmed: 
 

  
 
 

____________________________ ______________________________ 
Angie Collison  John Vassilaki 
Corporate Officer  Mayor  

- 8 -



 
 

Minutes 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Public Hearing  
held electronically and at City Hall, Council Chambers 

171 Main Street, Penticton, B.C.  
 

Tuesday, August 16, 2022 
at 6:00 p.m. 

 
 Present:  Mayor Vassilaki 
    Councillor Bloomfield  

  Councillor Miller 
  Councillor Robinson 
  Councillor Watt  

          Councillor Sentes  
 
  Absent:  Councillor Regehr 
 
 Staff:  Donny Van Dyk, Chief Administrative Officer 
     Angie Collison, Corporate Officer 
     Angela Campbell, Director of Finance & Administration   
     Blake Laven, Director of Development Services  
     Nicole Capewell, Planner I 
     Kristen Dixon, General Manager of Infrastructure  
     Paula McKinnon, Deputy Corporate Officer 
          

1. Call to order 
 

Mayor Vassilaki called the public hearing to order at 6:00 p.m. for Official Community Plan 
Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-41 and Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-42. 

 
The Corporate Officer read the opening statement and introduced the purpose of the bylaw. 
She then explained that the public hearing was being held in-person and electronically to 
afford all persons who considered themselves affected by the proposed bylaw an opportunity 
to be heard before Council.  She further indicated that the public hearing was advertised 
pursuant to the Local Government Act. 

  
2. “Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-41” (770 Argyle Street)  

 
The purpose of “Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-41” is to amend 
Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 2019-08 as follows:  

 
Amend Map 1:  Future Land Use, by changing the future land use designation 
for Lot E District Lot 202 Similkameen Division Yale District and of District Lot 
4 Group 7 Similkameen Division Yale (Formerly Yale Lytton) District Plan 584, 
located at 770 Argyle Street, from ‘Detached Residential’ to ‘Ground Oriented 
Residential’. 

- 9 -



 
Minutes of August 16, 2022  Public Hearing No. 1  Page 2 of 4 
    
  

 
 

“Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-42” (770 Argyle Street)  
 

The purpose of “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-42” is to amend Zoning Bylaw No. 
2021-01 as follows:  

 
Rezone Lot E District Lot 202 Similkameen Division Yale District and of District 
Lot 4 Group 7 Similkameen Division Yale (Formerly Yale Lytton) District Plan 
584, located at 770 Argyle Street, from RD1 (Duplex Housing) to RM2 (Low 
Density Multiple Housing). 
 
The applicants are proposing to build a multi-family development that 
features five duplex buildings (10 dwelling units). 

 
The Corporate Officer advised that three letters have been received since the printing of the 
agenda and distributed to Council. 

 
DELEGATIONS 

 
Mayor Vassilaki asked the public for the first time if anyone wished to speak to the application. 
• Llewelyn Lloyd, via Zoom, Designer and Agent Representative, commented much 

consideration and sensitivity gone into proposal, perfect location, goal to design homes 
to fit into neighbourhood, provide needed housing. Commented proposal addresses all 
concerns presented by Planning Department, Council and neighbours, every aspect has 
been scrutinized resulting in attractive, pleasing design to future buyers and neighbours. 

• Charlene Mitchell, Argyle Street, adjacent to proposed development, written letters with 
concerns, seen changes to design, little more pleasing, height daunting negative aspects 
of design, would look into our property. Bought area for large lot, to have projects. 
Concerns include privacy being taken away, parking, ten units with one designated 
parking space each, eight additional parking spots, few people have one vehicle, visitor 
spots getting taken, trickling effect on street. Commented fair increase in traffic, bike 
lanes, no parking in other areas. Concerned about construction noise, dust, started 
Airbnb, must disclose nearby construction impact on Airbnb, decrease in bookings. 
Commented not in favour, hopes Council says no to development. 

• Denis O’Gorman, Farrell Street, initial interest in known heritage values of area, provided 
air photo and summary, serious choke point presented by lots 770 and 784, wedge 
results in serious congestion and jamming of cars parked in corridor, avoidable problem, 
fire and safety egress issue, easily remedied with minor taking of land. Commented 
planning process should be broader, does building fit, no serious consideration to these 
problems, submitted to Shape Your City opportunity to address, circulation of related 
proposals, improve parking, increase safety, routine building application review does not 
take into account these concerns. Commented roads not up to standards. Commented 
Planning should be picking up any associated issues with proposals, be more proactive, 
should listen to comments, take concerns into account. Commented needs to be a 
clearer working relationship between permitting and operating departments. 
 

Mayor Vassilaki asked the public for the second time if anyone wished to speak to the application. 
• Lorraine Stephenson, Farrell Street, participated in engagement, provided submission, 

walked around neighbourhood, spoke with neighbours, people support with 
reservations, don’t see difference except pitched roof, wildly out of scale, not alot of 
green space, supposed to be representative of smart growth, includes green space on 

- 10 -



 
Minutes of August 16, 2022  Public Hearing No. 1  Page 3 of 4 
    
  

properties, seeing less and less in Penticton, landscape cloth and river rock looks nice for 
couple years then shabby. Commented middle of land rush in Penticton, do we have to 
meet demand for everyone who wants to come here, been discovered, look at other 
issues besides meeting demand. Commented too many units, consider fewer, five not 
ten, more green space, large profit will be made even with fewer units. Commented not 
future land use that we agreed to, leap above OCP, it’s a lot, if passed setting 
precedence. Represents redevelopment of brownfield site, let run derelict, hope council 
will say anything will look better than what there now, looks awful, start demanding 
more from property owners. Inquired what entry level price per unit being committed to 
be called affordable. Commented not a whole lot amenity space. Commented 
understands current trees not worthy, proposed trees grow to width of 2 ft., will not cool 
area, not enough shade, crowded into small space, want mature trees, need more green 
space. Comment made by designer, trees more appropriate to scale of project, 
responded scale of project should be more appropriate to climate change. Commented 
acquire land from adjacent property to develop fence to prevent crimes. Commented 
surprised that developer is unknown, active listing on MLS, listed for sale since 
September 2020, duplicitous to sell property with intention of flipping and rezoning. 
 

 
Mayor Vassilaki asked the public for the third and final time if anyone wished to speak to the 
application. 
• Lynn Kelsey, Oakville Street, echoed Mr. O’Gorman’s comment, drove to see area, 

nightmare in back corner, total bottleneck, can’t see fire truck getting in and around 
there, safety needs to be taken a good look at. Commented need to look at full picture 
before pushing through and decrease amount of green pace and environment 
happiness. Important to look at squeezing in building without considering the liveability, 
go down to eight, increase greenspace, take a look at bottleneck. 

• James Brown, Brunswick Street, agrees with speakers, passionate about disabled access, 
disabled access has not been addressed, needs to be consideration for people with 
mobility issues trying to get into market, facing barriers, some buildings being built are 
designated for people with disabilities, getting upstairs is a big issue. Wish developers 
would keep people with disabilities and seniors in mind wanting to get into market, 
wishes developers would begin addressing this issue. 

• Lynn Kelsey, Oakville Street, inquired about price point of units. 
• Llewelyn Lloyd, via Zoom, Designer and Agent Representative, responded providing 

more parking than required, two-way drive aisle to be constructed along property line. 
Responded to wedge and constricted flow, would need arrangement between property 
owners, wasn’t something addressed during consideration. Responded green space 
requirements met, followed City guidelines, six ironwood trees, different types of 
landscaping, juniper mentioned is smaller shrub. Responded to smart growth, working 
with demand, provide sustainable housing for redeveloping properties, make better use 
of land then go up on hillsides. Responded property not sold, owner purchased in 2017, 
sale pending. Responded brown field site same state as it was, no upkeep. Responded 
target selling price unknown. Responded amenity space is as per bylaw, at least 
minimum. Responded trees in front ironwood, provide shade. Responded access to 
property found better closed off from anyone traveling through, KVR access, wanted to 
prevent problems, names of developers on signs. Responded wedge is an issue not 
brought up, can’t comment. Responded to accessibility, ground floor of units has 
bedroom, easy access for anyone in wheelchair, stair lifts available to access second floor. 

• Lorraine Stephanson, Farrell Street, commented property sold in 2017 for 455,000, now 
pending sale close to million, clarified points made to climate change and liveability. 

• Denis O’Gorman, Farrell Street, commented crass opportunism, pursue acquisition of 

- 11 -



 
Minutes of August 16, 2022  Public Hearing No. 1  Page 4 of 4 
    
  

wedge and open wide enough space for through traffic and parking, shares concerns for 
vagabond influences, public interest components should be considered more seriously 
in assessing development applications. Commented public interest is having parking 
issue resolved, demonstrable public needs, governments need to be more assertive or 
entrepreneurial. 
 

 
The public hearing for “Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 2022-41” and “Zoning 
Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-42” was terminated at 6:48 p.m. and no new information can be 
received on this matter. 

 
 
 
 

Certified correct:      Confirmed: 
 
 

_____________________  ________________________ 
Angie Collison   John Vassilaki 
Corporate Officer  Mayor 

- 12 -



 
 

Minutes 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Public Hearing  
held electronically and at City Hall, Council Chambers 

171 Main Street, Penticton, B.C.  
 

Tuesday, August 16, 2022 
at 6:00 p.m. 

 
 Present:  Mayor Vassilaki 
    Councillor Bloomfield  

  Councillor Miller 
  Councillor Robinson 
  Councillor Watt  

          Councillor Sentes  
 
  Absent:  Councillor Regehr 
 
 Staff:  Donny Van Dyk, Chief Administrative Officer 
     Angie Collison, Corporate Officer 
     Angela Campbell, Director of Finance & Administration   
     Blake Laven, Director of Development Services  
     Steven Collyer, Planner I 
     Kristen Dixon, General Manager of Infrastructure  
     Paula McKinnon, Deputy Corporate Officer 
          

1. Call to order 
 

Mayor Vassilaki called the public hearing to order at 6:48 p.m. for Zoning Amendment Bylaw 
No. 2022-43. 

 
The Corporate Officer read the opening statement and introduced the purpose of the bylaw. 
She then explained that the public hearing was being held in-person and electronically to 
afford all persons who considered themselves affected by the proposed bylaw an opportunity 
to be heard before Council.  She further indicated that the public hearing was advertised 
pursuant to the Local Government Act. 

  
2. “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-43” (747 and 755 Revelstoke Avenue) 

 
The purpose of “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-43” is to amend Zoning Bylaw  
No. 2021-01 as follows:  

 
Rezone Lot 49 District Lot 2 Group 7 Similkameen Division Yale (Formerly 
Yale Lytton) District Plan 1049, located at 747 Revelstoke Avenue, and Lot 48 
District Lot 2 Group 7 Similkameen Division Yale (Formerly Yale Lytton) 
District Plan 1049, located at 755 Revelstoke Avenue, from R2 (Small Lot 
Residential) to RD2 (Duplex Housing: Lane). 

- 13 -



 
Minutes of August 16, 2022  Public Hearing Package No. 2  Page 2 of 3 
    
  

 
The applicant is proposing to construct one two-storey, back-to-back duplex 
on each subject property. 

 
The Corporate Officer advised that no letters have been received since the printing of the 
agenda and distributed to Council. 

 
DELEGATIONS 

 
Mayor Vassilaki asked the public for the first time if anyone wished to speak to the application. 
• Tony Giroux, via Zoom, Representing Applicant, available to answer any questions. 
• Richard Overstall, Revelstoke Avenue, reviewed public notice and council report, helpful 

exchange with staff, all legal boxes ticked off, tight parking situation not addressed on 
Revelstoke Avenue, relatively small lots, road access driveways on side of street, 
grandfathered in, legal non-conforming, restricts parking. Commented two vacation 
rental properties on street, produce significant amount of vehicles, average two vehicles 
per household, inquired with Planning Department that development was providing one 
parking space per household, told “we feel adequate for City”, not based on data, two 
spaces realistic, development required to provide two off-lane parking spaces. 
Commented supports densification, impact should not be shorted by citizens to reduced 
development costs. 

• James Brown, Brunswick Street, no sidewalks on Revelstoke Avenue, Oakville Street, 
Fairway Avenue, safety concern, must go opposite traffic to be seen in wheelchair, 
inquired what is being done to address issue. 
 

Mayor Vassilaki asked the public for the second time if anyone wished to speak to the application. 
• Chad Siemens, via Zoom, Revelstoke Avenue, neighbouring property, second residence, 

operating as short-term rental, concerned about two storey back-to-back neighbour, 
height of development overlooks front and back yard, higher than would like to see, 
privacy concerns, height blocks all daylight coming from west, made improvements to 
backyard, would hate for it to change, rendering shows residence in complete shade. 
Commented parking restricted space in neighbourhood, parallel parking only, same in 
neighbouring properties, some parking off back lane, front would have visitors using 
spaces and overflowing to neighbours. Commented enjoys property for personal 
enjoyment and short-term rentals, construction duration, 1.5m from property line, have 
not seen an mitigation for construction, assured no development when did that change, 
as new owners, owned for 9months, made steps to improve property indoors and 
outdoors respecting neighbourhood, concerned about consistency. Commented small 
dwelling, not dominating lot, not opposed to responsible development or improvement, 
more consultation on mitigation impact on neighbourhood. 
 

Mayor Vassilaki asked the public for the third and final time if anyone wished to speak to the 
application. 
• Lynn Kelsey, Oakville Street, concerned about blocked sunlight in area, personally feeling 

effect of duplexes, they are tall. 
• Tony Giroux, via Zoom, Representing Applicant, responded meets city parking 

requirements, one parking stall per unit, precedence in community, been doing this for 
years, providing two parking spots off lane, should also be allowed to park in front of 
their property, room off lane for third parking spot if becomes requirements, everyone 
on street must take responsibility for parking. Responded city to address installing 
sidewalks, at least at one side of street. Commented housing more important than 
parking for vacation rentals. Responded two storey buildings, style of roof peaked, if 

- 14 -



 
Minutes of August 16, 2022  Public Hearing Package No. 2  Page 3 of 3 
    
  

building measured to normal standard, would be 6-7m. Responded one bedroom 
window facing side properties, doesn’t perceive privacy issues. Responded two storey 
building, blocking sun, rendering shot at different times of day, will be enough sun for 
garden, peak heat in summer provides extra shade, less need for cooling home, height of 
building is nothing out of ordinary, buildings have crawl space, shorter than building on 
Kamloops. Responded character of neighbourhood is multifamily infill, style fits 
character. Responded distance to property line typical to all homes, 5ft setback not 
asking for any reductions, consistent to what’s being built in neighbourhood, doesn’t 
anticipate parking to be issue, additional parking could be added if required, trying to 
avoid putting more asphalt in. 

 
The public hearing for “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-43” was terminated at 7:15 p.m. 
and no new information can be received on this matter. 

 
 

Certified correct:      Confirmed: 
 
 

_____________________  ________________________ 
Angie Collison   John Vassilaki   
Corporate Officer  Mayor 

- 15 -



 
 

Minutes 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Public Hearing  
held electronically and at City Hall, Council Chambers 

171 Main Street, Penticton, B.C.  
 

Tuesday, August 16, 2022 
at 6:00 p.m. 

 
 Present:  Mayor Vassilaki 
    Councillor Bloomfield  

  Councillor Miller 
  Councillor Robinson 
  Councillor Watt  

          Councillor Sentes  
 
  Absent:  Councillor Regehr 
 
 Staff:  Donny Van Dyk, Chief Administrative Officer 
     Angie Collison, Corporate Officer 
     Angela Campbell, Director of Finance & Administration   
     Blake Laven, Director of Development Services  
     Steven Collyer, Planner I 
     Kristen Dixon, General Manager of Infrastructure  
     Paula McKinnon, Deputy Corporate Officer 
          

1. Call to order 
 

Mayor Vassilaki called the public hearing to order at 7:15 p.m. for Zoning Amendment Bylaw 
No. 2022-44. 

 
The Corporate Officer read the opening statement and introduced the purpose of the bylaw. 
She then explained that the public hearing was being held in-person and electronically to 
afford all persons who considered themselves affected by the proposed bylaw an opportunity 
to be heard before Council.  She further indicated that the public hearing was advertised 
pursuant to the Local Government Act. 

  
2. “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-44” (561 Jermyn Avenue) 

 
The purpose of “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-44” is to amend Zoning Bylaw  
No. 2021-01 as follows:  

 
Rezone Lot 2 District Lot 249 Similkameen Division Yale District Plan 1030, 
located at 561 Jermyn Avenue, from R2 (Small Lot Residential) to RM2 (Low 
Density Multiple Housing). 

 

- 16 -



 
Minutes of August 16, 2022  Public Hearing Package No. 3  Page 2 of 3 
    
  

The applicant is proposing to construct a four-unit, three-storey townhouse 
on the subject property. 

 
The Corporate Officer advised that one letter has been received since the printing of the 
agenda and distributed to Council. 

 
DELEGATIONS 

 
Mayor Vassilaki asked the public for the first time if anyone wished to speak to the application. 
• Tony Giroux, via Zoom, Giroux Design Group, project does have variances, building 

originally designed not requiring variance, City staff requested variance, each garage 
capable of holding two vehicles but does not meet standards for width, seven parking 
spaces, in reality 11 parking spaces with smaller vehicles. Letter of support from 
neighbour, available to answer any questions. 

• John Shaw, Jermyn Avenue, sent letter, not in favour of project, concerned residential 
guidelines not adhered to, small setback is significant diversion, poses significant change 
to neighbourhood, changes character of neighbourhood. Concerned about narrow 
width of property, very narrow, zoning bylaw requires 19.5m, lane and access to Jermyn 
Avenue, only 6m wide, considerable traffic creates challenging situation. Proposed 
driveway 6m from lane if allowed, 6m required to garage. Better solution may be 
different zoning designation, RM3, could retain neighbourhood character, better onsite 
parking, alleviate lane and street safety issues. 
 

Mayor Vassilaki asked the public for the second time if anyone wished to speak to the application. 
• Brad Moore, Jermyn Avenue, live next door, do not support project, concerned about 

privacy, four families looking into yard. If project goes forward, front-to-back duplex 
makes more sense. Commented construction side, survey done in 2010, house right now 
over lot line, retaining wall, my fence will fall over, stamped concrete will break, inquired 
how potential damage to property will be addressed.  Commented security fencing 
round property to protect while development. 

• Jordan Shade, Backstreet Blvd., lane very narrow, car barely fits, if lane access, two-way 
required. Commented emergency vehicles will not fit, should not have lane access, very 
dangerous. 
 

Mayor Vassilaki asked the public for the third and final time if anyone wished to speak to the 
application. 
• Lynn Kelsey, Oakville Street, drove to area,  front setback onot Jermyn Avenue, project 

oriented to Bird Street, would not call a street, everything in area really setback, coming 
out onto really tiny lane, larger vehicle will have trouble turning around, 7m difference, 
lane barely 6ft wide, no way to get a sidewalk in there for accessibility.  

• James Brown, Brunswick Street, echoes comments about lane, inquired if setbacks 
adequate for fire protection and firefighting purposes. 

• Tony Giroux, via Zoom, Giroux Design Group, responded three metre setback is city 
requirement, not long enough for vehicle to nose in before the door, did bring building 
back, gone beyond,. Six metres to garage, discussed with City, moved to Bird Street. 
Responded units could have had open carport below, garage more attractive. 
Responded mix of multifamily, designed to fit character of neighbourhood. Responded 
each backyard to have Japanese Maples, provide privacy, 4.2m buffer between 
properties because of reduced setback. Responded completely sufficient for firefighting 
services. Responded OCP for this neighbourhood is infill, new development always 
positive for neighbourhoods, consistent, nice fit, family oriented homes, close to two 
schools, shopping and other facilities, providing more parking than required, should not 

- 17 -



 
Minutes of August 16, 2022  Public Hearing Package No. 3  Page 3 of 3 
    
  

be issue, six metre lane consistent with developments like this. 
• Brad Moore, Jermyn Avenue, inquired about concrete retaining walls between 

properties, falling fence, stamped concrete, will they fix anything they break and secure 
fencing around entire property. 

• John Shaw, Jermyn Avenue, inquired about lane way and property width, standard 
subdivision, inquired when that changed, commented narrow lot for that type of project. 
Inquired about general development provisions for garage. 

• Blake Laven, Director of Development Services, responded current bylaw been that way 
since 2011, previous bylaw had subdivision regulations separate from development, 
topic come up in other developments, flagged to add clarity to. 

• Tony Giroux, via Zoom, Giroux Design Group, retaining wall for benefit of neighbour, no 
ned to replace if doing job, if not structurally sound, can see grade difference, if retaining 
wall not structurally sound and need to be replaced, any damages would be 
compensated. Responded security fencing typically property surrounded where required 
to provide security, if existing fence is there, would be there until new fence is ready to 
go up, if neighbour likes existing fence, may be left. 

 
The public hearing for “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-44” was terminated at 7:45 p.m. 
and no new information can be received on this matter. 

 
 

Certified correct:      Confirmed: 
 
 

_____________________  ________________________ 
Angie Collison   John Vassilaki   
Corporate Officer  Mayor 

- 18 -



 

Minutes 
 

 

Community Sustainability Advisory Committee Meeting  
to be held via Zoom 

Wednesday, August 17, 2022 
at 9:00 a.m. 

   
Present:   Chris Allen, Chair 
   Randy Boras, Vice Chair 

Philip Hawkes 
Margaret Holm 
Nicolas Stulberg 

 
Council Liaison: Julius Bloomfield, Councillor 

 
Staff:  Kristen Dixon, General Manager of Infrastructure 

David Kassian, Sustainability Supervisor 
Nicole Capewell, Planner II 
Hayley Anderson, Legislative Assistant 

 
Regrets:   Anne Hargrave 

Lyndie Hill 
    

1. Call to Order 
 

The Chair called the Community Sustainability Advisory Committee meeting to order at 9:02 am.  
 
2. Adoption of Agenda  
 

It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT the Community Sustainability Advisory Committee adopt the agenda for the meeting 
held on August 17, 2022 as amended. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

3. Adoption of Minutes 
 

3.1 Minutes of May 18, 2022 Community Sustainability Advisory Committee 
 

It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT the Community Sustainability Advisory Committee adopt the minutes of the  
May 18, 2022 meeting as presented.  

  CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
 
 
 

- 19 -



Page 2 of 2 
Minutes of the August 17, 2022 Community Sustainability Advisory Committee 

 

4. New Business 
 

4.1 EV Ready Zoning Bylaw 
 
The Sustainability Supervisor introduced Tami Rothery and Hanna Sander-Green from 
Community Energy Association to present an EV-ready Policy discussion.  
 
It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT the Community Sustainability Advisory Committee recommend that Council 
direct staff to prepare an amendment to the Zoning Bylaw to include provisions for 
electric vehicle charging requirements for new residential and commercial 
developments.  

       CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 
4.2 2021 Corporate Emissions Summary 

 
The Sustainability Supervisor provided the Committee with an update on the 2021 
Corporate Emissions Summary and the next steps being taken to review current 
consumption. 
 
It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT the Community Sustainability Advisory Committee receive into the record the 
report dated August 17, 2022 titles ‘2021 Corporate Emissions Summary.’ 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

4.3 Committee Progress Update, 2019 to Present  
 
The Chair provided the Committee with an update on what the Committee has 
accomplished as well as any items still in progress. 

 
5. Public Question Period 
 
6. Adjournment  
  

It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT the Community Sustainability Advisory Committee meeting held on Wednesday, August 
17, 2022 adjourn at 10:35 am. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
 
Certified Correct: 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Hayley Anderson  
Legislative Assistant 
 

- 20 -



 

 
Council Report 

 

   

 

 

Date: September 6, 2022    File No.: N\city\Address\Government St\1042 
To: Donny van Dyk, Chief Administrative Officer 
From: Ken Kunka, Building and Permitting Manager  
Address: 1042 Government Street 
 
Subject: 1042 Government Street: Request for Notice on Title 

 

Staff Recommendation 

THAT Council direct the Corporate Officer to register a Notice on Title, under section 57 of the Community 
Charter, with respect to contraventions of the City of Penticton Building Bylaw No. 2021-21 on Lot 1, District 
Lot 249 Similkameen Division Yale District, Plan 3556 Except Plan KAP68129 located at 1042 Government 
Street (the Property), stating the following: 

“Failure to complete a building permit, which is a violation of the City of Penticton Building Bylaw No. 
2021-21. Further information about it may be inspected at the municipal hall.” 
 

Strategic Priority Objective 

Community Safety: The City of Penticton will support a safe, secure, and healthy community. 

Council Authority 

As outlined in part 2, division 1 of the Community Charter, local governments have the authority to regulate 
construction. In the City of Penticton, the power to regulate construction is exercised through the Building 
Bylaw No. 2021-21 and the failure to complete building permit BP013290 falls under the Building Bylaw No. 
2021-21 as well. 

Under the authority of the section 57(3) of the Community Charter, it is appropriate for Council to consider a 
resolution to place a Notice on the Tile of the property for the expiry of the building permit BP013290. The 
resolution should be considered only after both the building official and the owner have been provided with 
the opportunity to be heard by Council. Should the unpermitted construction be remediated in accordance 
with the Building Bylaw No. 2021-21, then the Notice on Title may be requested to be removed by the owner 
through section 58 of the Community Charter. 

Background 

Attached to this Council Report is a Chronology of Events (Attachment A) that outlines the history of staff’s 
involvement with the Property and attempts to have the owner complete the building permit BP013290. In 
addition, the letter dated February 16, 2022 that provided the owner with options for compliance, following 
staff’s two inspections of the Property, has been attached (Attachment B). During staff’s inspections of the 
Property, staff identified the existence of an illegal secondary suite and unpermitted interior alterations to 
the single-family dwelling for which the owner later submitted a building permit application to rectify.  The 

- 21 -



 
Council Report  Page 2 of 7 

building permit BP013290 was then issued on April 7, 2022 with the requirement that the owner call for the 
first inspection by July 7, 2022, which the owner failed to accomplish. 
 
Staff are commencing escalating enforcement action in accordance with Council’s Building Compliance 
Policy (Resolution No. 437/2018), to ensure compliance through requesting Council place a Notice on the 
Title of the Property via section 57 of the Community Charter. While the owner applied on August 11, 2022 
for a Development Permit to construct a rental apartment building of five storeys and 35 units, the health 
and safety concerns for the occupants are not mitigated by this application. In addition, the Development 
Permit process is expected to take up to two months to complete and requires Council’s approval for the 
applicant to then proceed to a building permit application for the apartment building. 
 
Analysis 

At the time of this report, the Property remains in violation of the City’s Building Bylaw No. 2021-21 and the 
British Columbia Building Code, because of the failure to complete the building permit BP013290 for the 
Property. Due to current enforcement efforts having not brought the Property into compliance with the 
City’s Bylaws, staff are recommending the registration of a Notice on the Title of the Property. In addition, 
staff would like for Council to consider the following information when contemplating this action: 
 

• The potential safety risks for occupants and users of the illegal secondary suite, as a result of 
construction that is non-compliant with the British Columbia Building Code; 

• If the City should choose not to enforce, then the potential for legal claims as a result of possible 
damages to surrounding properties; 

• A reputation of not enforcing bylaws to ensure compliance with the City’s pertinent regulations; 
• The Chronology of Events that details staff’s efforts to bring the Property into compliance 

(Attachment A). 
 

Financial implications 

With the exception of the expenditure to register a Notice on Title, which is $74.16 plus staff time, there are 
no financial implications for the City. Should the Property be brought into compliance with the City’s Bylaws, 
a $500.00 fee is in place for the removal of the Notice on Title. 

Conclusion 

The Property at 1042 Government Street remains in violation of the City’s Building Bylaw No. 2021-21 and 
the British Columbia Building Code. During staff’s involvement with the Property, staff have adhered to 
Council’s approved Building Compliance Policy, as well as section 57(1) of the Community Charter.  
Therefore, this report recommends that Council direct the Corporate Officer to register a Notice on Title of 
the Property. 

Attachments 

Attachment A – Chronology of Events  
Attachment B – Letter dated February 16, 2022 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

Ken Kunka, AScT RBO 
Building and Permitting Manager 
Concurrence  

 

Director of Development 
Services 

Chief Administrative 
Officer 

BL DvD 

- 22 -



 
Council Report  Page 3 of 7 

 
 

Attachment A – Chronology of Events 
Chronology of Events 

1042 Government Street 

Date of Documentation Description Associated Document 
August 11, 2022 The owner submitted a Development Permit 

application to construct an apartment building at 
the Property. 

 

August 10, 2022 The owner claimed that the single-family dwelling 
(SFD) was to soon be demolished and that the 
tenants were not cooperating. 

 

August 4, 2022 Staff posted a Do Not Occupy Notice to the illegal 
secondary suite. 

 

July 27, 2022 Staff sent an e-mail to the owner that provided a 
second warning of a Do Not Occupy Notice. 

 

July 7, 2022 Staff gave 30-days’ warning of the posting of a Do 
Not Occupy Notice to the illegal secondary suite 
to the owner. 

 

July 7, 2022 The owner failed to call for the first required 
inspection for the building permit BP013290. 

 

April 7, 2022 BP013290 was issued for the decommissioning of 
the illegal secondary suite and legalization of the 
interior alterations. 

 

April 5, 2022 The ticket was changed to a warning, because of 
the building permit application. 

 

March 25, 2022 The owner submitted a building permit 
application for the Property. 

 

March 22, 2022 Staff sent an enforcement letter and issued a 
ticket to the owner. 

 

March 18, 2022 Staff sent an e-mail to the owner about a building 
permit application having not been submitted. 

 

March 14, 2022 The owners attempted to submit an incomplete 
building permit application for the Property. 

 

March 4, 2022 Staff held a meeting with the owners to discuss 
the unpermitted construction at the Property. 

 

February 16, 2022 Staff sent a letter to the owner that was regarding 
the two inspections of the Property 

Attachment B 

February 15, 2022 Staff inspected the first storey of the SFD and 
confirmed that no operation to manufacture or 
grow controlled substances was present. 

 

February 8, 2022 Staff sent an e-mail to the owner that advised that 
staff would have to inspect the first storey. 

 

February 8, 2022 Staff conducted an inspection of the Property and 
confirmed that an illegal secondary suite and 
unpermitted work were present, but staff were 
not able to inspect the first storey of the SFD. 

 

January 25, 2022 Staff sent a letter to the owner that requested an 
inspection of the Property. 

 

January 21, 2022 The City received information that alleged that an 
illegal secondary suite was present and controlled 

 

- 23 -



 
Council Report  Page 4 of 7 

 
Attachment B – Letter dated February 16, 2022 

  

substances were being manufactured or grown at 
the Property. 

- 24 -



 
Council Report  Page 5 of 7 

  

- 25 -



 
Council Report  Page 6 of 7 

  

- 26 -



 
Council Report  Page 7 of 7 

 

- 27 -



 

 
Council Report 

 
 

 

Date: September 6, 2022       File No:    2380-20 
To: Donny van Dyk, Chief Administrative Officer  
From: Anthony Haddad, General Manager, Community Services  
Subject: Skaha Lake Marina – Marina Development Update 

 

Staff Recommendation 

THAT Council receive into the record the report dated September 6, 2022 titled “Skaha Lake Marina – Marina 
Development Update”. 

Background 

At their Special Council meeting held on Tuesday, April 12, 2022 Council passed the following resolution 
with regards to the Skaha Lake Marina Management Operating Agreement (MOA) with Penticton Yacht Club 
(PYC). 

126/2022 It was MOVED and SECONDED 

THAT Council support the long-term Management Operating Agreement for the Skaha Lake Marina 
land with Penticton Yacht Club as provided in Attachment A. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

This report provided Council and the community with an update on the progress made to date, in advance 
of works commencing in the Fall in and around the Skaha Lake Marina lands to accommodate the new 
restaurant internal and exterior renovations, parking lot upgrades and landscape / park land improvements 
on the property.  A summary of the recent activity is as follows: 

• The City of Penticon and Penticon Yacht Club have both approved the long term MOA. 
• The Penticon Yacht Club have agreed to a long term operating agreement with the new restaurant 

owner. 
• The Ministry of Forests, Lands and Natural Resource Operations have approved a 30-Year Lease for 

the foreshore lands. 
• The Penticton Yacht Club and Penticton Indian Band have developed a long term working 

partnership for the future of the Skaha Lake Marina lands. 

 

 

 

- 28 -



Council Report  Page 2 of 3 

 

Development Plans  

The concept plan approved as part of the successful RFP process has moved forward into the formal submission of 
the Development Permit Application.  The Development Permit is in the process of taking two forms;  

- Form and Character Development Permit for the interior and exterior design of the marina building 
- Environmental / Riparian Development Permit for the site layout and landscaping enhancement around the 

property 
 

Attachment A provides a copy of the updated drawings for the property – in line with the concept plans approved 
through the RFP process.  Staff will be working to finalise these approvals over the coming weeks, allowing for the 
submission of a Building Permit application. 

Attachments 

Attachment A – Skaha Lake Marina – Site Layout & Development Plans 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

Anthony Haddad 
General Manager, Community Services 
 
 
Concurrence 
 
Chief Administrative 

Officer  

 
DvD 

 

  

- 29 -



SKAHA MARINA

DRAWING LIST:

A-010 DEMO PLAN, DEMO RCP & PROPOSED PLAN (PREVIOUSLY AD-101)
A-050 CONTEXT PLAN 
A-051 SITE CONTEXT 
A-052 SITE PLAN 
A-101 OVERALL PLAN - GROUND LEVEL
A-201 ELEVATIONS
A-300 PERSPECTIVES

ISSUED FOR DP SUBMISSION

- 30 -



1

1

E E

13

13

A A

2

2

3

3

4

4

5

5

6

6

7

7

8

8

9

9

10

10

11

11

12

12

B B

C C

D D

F F

LINE OF EXISTING 
ROOF OVERHANG -
TO BE DEMOLISHED

LINE OF EXISTING 
ROOF OVERHANG -
TO BE DEMOLISHED

CAFE

KITCHEN

OFFICE

SHOP EXISTING PARTITION 
WALLS (DASHED) - TO 
BE DEMOLISHED TYP.

EXISTING DOORS 
(DASHED) - TO BE 
DEMOLISHED TYP.

REMOVE EXISTING 
WINDOW (DASHED) TYP. 

REMOVE EXISTING 
DOOR (DASHED) TYP. 

REMOVE EXISTING 
DOOR (DASHED) TYP. 

REMOVE EXISTING 
WINDOW (DASHED) TYP. 

REMOVE EXISTING 
DOOR (DASHED) TYP. 

REMOVE EXISTING 
WINDOW (DASHED) TYP. 

REMOVE EXISTING 
OVERHEAD DOOR

REPLACE EXISTING 
OVERHEAD DOOR

PORTION OF EXISTING WALL 
TO BE DEMOLISHED FOR 
DOOR OPENING - REFER TO 
A-101-OVERALL PLAN -
GROUND LEVEL

PORTION OF EXISTING WALL 
TO BE DEMOLISHED FOR 
DOOR OPENING - REFER TO 
A-101-OVERALL PLAN -
GROUND LEVEL

EXISTING 
SHED TO BE 
DEMOLISHED

EXISTING 
SHED TO BE 
DEMOLISHED

EXISTING 
SHED TO BE 
DEMOLISHED

LINE OF EXISTING PATIO. 
PAVERS TO BE RETAINED AND 
REPLACED AS REQUIRED

1

1

E E

13

13

A A

2

2

3

3

4

4

5

5

6

6

7

7

8

8

9

9

10

10

11

11

12

12

B B

C C

D D

F F

EXISTING CEILING 
TO BE DEMOLISHED

LINE OF EXISTING 
ROOF OVERHANG -
TO BE DEMOLISHED

LINE OF EXISTING 
ROOF OVERHANG -
TO BE DEMOLISHED

EXISTING 
SHED TO BE 
DEMOLISHED

EXISTING 
SHED TO BE 
DEMOLISHED

EXISTING 
SHED TO BE 
DEMOLISHED

EXISTING CEILING 
TO BE DEMOLISHED

1

1

E E

13

13

A A

2

2

3

3

4

4

5

5

6

6

7

7

8

8

9

9

10

10

11

11

12

12

B B

C C

D D

F F

PROPOSED CANOPY 
OVER PATIO 

8'
 -

 0
"12

' -
 0

"

EDGE OF PATIO EDGE OFEXISTING PATIO TO 
BE MAINTAINED 

PROPOSED  FENCE

LI
N

E
 O

F
 F

E
N

C
E

8' - 8" 8' - 0" 8' - 0" 8' - 0" 8' - 0" 8' - 8" 8' - 0" 8' - 0" 8' - 0" 8' - 0" 8' - 0" 8' - 8"

98' - 0"

PROPOSED FURRING WALL AT 
EXISTING EXTERIOR WALL 
(TYPICAL)

PROPOSED CLADDING AT 
EXISTING EXTERIOR WALL 

(TYPICAL)

REPLACE ALL WINDOWS AND 
DOORS AT EXTERIOR WALL 
(TYPICAL)

PROPOSED INTERIOR PARTITIONS 
AND DOORS (TYPICAL)

REPLACE 
OVERHEAD DOOR

PROPOSED 
VESTIBULE 

RETAIN EXISTING STRUCTURE

PROPOSED FURRING WALLS 
BOTH SIDES

LINE OF EXISTING CANOPY TO BE 
DEMOLISHED (ABOVE)

FIREPLACE

2 TOPS(5) = 10

4 TOPS (13) = 52

4 TOPS BANQUET (5) = 20

BAR SEATS = 10

GROUP A = 7

GROUP B = 11

LOUNGE SEATS = 10

8 TOPS (2) = 16

PROPOSED LEGEND

EXTENT OF PROPOSED CANOPY (ABOVE)

EXTENT OF PROPOSED ENTRY VESTIBULE

0
1
/2 "

1
"

2
"

Project Number

Original Issue

Sheet Number

Sheet Name

Project Status

Project Designer

Project Manager

Project Architect

Landscape Architect

Civil Engineer

Structural Engineer

Mechanical Engineer

Electrical Engineer

Interior Designer

Kitchen Planner

Building Envelope

Sheet Reviewer

1

A

B

C

D

2345

12345

A

B

C

D

Plumbing Engineer

8/
24

/2
02

2 
12

:1
9:

48
 P

M
C

:\r
vt

\2
02

1\
S

ka
ha

 M
ar

in
a_

C
E

N
T

R
A

L_
T

A
T

K
IN

S
.r

vt

A-010

DEMO PLAN, DEMO
RCP & PROPOSED
PLAN - GROUND
LEVEL

David Prystay
Skaha Marina

3895 Lakeside Rd.

Penticton, BC, V2A 0A5

HDR Architecture & Associates, Inc.

10340728

210 Hastings Ave.
Penticton, BC, V2A 2V6

HDR

HDR

HDR

TBD

TBD

ELEMENTAL

EMERGENT

FALCON

HDR

CRS, LTD

RJC

TBD1/8" = 1'-0" 1
DEMOLITION FLOOR PLAN - LEVEL 1

1/8" = 1'-0" 2
DEMOLITION RCP - LEVEL 1

MARK DATE DESCRIPTION

1 June 17, 2022 ISSUED FOR DEVELOPMENT PERMIT

2 Aug 24, 2022 ISSUED FOR DEVELOPMENT PERMIT

1/8" = 1'-0" 3
PROPOSED FLOOR PLAN - LEVEL 1

REPLACEMENT SHEET

ISSUED FOR DP SUBMISSION

- 31 -

TATKINS
Snapshot



PRELIMINARY CODE SUMMARY

SPRINKLERS

BUILDING IS LESS THAN 400m2, therefore;
3.2.2.28. GROUP A, DIVISION 2, ONE STOREY
1) A BUILDING CLASSIFIED AS GROUP A, DIVISION 2, IS PERMITTED TO BE OF COMBUSTIBLE OR NONCOMBUSTIBLE CONSTRUCTION, USED SINGLY OR IN COMBINATION, PROVIDED (a) 
IT IS NOT MORE THAN 1 STOREY IN BUILDING HEIGHT, AND (b) EXCEPT AS PERMITTED BY SENTENCE (2), IT HAS A BUILDING AREA NOT MORE THAN i) 400m2 IF FACING ONE STREET, ii) 
500m2 IF FACING 2 STREETS, OR iii) 600m2 IF FACING 3 STREETS. 

- NO SPRINKLERS REQUIRED

WASHROOMS

BECAUSE WE HAVE TWO HCWC, WE DO NOT FALL UNDER 3.7.2.2.(3) CLAUSE THAT WOULD NOT PERMIT US TO COUNT THE SINGULAR HCWC IN OUR WASHROOM COUNT, THEREFORE 
5 WASHROOMS TOTAL, 3 FEMALE AND 2 MALE (BY CODE) - DO NOT HAVE TO BE "SEXED", WE WOULD HAVE 75 OCCUPANTS OF EACH SEX, FOR A TOTAL OF 150 OCCUPANTS FOR THE 
BUILDING.

PROJECT DATA AND ZONING BYLAW SUMMARY

ZONING:
P2 - PARKS AND RECREATION

CIVIC ADDRESS:
3895 LAKESIDE RD., PENTICTON, BC, V2A 0A5

PROJECT DESCRIPTION:
RENOVATION OF A 3,920 ft2 EXISTING RESTAURANT & CLUBHOUSE. ONE STOREY IN BUILDING HEIGHT, CONSTRUCTED WITH PRE-FABRICATED WAFFLE CRETE PANEL & LIGHT 
WOOD FRAME WITH CONCRETE FOUNDATIONS. THE PROJECT WILL INCLUDE TENANT IMPROVEMENT OF BOTH INTERIOR AND EXTERIOR ELEMENTS OF THE EXISTING BUILDING. 

BUILDING AREAS:
GROUND LEVEL: 3,920 ft2

BUILDING HEIGHT:
EXISTING: 21'-6" (NO REVISIONS)

PARKING REQUIREMENT:
REQUIRED: 8 PARKING STALLS
PROPOSED: 37 PARKING STALLS (2 HANDICAP STALLS)

BICYCLE PARKING:
CLASS 1 CLASS 2

REQUIRED: 3 3
PROPOSED: 3 6

1. REFERENCE: THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF PENTICTON ZONING BYLAW NO.2021-01 (AMENDED BY 2021-30 ON SEPTEMBER 21, 2021)

PROJECT 
LOCATION

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 L
IN

E

PROPERTY LINE

EXISTING 
BUILDING

PROPERTY LINE

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 L
IN

E

SKAHA 
MARINA

SKAHA LAKE

EXISTING 
PARKING

0
1
/2 "

1
"

2
"

Project Number

Original Issue

Sheet Number

Sheet Name

Project Status

Project Designer

Project Manager

Project Architect

Landscape Architect

Civil Engineer

Structural Engineer

Mechanical Engineer

Electrical Engineer

Interior Designer

Kitchen Planner

Building Envelope

Sheet Reviewer

Plumbing Engineer

A

B

C

A

B

C

4 3 2 1

4 3 2 1

8/
24

/2
02

2 
12

:3
0:

04
 P

M
C

:\r
vt

\2
02

1\
S

ka
ha

 M
ar

in
a_

C
E

N
T

R
A

L_
T

A
T

K
IN

S
.r

vt

A-050

CONTEXT PLAN

David Prystay
Skaha Marina

3895 Lakeside Rd.

Penticton, BC, V2A 0A5

HDR Architecture & Associates, Inc.

10340728

210 Hastings Ave.
Penticton, BC, V2A 2V6

Author

HDR

HDR

TBD

TBD

ELEMENTAL

EMERGENT

FALCON

HDR

CRS, LTD

RJC

TBD

TRUE NORTH

MARK DATE DESCRIPTION

1 June 17, 2022 ISSUED FOR DEVELOPMENT PERMIT

2 June 17, 2022 ISSUED FOR LCRB REVIEW

3 Aug 24, 2022 ISSUED FOR DEVELOPMENT PERMIT
REPLACEMENT SHEET

ISSUED FOR DP SUBMISSION

- 32 -

TATKINS
Snapshot



1

E

13

A

SKAHA LAKE

171615
14

13

121110987654321

333231302928272625242322212019

18

PROPERY LINE

DRAGONBOAT DISPLAY

SIX (6) CLASS 2 BICYCLE 
PARKING

RETAIN EXISTING BOARDWALK
RETAIN LINE OF EXISTING FENCE

PROPOSED SOFTSCAPE

PROPOSED 
SOFTSCAPE

PROPOSED 
SOFTSCAPE

EXISTING TREE 
TO BE RETAINED

REMOVE 5 
PARKING 
STALLS

EXISTING FENCE & 
GATE AT NORTH TO 
BE DEMOLISHED

EXISTING PARK EXISTING PARK

EXISTING LEISURE PATH

LAKESIDE ROAD

LAKESIDE ROAD

BRANTFORD AVENUE

1 20

19 38

LOADING 

17

36

1

16

37

3839

40

48

49

50

51

52

PARKING LOT C
38 EXISTING STALLS 
TO BE RETAINED

PARKING LOT B
54 EXISTING BOAT STALLS. 
49 TO BE RETAINED

PROPOSED PARKING LOT A
10 EXISTING TYPICAL STALLS  TO BE RELOCATED 

25 PROPOSED STANDARD STALLS 

2  PROPOSED ACCESSIBLE PARKING STALLS 

4 EXISTING BOAT STALLS TO BE RELOCATED

6 EXISTING BOAT STALLS TO BE REMOVED

EXISTING LEISURE PATH

PROPOSED SOFTSCAPE

RETAIN LINE OF 
EXISTING FENCE

RETAIN LINE OF 
EXISTING 
FENCE & GATES

PROPOSED SIDEWALK

PROPOSED SIDEWALK

RETAIN EXISTING PATH

SKAHA MARINA
(92 BOAT SLIPS)

EXIS
TIN

G B
OAT 

RAMP

FENCE AND PROPANE 
TANK TO BE RETAINED

(TYP)

19' - 0"

(T
Y

P
)

8'
 -

 1
0"

(TYP)

19' - 0"

(T
Y

P
)

8'
 -

 1
0"

(T
Y

P
)

8'
 -

 1
0"

(BOAT STALLS)

36' - 0"

(B
O

A
T

 S
T

A
LLS

)
36' - 0"

(TYP)
8' - 10"

(T
YP

)

8' 
- 1

0"

(BOAT STALLS)

36' - 0"

(BOAT STALLS)36' - 0"

(TY
P

)
8' - 10"

CoP EASEMENT

CoP E
ASEMENT

C
oP

 E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

C
oP

 E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

CoP EASEMENT

C
oP

 E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

CoP E
ASEMENT

C
oP

 E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

DRIVE AISLE

EXISTING

SKAHA LAKE B
EACH

RETAIN
 E

XIS
TIN

G P
ATH

34 35 36 37

TRASH 
AREA

EXISTING
 BUILDING

ENTRY

EXITS

NEW TREES

SITE PLAN LEGEND

RETAIN EXISTING TREE

ALL PARKING STALL SIZES ARE STANDARD 
AND AS DICTATED BY: 
THE CORPORATION OF CITY OF PENTICTION 
Bylaw No. 2021-21, SECTION 6

PARKING NOTES

TRUE NORTH

0
1
/2 "

1
"

2
"

Project Number

Original Issue

Sheet Number

Sheet Name

Project Status

Project Designer

Project Manager

Project Architect

Landscape Architect

Civil Engineer

Structural Engineer

Mechanical Engineer

Electrical Engineer

Interior Designer

Kitchen Planner

Building Envelope

Sheet Reviewer

Plumbing Engineer

A

B

C

A

B

C

4 3 2 1

4 3 2 1

8/
24

/2
02

2 
4:

56
:5

2 
P

M
C

:\r
vt

\2
02

1\
S

ka
ha

 M
ar

in
a_

C
E

N
T

R
A

L_
T

A
T

K
IN

S
.r

vt

A-051

SITE CONTEXT

David Prystay
Skaha Marina

3895 Lakeside Rd.

Penticton, BC, V2A 0A5

HDR Architecture & Associates, Inc.

10340728

210 Hastings Ave.
Penticton, BC, V2A 2V6

Author

HDR

HDR

TBD

TBD

ELEMENTAL

EMERGENT

FALCON

HDR

CRS, LTD

RJC

TBD

MARK DATE DESCRIPTION

1 Aug 8, 2022 ISSUED FOR CITY REVIEW

2 Aug 24, 2022 ISSUED FOR DEVELOPMENT PERMIT
REPLACEMENT SHEET

1/32" = 1'-0" 1
CONTEXT PLAN

ISSUED FOR DP SUBMISSION

- 33 -

TATKINS
Snapshot



1

E

13

A

SKAHA LAKE

17
16

15

14
13

12
11

10
9

8
7

6
5

4
3

2
1

33
32

31
30

29
28

27
26

25
24

23
22

21
20

19

18

A
IS

LE
 W

ID
T

H

23
' -

 0
"

PROPERY LINE

DRAGONBOAT DISPLAY

SIX (6) CLASS 2 
BICYCLE PARKING

RETAIN EXISTING BOARDWALK

RETAIN LINE OF EXISTING FENCE

PROPOSED SOFTSCAPE

PROPOSED SOFTSCAPE

PROPOSED 
SOFTSCAPE

M
IN

 7
M

 D
R

IV
E

 A
IS

LE

23
' -

 0
"

EXISTING TREE 
TO BE RETAINED

REMOVE 5 
PARKING 
STALLS

EXISTING FENCE & GATE AT 
NORTH OF PARKING LOT A 
TO BE DEMOLISHED

EXISTING PARK

3M x 8M PROPOSED 
LOADING ZONE

38
39

40

48

49

50

51

52

PARKING LOT C
38 EXISTING STALLS 
TO BE RETAINED

EXISTING LEISURE PATH

PROPOSED 
SOFTSCAPING

RETAIN LINE OF 
EXISTING FENCE

RETAIN EXISTING 
FENCE AND GATES

PROPOSED SIDEWALK

PROPOSED SIDEWALK

RETAIN EXISTING PATH

SKAHA MARINA
(92 BOAT SLIPS)

EXIS
TIN

G B
OAT 

RAMP

(T
Y

P
)

19
' -

 0
"

(TYP)

8' - 10"

ACCESSIBLE STALL (TYP)

12' - 2"

19
' -

 0
"

FENCE AND PROPANE 
TANK TO BE RETAINED

(T
Y

P
)

8'
 -

 1
0"

(TYP)

19' - 0"

(T
Y

P
)

8'
 -

 1
0"

(BOAT STALL - TYPICAL)
36' - 0"

PROPOSED TRASH  
AREA

CoP EASEMENT

SKAHA LAKE B
EACH

RETAIN
 E

XIS
TIN

G P
ATH

RELOCATE 4 EXISTING BOAT STALLS
REMOVE 6 EXISTING BOAT STALLS

PROPOSED PARKING LOT A
10 EXISTING TYPICAL STALLS  TO BE RELOCATED 

25 PROPOSED STANDARD STALLS 

2  PROPOSED ACCESSIBLE PARKING STALLS 

4 EXISTING BOAT STALLS TO BE RELOCATED

6 EXISTING BOAT STALLS TO BE REMOVED

34
35

36
37

(B
O

A
T

 S
T

A
LL

 - 
T

Y
P

IC
A

L)

36
' -

 0
"

(TYPICAL)

8' - 10"

GATE - TBC

RETAIN EXISTING BOARDWALK

RETAIN LINE OF 
EXISTING FENCE

UTILITY AREA

ENTRY

EXITS

NEW TREES

SITE PLAN LEGEND

RETAIN EXISTING TREE

ALL PARKING STALL SIZES ARE STANDARD 
AND AS DICTATED BY: 
THE CORPORATION OF CITY OF PENTICTION 
Bylaw No. 2021-21, SECTION 6

PARKING NOTES

TRUE NORTH

0
1
/2 "

1
"

2
"

Project Number

Original Issue

Sheet Number

Sheet Name

Project Status

Project Designer

Project Manager

Project Architect

Landscape Architect

Civil Engineer

Structural Engineer

Mechanical Engineer

Electrical Engineer

Interior Designer

Kitchen Planner

Building Envelope

Sheet Reviewer

Scale

Plumbing Engineer

A

B

C

A

B

C

4 3 2 1

4 3 2 1

8/
24

/2
02

2 
4:

56
:5

5 
P

M

1/16" = 1'-0"

C
:\r

vt
\2

02
1\

S
ka

ha
 M

ar
in

a_
C

E
N

T
R

A
L_

T
A

T
K

IN
S

.r
vt

A-052

SITE PLAN

David Prystay
Skaha Marina

3895 Lakeside Rd.

Penticton, BC, V2A 0A5

HDR Architecture & Associates, Inc.

10340728

08/08/22

210 Hastings Ave.
Penticton, BC, V2A 2V6

Author

HDR

HDR

TBD

TBD

ELEMENTAL

EMERGENT

FALCON

HDR

CRS, LTD

RJC

TBD

1/16" = 1'-0" 1
SITE PLAN

MARK DATE DESCRIPTION

1 Aug 8, 2022 ISSUED FOR CITY REVIEW

2 Aug 24, 2022 ISSUED FOR DEVELOPMENT PERMIT
REPLACEMENT SHEET

ISSUED FOR DP SUBMISSION

- 34 -



D

G

D

G

14"X36"

C

H

D

H

21"X60"

CH

G

DCD

21"X60"

21"X60" 21"X60"

2
1
"X
3
6
"

CH D
C H

DC

G

BD

BD

C

18"X48"18"X48"

18"X48"

2
1
"X
2
4
"

14"X36"

14"X36"14"X48"

21"X36"

21"X36"

21"X36"

1

1

E E

3

A-201

2

A-201

1

A-201

4

A-201

13

13

A A

2

2

3

3

4

4

5

5

6

6

7

7

8

8

9

9

10

10

11

11

12

12

B B

C C

D D

F F

98' - 0"

9' - 0" 8' - 0" 8' - 0" 8' - 0" 8' - 0" 8' - 0" 8' - 0" 8' - 0" 8' - 0" 8' - 0" 8' - 0" 9' - 0"

40
' -

 0
"

8'
 -

 0
"

8'
 -

 0
"

8'
 -

 0
"

8'
 -

 0
"

8'
 -

 0
"

1890.32 SF

DININGBAR

FOH OFFICE

PUBLIC W/C

PUBLIC W/C

PUBLIC W/C

WR

KITCHEN

COOLER

BEER/WINE

OFFICE

STORAGE

W/C

CLUB HOUSE

BIKE STORAGE

LINE OF ROOF 
OVERHANG 
(DASHED)

8'
 -

 0
"

LINE OF ROOF 
OVERHANG 
(DASHED)

8' - 0"

5' - 0"

5' - 0"

5'
 -

 0
"

5'
 -

 0
"

2' - 6
"

2' - 6
"

VEST

1260 SF

PATIO

OCCUPANT LOAD
105

OCCUPANT LOAD
45

12
' -

 0
"

89' - 0"

36
' -

 0
"

EDGE OF 
PATIOS

EDGE OF 
PATIOS

8' - 0"

LINE OF FENCE

LI
N

E
 O

F
 F

E
N

C
E

TRUE NORTH

0
1
/2 "

1
"

2
"

Project Number

Original Issue

Sheet Number

Sheet Name

Project Status

Project Designer

Project Manager

Project Architect

Landscape Architect

Civil Engineer

Structural Engineer

Mechanical Engineer

Electrical Engineer

Interior Designer

Kitchen Planner

Building Envelope

Sheet Reviewer

Plumbing Engineer

A

B

C

A

B

C

4 3 2 1

4 3 2 1

6/
17

/2
02

2 
12

:2
8:

46
 P

M
C

:\r
vt

\2
02

1\
S

ka
ha

 M
ar

in
a_

C
E

N
T

R
A

L_
A

le
x.

R
ay

m
un

do
.r

vt

A-101

OVERALL PLAN -
GROUND LEVEL

David Prystay
Skaha Marina

3895 Lakeside Rd.

Penticton, BC, V2A 0A5

HDR Architecture & Associates, Inc.

10340728

210 Hastings Ave.
Penticton, BC, V2A 2V6

Author

HDR

HDR

TBD

TBD

ELEMENTAL

EMERGENT

FALCON

HDR

CANADIAN RESTAURANT SUPPLY, LTD

RJC

TBD

1/4" = 1'-0" 1
FLOOR PLAN - LEVEL 1

WASHROOMS

BECAUSE WE HAVE TWO HCWC, WE DO NOT FALL UNDER 3.7.2.2.(3) CLAUSE THAT WOULD NOT PERMIT US TO COUNT THE SINGULAR HCWC IN OUR 
WASHROOM COUNT, THEREFORE 5 WASHROOMS TOTAL, 3 FEMALE AND 2 MALE (BY CODE) - DO NOT HAVE TO BE "SEXED", WE WOULD HAVE 75 OCCUPANTS 
OF EACH SEX, FOR A TOTAL OF 150 OCCUPANTS FOR THE BUILDING.

NOTES

MARK DATE DESCRIPTION

01             6/17/2022               ISSUE FOR DEVELOPMENT PERMIT
02             6/17/2022               ISSUE FOR LCRB REVIEW

ISSUED FOR DP SUBMISSION

- 35 -

TATKINS
Snapshot



0
1
/2 "

1
"

2
"

Project Number

Original Issue

Sheet Number

Sheet Name

Project Status

Project Designer

Project Manager

Project Architect

Landscape Architect

Civil Engineer

Structural Engineer

Mechanical Engineer

Electrical Engineer

Interior Designer

Kitchen Planner

Wayfinding

Sheet Reviewer

Plumbing Engineer

A-201

EXTERIOR
ELEVATIONS

David Prystay
Skaha Marina

3895 Lakeside Rd.

Penticton, BC, V2A 0A5

HDR Architecture

10340728

HDR Penticton
210 Hastings Ave.
Penticton, BC, V2A 2V6

Author

GREYBACK

HDR ARCHITECTURE

HDR ARCHITECTURE

TBD

TBD

TBD

TBD

TBD

HDR ARCHITECTURE

CANADIAN RESTAURANT SUPPLY, LTD

TBD

MARK DATE DESCRIPTION

ELEVATIONS

0"
LEVEL 01

12' - 8"
TOP PARAPET

21' - 6"
TOP OF PARAPET

0"
LEVEL 01

12' - 8"
TOP PARAPET

21' - 6"
TOP OF PARAPET

0"
LEVEL 01

12' - 8"
TOP PARAPET

21' - 6"
TOP OF PARAPET

0"
LEVEL 01

12' - 8"
TOP PARAPET

21' - 6"
TOP OF PARAPET

1/8" = 1'-0" 1
ELEVATION - EAST

1/8" = 1'-0" 2
ELEVATION - NORTH

1/8" = 1'-0" 3
ELEVATION - WEST

1/8" = 1'-0" 4
ELEVATION - SOUTH

HDR Architecture Associates, Inc.

HDR ARCHITECTURE

LEGEND

01 - EASTERN WHITE CEDAR SIDING
02 - SHOU SUGI BAN/ CHARRED WOOD SIDING
03 - ALUMINUM STOREFRONT GLAZING
04 - ALUMINUM FRAME OVERHEAD DOOR W/ GLAZED INFILL PANELS
05 - PRESSED STEEL DOOR, PAINTED

02 0103 04 05

01             6/17/2022               ISSUE FOR DEVELOPMENT PERMIT

HDR Architecture Associates, Inc.
HDR Architecture & Associates, Inc.
210 Hastings Ave.
Penticton, BC, V2A 2V6

Project Designer

Project Manager

Project Architect

Landscape Architect

Civil Engineer

Structural Engineer

Mechanical Engineer

Electrical Engineer

Interior Designer

Kitchen Planner

Building Envelope

Plumbing Engineer

HDR

HDR

TBD

TBD

ELEMENTAL

EMERGENT

FALCON

HDR

CANADIAN RESTAURANT SUPPLY, LTD

RJC

TBD

ISSUED FOR DP SUBMISSION

- 36 -

TATKINS
Snapshot



0
1
/2 "

1
"

2
"

Project Number

Original Issue

Sheet Number

Sheet Name

Project Status

Project Designer

Project Manager

Project Architect

Landscape Architect

Civil Engineer

Structural Engineer

Mechanical Engineer

Electrical Engineer

Interior Designer

Kitchen Planner

Wayfinding

Sheet Reviewer

Plumbing Engineer

A-201

EXTERIOR
ELEVATIONS

David Prystay
Skaha Marina

3895 Lakeside Rd.

Penticton, BC, V2A 0A5

HDR Architecture

10340728

HDR Penticton
210 Hastings Ave.
Penticton, BC, V2A 2V6

Author

GREYBACK

HDR ARCHITECTURE

HDR ARCHITECTURE

TBD

TBD

TBD

TBD

TBD

HDR ARCHITECTURE

CANADIAN RESTAURANT SUPPLY, LTD

TBD

MARK DATE DESCRIPTION

ELEVATIONS

HDR Architecture Associates, Inc.

HDR ARCHITECTURE

PERSPECTIVES

A-300

01             6/17/2022               ISSUE FOR DEVELOPMENT PERMIT

HDR ARCHITECTURE

HDR Architecture Associates, Inc.
HDR Architecture & Associates, Inc.
210 Hastings Ave.
Penticton, BC, V2A 2V6

Project Designer

Project Manager

Project Architect

Landscape Architect

Civil Engineer

Structural Engineer

Mechanical Engineer

Electrical Engineer

Interior Designer

Kitchen Planner

Building Envelope

Plumbing Engineer

HDR

HDR

TBD

TBD

ELEMENTAL

EMERGENT

FALCON

HDR

CANADIAN RESTAURANT SUPPLY, LTD

RJC

TBD

ISSUED FOR DP SUBMISSION

- 37 -

TATKINS
Snapshot



 

 
Council Report 

 

   

 

 

Date: September 6, 2022       File No: 5080-01 
To: Donny van Dyk, Chief Administrative Officer 
From: Adam Goodwin, Social Development Specialist; Blake Laven, Director of Development Services 
 
Subject: Social Framework Update 

 

Staff Recommendation 

THAT Council endorse the work-to-date on the development of the Social Framework; 

AND THAT Council direct staff to continue working with community partners and City departments on 
finalizing the Social Framework and associated action plans.  

Strategic priority objective 

Mission: Penticton will serve its residents, businesses and visitors through good governance, partnership 
and the provision of effective and community focused services. 

Community Safety: The City of Penticton will support a safe, secure and healthy community. 

Community Vitality: The City of Penticton, guided by the Official Community Plan, will promote the 
economic wellbeing and vitality of the community.  

Background 

On February 1, 2022, City Council directed staff to apply for a grant from the Union of BC Municipalities to 
support the development of a framework for the City of Penticton and Social Development Department 
(Council Resolution 22/2022). This body of work is meant to help the Social Development Department 
review some of its work over the last few years, and identify some priorities and areas of action for the next 
several years. The framework helps guide decision making, set future direction, and support alignment 
between various bodies of work.  

During the February 1 presentation to Council, staff outlined that they would engage the support of a 
consultant to help facilitate interviews and workshops with partners if the grant funding from UBCM was 
received. The City was successful in receiving $25,000 from UBCM under the Poverty Reduction Planning and 
Action funding program to support this body of work, and began working with partners on the first phase of 
developing the framework.  

- 38 -



 
Council Report  Page 2 of 3 

Since receiving the grant, staff have worked with WRH Consulting and community partners to begin 
developing the Social Framework. Approximately 20 community partners were interviewed by WRH 
consulting, a survey went to community partners to help inform WRH Consulting’s work, and then a 
workshop with approximately 40 participants was held in late June 2022 to help identify the major 
components of the Social Framework. The findings to-date are included in the report from WRH Consulting 
in Attachment A. 

Financial implication 

The City received a grant from UBCM under the Poverty Reduction Planning and Action funding stream for 
$25,000 to support this work. It is anticipated that the grant will cover the costs associated with the current 
scope of work for the development of the Social Framework. Any additional activities outside of the current 
scope of work may require additional funding sources to be identified. Staff time is necessary to complete 
this work.  

Climate Impact 

While this body of work is not specifically looking at climate, climate change is an important consideration in 
the Social Development Department’s work. For example, extreme weather can negatively impact older 
adults (Age Friendly Action Plan) and is requiring more frequent deployment of the Penticton Emergency 
Support Services team. 

Analysis 

The purpose of this work is to work with community partners to review the Social Development 
Department’s work over the last two years, and to help plan the Department’s and associated City work for 
the next few years. Based on all of the work done to date, there are several emerging themes, as identified in 
the report from WRH Consulting in Attachment A. 

During the engagement activities, partners identified several components that were important for the City 
and community to explore as part of the development of the Social Framework. This included: 

• Successes and opportunities to learn from the last two years; 
• Purpose and role for the City of Penticton in being a partner in supporting the social well-being of 

the community; 
• Principles in which the Social Development Department should operate under; 
• Priorities for the Social Development Department; 
• Areas where it can enhance its impact in the community; and 
• Action plans for areas identified that do not already have an associated action plan.  

As noted, the early results of the engagement are included in Attachment A. Staff will continue to work with 
partners to further develop the Social Framework.  

Staff Recommendation 

Staff are recommending that Council receive the work completed to-date and support staff in continuing to 
develop the Social Framework. Staff will work with community partners as quickly as is reasonable to 

- 39 -



 
Council Report  Page 3 of 3 

complete this work. It will have important implications on informing the Department’s work, areas of focus, 
and areas of investment of time and resources into the future.  

Alternate recommendations 

THAT Council direct staff to return with additional information.  

Attachments 

Attachment A – Update Report from WRH Consulting 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Adam Goodwin Blake Laven 
Social Development Specialist  Director, Development Services 
 

Concurrence  

General Manager, 
Infrastructure 

Chief Administrative 
Officer 

 
KD 

 
DvD 

 
 

- 40 -



 

City of Penticton 
Towards A Comprehensive Social Framework for the City of Penticton 

WRH Consulting  August 2022 
 

 

 

  

- 41 -



1 | P a g e  
 

Contents 
Introduction ..................................................................................................................................................................... 2 

Official Community Plan ............................................................................................................................................... 2 

Role of the City’s Social Development Department ..................................................................................................... 3 

Achievements of the Social Development Department ............................................................................................... 3 

Our Process To Date ..................................................................................................................................................... 4 

Social Framework Context ............................................................................................................................................... 4 

What is a Social Framework? ........................................................................................................................................ 4 

Collaborative partners in supporting social sustainability ........................................................................................... 7 

Benefits of creating a Social Framework ...................................................................................................................... 5 

Opportunities to enhance the Social Development Department’s impact .................................................................. 5 

Establishing Guiding Principles ........................................................................................................................................ 7 

Guiding Principles for the Social Framework ................................................................................................................ 8 

Establishing Social Development Priorities for the City ................................................................................................. 8 

Areas where the City should take a primary role in responding .................................................................................. 8 

Areas where the City should share responsibility in responding ................................................................................. 8 

Areas where the City has a complementary role in responding: ................................................................................. 9 

Next Steps in the Development of a Comprehensive Social Framework ...................................................................... 9 

 

  

- 42 -



2 | P a g e  
 

Introduction 
 

The City of Penticton is undertaking the work of developing its first Social Framework which will provide direction to 
the continuing work of its Social Development department. This document reports out on the results of work 
commissioned and supported by the City’s Social Development Department to lay the groundwork for establishing a 
comprehensive Social Framework. 

 
Official Community Plan 
 
Penticton’s Official Community Plan (OCP) was approved by Council in August 2019.  The OCP was created to guide 
the evolution of the city to the year 2045, by which time it is expected the population will grow to about 42,000 
people. The Plan establishes goals and policies for a broad range of interrelated areas to create a holistic vision for 
the sustainable growth of our community and is relevant to the creation of a Social Framework. 
 
Vision: 
 

A connected, vibrant, prosperous, and healthy small city 
in a uniquely beautiful lakefront setting. 

 
 
The Vision’s elements: 
 

• We are connected socially, across generations, with our neighbours and through technology. 
• We are a vibrant and creative community, with a diverse arts and culture scene, exciting venues and events, 

festivals, markets, and restaurants. 
• We are prosperous because of our strong, integrated, and unique local and regional economy. 
• We are healthy, with a very active community, diverse sports events and opportunities, locally grown food 

from our agricultural lands, and a broad spectrum of health care. 
• We are a small city: it is easy to make social connections and to get around, but we also have great 

amenities that are the envy of larger cities: concerts, arts, restaurants, sports, recreational facilities and 
events, warm-water lakes, and ready access to the outdoors and locally produced food and drink. 

• We have a uniquely beautiful lakefront setting, nestled in a natural valley between two lakes and their 
adjoining parks, with unique ecosystems, four great seasons and a very amenable climate. 

 
 
Achieving our vision requires that we support and sustain the social fabric of our community.  The Provincial and 
Federal governments have primary responsibility for addressing many social issues that impact our community. 
Numerous local organizations are integral to the delivery of social programs and services to the community that are 
largely funded by these levels of Government. The City of Penticton, along with the Provincial and Federal 
governments and local organizations, also has a critical role in furthering social sustainability in the community 
through its policies, programs, and infrastructure. 
 
 
  

- 43 -



3 | P a g e  
 

Role of the City’s Social Development Department 
 
The Social Development department provides leadership in the interface with our community’s social infrastructure 
and supports City priorities with the primary goals of enhancing community safety and well-being.  
 
During the 2020 budget deliberations, Council supported the hiring of a Social Development Specialist. This position 
was also requested by organizations in the not-for-profit sector who were recommending that the looking for the 
City to play a role(s) in supporting the community around social issues and opportunities.  

When making the decision to support the position, Council identified three main areas of focus for the department: 
age friendliness (older adults and childcare/youth), housing and homelessness, and mental health and substance 
use. Along with some administrative transitions when the department started (e.g., Emergency Support Services, 
Local Immigration Partnership, Provincial Nominee Program, and the Respect Network), Social Development has 
prioritized its efforts in these areas while providing general customer service to the community and providing day-
to-day support to maintain the department.  

In addition to the Specialist position hired in 2020, an additional staff resource in the role of Community Mobilizer, 
(via grant funding), was added in 2021 to support the various initiatives Social Development is working on (now 
referred to as a Social Development Coordinator). 

As the department phases out of being a start-up and new department, there is an opportunity to review the 
department’s work to-date and identify future opportunities for Social Development.  A review of Social 
Development’s work to-date and plans for the future were also all identified as recommended actions in the Age 
Friendly Action Plan, Child Care Action Plan, and youth homelessness research project work.  

Furthermore, as the Social Development function is an outward facing service, that interacts with external 
organizations (e.g., not for profit housing and other providers) and other governmental agencies (e.g., BC Housing, 
Interior Health, Ministry of Family and Child Development), each organization has specific demands and ideas of 
what the Social Development function should and could be doing in the community. A Social Framework will assist 
with clarifying the department’s roles in order to balance the expectations placed on the team.  

 
Achievements of the Social Development Department 
 
Despite lacking an overarching Social Framework to guide the work, the City’s Social Development Department has 
been very proactive and successful in seizing opportunities to further its work. Some of the key achievements of the 
City’s Social Development Department to date include: 

• Approximately $6.4M in projects that are grant supported, plus have supported other organizations in 
receiving approximately $7M in grants. 

• Overseeing 6,000+ hours of Emergency Support Services over the last 18 months. 
• Representing the City on 18 external/public committees/working groups. 
• Completing an average media interview/backgrounder every 5 days. 
• Implementing the Age Friendly Action Plan, Child Care Action Plan, Community Action Team’s Substance 

Use Strategic work, Food Security Strategy, UBCM Housing and Homelessness Response Project, and youth 
homelessness research project, among other initiatives. 

- 44 -



4 | P a g e  
 

• Overseeing and supporting approximately 45 community-led projects through the neighborhood small 
grants program co-administered with the Community Foundation (as recommended in the Age Friendly 
Action Plan). 

• Supporting Bylaw Services with approximately 15 small projects around social issues. 
• Working to support newcomers and immigrants as they establish themselves in the community in 

partnership with community based organizations. 
 

 
Our Process to Create a Social Framework 
 
To date, the process engaged in by the City’s Social Development Department to lay the groundwork for the creation 
of a comprehensive social framework has included: 

• Recruiting support for managing an engagement and community consultation process through WRH 
Consulting, a local consultancy that has worked with the City’s Social Development department on other 
projects 

• Hosting guided interviews with a cross-section of representatives from local organizations and entities 
working with and in our community to support improved social outcomes (IHA, SD, social services, partners, 
City staff) 

• Hosting a facilitated workshop with 40+ invited stakeholders representing various local organizations and 
entities on June 29th, 2022. 

 
 

Social Framework Context 
 

What is a Social Framework? 
 
A Social Framework helps to support equality and social well-being through pro-active leadership and collaborative 
action on issues that impact quality of life for all residents providing clarity to support implementation of City 
initiatives which have social impacts.   
 
While the City of Penticton is not mandated to deliver health or social services directly, like  many municipalities, 
senior leadership and elected officials understand that local government has an important role to play in building 
healthy, inclusive, and vibrant communities and creating the conditions for residents to thrive by 
working with a variety of partners to promote health and well-being. These conditions in turn contribute to 
attracting and retaining businesses, promoting tourism, and attracting and retaining a stable workforce to maintain 
our services and build a resilient future for everyone who calls Penticton home and those who enjoy visiting. 
 
A Social Framework  looks beyond the day to day delivery of social services for residents and supports collaborative 
activity focusing on the social determinants of health, taking an asset based approach to respond to challenges such 
as poverty, food security, and housing.  A Social Framework offers a structure that assists with coordinating the 
activities, internal and external communications, and future planning providing guidance and reinforcing: 
 

• the quality of life of all individuals along with the health of the community, 
• the interaction between both the built and natural environments,  
• the prioritization of connection and sense of belonging. 

- 45 -



5 | P a g e  
 

 
Social frameworks ideally assist with providing: 
  

• a method for evaluating and addressing community needs, 
• a foundation for coordinating the strategic actions of the public, private, and community sectors, 
• guidance about the role and realistic capacity of the City to address social goals and support the 

efficient and effective intersection between the various departments that comprise the services and 
supports provided. 

 
Benefits of creating a Social Framework 
 
The following are commonly acknowledged benefits of Social Frameworks: 
 

• Provides clarity regarding scope, roles, and priorities – direction for the City about opportunities for 
involvement; 

• Defines the terms of a partnership – who is leading what in areas to capitalize on opportunities and 
enhance transparency and trust; 

• Emphasizes that complex problems require thoughtful, collaborative solutions – not a rush to simple 
options, but a multi-pronged approach that includes multiple strategies involving multiple partners; 

• Emphasizes the need for ongoing consultation and communication – authentic partnerships are the goal; 
• Supports a Collective Impact model –collaboration where there are several “doors” all supporting the same 

purpose and helps dispel the myth that social services don’t work well together; 
• Anchors the work of Social Development as a legitimate arena for the City to endorse and support – work 

towards reducing stigma associated with social issues and the people who are impacted most; 
• Assists with linking to the strategic goals of partner groups – helping to ensure that efforts are coordinated 

and aligned; 
• Creates a clear vision that promotes opportunities for collaboration – highlighting principles, values, and 

priorities supports more effective problem solving and helps to stabilize the outcomes; 
• Has the potential to attract resources and mobilize quickly when opportunities emerge 

 
Opportunities to enhance the Social Development Department’s impact 
 
As noted, the City’s Social Development department has had been able to record substantial achievements to date 
despite the absence of a comprehensive framework to help guide that work.  During guided interviews with a variety 
of key informants, and as an outcome of a facilitated workshop, there was consensus from partners that the role 
and value of the Social Development department has been proven and should be sustained.  Feedback identified 
several opportunities to further enhance the impact of the department: 
 

• Supporting ongoing evaluation and a learning culture: Collecting and sharing quantitative and qualitative 
data to inform evidence based approaches will assist with decisions across many issue areas and within 
organizations. 

• Proactive public education on social issues: Opportunities exist to address stigma associated with substance 
use, mental health, racism, homelessness, and other topics identifying the causes and intersectionality of 
social issues and celebrating and promoting the successes which have ben achieved through collaborative 
partnerships. 

• Providing clarity regarding roles, scope of responsibilities, reporting relationships: A clearer sense of what 
the department does or should be doing relative to other partners and stakeholders in the social space 

- 46 -



6 | P a g e  
 

• Building and sustaining strong relationships and trust amongst partners and stakeholders: Increasing social 
capital so that authentic collaborations can be fostered and sustained and ongoing consultation becomes a 
hallmark of engagement. 

• Fostering an action and solution focused approach to complex social issues: There are no simple solutions 
that will “fix” either people or problems. The City can and should play a constructive role in addressing 
complexity through multi-pronged approaches that consider and support contributions from a variety of 
sectors and mandates. 

• Formalizing communication protocols and strategies: To avoid missteps, assist with setting expectations 
that promote professionalism, build trust, and respect the structure and responsibilities of any potential 
partner(s) in a relationship. 

• Supporting cross departmental strategies within the City’s infrastructure: To enhance complimentary roles 
and actions. 

• Working to build a deeper understanding and appreciation of the complexity of issues within the political 
leadership of the City. 

• Reviewing the demand of ESS coordination on the department’s capacity. 
  

- 47 -



7 | P a g e  
 

Collaborative partners in supporting social sustainability 
 

Many of the social issues facing the City are complex. They have multiple causes and influencers that operate at 
local, regional, Provincial, national, and even international levels. Successfully addressing these issues typically 
requires the collaborative efforts of multiple partners and stakeholders that operate at different levels. Those 
partners include the following: 

 

 

 

Establishing Guiding Principles 
 

A first step in developing a comprehensive Social Framework for the City is the identification and definition of a set 
of shared principles to ground the framework and provide a common language and understanding for those 
involved in working to enhance the City’s social fabric. The draft principles identified below were developed through 
a generative process involving participants in the consultations. The process, known as a Delphi, involved three 
steps; the creation of a list of candidate principles through research into other Social Frameworks nationally and 
internationally; a survey of participants in the consultative process to get initial feedback on the candidate list of 
principles, and a final round of review and voting on the principles during the facilitated event on June 29th 2022. 
This process produced a preliminary set of draft principles, which require further refinement by the participants as 
part of an iterative process.  They are outlined below. 

social 
sustainability

local 
government

senior 
government

funders

research & 
academia

community 
organizations

community 
members

business

- 48 -



8 | P a g e  
 

 

Guiding Principles for the Social Framework (from brainstorming) 
 

• Collaborative action and mutual respect and responsibility 
• Sustainability (social, environmental, economic) 
• Proactive and prevention oriented 
• Honouring equity, diversity, and inclusion 
• Evidence based and informed 
• Flexible, adaptive, and responsive to, and of community need 
• Equitable and just 
• Grounded in dignity and well-being 
• Honouring of responsibilities to decolonization and reconciliation 
• Public participation and engagement (accessible, balancing perspectives, authentic) 

  
 
 

Establishing Social Development Priorities for the City 
 

The facilitated event on June 29th, 2022, included exercises directed at establishing priorities for the City’s Social 
Development department as well as defining the role that the City should take in these priority areas. The 
participants first generated a list of potential priorities and then ranked those priorities. The group then identified 
what role they felt the City should take in each of the areas, differentiating between priorities where they felt the 
city should play a primary role, a shared role (i.e., share responsibility), or a complementary role. The following are 
the results of the exercises, reflecting the collective wisdom and direction of the participants. Further discussion to 
define these initial priorities will form part of the ongoing engagement process. For clarity, these are a starting point 
for the next steps; this list has not been decided upon through consensus or another means of agreement yet. 

 

Areas where the City should take a primary role in responding 
(a primary role assumes leadership on infrastructure, coordination, financial support, and implementation) 

 

1. Community safety  
2. Transportation: (accessible, affordable) 

 

Areas where the City should share responsibility in responding 
(a shared responsibility offers opportunities to expand capacity by coordinating the resources, responsibilities, and 
mandates to build a collaborative response) 

 

The following are ranked in priority order, with those identified as high priority in bold: 

1. Housing (affordable, low barrier) 

- 49 -



9 | P a g e  
 

2. Mental Health and Wellness Supports: (increasing connectivity to resources, addressing 
complexity of substance use and mental health, reducing stigma) 

3. Supports for People Who Use Substances: (trauma informed, accessible, harm reduction 
responses, abstinence based) 

4. Homelessness 
5. Public education (reduce stigma of substance use, challenge racism, change narrative) 
6. Poverty Reduction Strategies 
7. Food security 
8. Seniors’ services 
9. Youth: (homelessness, emergency beds) 
10. Child Care: (increasing # of spaces, affordability) 
11. Building a respectful, inclusive community 
12. Truth and reconciliation 
13. Anti-oppressive policies & practices  
14. Climate response 

 

 

Areas where the City has a complementary role in responding: 
(complementary roles offer opportunities for the City to support initiatives which are led by other entities and which 
have a social impact on our community) 

1. Complex care (supports for individuals who have multiple and complex needs which require 
specialized services including housing, mental health, and substance use) 

2. Access to medical care (attachment to physicians) 
3. Immigration and welcoming newcomers  
 

Next Steps in the Development of a Comprehensive Social Framework 
 

Establishing shared principles to guide the shared work of addressing social issues and defining priority areas for the 
work of the Social Development department and their role in those areas, are critical first steps towards the creation 
of a comprehensive social framework for the city of Penticton. They provide practical touchpoints for the 
department’s current and planned work and establish the basis for future work to define the full framework. The 
process of engagement with the various partners who work with the City and who must be part of supporting a 
vibrant community that enhances the quality of life for all residents is an iterative one which will continue 
throughout the coming months. 

The next steps towards establishing a comprehensive framework include: 

• Finalize consensus on the guiding principles framework and create definitions for the shared principles so 
that all partners and stakeholders understand their meaning and how they can be put into action; 

• Further defining the City’s role in areas identified as priorities, particularly where that role is shared; 
• Developing shared plans with partners and stakeholders to address identified priority areas; 
• Working with City leadership to leverage the groundwork outlined in this document to establish a 

comprehensive Social Framework for the City. 
 

- 50 -



 

 
Council Report 

 

   

 

 

Date: September 6, 2022      File No:  
To: Donny van Dyk, Chief Administrative Officer 
From: Miyoko McKeown, FireSmart Coordinator 
 
Subject: 2023 UBCM Community Resiliency Investment (CRI) FireSmart Funding 

 

Staff Recommendation 

THAT Council support the application for grant funding up to $200,000 from the Union of British Columbia 
Municipalities (UBCM) under the Community Resiliency Investment (CRI) program, which provides 100% 
funding for the City of Penticton FireSmart Program. 

Strategic priority objective 

Community Safety: The City of Penticton will support a safe, secure and healthy community. 

Background 

The Community Resiliency Investment (CRI) program is a provincial grant program intended to reduce the risk 
and impact of wildfire has on communities within British Columbia through community funding, supports 
and priority fuel management activities on provincial Crown land, and funding request for FireSmart activities. 

The FireSmart Community Funding & Supports program is a grant available under the CRI program that 
provides funding to local governments and First Nations in BC to increase community resiliency by 
undertaking community-based FireSmart planning and activities that reduce the community’s risk from 
wildfire. 

The application for the 2023 funding is to continue the success and momentum of the 2021 and 2022 
FireSmart program. This includes the continuance of providing education for City residents, hazard 
assessments for residential homes and neighbourhoods within the Wildland Urban Interface (WUI), and fuel 
management at the local home owner level. Additionally this year’s funding will also include fuel mitigation 
on large parcels of land in and around Penticton’s WUI neighbourhoods, and rebates for residents working 
towards mitigating their home and property. Fuel mitigation around WUI neighbourhoods will be determined 
upon the completion of the CWRP. 

 

 

- 51 -



 
Council Report  Page 2 of 2 

Financial implication 

The grant funding can contribute 100% of the cost of eligible activities to a maximum of $200,000.  Eligible 
expenditures include consultant costs, applicant staff and administration costs, and public information costs.  
As well, the funding allows for the development & promotion of local Firesmart activities as well as Fuel & 
Vegetation Management on publicly owned land.  

A completed submission will be submitted by October 31, 2022 given there is approval from Council. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 
 
Miyoko McKeown 
FireSmart Coordinator 
 

Concurrence  

Fire Chief 
Chief Administrative 

Officer 

 

 
DvD 

 

 

 

 

- 52 -



 

 
Council Report 

 

   

 

 

Date: September 6, 2022       File No: 1855-03 
To: Donny van Dyk, Chief Administrative Officer 
From: Adam Goodwin, Social Development Specialist and Emergency Support Services Coordinator;  
 Brittany Seibert, Emergency Program Coordinator; and Vicky Horton, Emergency Support Services  
 Director  
 
Subject: 2023 UBCM Community Emergency Program Funding (CEPF) – Emergency  
 Support Services Funding   
 

Staff Recommendation 

THAT Council direct staff to submit an application on behalf of the Corporation of the City of Penticton for 
the Union of BC Municipalities’ Community Emergency Preparedness Fund’s 2023 Emergency Support 
Services funding program to invest in the Penticton Emergency Support Services team’s training, exercises, 
purchasing of equipment, and recruitment and recognition of ESS team members in 2023-2024;  

AND THAT the Fire Chief sign and submit the application; 

AND THAT Council direct staff to send a thank you to all 2022 Penticton Emergency Support Services team 
members and partners thanking them for their contributions to the Penticton ESS program in 2022.  

Strategic priority objective 

Community Safety: The City of Penticton will support a safe, secure and healthy community. 

Background 

Local governments, through their local emergency programs, are responsible for delivering and 
coordinating Emergency Support Services (ESS) programs. The ESS programs must be able to meet or 
exceed provincial ESS guidelines and operating procedures. The ESS programs receive financial support 
from the Province either through Emergency Management BC during emergencies, and/or the Union of BC 
Municipalities (UBCM) outside of emergencies to focus on further developing an ESS team’s capacity.  

The Union of BC Municipalities offers a suite of funding programs under the Community Emergency 
Preparedness Fund (CEPF) that is funded by the Province. This suite includes specific programs, such as 
extreme heat risk mapping and planning, Indigenous cultural safety and cultural humility training, and 
evacuation route planning. The ESS specific funding stream supports local governments in building the 
capacity of their ESS teams through recruitment, training, and the purchasing of ESS equipment.  

- 53 -



 
Council Report  Page 2 of 6 

Over the last three years, the City has invested significantly in the Penticton ESS program. Just from the 
UBCM CEPF program, the City of Penticton has received the following grant amounts: 

• For 2020-2021, the City received $21,500 and spent $21,500; 
• For 2021-2022, the City of Penticton received $25,000 under the program and spent $23,915.38; and 
• For 2022-2023, the City applied for and received $17,000.  

These grants have supported the team in modernizing and developing into a stronger and more capable 
team. This benefits the evacuees and communities that the program is designed to support during times of 
crisis and emergencies. With the grant application for 2023-2024 currently open, staff recommend that the 
City apply for the current intake of the ESS grant (for 2023-2024).  

Financial implication 

This Council Report is to request Council direction to apply for a grant from the UBCM CEPF ESS funding 
program. This grant will cover all eligible costs, up to a maximum of $30,000. No matching cash funds from 
the municipality are required. Staff time will be required to help write the grant application and to 
implement the activities included in the grant application. Staff will work diligently to ensure that the City 
receives the most value for any purchases it makes, if the grant application is successful. If the grant 
application is not successful, there are some areas of investment that must be made so another funding 
source will be necessary.  

Climate Impact 

Climate Change is requiring more activations from extreme weather events, and that this grant application 
will support the City in further enhancing our ESS processes to support these events accordingly. 

Analysis 

Staff, the ESS team, and Council have worked closely over the last few years to continue developing the 
Penticton ESS program. In just the last two years, Council has supported five initiatives (excluding today’s 
recommended resolution) aimed at supporting the continued modernization and development of the City’s 
ESS program: 

• March 3, 2020: Council support to apply for the 2020-2021 UBCM ESS grant (Resolution 48/2020); 
• January 19, 2021: Council support to apply for the 2021-2022 UBCM grant (Resolution 14/2021); 
• June 1, 2021: ESS Facilities and Spaces Plan approved by Council (Resolution 187/2021); 
• November 2, 2021: Council resolution to apply for a 2022-2023 UBCM ESS grant (Resolution 

371/2021), and; 
• June 21, 2022: Council resolution to nominate the Penticton ESS team for the Emergency 

Management Exemplary Service Award (Resolution 226/2022).  

This support from Council has enabled the Penticton ESS program to continue to enhance its readiness for 
any emergency, and to continue to build and foster vital relationships that enable the team to support 
evacuees during emergencies. Some of these close relationships that the Penticton ESS team has developed 
over the last few years, includes: 

• Animal Lifeline Emergency Response Team (ALERT); 

- 54 -



 
Council Report  Page 3 of 6 

• BC Ambulance; 
• BC Housing; 
• Central Provincial Regional Emergency Operations Centre; 
• City of Penticton – variety of departments; 
• Disaster Psychosocial Services; 
• Emergency Management BC; 
• Health Emergency Management British Columbia; 
• Interior Health Authority; 
• Justice Institute of British Columbia; 
• Municipalities and local governments (e.g., District of Summerland, Regional District of Central 

Okanagan, Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen, Town of Oliver, Town of Princeton); 
• Penticton Fire Department; 
• Penticton Indian Band; 
• Penticton Search and Rescue; 
• Province of British Columbia; 
• Provincial Health Services Authority; 
• Red Cross Canada; 
• Royal Canadian Mounted Police (RCMP); 
• Service BC; 
• Suppliers – local businesses that provide services and goods to evacuees and/or ESS responders 

(e.g., Fairfield, Starbucks, Superstore); 
• The Salvation Army, and; 
• Other ESS teams across the region and province. 

These partnerships and the investments made in the team have supported Penticton ESS in responding to a 
variety of events over the last few years. In addition, building these relationships has worked to strengthen 
the resilience of our community when facing emergencies. Emergencies of a certain scale and up poses a 
complicated challenge due to the sheer volume of human capital required over a dynamic frame of time. 
Having successful community relationships ensure that citizens prepared to volunteer during these difficult 
times. In 2020, the team invested over 2,300 hours of volunteer time in training for and responding to 
significant emergencies, including: 

• Christie Mountain wildfire - the ESS team was the first in BC to use the Province’s new Evacuee 
Registration and Assistance (ERA) tool for a large emergency (pre-registering approximately 4,000 
Pentictonites on Evacuation Alert to help the City’s Emergency Operations Centre with its 
emergency planning), and provided significant leadership and volunteers to support the RDOS’s 
evacuation of Heritage Hills; 

• Elm Ave apartment fire; 
• Level One emergencies (e.g., single house fires, single motel room fire); 
• Regional emergencies such as the Sage Mesa wildfire, and; 
• Other emergency management related activities (e.g., stand-by when the City’s Emergency 

Operations Centre is on stand-by). 

- 55 -



 
Council Report  Page 4 of 6 

In 2021, the team had its busiest season ever due to the 2021 wildfire season, providing on-going and long-
term supports to Lytton First Nations, and the 2021 fall atmospheric river flooding. Some of the team’s 
accomplishments from 2021 included: 

• Over 4,000 hours of volunteer time invested by team members; 
• Over 45 volunteers were part of the ESS team in 2021; 
• 5 months of deployment for wildfires and atmospheric river flooding; 
• 25 different communities supported through mutual aid, and; 
• 20 unique disaster events responded to in 2021, including: 

o Flooding from the atmospheric river flooding in November 2021 
o Garrison Lake Wildfire (14,564 hectares) 
o Lytton Complex Wildfire (over 138,819 hectares) 
o Nk’Mip Wildfire (19,335 hectares) 
o Thomas Creek Wildfire (10,597 hectares)  
o White Rock Lake Wildfire (83,342 hectares)  

Continuing their dedicated work in 2022, the team has responded to (as of August 24, 2022): 

• Numerous house fires (total of seven) 
• Fairfield Hotel fire with 120 evacuees 
• Keremeos Creek with approximately 450 evacuees 
• Meadowlark Motel fire with five evacuees 
• May and July rain events 

Based on learnings from the 2022 wildfire season so far, there are areas of investment that the ESS team 
believes will support building the capacity of the Penticton ESS team. Specifically, investments in the areas 
outlined in Table 1 will provide significant support for the Penticton ESS team. 

 Anticipated Item(s) Anticipated Grant Request 

Reception Centre 
Laptops and associated 
technology 

$5,000 

Supplies $500 

Training 

In-house $1,000 
Conference $2,000 
Exercises – temporary student 
capacity (incremental increase)1 $9,000 

Recruitment and 
Retention 

Recruitment $1,000 
Retention $2,500 

Level Ones 
Supplies $500 
Personal Protective Equipment $500 

Sub-total $22,000 
Table 1. Anticipated Grant Activities, anticipated as of August 24, 2022 and subject to changes during final 
review of grant application. 
1 This will be to have a temporary co-op student add ESS capacity to support the team’s planning and activities (role split between 
ESS and Social Development). The wages will be top-upped with other funding already allocated in the Financial Plan.  
 

- 56 -



 
Council Report  Page 5 of 6 

In conclusion, based on the specific areas of investment that the ESS team has identified based on its 
learnings from the 2022 deployments, staff recommend that Council support the grant application to UBCM. 
This will support the continued modernization and capacity building of the Penticton ESS program.  

Alternate recommendations 

THAT Council direct staff to return with additional information.  

Attachments 

Attachment A – Overview of 2022 ESS Deployments To-date  

Attachment B - Grant Guidelines 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

Adam Goodwin Brittany Seibert Vicky Horton 
ESS Coordinator Emergency Program Coordinator ESS Director 
 

Concurrence  

Fire Chief 
Director, 

Development 
Services 

Director, 
Administration 

and Finance 

General Manager, 
Infrastructure 

Chief 
Administrative 

Officer 

 

 

BL 
 

AMC 
KD 

 
DvD 

 

 

 

  

- 57 -



 
Council Report  Page 6 of 6 

Attachment A 

2022 Deployments To-Date 

1. Jan. 19 - House Fire - 4 evacuees; 
2. Mar. 07 - House Fire - 30 evacuees;   
3. May 01 - House Fire – 5 evacuees; 
4. May 27 – Rain event – 4 evacuees; 
5. June 02 - House Fire – 2 evacuees; 
6. June 22 - House Fire – 4 evacuees; 
7. July 04 – Rain event – 17 evacuees; 
8. July 25 - Hotel fire – 120 evacuees; 
9. July 30 - House fire – 3 evacuees; 
10. Aug 01 - Aug. 16 – Keremeos Creek Wildfire – 463 evacuees; 
11. Aug. 02 – Motel fire – 5 evacuees, and; 
12. Aug. 14 - House fire – 7 evacuees. 

 

- 58 -



 

 

 

Community Emergency Preparedness Fund 

Emergency Support Services 
2023 Program & Application Guide 

1. Introduction 

The Community Emergency Preparedness Fund (CEPF) is a suite of funding programs intended to 
enhance the resiliency of local governments, First Nations and communities in responding to 
emergencies.  Funding is provided by the Province of BC and is administered by Union of BC 
Municipalities (UBCM). 
As of May 2022, the funding streams include: 

• Disaster risk reduction-climate adaptation 
• Emergency operations centres and training 
• Emergency support services 
• Extreme heat risk mapping, assessment, and planning 
• Indigenous cultural safety and cultural humility training 
• Public notification and evacuation route planning 
• Volunteer and composite fire departments equipment and training 

Background 
British Columbians forced from their homes by fire, floods, earthquakes or other emergencies may 
receive short-term emergency support services. Services may include food, lodging, clothing, emotional 
support, information about the crisis, and family reunification.  There may also be special services 
provided by other partners or agencies like first aid, child minding, pet care, and transportation. 
Under the Emergency Program Act, municipalities and regional districts are responsible for responding 
to emergencies in their areas, including providing emergency support services. Under the 10 year 
agreement between Indigenous Services Canada and the Province, First Nations in BC may elect to 
provide emergency support services to their residents. 

Emergency Support Services Funding Stream 
The intent of this funding stream is to support eligible applicants to build local capacity to provide 
emergency support services through ESS volunteer/responder recruitment, retention and training, and 
the purchase of ESS equipment.   
The focus of the ESS funding stream for the 2023 intake continues to be support of the modernization of 
local ESS programs in order to move toward digital registration and reporting through the Evacuee 
Registration & Assistance (ERA) Tool.  Additionally, the intake will focus on promoting knowledge 
sharing, enhancing mutual aid, and for applicants to act as host communities.  

2. Eligible Applicants 

All local governments (municipalities and regional districts) and all First Nations 
(bands and Treaty First Nations) in BC are eligible to apply.   
Eligible applicants can submit one application per intake, including regional 
applications or participation as a partnering applicant in a regional application. 

- 59 -

http://www.ubcm.ca/EN/main/funding/lgps/community-emergency-preparedness-fund.html


2023 Emergency Support Services - Program & Application Guide   2 

3. Grant Maximum 

The Emergency Support Services funding stream can contribute a maximum of 100% of the cost of 
eligible activities to a maximum of $30,000.00.  
In order to ensure transparency and accountability in the expenditure of public funds, all other 
contributions for eligible portions of the project must be declared and, depending on the total value, may 
decrease the value of the funding. This includes any other grant funding and any revenue that is 
generated from activities that are funded by the Community Emergency Preparedness Fund. 

4. Eligible Projects 

To qualify for funding, projects must be:  

• A new project (retroactive funding is not available) 
•  Capable of completion by the applicant within one year from the date of grant approval 

• Be in alignment with Emergency Support Services policies and operational guidelines 

Regional Projects 
Funding requests from two or more eligible applicants for regional projects may be submitted as a single 
application for eligible, collaborative projects.  In this case, the maximum funding available would be 
based on the number of eligible applicants included in the application.  It is expected that regional 
projects will demonstrate cost-efficiencies in the total grant request. 
The primary applicant submitting the application for a regional project is required to submit a resolution 
as outlined in Section 7 of this guide.  Each partnering applicant is required to submit a resolution that 
clearly states their approval for the primary applicant to apply for, receive, and manage the grant funding 
on their behalf. 

5. Requirements for Funding 

As part of the approval agreement, approved projects must meet the following requirements for funding:  

• Any in-person activities, meetings, or events must meet public health orders and/or guidance in 
relation to COVID-19; 

• Activities must comply with all applicable privacy legislation under the Freedom of Information 
and Protection of Privacy Act in relation to the collection, use, or disclosure of personal 
information while conducting funded activities. Personal information is any recorded information 
about an identifiable individual other than their business contact information. This includes 
information that can be used to identify an individual through association or inference.  

6. Eligible & Ineligible Costs & Activities 

Eligible Costs & Activities 
Eligible costs are direct costs that are approved for funding, properly and reasonably incurred, and paid 
by the applicant to carry out eligible activities.  Eligible costs can only be incurred from the date of 
application submission until the final report is submitted. 
Eligible activities must be cost-effective and are limited to: 

• Purchase of supplies and equipment in support of modernization (i.e. computers, printers, and 
mobile devices) 

- 60 -

https://www2.gov.bc.ca/gov/content/safety/emergency-management/local-emergency-programs/ess


2023 Emergency Support Services - Program & Application Guide   3 

• Purchase of supplies and equipment (i.e. reception centre kits, group lodging kits and storage 
containers for supplies and equipment, portable generators, trailers for the purpose of 
transportation, storage and mobile ESS operations) 

• Training and exercises for ESS responders to increase capacity for the provision of emergency 
support services.  For all virtual courses/training, eligible costs include: course fee (if any), 
required course materials, and travel (including accommodations and per diems) only if required 
for internet connection or access to necessary technology.  For all in-person courses/training, 
eligible costs include: course fee, required course materials, and travel (including 
accommodations and per diems) 

• ESS responder recruitment and retention activities, including awards and small gifts for ESS  
responders, directly related to the provision of emergency support services 

• Personal protective equipment for ESS responders (PPE for members of the public is not eligible) 

The following expenditures are also eligible provided they relate directly to the eligible activities identified 
above:  

• Incremental applicant staff and administration costs  

• Consultant costs 

• Public information costs 

• Honoraria for equity-denied populations or service organizations that support equity-denied 
populations 

• Honoraria for cultural leaders, Elders, Indigenous knowledge keepers, and/or cultural keepers 
when they are scheduled to speak, present, or teach. Note: these honoraria should reflect the 
role of Indigenous Peoples as subject matter experts and be equitable to consultant rates. 

• Translation costs and the development of culturally appropriate ESS materials 

Ineligible Costs & Activities 
Any activity that is not outlined above or is not directly connected to activities approved in the application 
is not eligible for grant funding.  This includes: 

• Routine or ongoing operating costs or activities (e.g. heating, cooling and lighting; security; 
software or service subscriptions or membership fees) 

• Routine or ongoing planning costs or planning activities that are not incremental to the project 
• Delivery of emergency support services during an emergency 
• Activities intended to increase the capacity of third party organizations to deliver emergency 

support services on behalf of the approved applicant 
• Training offered through the EMBC 2022/2023 ESS Training program, through JIBC 

• Major capital improvements or renovations to existing facilities, and/or construction of new, 
permanent facilities  

• Purchase of vehicles 

• Regular salaries and/or benefits of applicant staff or partners 

• Project-related fees payable to the eligible applicant(s) (e.g. permit fees, etc.) 

• Purchase of promotional items, door/raffle prizes, give-away items, and/or gifts for community 
members 

• Emergency preparedness marketing campaigns 

• Costs related to developing or submitting the application package 

- 61 -



2023 Emergency Support Services - Program & Application Guide   4 

7. Application Requirements & Process  

Application Deadline 
The application deadline is January 27, 2023.  Applicants will be advised of the status of their 
application within 90 days of the application deadline. 

Required Application Contents 
All applicants are required to submit an electronic copy of the complete application, including: 

• Completed Application Form with all required attachments 
• Local government Council or Board resolution, Band Council resolution, or Treaty First Nation 

resolution, indicating support for the current proposed activities and willingness to provide overall 
grant management. 

• Detailed budget for each component identified in the application.  This must clearly identify the 
CEPF funding request, applicant contribution, and/or other grant funding. 

• For regional projects only: Local government Council or Board resolution, Band Council 
resolution, or Treaty First Nation resolution from each partnering applicant that clearly states their 
approval for the primary applicant to apply for, receive, and manage the grant funding on their 
behalf. 

Resolutions from partnering applicants must include the language above 

Submission of Applications 

Applications should be submitted as Word, Excel or PDF files. Total file size for email attachments 
cannot exceed 20 MB. 

All applications should be submitted to Local Government Program Services, Union of BC Municipalities 
by e-mail: cepf@ubcm.ca. 

Review of Applications 
UBCM will perform a preliminary review of applications to ensure the required application elements  
have been submitted and to ensure that basic eligibility criteria have been met.  Only complete 
application packages will be reviewed. 
Following this, the CEPF Evaluation Committee will assess and score all eligible applications.  Higher 
application review scores will be given to projects that:  

• Support the modernization of local ESS programs in order to move toward electronic registration 
and reporting through the Evacuee Registration & Assistance (ERA) Tool 

• Clearly demonstrate how the capacity of the eligible applicant to deliver emergency support 
services in their community and act as a host community will be increased 

• Demonstrate transferability and knowledge sharing with other local governments and First 
Nations in BC 

• Include partnerships and enhance mutual aid 
• Support recommendations or requirements identified in the local Emergency Plan 
• Include in-kind or cash contributions to the project from the eligible applicant, partnering 

applicant(s), community partners, or other grant funding 
• Demonstrate cost-effectiveness 
• Were not funded under previous intakes of the Emergency Support Services funding stream 

- 62 -

mailto:cepf@ubcm.ca


2023 Emergency Support Services - Program & Application Guide   5 

Point values and weighting have been established within each of these scoring criteria. Only those 
applications that meet a minimum threshold point value will be considered for funding.  
The Evaluation Committee will consider the provincial, regional, and urban/rural distribution of proposed 
projects. Recommendations will be made on a priority basis. All funding decisions will be made by UBCM. 

All application materials will be shared with the Province of BC and  
First Nations’ Emergency Services Society 

8. Grant Management & Applicant Responsibilities 

Grants are awarded to eligible applicants only and, as such, the applicant is responsible for completion 
of the project as approved and for meeting reporting requirements.   
Applicants are also responsible for proper fiscal management, including maintaining acceptable 
accounting records for the project.  UBCM reserves the right to audit these records. 

Notice of Funding Decision & Payments 
All applicants will receive written notice of funding decisions.  Approved applicants will receive an 
Approval Agreement, which will include the terms and conditions of any grant that is awarded, and that is 
required to be signed and returned to UBCM within 30 days.   
Grants are paid at the completion of the project and only when the final report requirements have been 
met. 
Please note that in cases where revisions are required to an application, or an application has been 
approved in principle only, the applicant has 30 days from the date of the written notice of the status of 
the application to complete the application requirements.  Applications that are not completed within 30 
days may be closed. 

Progress Payments 
To request a progress payment, approved applicants are required to submit:  

• Description of activities completed to date 

• Description of funds expended to date 

• Written rationale for receiving a progress payment 

Changes to Approved Projects 
Approved grants are specific to the project as identified in the approved application, and grant funds are 
not transferable to other projects.  Generally speaking, this means funds cannot be transferred to an 
activity that was not included in the approved application or to a new or expanded location. 
Approval from UBCM and/or the Evaluation Committee will be required for any variation from the 
approved project.  Depending on the complexity of the proposed amendment, requests may take up to 
90 days to review. 
To propose changes to an approved project, applicants are required to submit: 

• Amended application package, including updated, signed application form, required attachments, 
and an updated Council, Board, Band Council, or Treaty First Nation resolution;  

• For regional projects only, evidence of support from partnering applicants for proposed 
amendments will be required; and 

• Written rationale for proposed changes to activities and/or expenditures. 
Applicants are responsible for any costs above the approved grant unless a revised application is 
submitted and approved prior to work being undertaken. 

- 63 -



2023 Emergency Support Services - Program & Application Guide   6 

Extensions to Project End Date 
All approved activities are required to be completed within the time frame identified in the approval 
agreement and all extensions beyond this date must be requested in writing and be approved by UBCM. 
Extensions will not exceed one year from the date of the original final report deadline. 

9. Final Report Requirements & Process 

All funded activities must be completed within one year of notification of funding approval and the final 
report is due within 30 days of project completion. 
Applicants are required to submit an electronic copy of the complete final report, including the following: 

• Completed Final Report Form with all requirement attachments 

• Detailed financial summary that indicates the actual expenditures from the Community 
Emergency Preparedness Fund and other sources (if applicable) and that aligns with the actual 
activities outlined in the final report form  

• Copies of any training or capacity building materials that were produced with grant funding 
• Photos or media related to the funded project 

Submission of Final Reports 
Final reports should be submitted as Word, Excel or PDF files. Total file size for email attachments 
cannot exceed 20 MB. 
All applications should be submitted to Local Government Program Services, Union of BC Municipalities 
by e-mail: cepf@ubcm.ca.  

All final report materials will be shared with the Province of BC and  
First Nations’ Emergency Services Society 

10. Additional Information 

Union of BC Municipalities 
525 Government Street 
Victoria, BC, V8V 0A8 
E-mail: cepf@ubcm.ca 
Phone: (250) 387-4470 
 

- 64 -

mailto:cepf@ubcm.ca
mailto:cepf@ubcm.ca


 

 
Council Report 

 

   

 

 

Date: September 6, 2022       File No: 1855-03 
To: Donny van Dyk, Chief Administrative Officer 
From: Brittany Seibert, Emergency Program Coordinator; and Adam Goodwin, Social Development  
 Specialist and Emergency Support Services Coordinator  

 

Subject:  2023 UBCM Community Emergency Program Funding (CEPF) – Cultural Humility 
Training Funding 

 

Staff Recommendation 

THAT Council direct staff to apply for the Union of BC Municipalities’ Cultural Safety and Cultural Humility 
Training Grant in the amount of up to $30,000 to offer training to any responder with an identified role in the 
Penticton emergency management plan; 

AND THAT Council direct the Fire Chief to sign and submit the application. 

Strategic priority objective 

Community Safety: The City of Penticton will support a safe, secure and healthy community. 

Background 

The Union of BC Municipalities offered the Cultural Safety and Cultural Humility Training (for emergency 
responders) funding program in 2019/2020. UBCM is providing another opportunity under this funding 
program for 2023. It is part of UBCM’s suite of funding programs under the Community Emergency 
Preparedness Fund (CEPF).  

The Cultural Safety and Cultural Humility Training funding program is for emergency responders, such as 
City staff that work in the Emergency Operations Centre and the Penticton Emergency Support Services 
team. The funding is intended to build our capacity and understanding when delivering emergency 
management services. The funding aligns with: 

• The City’s efforts to build partnerships with the Penticton Indian Band) and Indigenous 
organizations; 

• The recommendations in Addressing the new Normal: 21st Century Disaster Management in British 
Columbia (2018) that identifies local governments and First Nations seeking opportunities to work 
together more closely across jurisdictions during emergencies as an opportunity; 

- 65 -



 
Council Report  Page 2 of 3 

• Call to Action 57 of the Truth and Reconciliation Commission that municipalities provide training to 
staff;  

• First Nations Health Authority’s Policy Statement on Cultural Safety and Humility; 
• The United Nation’s Sendai Framework for Disaster Risk Reduction; and  
• The United Nations Declaration on the Rights of Indigenous Peoples.  

The funding can be used for training about areas such as the history of residential schools and colonialism, 
skills-based training (e.g., intercultural competency, anti-racism), and training about the United Nations 
Declaration on the Rights of Indigenous Peoples.  

Staff are recommending that the City apply to the funding program for 2023 for City staff that work in the 
Emergency Operations Centre and the Penticton Emergency Support Services team. The deadline to apply is 
November 25, 2022, and a certified Council resolution is required to be submitted with the application.  

Financial implication 

This is a grant opportunity from UBCM. Municipalities can apply for up to $30,000. While matching cash 
contributions are not required, the municipality must show that it is making some contribution to the 
project (e.g., in-kind). For this particular project, the City will contribute the time for staff to participate in and 
the space for the training activities, as well as honorariums for partners that deliver the training. No new City 
funding is necessary for this grant application.  

Additionally, the City has funding from other grants (e.g., Building Safer Communities Fund from the federal 
government) that have specific funds for strengthening relationships with Indigenous communities and 
training around the history of residential schools. Staff will seek opportunities to synergize these already 
existing funding sources and this UBCM grant to provide the most impactful opportunities possible.  

Analysis 

This grant will help provide learning opportunities for the City’s Emergency Program. The City has recently 
worked closely with First Nations during emergencies. For example, the Penticton ESS team worked with 
Lytton First Nations for several months last fall after the Lytton Complex Wildfire. The training activities that 
would be funded by this grant would support emergency responders in improving how they work with First 
Nations before, during, and after emergencies.  

Specifically, should the City receive this funding, the following process would be used: 

• City staff meeting with partners to identify and finalize training approach proposed for the 
emergency program, 

• Training sessions for City staff that have identified roles in the Emergency Operations Centre, and the 
Penticton ESS team, and 

• Seek opportunities to integrate cultural humility and cultural safety training into the Penticton ESS 
training curriculum.  

The funding would go towards hiring trainers to facilitate the training for emergency program responders, 
incremental staff costs, and an expert to help integrate cultural humility and cultural safety training into the 
Penticton ESS curriculum.  

- 66 -



 
Council Report  Page 3 of 3 

Based on the alignment between the funding program’s goals, and the City’s recent work around 
strengthening its understanding of intercultural communications and relationships and recommendations 
such as Call to Action 57 of the Truth and Reconciliation Commission, staff recommend that the City apply 
for this UBCM funding. It will provide an important learning opportunity for responders in the City’s 
emergency program.  

Attachments 

Attachment A - UBCM Funding Program Guide 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 
Brittany Seibert Adam Goodwin 
Emergency Program Coordinator Social Development Specialist and 
 Emergency Support Services Coordinator 
 

Concurrence  

Acting Fire Chief 
Director, 

Development Services 
Director, Finance and 

Administration 
Chief Administrative 

Officer 

AFC 
RT 

 

BL 
 

AMC 
 

DvD 
 

 

- 67 -



 

 

 

Community Emergency Preparedness Fund 

Indigenous Cultural Safety & Cultural Humility Training  
2022 Program & Application Guide 

1. Introduction 

The Community Emergency Preparedness Fund (CEPF) is a suite of funding programs intended to 
enhance the resiliency of local governments, First Nations and communities in responding to 
emergencies. Funding is provided by the Province of BC and is administered by Union of BC 
Municipalities (UBCM). 
As of May 2022, the funding streams include: 

•  Disaster risk reduction-climate adaptation 
• Emergency operations centres and training 
•  Emergency support services 
• Extreme heat risk mapping, assessment, and planning 
• Indigenous cultural safety and cultural humility training 
•  Public notification and evacuation route planning 
• Volunteer and composite fire departments equipment and training 

Background 
Offering emergency management in a way that respects Indigenous Peoples as the decision-makers in 
their own care requires cultural safety and humility.  The First Nations Health Authority Policy Statement 
on Cultural Safety and Humility advises that: 

“Cultural humility is a process of self-reflection to understand personal and systemic conditioned 
biases, and to develop and maintain respectful processes and relationships based on mutual trust. 
Cultural humility involves humbly acknowledging oneself as a life-long learner when it comes to 
understanding another’s experience. Cultural humility enables cultural safety.”  
“Cultural safety includes and goes beyond cultural awareness, which refers to awareness of 
differences between cultures. It also goes beyond cultural sensitivity, which is about realizing the 
legitimacy of difference and the power one’s own life experience can have on others.”  

Addressing the New Normal: 21st Century Disaster Management in British Columbia (2018) identified in 
both the summary of consultations and in numerous recommendations the need for cultural awareness 
and sensitivity training for volunteers, responders and government representatives. This need is also 
identified in the Truth and Reconciliation Commission Call to Action #571. 

                                                 
1 “We call upon federal, provincial, territorial and municipal governments to provide education to public servants on 
the history of Aboriginal peoples, including the history and legacy of residential schools, the United Nations 
Declaration on the Rights of Indigenous Peoples, Treaties and Aboriginal rights, Indigenous law and Aboriginal-
Crown relations. This will require skills-based training in intercultural competency, conflict resolution, human rights, 
and anti-racism.” 

- 68 -

http://www.ubcm.ca/EN/main/funding/lgps/community-emergency-preparedness-fund.html
http://www.fnha.ca/documents/fnha-policy-statement-cultural-safety-and-humility.pdf
http://www.fnha.ca/documents/fnha-policy-statement-cultural-safety-and-humility.pdf
https://www2.gov.bc.ca/assets/gov/public-safety-and-emergency-services/emergency-preparedness-response-recovery/embc/bc-flood-and-wildfire-review-addressing-the-new-normal-21st-century-disaster-management-in-bc-web.pdf
http://nctr.ca/assets/reports/Calls_to_Action_English2.pdf


2022 Indigenous Cultural Safety and Cultural Humility Training - Program & Application Guide   2 

Indigenous Cultural Safety and Cultural Humility Training Funding Stream 
The intent of this funding stream is to support eligible applicants to enhance cultural safety and humility 
in the delivery of local emergency management programs and services.  Activities include cultural safety 
and humility training, adapting emergency management tools to be inclusive of Indigenous peoples, and 
activities related to partnering with, or providing assistance to, Indigenous communities during 
emergency mitigation, preparedness, response, and recovery. 
This includes increasing opportunities to educate emergency management personnel, those training to 
become emergency management professionals, and others working in the emergency management 
system on the history of Indigenous Peoples, as well as the concepts of cultural safety, cultural humility 
and the relevance to Indigenous Peoples.  
Training could include: 

• The history and legacy of residential schools 

• The United Nations Declaration on the Rights of Indigenous Peoples, Treaties and Aboriginal 
rights, Indigenous law and Crown-Indigenous relations 

• Skills-based training in intercultural competency, conflict resolution, human rights, and anti-
racism 

Intended learning outcomes must be in the context of emergency management and could include: 

• Recognition of Indigenous Peoples’ unique connection to the land and the concept of Indigenous 
worldviews and knowledge 

• Identifying key historical events marking the history of Crown-Indigenous relations in Canada. 

• Recognizing the concept of inter-generational trauma and resiliency and how it affects 
contemporary Indigenous Peoples 

• Improved individual and collective abilities to work effectively with Indigenous Peoples  

• Identifying, discussing and addressing individual and structural barriers to reconciliation 

2. Eligible Applicants 

All local governments (municipalities or regional districts) and all First Nations (bands and Treaty First 
Nations) in BC are eligible to apply.   
Eligible applicants can submit one application per intake, including regional applications or participation 
as a partnering applicant in a regional application. 

3. Grant Maximum 

The Indigenous Cultural Safety & Cultural Humility Training funding stream can contribute a maximum of 
100% of the cost of eligible activities to a maximum of $30,000.00. 
In order to ensure transparency and accountability in the expenditure of public funds, all other 
contributions for eligible portions of the project must be declared and, depending on the total value, may 
decrease the value of the funding. This includes any other grant funding and any revenue that is 
generated from activities that are funded by the Community Emergency Preparedness Fund. 

4. Eligible Projects 

In order to qualify for funding, applications must demonstrate the extent to which proposed project(s) will 
provide emergency management personnel with Indigenous cultural safety and cultural humility training. 
  

- 69 -



2022 Indigenous Cultural Safety and Cultural Humility Training - Program & Application Guide   3 

In addition, to qualify for funding, projects must be:  

• A new project (retroactive funding is not available) 
•  Capable of completion by the applicant within one year from the date of grant approval 
• In alignment with the First Nations Health Authority Policy Statement on Cultural Safety and 

Cultural Humility. 

Regional Projects 
Funding requests from two or more eligible applicants for regional projects may be submitted as a single 
application for eligible, collaborative projects.  In this case, the maximum funding available would be 
based on the number of partnering applicants included in the application.  It is expected that regional 
projects will demonstrate cost-efficiencies in the total grant request. 
The primary applicant submitting the application for a regional project is required to submit a resolution 
as outlined in Section 7 of this guide.  Each partnering applicant is required to submit a resolution that 
clearly states their approval for the primary applicant to apply for, receive and manage the grant funding 
on their behalf. 

5. Requirements for Funding 

As part of the approval agreement, approved projects must meet the following requirements for funding:  

• Any in-person activities, meetings, or events must meet public health orders and/or guidance in 
relation to COVID-19 

• Activities must comply with all applicable privacy legislation under the Freedom of Information 
and Protection of Privacy Act in relation to the collection, use, or disclosure of personal 
information while conducting funded activities. Personal information is any recorded information 
about an identifiable individual other than their business contact information. This includes 
information that can be used to identify an individual through association or inference  

6. Eligible & Ineligible Costs & Activities 

Eligible Costs & Activities 
Eligible costs are direct costs that are approved for funding, properly and reasonably incurred, and paid 
by the applicant to carry out eligible activities.  Eligible costs can only be incurred from the date of 
application submission until the final report is submitted. 
Eligible activities must be cost-effective and may include: 

• Relationship building between local governments and Indigenous Peoples in advance of training, 
such as meetings and dialogue required to identify training needs 

• Eligible courses/training.  For all virtual courses/training, eligible costs include: course fee (if any), 
required course materials, and travel (including accommodations and per diems) only if required 
for internet connection or access to necessary technology.  For all in-person courses/training, 
eligible costs include: course fee, required course materials, and travel (including 
accommodations and per diems) 

• Development of training materials required to support local cultural safety and humility training 
• If the applicant hosts their own training: 

• Meals, snacks and non-alcoholic beverages 
• Venue rentals, including any required audio-visual equipment rentals 
• Facilitation services and/or guest speakers 
• Preparation of materials required for the training, including printing costs 

- 70 -

http://www.fnha.ca/Documents/FNHA-Policy-Statement-Cultural-Safety-and-Humility.pdf
http://www.fnha.ca/Documents/FNHA-Policy-Statement-Cultural-Safety-and-Humility.pdf


2022 Indigenous Cultural Safety and Cultural Humility Training - Program & Application Guide   4 

The following expenditures are also eligible provided they relate directly to the eligible activities identified 
above:  

• Incremental applicant staff and administration costs 
• Consultant costs 
• Public information costs 
• Honoraria for cultural leaders, elders, youth, Indigenous knowledge keepers, and/or cultural 

keepers when they are scheduled to speak, present or teach. Note: this honoraria should reflect 
the role of Indigenous Peoples as subject matter experts and be equitable to consultant rates2 

• Expenses related to local cultural protocols (e.g. gifts, cultural ceremonies). Please note: 
expenditure related to local cultural protocols are limited to no more than 10% of the total grant 
request. 

• Translation costs and the development of culturally appropriate materials 

Ineligible Costs & Activities 
Any activity that is not outlined above or is not directly connected to activities approved in the application 
by the CEPF Evaluation Committee is not eligible for grant funding.  This includes: 

• Routine or ongoing operating costs or activities (e.g. heating, cooling and lighting; security; 
software or service subscriptions or membership fees) 

• Routine or ongoing planning costs or planning activities that are not incremental to the project 
• Capital expenditures 
• Regular salaries and/or benefits of applicant staff or partners 
• Costs related to developing or submitting the application package 

7. Application Requirements & Process  

Application Deadline 
The application deadline is November 25, 2022.  Applicants will be advised of the status of their 
application within 90 days of the application deadline. 

Required Application Contents 
• Completed Application Form with all required attachments 
• Local government Council or Board resolution, Band Council resolution or Treaty First Nation 

resolution, indicating support for the current proposed activities and willingness to provide overall 
grant management 

• Detailed budget that indicates the proposed expenditures from the Community Emergency 
Preparedness Fund and aligns with the proposed activities outlined in the application form. 
Although additional funding or support is not required, any other grant funding or in-kind 
contributions must be identified 

• For regional projects only: local government Council or Board resolution, Band Council resolution 
or Treaty First Nation resolution from each partnering applicant that clearly states their approval 
for the primary applicant to apply for, receive and manage the grant funding on their behalf 

                                                 
2 United Nations, United Nations Declaration on the Rights of Indigenous Peoples. 2007. Article 21  

1. Indigenous peoples have the right, without discrimination, to the improvement of their economic and social 
conditions, including, inter alia, in the areas of education, employment, vocational training and retraining, housing, 
sanitation, health and social security. 
2. States shall take effective measures and, where appropriate, special measures to ensure continuing 
improvement of their economic and social conditions. Particular attention shall be paid to the rights and special 
needs of indigenous elders, women, youth, children and persons with disabilities. 

- 71 -



2022 Indigenous Cultural Safety and Cultural Humility Training - Program & Application Guide   5 

Resolutions from partnering applicants must include the language above 

Submission of Applications 

Applications should be submitted as Word, Excel or PDF files. Total file size for email attachments 
cannot exceed 20 MB. 
All applications should be submitted to Local Government Program Services, Union of BC Municipalities 
by e-mail: cepf@ubcm.ca. 

Review of Applications 
UBCM will perform a preliminary review of applications to ensure the required application elements have 
been submitted and to ensure that basic eligibility criteria have been met.  Only complete application 
packages will be reviewed. 
Following this, the CEPF Evaluation Committee will assess and score all eligible applications.  Higher 
application review scores will be given to projects that:  

• Meet the intent of the funding program and identified learning outcomes 
• Demonstrate that the applicant is working with local Indigenous Peoples or an Indigenous 

consultant in the development and proposed delivery of training 
• Include Indigenous cultural safety and cultural humility training for emergency management 

personnel that is: 
o Developed and delivered by Indigenous organizations in BC 
o In person and supports social-emotional experiential learning  
o Inclusive of relationship building with the local Indigenous Peoples, nation(s) and /or 

indigenous organizations 
o Where possible, are delivered via Indigenous owned and run facilities, catering, etc. 

• Align with the United Nations Declaration on the Rights of Indigenous Peoples, the Truth and 
Reconciliation Commission Calls to Action and the Sendai Framework of Disaster Risk Reduction 

• Demonstrate transferability to other local governments and Indigenous Nations in BC 
• Include in-kind or cash contributions to the project from the eligible applicant, partnering 

applicant(s), community partners or other grant funding 
• Are cost-effective 

Point values and weighting have been established within each of these scoring criteria. Only those 
applications that meet a minimum threshold point value will be considered for funding.  
The Evaluation Committee will consider the provincial, regional, and urban/rural distribution of proposed 
projects. Recommendations will be made on a priority basis. All funding decisions will be made by 
UBCM. 

All application materials will be shared with the Province of BC and  
First Nations’ Emergency Services Society 

8. Grant Management & Applicant Responsibilities 

Grants are awarded to eligible applicants only and, as such, the applicant is responsible for completion 
of the project as approved and for meeting reporting requirements.   
Applicants are also responsible for proper fiscal management, including maintaining acceptable 
accounting records for the project.  UBCM reserves the right to audit these records. 

Notice of Funding Decision & Payments 

- 72 -

mailto:cepf@ubcm.ca
https://www.un.org/development/desa/indigenouspeoples/wp-content/uploads/sites/19/2018/11/UNDRIP_E_web.pdf
http://trc.ca/assets/pdf/Calls_to_Action_English2.pdf
http://trc.ca/assets/pdf/Calls_to_Action_English2.pdf
https://www.unisdr.org/we/coordinate/sendai-framework


2022 Indigenous Cultural Safety and Cultural Humility Training - Program & Application Guide   6 

All applicants will receive written notice of funding decisions. Approved applicants will receive an 
Approval Agreement, which will include the terms and conditions of any grant that is awarded, and that is 
required to be signed and returned to UBCM within 30 days. 

Grants are paid at the completion of the project and only when the final report requirements have been 
met. 
Please note that in cases where revisions are required to an application, or an application has been 
approved in principle only, the applicant has 30 days from the date of the written notice of the status of 
the application to complete the application requirements. Applications that are not completed within 30 
days may be closed. 

Progress Payments 
To request a progress payment, approved applicants are required to submit: 

• Description of activities completed to date 
• Description of funds expended to date 
• Written rationale for receiving a progress payment 

Changes to Approved Projects 
Approved grants are specific to the project as identified in the approved application, and grant funds are 
not transferable to other projects.  Generally speaking, this means funds cannot be transferred to an 
activity that was not included in the approved. 
Approval from UBCM and/or the Evaluation Committee will be required for any variation from the 
approved project.  Depending on the complexity of the proposed amendment, requests may take up to 
90 days to review. 
To propose changes to an approved project, applicants are required to submit: 

• Amended application package, including updated, signed application form, required attachments, 
and an updated Council, Board, Band Council, or Treaty First Nation resolution;  

• For regional projects only, evidence of support from partnering applicants for proposed 
amendments will be required; and 

• Written rationale for proposed changes to activities and/or expenditures. 
Applicants are responsible for any costs above the approved grant unless a revised application is 
submitted and approved prior to work being undertaken. 

Extensions to Project End Date 
All approved activities are required to be completed within the time frame identified in the approval 
agreement and all extensions beyond this date must be requested in writing and be approved by UBCM. 
Extensions will not exceed one year from the date of the original final report deadline. 

9. Final Report Requirements & Process 

All funded activities must be completed within one year of notification of funding approval and the final 
report is due within 30 days of project completion. 
Applicants are required to submit an electronic copy of the complete final report, including the following: 

• Completed Final Report Form with all required attachments; 
• Detailed financial summary that indicates the actual expenditures from the Community 

Emergency Preparedness Fund and other sources (if applicable) and that aligns with the actual 
activities outlined in the final report form 

- 73 -



2022 Indigenous Cultural Safety and Cultural Humility Training - Program & Application Guide   7 

• Copies of any training or capacity building materials that were produced with grant funding and 
are able to be shared 

• Detailed Cultural Safety and Cultural Humility training summary that includes what training took 
place, any changes that occurred because of the training, and how relationships/processes have 
improved as a result 

• Optional: photos and/or media directly related to the funded project 

Submission of Final Reports 
Final reports should be submitted as Word, Excel or PDF files. Total file size for email attachments 
cannot exceed 20 MB. 
All applications should be submitted to Local Government Program Services, Union of BC Municipalities 
by e-mail: cepf@ubcm.ca.  

All final report materials will be shared with the Province of BC and  
First Nations’ Emergency Services Society 

10. Additional Information 

Union of BC Municipalities 
525 Government Street 
Victoria, BC, V8V 0A8 
E-mail: cepf@ubcm.ca 
Phone: (250) 387-4470 
 

- 74 -

mailto:cepf@ubcm.ca
mailto:cepf@ubcm.ca


 

 
Council Report 

 

   

 

 

Date: September 6, 2022       File No: 4750-20 
To: Donny van Dyk, Chief Administrative Officer 
From: Adam Goodwin, Social Development Specialist; Kelsey Johnson, Manager of Recreation, Arts, and  
 Culture 
 
Subject: Supporting Penticton Families: Bugaboo University Memorandum of Understanding 

 

Staff Recommendation 

THAT Council direct the Mayor and Corporate Officer to sign and execute the Memorandum of 
Understanding, as included in Attachment A, with the YMCA of the Southern Interior of BC, establishing the 
partnership between the YMCA and the City in the development of a child care centre within the 
Community Centre. 

Strategic priority objective 

Vision: A vibrant, innovative, healthy waterfront city focused on sustainability, community and economic 
opportunity.  

Mission: Penticton will serve its residents, businesses and visitors through good governance, partnership 
and the provision of effective and community focused services. 

Community Vitality: The City of Penticton, guided by the Official Community Plan, will promote the 
economic wellbeing and vitality of the community.  

Background 

On May 3, 2022, Council directed staff to issue an Expression of Interest to identify a potential partner to 
work on expanding Bugaboo University into a licensed and larger child care centre (Resolution 145/2022). 
Staff completed the EOI process, and a successful proponent was identified through the public process. As 
identified in Council’s resolution from May, staff are returning with the draft Memorandum of Understanding 
(MOU) with the proposed successful proponent to help the project move forward.  

As identified in the May 3, 2022 Council report, this project will look at several exciting opportunities: 

• Connections and alignment with the North Gateway Plan: How can this project incorporate the 
North Gateway Plan’s core principles? As there is projected net new housing for the 
neighbourhood over the coming years as part of the North Gateway Plan, will an additional child 
care centre in the neighbourhood support families moving to this area of Penticton?  

- 75 -



 
Council Report  Page 2 of 4 

• Reimagining the locker rooms: Staff have identified that the locker rooms adjacent to the Bugaboo 
University space are underutilized. There may be an opportunity to reconfigure these locker rooms 
to be added to the space available for child care.  

• Enhancing the universal accessibility of the basement of the Community Centre: With the current 
Community Centre layout, a ramp from the main floor of the Centre to the basement goes past the 
current Bugaboo University space. This ramp can pose challenges with accessing parts of the lower 
level of the Community Centre. For example, at the bottom of the ramp are narrow doors that can 
be a challenge for individuals using mobility equipment and/or younger families with strollers to 
access the recreation rooms on the bottom level of the Community Centre. This project presents an 
opportunity to add a new ramp or accessible route on the east side of the Community Centre that 
will make the bottom level more accessible. 

• Outdoor spaces: The outdoor spaces outside the child care could benefit from several 
enhancements that would make the spaces more accessible, welcoming, and integrated with the 
rest of the campus. The Bugaboo University project can be a catalyst for making the playground 
more accessible, and looking at synergies with surrounding outdoor spaces.  

• The current Bugaboo University spaces: Examine opportunities for innovative options for children 
that currently participate in Bugaboo University.  

 

After the MOU is signed, it is anticipated that the project will move through the following steps: 

• Work with an architect to finalize a design, construction costs and construction schedule for the 
expanded/renovated Bugaboo University (and associated spaces), 

• Submit the grant application to the Province under the ChildCareBC New Spaces Fund, 
• Request approval from Council to sign a lease and operating agreement between the City and 

YMCA, during the final development of the project design and construction budget and schedule, 
• Construction led by the City, and 
• Expanded and renovated centre opens.  

Parents that currently use Bugaboo University, applicable City Committees, various City departments that 
may be impacted by the project, and other partners will be consulted throughout the project to ensure their 
perspectives and priorities are incorporated in the project.  

Financial implication 

After the MOU is signed, the next step will be to procure an architect to help finalize the design of the 
expanded/renovated Bugaboo University space. As the City did with the Edmonton Avenue child care 
project, the City will hire the architect using funds already identified in the Social Development budget. 
Similarly, to the Edmonton Avenue child care centre, it is anticipated that the construction costs directly 
attributable and related to the child care project will be covered by a capital child care grant. If the City 
would like to leverage the child care project to complete other enhancements to the Community Centre 
and/or Cleland Theatre, the City would need to find another funding source.  

The Province is recommending that capital grant applications be submitted no later than January 2023 in 
order to be competitively reviewed by the Province during the current round of capital grant applications. 
While the goal is to include contingencies in the capital grant to cover any cost overruns or unanticipated 
costs, with any capital project, there is a risk that there may be unanticipated costs to the City. As part of the 
design phase, the City will work with the YMCA and architect to better understand the full costs associated 
with the project. If the grant is not successful, the City and YMCA will evaluate if the project is competitive 

- 76 -



 
Council Report  Page 3 of 4 

enough to re-apply in a future funding round, or if there is a different financial model to pay for the 
expansion/renovation.  

As identified in the MOU, the YMCA will pay a lease fee. At a minimum this fee, will cover any costs, or lost 
net revenues associated with the child care operating in the Community Centre (e.g., utilities). The final 
amount will be determined prior to the City and YMCA signing a lease agreement, which will happen when 
the project design and construction cost budget are being finalized. A Council report with the proposed 
lease agreement terms and financial arrangement would be brought forward to Council prior to signing, for 
its consideration, if the project moves forward.  

Climate Impact 

As the design work has yet to start, specific actions to support the City’s climate plans through this project 
have not yet been identified. During the design of the expanded/renovated, consideration will be taken to 
make the centre as energy efficient as possible. The project team will work with the Sustainability 
Department to identify any innovative opportunities to make the expanded/renovated centre more energy 
efficient.  

Analysis 

There are many potential benefits associated with the expansion/renovation of the Bugaboo University 
space moving forward in a timely manner: 

• Building child care capacity in a neighbourhood that should see significant investments in new 
housing outlined in the North Gateway Plan and keeps with the neighborhood’s 15-minute 
neighborhood goal; 

• Potential for a more accessible pathway to the lower level of the Community Centre; 
• Aligns with the Penticton Child Care Action Plan goal of 722 net new child care spaces in Penticton 

by 2030; 
• Aligns with the City’s commitment in the Penticton Child Care Action Plan to review any 

opportunities for child care space in City assets; 
• Further illustrates the City is investing in community priorities, and; 
• Supports Penticton families, and will help support people continue to work. 

To help the project move forward in a good way between the City and YMCA, an MOU helps clearly identify 
the roles of each organization early in the relationship. The MOU has several key components about: 

• Affordability of the child care spaces; 
• Risk management; 
• Maintenance of the expanded/renovated space; 
• City’s permitting and review processes; 
• Operations of the new centre, and; 
• Future agreements between the City and YMCA.  

The proposed MOU builds off the MOU and agreements the City has with OneSky Community Resources for 
the Edmonton Avenue child care project. Staff have incorporated learnings from the Edmonton Avenue 
child care project into the draft MOU in Attachment A. 

- 77 -



 
Council Report  Page 4 of 4 

Summary and Staff Recommendation  

Based on the direction from Council at the May 3, 2022 Council meeting, alignment with the Penticton Child 
Care Action Plan and other opportunities, and positive impact for Penticton businesses and families by 
having more child care options in the community, staff are recommending that Council support the signing 
of the MOU to help the project move forward.  

Alternate recommendations 

THAT Council direct staff to return with additional information.  

Attachments 

Attachment A – Draft Memorandum of Understanding 

 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Adam Goodwin Kelsey Johnson 
Social Development Specialist Manager, Recreation, Arts and Culture  
 

Concurrence  

Director, 
Development 

Services 

Director, 
Finance and 

Administration 

General 
Manager, 

Infrastructure 

General Manager, 
Community 

Services 

Chief 
Administrative 

Officer 

BL 
 

AMC 
 

KD 
 

AH 
 

DvD 
 

 

- 78 -



 

Page 1 of 9 | MOU | Bugaboo University Child Care | City and YMCA | Approved September 6, 2022 

Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) Between the Corporation of the City of Penticton (the 
“City”), and YMCA of Southern Interior of BC Association (the “YMCA”) Regarding the 

Renovation/Expansion of Bugaboo University and Related Spaces located in the Penticton Community 
Centre at 325 Power Street, Penticton, British Columbia, V2A 7K9 (“Bugaboo U” or “Bugaboo 

University”) 
 

As agreed to on this SIXTH (6) day of SEPTEMBER (month), 2022 (year): 
 

BETWEEN 
 

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF PENTICTON (the “City”) 
 
AND 
 

YMCA OF THE SOUTHERN INTERIOR OF BC ASSOCIATION (the “YMCA”) 
 
The Corporation of the City of Penticton (the “City”), and YMCA of the Southern Interior of BC 
Association (the “YMCA”) agree to enter into a Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) for the 
purposes of collaborating on an initiative(s) related to Bugaboo University located at 325 Power Street, 
Penticton, British Columbia, Canada, V2A 7K9 (“Bugaboo U” or “Bugaboo University”), as described 
below. The purpose of this MOU is to set out basic terms and conditions under which the City and 
YMCA intend to work together on this initiative(s), as described below. While this MOU is not intended 
to create legally binding rights or obligations, the City and YMCA wish to confirm that they will work 
together in a cooperative, transparent, and collaborative manner to develop, implement, manage, and 
evaluate the initiative(s) related to Bugaboo University, as described below.  
 
1. BACKGROUND 
 
In January 2021, Penticton City Council endorsed the Penticton Child Care Action Plan that Council 
had previously directed staff to develop (Council Resolution 16/2021). Families of over 520 children, 
and many child care centres, participated in the surveys and workshops that helped identify the 
Action Plan’s priorities and actions. The Plan has four major pillars: accessibility, affordability, quality, 
and collaborations. As part of working with partners to collectively implement the community’s plan, 
Council directed staff to establish a group (the “Group”) to steward the plan’s implementation (Council 
Resolution 289/2021).  
 
This Group has been working together for the last several months. The Group had identified three 
significant priorities around child care in Penticton to focus on for its first several months:  
1. recruitment and retention of child care professionals;  
2. planning around new or renewed space for child care facilities; and  
3. advocacy to the Province.  
 
From the second listed priority, the Group identified an opportunity to potentially expand Bugaboo 
University.  
 
Space for Child Care Centres 
 

- 79 -



 

Page 2 of 9 | MOU | Bugaboo University Child Care | City and YMCA | Approved September 6, 2022 

The Penticton Child Care Action Plan identifies the target of at least 722 net new child care spaces by 
2030. Since the Plan’s endorsement by City Council, there have been several new centres that have 
opened or started construction. For example, the Edmonton Avenue child care centre will open in fall 
2022 with 116 spaces. In addition, Interior Health and the School District 67 have recently announced 
new child care projects (announced in April 2022; opening dates TBA).  
 
Bugaboo University 
 
While the community, including the City, are making progress towards the community’s goal, there is 
still a need for planning around new child care spaces (e.g., Recommendations 2, 3, 6, 14, and 30 of the 
Penticton Child Care Action Plan). To implement Recommendation 3 of the Action Plan, staff worked 
with the Group to review any possible opportunities with existing City facilities or land, among other 
possible locations with non-City land. One opportunity identified by the Group to increase the 
number of licensed child care spaces with a City facility is the current Bugaboo University. It is an early 
learning recreation program that operates within the Penticton Community Centre by the City 
Recreation Department. During its March 31, 2022 meeting, the Group unanimously requested that 
Penticton City Council consider investigating the expansion of Bugaboo University into a more 
traditional child care offering. There are other non-City opportunities for new spaces currently being 
examined by other community partners. 
 
Bugaboo University has been located in the Community Centre since 2015. It operates as a recreation 
program and provides programming to approximately 40 children during weekday mornings. 
Bugaboo University, however, is not a licensed child care centre.  Nevertheless, the space serves an 
important role in providing some morning programming to children between 3 to 5 years of age. It is 
located on the lower level of the western side of the Community Centre. There is a playground 
available for Bugaboo University to use on the west side of the Community Centre (next to the link 
between the South Okanagan Events Centre and the Penticton Trade and Convention Centre). 
Specifically, there are opportunities to explore renovations/expansion involving these particular areas: 
 
• Connections and alignment with the North Gateway Plan: How can this project incorporate the 

North Gateway Plan’s core principles? 
• Reimagining the locker rooms: Staff have identified that the locker rooms adjacent to the Bugaboo 

University space are underutilized. There may be an opportunity to reconfigure these locker rooms 
to be added to the space available for child care.  

• Enhancing the universal accessibility of the basement of the Community Centre: With the current 
Community Centre layout, a ramp from the main floor of the Centre to the basement goes past the 
current Bugaboo University space. This ramp can pose challenges with accessing parts of the lower 
level of the Community Centre. For example, at the bottom of the ramp are narrow doors that can 
be a challenge for individuals using mobility equipment and/or younger families with strollers to 
access the recreation rooms on the bottom level of the Community Centre. This project presents an 
opportunity to add a new ramp on the east side of the Community Centre that will make the 
bottom level considerably more accessible. 

• Outdoor spaces: The outdoor spaces outside the child care could benefit from several 
enhancements that would make the spaces more accessible, welcoming, and integrated with the 
rest of the campus. The Bugaboo University project can be a catalyst for making the playground 
more accessible, and looking at synergies with surrounding outdoor spaces.  

• The current Bugaboo University spaces: Examine opportunities for innovative options for children 
that currently participate in Bugaboo University.  

- 80 -



 

Page 3 of 9 | MOU | Bugaboo University Child Care | City and YMCA | Approved September 6, 2022 

 
 
Expression of Interest 
 
In June 2022, the City released an Expression of Interest (EOI) to identify a partner organization for the 
Bugaboo University initiative. YMCA of the Southern Interior of BC* was the successful proponent 
from the City’s EOI process. The EOI is included as Attachment A of this MOU and forms part of this 
MOU. 
 
*Note: When the YMCA originally applied to the EOI, the organization was named YMCA of Okanagan; 
it changed its name (to YMCA of the Southern Interior of BC) in the time between submitting the EOI 
response and the signing of this MOU.  
 
2. COMMITMENT TO EXCELLENCE IN COLLABORATION AND COMMUNICATION AND SERVICE 
 
The City and the YMCA agree to strive to achieve excellence in collaborating on and the services 
associated with the initiative(s) described herein and communicating with one another, community 
partners, and the public about the initiative(s). Without the prior written consent of the other party, no 
party will make any press release, public announcement, or public statement about the MOU, except 
under exceptional circumstances. This MOU will be available in the public domain and shareable by 
any party of the MOU. Nothing in this MOU prevents individual organizations from oversight, 
operations, and management of their organizations, programs, staff, and/or resources outside the 
scope of this MOU.  
 
3. THE INITIATIVE 
 
The initiative includes the following: 
 

1. Reviewing the existing Bugaboo University space and program, underutilized nearby spaces in 
the Community Centre (e.g., locker rooms on the lower level of the Community Centre next to 
the existing Bugaboo University space), the North Gateway Plan, the accessibility of the lower 
level of the Community Centre, and nearby outdoor spaces; 

 
2. Contingent on the results of the review, develop a design of an expanded/renovated Bugaboo 

University space and another relevant spaces using the services of a professional (e.g., 
architect, engineer), and identify the projected construction costs that strive to achieve high 
standards of child care centre operations, sustainability, and accessibility; 

 
3. Draft and submit a capital grant application(s) using the final agreed to design and 

construction cost budget and any other relevant items, and; 
 

4. At the same time as developing the final design, construction cost budget, and construction 
timeline, signing a lease of the same term that is in the Provincial capital agreement and/or 
agreement(s) between the City and YMCA. To ensure transparency and mutual understanding 
of the relationship between the City and YMCA once the centre is renovated/expanded, this 
MOU also contains elements that should be considered for inclusion in the lease and/or 
agreement(s) between the City and YMCA.  

 

- 81 -



 

Page 4 of 9 | MOU | Bugaboo University Child Care | City and YMCA | Approved September 6, 2022 

 
 
 
4. CITY’S AND YMCA’S RESPONSIBILITIES AND ROLES AND COMMITMENTS  
 
The City of Penticton and YMCA will, at a minimum, adhere to the following commitments outlined in 
the below table.  
 

Element City’s Commitment YMCA’s Commitment  

Advocate 

Continue to advocate to other orders 
of government and relevant agencies 
for investments in child care in 
Penticton, including for innovative 
child care staffing investments.  

Participate in joint/community 
advocacy efforts. 

Affordability of 
Child Care 
Spaces 

Will support the YMCA with any 
relevant grants/funding/financial 
support opportunities (e.g., letter of 
support, reviewing funding/grant 
applications, reasonable staff time).  

Will apply for any and all relevant 
grants/funding/financial supports to 
make the spaces as affordable as 
possible.  

Communication 
Communicate in a timely, respectful, and clear manner with the other party.  
Participate in joint announcements and/or communications and/or education 
opportunities about the initiative. 

Capital Grant 
Application and 
Capital Grant 
Agreement 

Will approve and submit the capital 
grant application(s) for capital 
improvements, furniture, and 
equipment under the City of 
Penticton’s name. 

Will draft and develop the draft 
capital grant application(s). 

Neither party will retain an administrative fee from the capital grant(s). 
Will hold and adhere to the capital 
grant funding agreement related to 
the capital funding. Will review major 
elements of the capital funding 
agreement with the YMCA prior to 
the City signing the agreement.  

Will adhere to any requirements 
attached to the capital funding.  

Child Care 
Spaces 

This project is intended to have as much positive community benefit as 
possible. It is anticipated that the child care centre will have a mix of child care 
spaces (e.g., toddler, infant, 3-5 year olds, after school), and that this will be 
finalized during the design phase of the initiative.  

Construction 
Cost Overruns 
and Unexpected 
Costs 

The City will be responsible for any 
construction-related cost overruns 
and unexpected costs, provided that 
the final agreed to design, 
construction budget, and 
construction timeline are reasonable, 
and there are reasonable 
contingencies included in the 
construction budget and construction 
timelines. 

YMCA will be responsible for any 
construction-related cost overruns 
and unexpected costs where it has 
made a decision that led to the cost 
overrun or unexpected cost(s). 

- 82 -



 

Page 5 of 9 | MOU | Bugaboo University Child Care | City and YMCA | Approved September 6, 2022 

If the City leverages the 
renovation/expansion to do other 
works on the Community Centre 
outside the scope of the EOI, MOU, 
initiative(s), and/or capital agreement, 
the City will be responsible for these 
cost overruns or unexpected costs. 

[intentionally left blank] 

Data 

Share data in the aggregate format provided that such data is relevant to the 
initiative and the appropriate and reasonable privacy and data protections 
have been incorporated in the sharing of the data. Data may not be shared in 
any form or medium without the express and written permission of the other 
party.  

Design 

Will hire and pay for the architect to 
complete the preliminary designs of 
the expanded/renovated Bugaboo 
University space (and any other 
related spaces) to include in any grant 
applications and to be used with any 
permit applications. 

Will fully participate in the design 
phase including providing any 
necessary data, documents, feedback, 
suggestions, and/or any other form of 
input to help the design work move 
forward in a timely fashion. 

While both parties will work to finalize 
the design through consensus, the 
City will have final decision over the 
final design. 

Will work with the City to finalize a 
design that the YMCA reasonably 
believes it can operate and maintain 
to a high standard of excellence.  

Insurance 

The City will be responsible for 
ensuring the construction/renovation 
works have adequate course of 
construction insurance coverage.  

YMCA must provide proof of 
adequate, liability insurance for the 
operations of the child care centre. 
The City must be named as an 
additional insured.  

Land Use 
Authority and 
Permits 

Will ensure that the construction 
related activities have the appropriate 
municipal construction permits. 

Will support the City with any 
information or documents the City 
requires while reviewing the permit 
applications.  

Landlord and 
Tenant Roles, 
and Lease 
Agreement 

Will act as the landlord related to the 
expanded Bugaboo University space. 

Will act as the tenant related to the 
expanded Bugaboo University space.  

During the development of the final design, construction cost budget, and 
construction timelines, the City and YMCA will sign a Lease Agreement for the 
agreed to space(s) for the purpose of the YMCA operating a child care centre in 
the expanded Bugaboo University space. For clarity, it is anticipated that this 
lease shall include a diagram of the newly expanded/renovated Bugaboo 
University space that is to be used as the child care centre by the YMCA as well 
as access to outdoor space near the Community Centre for use by the child 
care centre. Additionally, it is anticipated that the lease agreement will include 
provisions around annual lease amounts and expectations of each party 
related to the fact that the child care centre will be operating inside a busy and 
functional Community Centre facility that has other user groups, tenants, 
programs, and operational requirements.  
**As the Lease and/or operating agreement may be signed and executed prior 
to receiving the agreement from the Province, if there is a requirement in the 

- 83 -



 

Page 6 of 9 | MOU | Bugaboo University Child Care | City and YMCA | Approved September 6, 2022 

capital grant agreement between the City and Province that is not considered 
in the Lease and/or any other type of agreement between the City and YMCA, 
both the City and YMCA agree that the lease and/or other agreement will be 
amended to include this provision(s) ** 

Maintenance 

The City will maintain the Community 
Centre, including the building 
envelope, HVAC systems, electrical 
and plumbing infrastructure inside 
the walls/floors/ceiling, and other 
fixtures and infrastructure outside of 
the Bugaboo University space. 

Will maintain and repair all fixtures, 
electrical infrastructure outside the 
walls/floors/ceiling, furniture, toilets, 
sinks, flooring and the like inside the 
newly renovated/expanded space, as 
well as janitorial supplies and 
cleaning of the space.  

Will do monthly inspections of fire 
alarms and fire extinguishers, and 
annual inspections of fire alarms and 
fire extinguishers, as well as regular 
testing of the intrusion alarm. 

Will provide appropriate access to the 
City or third party providers to 
complete these inspections / testing. 

Name of the 
Program 

It is anticipated that the name of the new child care program will incorporate 
that it is a YMCA program (i.e., be branded as YMCA). The City is committed to 
working with the YMCA to finalize the name of the program that incorporates 
the YMCA brand. 

Operating 
Agreement 

During the development of the final 
design, construction cost budget, and 
construction schedule, will draft an 
operating agreement based on any 
operation-related responsibilities 
associated with the capital funding, 
the EOI, and this MOU. 

Will work with the City to finalize and 
sign the operating agreement. Will 
adhere to any operating requirements 
that are attached to the capital 
funding.  

**As the Lease and/or operating agreement may be signed and executed prior 
to receiving the agreement from the Province, if there is a requirement in the 
capital grant agreement between the City and Province that is not considered 
in the Lease and/or any other type of agreement between the City and YMCA, 
both the City and YMCA agree that the lease and/or other agreement will be 
amended to include this provision(s)** 

Operating the 
Centre 

Will not reasonably interfere with the 
operations of the child care centre 
unless there is an emergency or 
urgent matter. 

Fully responsible for operating the 
child care centre, including the 
recruitment of an adequate number 
of qualified staff and families.  

Parking 
YMCA staff and parents will have access to the general parking lot of the 
Community Centre. Final parking arrangements will be agreed to as part of the 
lease and/or operating agreement.  

Property Taxes 

Will review a permissive tax 
exemption application as part of the 
annual permissive tax exemption 
process. 

Will apply for a permissive tax 
exemption on an annual basis if 
continue to be eligible under the 
permissive tax exemption program. 

Public 
Engagement 

Will lead and coordinate any public 
engagement activities related to 
finalizing the design of the expansion 
and during construction, if any. 

Will participate in any City-led public 
participation activities, and will lead 
any public engagement activities 
once the new space is open.  

- 84 -



 

Page 7 of 9 | MOU | Bugaboo University Child Care | City and YMCA | Approved September 6, 2022 

Renovation / 
Construction 

Will project manage and oversee the 
renovation/construction.  

Will provide any information, 
documents, and/or decisions in an 
expedited manner during the 
renovation/construction phase of the 
initiative. 

The City and YMCA will aim to meet every four (4) weeks during the 
renovation/construction to share updates, timelines, and any other pertinent 
information. Both parties commit to participating in these meetings.  
Should the renovation/construction be delayed, the City is not liable for any 
costs that the YMCA may incur due to this delay.  

Staff Time and 
Contributions 

Will appoint a project lead(s) and will 
contribute the staff member’s/s’ time 
in-kind to the initiative (design and 
renovation/construction phases). 

Will appoint a project lead(s) and will 
contribute the staff member’s/s’ time 
in-kind to the initiative. 

State of Local 
Emergency 

During a State of Local Emergency (SOLE), the City may request to use the 
expanded/renovated Bugaboo University space at its discretion to support the 
municipality’s response to the emergency/disaster/event.  

 
Other Considerations Associated with the MOU 
 
• If a party of this MOU will not be able to deliver one of its roles, commitments, components, 

and/or parts of this MOU, it must notify the other party(s), in writing, as soon as reasonably 
possible.  

• With the types of initiatives included in this MOU, there may be new considerations that arise that 
were not anticipated during the development of the MOU. All parties agree to sit down in good 
faith and respectfully come to a reasonable agreement about the consideration.  

• The continued collaboration is contingent on successfully receiving a capital grant, such as the 
Childcare BC New Spaces Fund, for the full construction costs of the project and on receiving the 
appropriate permits from the City. 

 
4. DURATION OF, CHANGING, AND ENDING THIS MOU 
 
This MOU shall be for three (3) years. It shall be from September 1, 2022 to August 31, 2025, unless 
otherwise stated in this MOU. City staff shall review the MOU approximately every twelve (12) months 
with YMCA.   If the capital grant application(s) is not successful then this MOU shall end immediately 
and will no longer be valid unless agreed to in writing by both parties.  
 
The City or YMCA may request a change or amendment to this MOU. The request must be made in 
writing and should be provided a minimum of forty (40) business days prior to the party wishing for 
the change to become effective. The City and YMCA will work cooperatively and in good faith to come 
to consensus on the change(s).  The City and/or YMCA with a minimum of six-months (6) calendar 
months’ notice, may leave this MOU without cause. The party must provide written notice to the other 
party. Any change or other related correspondence should be addressed to the individual identified in 
the 5. CONTACTS section below. 
 
 
[this space is intentionally blank] 
 

- 85 -



 

Page 8 of 9 | MOU | Bugaboo University Child Care | City and YMCA | Approved September 6, 2022 

 
 
5. CONTACTS 
 
Should any party wish to contact the CITY OF PENTICTON, they shall contact: 
 
Social Development  
City of Penticton  
171 Main Street  
Penticton, BC  
V2A 5A9  
250.490.2400  
SocialDevelopment@penticton.ca  
ATTN: Adam Goodwin  
 
Should any party wish to contact YMCA OF THE SOUTHERN INTERIOR OF BC, they shall contact: 
 
YMCA of the Southern Interior of BC 
375 Hartman Rd 
Kelowna, BC 
V1X 2M9 
250.491.9622 
danielle.miranda@ymcasibc.ca 
ATTN: Danielle Miranda 
 
6. DISPUTE RESOLUTION  
 
Should a conflict/dispute arise related to this MOU, it is in the interest of all parties of the MOU to 
resolve the conflict/dispute as quickly and respectfully as possible. The organization/party with the 
concern should work directly with the organization/party in which it has a concern to resolve the 
concern/dispute. If the matter cannot be reasonably resolved between the two organizations/parties, 
the organization/party with the concern shall hire and bear the costs of a mediator to resolve the 
conflict/dispute. All organizations/parties agree to participate in a reasonable mediation process.  
 
7. EXECUTION, AND STORAGE OF MOU 
 
No legal rights or obligations shall be created or arise until the City of Penticton, and YMCA of the 
Southern Interior of BC Association have approved this MOU, and the appropriate signing authorities 
have signed this MOU. This MOU will not become effective until a minimum of two (2) signing 
authorities from each party have signed the MOU. Time is of the essence to have the MOU fully signed 
and executed and to begin implementing the initiative(s). YMCA shall sign this MOU first, and the City 
shall sign the MOU last. The City shall store a fully signed and executed, and official copy (in both 
digital and paper forms) of this MOU.  
 
 

[this space is intentionally blank]  

- 86 -



 

Page 9 of 9 | MOU | Bugaboo University Child Care | City and YMCA | Approved September 6, 2022 

8. SIGNATURES  
 
The CORPORATE SEAL OF CITY OF PENTICTON was hereunto affixed in the Presence of its duly 
authorized signatories: 
 
 
_________________________________________   COUNCIL APPROVED 
John Vassilaki        DATE: September 6, 2022 
Mayor         Res. No.:  
City of Penticton 
Date:  
 
 
_________________________________________ 
Angie Collison 
Corporate Officer 
City of Penticton 
Date:  
 
YMCA OF THE SOUTHERN INTERIOR OF BC by its authorized signatories:  
 
 
_________________________________________ 
Allyson Graf 
Chief Executive Officer 
YMCA of the Southern Interior of BC Association 
Date:  
 
 
_________________________________________ 
Ryan Stieman 
Chief Financial Officer  
YMCA of the Southern Interior of BC Association 
Date:  

- 87 -



 

 
Council Report 

 

   

 

 

Date: September 6, 2022       File No:    1850-20 
To: Donny van Dyk, Chief Administrative Officer 
From: Amber Coates, Financial Analyst 
Subject: In-Year Grant Request 

 

Staff Recommendation 

THAT Council approve a $20,000 cash grant to the Penticton Peach Festival, funded through general surplus. 

Strategic Priority Objective 

Mission: Penticton will serve its residents, businesses and visitors through good governance, partnership and the 
provision of effective and community focused services. 

Background 

The City has received an additional in-year grant request through our grant administration program.  
Annually the City receives grant applications as part of the budget deliberation process and subsequently 
receives in-year applications from organizations that did not apply during the regular intake. 

During the 2022 budget deliberation process, the City used funding principles to determine the level of 
grant funding provided with new requests to address the increase in grant requests and to meet the budget 
allocation for grants.  These principles included: 

• Returning nominal grants from the prior year with similar requests were funded at the prior 
year levels; 

• Large grants were reviewed individually; 
• New requests under $10,000 were funded at 50%; and 
• Special events were evaluated individually. 

Financial Implication 

During the budget process an amount is allocated to ‘other’ grants to fund requests that are made during 
the year.  There is currently no budget remaining in the ‘other’ grants and amounts would require funding 
from the general surplus. 

 

 

 

- 88 -



 
Council Report  Page 2 of 2 

Analysis  

Penticton Peach Festival – Replacement of Float (Project Cost $60,000; Request $20,000) 

The Penticton Peach Festival’s electric float has suffered a catastrophic motherboard failure, necessitating a 
replacement float be designed and constructed. The total cost of the float replacement is estimated at 
$60,000.  

Historically, the City has provided a grant every three years to the Society to assist in retrofitting the float, 
cost sharing the expense with the Society and Travel Penticton. The design must be updated on a three year 
cycle in order to continue to participate in festivals across British Columbia, Alberta, Washington and 
Oregon. The last such grant requested was for the 2019 grant year, where a $10,000 cash grant was provided 
with Resolution 497/2018. The Penticton Peach Festival is seeking to fund the replacement in a similar 
partnership structure, with a $20,000 grant from Travel Penticton, $20,000 from the Penticton Peach Festival 
Society and the $20,000 request from the City. 

The float not only makes its appearance annually at the local Peach Festival parade, but also tours many 
festivals representing Penticton in the western region. In 2022, the float won the Berrysville Award at the 
Marysville Strawberry Festival in Washington, the President’s award at the Hyack Festival parade in New 
Westminster, and the Golden Apple Award in the Stemilt Grand Parade at the Wenatchee Apple Blossom 
Festival. 

Staff have reviewed the request and based on the legacy of cost sharing for the festival float, support the 
grant request for this project.  Applying the same principles that were used during the regular grant process, 
staff are proposing to fund the request at 100%, or $20,000. 

Alternate Recommendation 

THAT Council provide alternate direction to staff on the level of funding for the grant application from the 
Penticton Peach Festival.   

Respectfully submitted, 

   

Amber Coates, Financial Analyst  

Attachment A – Correspondence from Penticton Peach Festival  

Concurrence  
  

Director of Finance and 
Administration 

 

Chief Administrative 
Officer 

AMC DvD 
 

- 89 -



 
 

 
August 19, 2022 
 
Mayor and City Council 
City of Penticton 
 
The City of Penticton/Penticton Peach Festival float promotes our city at parades and festivals throughout Western 
Canada and the Northwest United States.  However, after 25 years, hundreds of parades and thousands of 
kilometres, our float reached the end of its lifecycle late in the Calgary Stampede Parade in July. 
 
The mother board, which controls the battery-powered engine, died.    The float builders and electricians who 
have worked on our float said that due to the age of the equipment and the lack of replacement parts, “it is 
impossible to get your float back on the road.    You could spend thousands of dollars on repairs and it probably 
wouldn’t work.” 
 
You may have noticed that the Penticton Fire Department ATV towed the Penticton Float in the recent Peters Bros. 
Grand Parade.   The float will make its final appearance, being towed, in the Leavenworth Autumn Leaves Festival 
Parade, in September 
 
We are asking the City of Penticton to partner with Peach Festival and Travel Penticton (we are also making a 
request to Travel Penticton) to construct a new float that will hopefully last as long as our now-retiring rolling 
ambassador.   Cost estimates are $50,000-$60,000 so we are asking council to approve an expenditure up to 
$20,000 (one third of total cost) to build a new float. 
 
Few, if any, marketing initiatives provide Penticton with more publicity than the float.    It is seen by millions of 
people every year at more than 20 parades.   As a member of the Northwest Festivals Association, Penticton is one 
of only two Canadian cities (along with New Westminster) to gain annual entry into two of the largest parades in 
the Western United States….Seattle Seafair and Portland Rose Festival.    Those parades are watched live by 
hundreds of thousands of spectators and seen by millions of TV viewers.    
 
During the recent Calgary Stampede Parade, our float was live on CBC-TV for three minutes.    Other parades the 
float attends include: Wenatchee, Olympia, Marysville, Spokane, and Leavenworth, Washington; New 
Westminster, Ladner, White Rock, Osoyoos, Peachland, Summerland and Armstrong, B.C.     Earlier this year, our 
float won awards in four major parades. 
 
We are planning to begin construction in October so the float is ready for the beginning of the 2023 parade season 
in the spring.    
 
Thank you for your consideration. 
 
 
 
 
Don Kendall 
President 
Penticton Peach Festival 
 

- 90 -



 

 
Council Report 

 

   

 

 

Date: September 6, 2022       File No:    1970-04 
To: Donny van Dyk, Chief Administrative Officer 
From: Sabrina Sparrow, Revenue Supervisor 
 
Subject: 2023 Permissive Tax Exemption Bylaw No. 2022-49 

 

Staff Recommendation 

THAT Council give first, second and third reading to the “2023 Permissive Tax Exemption Bylaw No. 2022-49”, a 
bylaw granting permissive tax exemptions as listed in Schedule A for the 2023 Tax Year. 

Strategic Priority Objective 

Mission: Penticton will serve its residents, businesses and visitors through good governance, partnership and the 
provision of effective and community focused services. 

Background 

Pursuant to the Community Charter, Section 224, on or before October 31 in any year, Council may, by 
bylaw, exempt land or improvements from taxation under specific circumstances.  Over the last several 
years, the City of Penticton has reviewed and updated the Permissive Tax Exemption Policy in an effort to 
best align the program with the community’s priorities and needs.  The May 19, 2020 Permissive Tax 
Exemption Policy is included as Attachment C for reference.  The proposed bylaw is developed, and 
properties included for exemption, as set out by the current policy.  Policy updates are best considered prior 
to each year’s intake in order to ensure clarity for the applicants.  The annual intake for permissive 
exemptions begins mid-May of each year. 

Section 220 of the Community Charter includes general statutory exemptions for buildings used for public 
worship, hospitals, or incorporated institutions of learning. Under Section 224 of the Community Charter, 
council may, by bylaw, establish additional permissive exemptions.  The municipal exemptions may 
compliment the statutory exemptions by addressing the surrounding lands that are not covered by the 
statutory exemption. These are most often grassy areas and parking lots, and for our purposes are referred 
to as the Places of Worship, Private Schools and Hospitals ancillary properties to distinguish them from the 
statutory exemptions.  Additional permissive exemptions are also permitted for land and improvements 
owned or held by charitable, philanthropic, or other not-for-profit and land or improvements owned by an 
athletic or service club or association and used as for recreational purposes. 

- 91 -



 
Council Report  Page 2 of 4 

While organizations may qualify to apply for permissive tax exemptions under the Community Charter and 
in the existing policy, it is at Council’s discretion how, or if, the exemptions are granted.  The bylaw can be 
adjusted based on Council’s direction to meet changing community priorities and needs that may not 
reflected in the existing policy.  Further, Council may wish to direct staff to amend the policy for future years 
based on these evolving needs. 

Financial Implication 

During the 2023 Permissive Tax Exemption intake, 186 applications were received, totaling an estimated 
$617,098 (calculated using 2022 taxable assessment values and 2022 property tax rates).   The requests for 
2023 represent 1.62% of the 2022 total budgeted general municipal tax requisition.  In comparison, 2022 
saw 181 applications totaling $613,884, or 1.71%.   

Description Amount 
2022 Schedule B Budget Amount for General Municipal Property Taxes $38,189,932 
2023 Permissive Tax Exemptions Requested $617,098 
Percentage of Budget Amount 1.62% 

 

Despite five additional applications this year over last, and an overall increase in property tax rates, the total 
exemption amount for 2023 has only increased $3,214.  This minimal increase is due to the significant 
changes in property assessment values that Penticton saw in 2022.  Overall, across all assessment classes of 
properties, Penticton property assessments increased 28.7%, however the assessed value increase of the 
applicant group was only 8.58%, considerably less than the overall average.  As a result, properties whose 
assessed values increased less than 28.7% saw an increase in taxes less than the approved 2022 tax rate 
increase of 5.70%.   

The property tax amounts reflected in the report and disclosed in Schedule A of the proposed bylaw are the 
municipal tax portions only.  Permissive tax exemptions grant the applicants exemption from the other 
taxing authorities as well, such as school taxes and regional districts.  General municipal taxes represent 
approximately 60% of total property taxes payable in Penticton; therefore, Schedule A represents an 
estimated 60% of the total tax savings these organizations would receive and absorbed by other taxpayers.  

Analysis 

Only those applications that meet the criteria of the Community Charter are able to move forward for more 
in-depth analysis. Staff then review the application to confirm that the organization has met the objectives 
of the policy established by Council and demonstrated appropriate attempts to secure alternate funding, 
community support, competent administration, and a clear mandate.  All applications in this intake were 
able to demonstrate the above. 

As part of the Permissive Tax Exemption application, applicants are asked to self-identify in one of the six 
evaluation categories outlined in the policy.  Categories are considered as part of the staff review to confirm 
the applicant has chosen a category that is reasonable to their use of the property.  The below table provides 
a summary overview of the structure of this year’s applications: 

 

- 92 -



 
Council Report  Page 3 of 4 

Self-Declared Evaluation Category # of Folios $ per Category % of Ask 
Affordable Rental Housing 99 $97,863 15.8% 
Arts, Cultural and Heritage facilities 4 $46,091 7.5% 
Health, Safety and Social Service properties 33 $233,173 37.7% 
Parks, Recreation and Sports facilities 13 $68,009 11.0% 
Places of Worship, Private Schools and Hospitals 
ancillary properties 31 $150,936 24.5% 

Special Needs and Supportive Housing 6 $21,026 3.5% 
Grand Total 186 $617,098 100.0% 

 

Changes in applicants for 2023 include: 

Applications changed for 2023: 

1. Penticton Recovery Resource Society – 633 Winnipeg Street  
• BC Assessment has reclassified the property to Class 3 Supportive Housing, which is currently not 

taxable.  Therefore, there is no tax amount to exempt for 2023.  The organization will continue to 
apply in the event their classification is changed and they become taxable again. 

Applicants not returning for 2023: 

1. St. Andrew’s Presbyterian Church – 157 Wade Avenue W 
• This property was sold. 

New applicants for 2023: 

Details of the uses and activities performed at the properties as submitted by the applicants are included in 
Attachment B.  

1. Penticton Yacht Club Skaha Marina – 3895 Lakeside Road & 124 South Beach Drive 
• A portion of these properties are eligible for permissive tax exemption under the Community 

Charter 224 2(a) the estimated value of 2023 municipal taxes exempted for these properties 
would be $2,983. 

2. Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen – 176 Main Street & 153 Estabrook Avenue 
• A portion of these properties are eligible for permissive tax exemption under the Community 

Charter 224 2(b).  The estimated value of 2023 municipal taxes exempted for these properties 
would be $9,892.   

• When a local government owns a property it automatically qualifies for a property tax exemption, 
however, under a lease from a for-profit entity as is the situation here, they must apply for a 
permissive exemption. 

3. Canadian Mental Health Association – 102 & 103 1873 Main Street 
• The full properties are eligible for permissive tax exemption under the Community Charter 224 

2(a).  The estimated value of 2023 municipal taxes exempted for these properties would be 
$7,035. 

4. Community Foundation of the South Okanagan Similkameen – 1001 Johnson Road 

- 93 -



 
Council Report  Page 4 of 4 

The full property is eligible for permissive tax exemption under the Community Charter 224 2(a).  
The estimated value of 2023 municipal taxes exempted for this property would be $1,900. 

Council may provide direction for specific applicants and request staff change Permissive Tax Exemption 
Bylaw No. 2022-49, re-advertise the exemptions (in accordance with section 94 of the Community Charter) 
and hold a special Council meeting prior to October 31, 2022 to meet the statutory deadline.  

 

Attachments 

Attachment A – 2023 Permissive Tax Exemption Bylaw No. 2022-49 

Attachment B – New Applications for the 2023 Tax Year Details 

Attachment C – Permissive Tax Exemption Policy 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Sabrina Sparrow, 
Revenue Supervisor 

 

Concurrence  

Director of  
Finance & 

Administration  

Chief Administrative 
Officer 

AMC 
DvD 

 
 

 

- 94 -



 
 

2023 Permissive Tax Exemption Bylaw No. 2022-49  Page 1 of 1 
 

The Corporation of the City of Penticton 
 

Bylaw No. 2022-49 
  

A Bylaw to Exempt Certain Parcels of Land from Taxation 
 

WHEREAS it is deemed expedient to exempt certain parcels of land from taxation, subject to final approval of 
germane authorities; 

AND WHEREAS the Community Charter provides specific exemptions for certain type or uses of property;   

NOW THEREFORE the Municipal Council of The Corporation of the City of Penticton in an open meeting assembled 
ENACTS as follows: 

1. Title: 
  
This Bylaw may be cited for all purposes as the “2023 Permissive Tax Exemption Bylaw No. 2022-49”. 

2. Administration: 
 
2.1 This Bylaw shall come into full force and effect and is binding on all persons during the 2023 taxation 

year. 

2.2 The properties described on the attached Schedule “A” shall be permissively exempt from taxation 
with respect to land and improvements for the year 2023. 

 
 
READ A FIRST time this  day of September, 2022 

READ A SECOND time this  day of September, 2022 

READ A THIRD time this  day of September, 2022 

ADOPTED this  day of October, 2022 

 
Notice of intention to proceed with this bylaw was published on the 26 day of August, 2022 and the 31 day of August, 2022 in an online 
news source and the newspaper, pursuant to Section 94.2 of the Community Charter.  
 

 

       
 John Vassilaki, Mayor 
 
 
 
       
 Angie Collison, Corporate Officer  
 

- 95 -



Bylaw No. 2022-49 "Schedule A"

Organization Name Community Charter Folio Number Civic Address Legal Description Additional Comments
Sum of 

Municipal Tax
Affordable Living for Today Society 224 (2)(a) 02166-020 245 Warren Ave W LT A  PL KAP35606  DL 115  SDYD  $7,290

BC Wine Info Centre 224 (2)(a) 05757-020 101 - 553 Vees Dr
LT 1  PL KAP58604  DL 2  SDYD THAT 
PART OCCUPIED BY WINE INFORMATION 
CENTR

 $4,268

BPOE Penticton Elks Lodge #51 224 (2)(a) 06275-000 343 Ellis St
LT 6  BLK 27  PL KAP479  DL 202  SDYD & 
LT 7  BLK 27  PL KAP479  DL 202  SDYD & 
LT 8  BLK 27  PL KAP479  DL 202  SDYD

Apportioned based on area used for 
liquor sales - 66.12% of 

land/improvements used for charitable 
purposes

$2,690

Canadian Mental Health Association - South Okanagan 
Similkameen Branch

224 (2)(a) 01551-000 102 & 103 - 1873 Main St PCL A  BLK C  PL KAP507B  DL 115  SDYD  
PRTN PL 779

25.6% of Class 5 land and improvements $7,035

Community Foundation of the South Okanagan 
Similkameen

224 (2)(a) 00111-005 501 Main St PCL B  BLK 18  PL KAP269  DL 202  SDYD  $26,512

Community Foundation of the South Okanagan 
Similkameen

224 (2)(a) 07049-010 1001 Johnson Rd LT 1  PL KAP13981  DL 188  SDYD $1,900

Concordia Lutheran Church of Penticton BC 224 (2)(f) 03084-000 2800 South Main St LT 1  PL KAP26064  DL 251  SDYD  
EXCPTPLN A16475

 $5,200

Fraternal Order Of Eagles #4281 224 (2)(a) 01247-000 1197 Main St LT 2  PL KAP5202  DL 250  SDYD
Class 8 portion used for charitable 

purposes
$3,642

Good Samaritan Canada 224 (2)(a) 01162-580 270 Hastings Ave LT 1  PL KAP67080  DL 1 2  SDYD  GRP 7  $48,603

Grace Mennonite Brethren Church 224 (2)(f) 01737-000 74 Penticton Ave LT 1  PL KAP9219  DL 250  SDYD  $1,749

Green Mountain Congregation of Jehovah's Witnesses 224 (2)(f) 02068-100 52 Roy Ave LT 1  PL KAP70022  DL 115  SDYD Class 8 portion only $3,793

Hellenic Community of Penticton 224 (2)(f) 01064-000 1265 Fairview Ave LT 25  PL KAP1194  DL 1  SDYD  $1,543
Holy Cross School 224 (2)(a) 01806-000 1299 Manitoba St LT 2  PL KAP24489  DL 250  SDYD  $17,490
Living Way Life Church 224 (2)(f) 00068-000 608 Winnipeg St LT 4  PL KAP977  DL 202  SDYD  $1,294

Luso Canadian Multicultural Society 224 (2)(a) 05022-000 135 Winnipeg St LT 14  BLK A  PL KAP269  DL 4  SDYD  GRP 
7

 $2,796

Oasis United Church 224 (2)(g) 02241-101 2964 Skaha Lake Rd LT A  PL EPP16739  DL 116  SDYD  $15,079
Okanagan Boys & Girls Clubs 224 (2)(a) 01806-010 1295 Manitoba St LT 1  PL KAP24489  DL 250  SDYD  $8,103

Okanagan Similkameen Neurological Society 224 (2)(a) 07464-006 103 - 550 Carmi Ave NO LEGAL
No lease registered by Interior Health - 
no taxable property to exempt for 2023

$0

OneSky Community Resources Society 224 (2)(a) 00734-030 847 Winnipeg St LT 3  PL KAP14087  DL 202 250  SDYD  
EXCPTPLN 27357

 $1,863

OneSky Community Resources Society 224 (2)(a) 01603-010 470 Edmonton Ave
LT 5  PL KAP1410  DL 202 249 250  SDYD 
& LT 6  PL KAP1410  DL 202 250  SDYD

 $3,592

OneSky Community Resources Society 224 (2)(a) 01603-020 500 Edmonton Ave LT 4  PL KAP1410  DL 249 250  SDYD  $978
OneSky Community Resources Society 224 (2)(a) 02176-500 2434  Baskin St LT 6  PL KAP25214  DL 198  SDYD  $1,084
OneSky Community Resources Society 224 (2)(a) 02176-510 2450 Baskin St LT 7  PL KAP25214  DL 198  SDYD  $1,087
OneSky Community Resources Society 224 (2)(a) 02844-000 150 McPherson Cres LT 15  PL KAP14013  DL 267  SDYD  $2,719
OneSky Community Resources Society 224 (2)(a) 02845-000 154 McPherson Cres LT 16  PL KAP14013  DL 267  SDYD  $2,719
OneSky Community Resources Society 224 (2)(a) 06234-011 101 - 208 Ellis St LT 1  PL KAS1233  DL 202  SDYD  $2,144
OneSky Community Resources Society 224 (2)(a) 06300-300 330 Ellis St PCL A  PL KAP32873  DL 202  SDYD  $14,261
OneSky Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 05099-011 107 - 285 Nanaimo Ave W LT 1  PL EPS6049  DL 4  SDYD  GRP 7 $548
OneSky Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 05099-012 108 - 285 Nanaimo Ave W LT 2  PL EPS6049  DL 4  SDYD  GRP 7 $713
OneSky Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 05099-013 110 - 285 Nanaimo Ave W LT 3  PL EPS6049  DL 4  SDYD  GRP 7 $582
OneSky Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 05099-014 111 - 285 Nanaimo Ave W LT 4  PL EPS6049  DL 4  SDYD  GRP 7 $583
OneSky Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 05099-015 112 - 285 Nanaimo Ave W LT 5  PL EPS6049  DL 4  SDYD  GRP 7 $826
OneSky Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 05099-016 113 - 285 Nanaimo Ave W LT 6  PL EPS6049  DL 4  SDYD  GRP 7 $685
OneSky Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 05099-017 114 - 285 Nanaimo Ave W LT 7  PL EPS6049  DL 4  SDYD  GRP 7 $1,028
OneSky Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 05099-018 115 - 285 Nanaimo Ave W LT 8  PL EPS6049  DL 4  SDYD  GRP 7 $935
OneSky Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 05099-019 101 - 285 Nanaimo Ave W LT 9  PL EPS6049  DL 4  SDYD  GRP 7 $538
OneSky Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 05099-020 102 - 285 Nanaimo Ave W LT 10  PL EPS6049  DL 4  SDYD  GRP 7 $713
OneSky Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 05099-021 103 - 285 Nanaimo Ave W LT 11  PL EPS6049  DL 4  SDYD  GRP 7 $713
OneSky Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 05099-022 104 - 285 Nanaimo Ave W LT 12  PL EPS6049  DL 4  SDYD  GRP 7 $944
OneSky Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 05099-023 105 - 285 Nanaimo Ave W LT 13  PL EPS6049  DL 4  SDYD  GRP 7 $732
OneSky Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 05099-024 106 - 285 Nanaimo Ave W LT 14  PL EPS6049  DL 4  SDYD  GRP 7 $1,131
OneSky Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 05099-025 207 - 285 Nanaimo Ave W LT 15  PL EPS6049  DL 4  SDYD  GRP 7 $560
OneSky Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 05099-026 208 - 285 Nanaimo Ave W LT 16  PL EPS6049  DL 4  SDYD  GRP 7 $729
OneSky Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 05099-027 209 - 285 Nanaimo Ave W LT 17  PL EPS6049  DL 4  SDYD  GRP 7 $729
OneSky Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 05099-028 210 - 285 Nanaimo Ave W LT 18  PL EPS6049  DL 4  SDYD  GRP 7 $975
OneSky Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 05099-029 211 - 285 Nanaimo Ave W LT 19  PL EPS6049  DL 4  SDYD  GRP 7 $975
OneSky Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 05099-030 212 - 285 Nanaimo Ave W LT 20  PL EPS6049  DL 4  SDYD  GRP 7 $558
OneSky Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 05099-031 213 - 285 Nanaimo Ave W LT 21  PL EPS6049  DL 4  SDYD  GRP 7 $1,159
OneSky Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 05099-032 214 - 285 Nanaimo Ave W LT 22  PL EPS6049  DL 4  SDYD  GRP 7 $944
OneSky Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 05099-033 201 - 285 Nanaimo Ave W LT 23  PL EPS6049  DL 4  SDYD  GRP 7 $584
OneSky Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 05099-034 202 - 285 Nanaimo Ave W LT 24  PL EPS6049  DL 4  SDYD  GRP 7 $729
OneSky Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 05099-035 203 - 285 Nanaimo Ave W LT 25  PL EPS6049  DL 4  SDYD  GRP 7 $729
OneSky Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 05099-036 204 - 285 Nanaimo Ave W LT 26  PL EPS6049  DL 4  SDYD  GRP 7 $963
OneSky Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 05099-037 205 - 285 Nanaimo Ave W LT 27  PL EPS6049  DL 4  SDYD  GRP 7 $748
OneSky Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 05099-038 206 - 285 Nanaimo Ave W LT 28  PL EPS6049  DL 4  SDYD  GRP 7 $1,156
OneSky Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 05099-039 307 - 285 Nanaimo Ave W LT 29  PL EPS6049  DL 4  SDYD  GRP 7 $571
OneSky Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 05099-040 308 - 285 Nanaimo Ave W LT 30  PL EPS6049  DL 4  SDYD  GRP 7 $741
OneSky Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 05099-041 309 - 285 Nanaimo Ave W LT 31  PL EPS6049  DL 4  SDYD  GRP 7 $741
OneSky Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 05099-042 310 - 285 Nanaimo Ave W LT 32  PL EPS6049  DL 4  SDYD  GRP 7 $997
OneSky Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 05099-043 311 - 285 Nanaimo Ave W LT 33  PL EPS6049  DL 4  SDYD  GRP 7 $994
OneSky Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 05099-044 312 - 285 Nanaimo Ave W LT 34  PL EPS6049  DL 4  SDYD  GRP 7 $569
OneSky Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 05099-045 313 - 285 Nanaimo Ave W LT 35  PL EPS6049  DL 4  SDYD  GRP 7 $1,181
OneSky Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 05099-046 314 - 285 Nanaimo Ave W LT 36  PL EPS6049  DL 4  SDYD  GRP 7 $963
OneSky Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 05099-047 301 - 285 Nanaimo Ave W LT 37  PL EPS6049  DL 4  SDYD  GRP 7 $560
OneSky Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 05099-048 302 - 285 Nanaimo Ave W LT 38  PL EPS6049  DL 4  SDYD  GRP 7 $741
OneSky Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 05099-049 303 - 285 Nanaimo Ave W LT 39  PL EPS6049  DL 4  SDYD  GRP 7 $741
OneSky Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 05099-050 304 - 285 Nanaimo Ave W LT 40  PL EPS6049  DL 4  SDYD  GRP 7 $984
OneSky Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 05099-051 305 - 285 Nanaimo Ave W LT 41  PL EPS6049  DL 4  SDYD  GRP 7 $763
OneSky Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 05099-052 306 - 285 Nanaimo Ave W LT 42  PL EPS6049  DL 4  SDYD  GRP 7 $1,178
OneSky Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 05099-053 407 - 285 Nanaimo Ave W LT 43  PL EPS6049  DL 4  SDYD  GRP 7 $583
OneSky Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 05099-054 408 - 285 Nanaimo Ave W LT 44  PL EPS6049  DL 4  SDYD  GRP 7 $754
OneSky Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 05099-055 409 - 285 Nanaimo Ave W LT 45  PL EPS6049  DL 4  SDYD  GRP 7 $754
OneSky Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 05099-056 410 - 285 Nanaimo Ave W LT 46  PL EPS6049  DL 4  SDYD  GRP 7 $1,016
OneSky Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 05099-057 411 - 285 Nanaimo Ave W LT 47  PL EPS6049  DL 4  SDYD  GRP 7 $1,013
OneSky Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 05099-058 412 - 285 Nanaimo Ave W LT 48  PL EPS6049  DL 4  SDYD  GRP 7 $581
OneSky Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 05099-059 413 - 285 Nanaimo Ave W LT 49  PL EPS6049  DL 4  SDYD  GRP 7 $1,206
OneSky Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 05099-060 414 - 285 Nanaimo Ave W LT 50  PL EPS6049  DL 4  SDYD  GRP 7 $984
OneSky Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 05099-061 401 - 285 Nanaimo Ave W LT 51  PL EPS6049  DL 4  SDYD  GRP 7 $571
OneSky Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 05099-062 402 - 285 Nanaimo Ave W LT 52  PL EPS6049  DL 4  SDYD  GRP 7 $754
OneSky Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 05099-063 403 - 285 Nanaimo Ave W LT 53  PL EPS6049  DL 4  SDYD  GRP 7 $754
OneSky Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 05099-064 404 - 285 Nanaimo Ave W LT 54  PL EPS6049  DL 4  SDYD  GRP 7 $1,003
OneSky Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 05099-065 405 - 285 Nanaimo Ave W LT 55  PL EPS6049  DL 4  SDYD  GRP 7 $776
OneSky Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 05099-066 406 - 285 Nanaimo Ave W LT 56  PL EPS6049  DL 4  SDYD  GRP 7 $1,203

*Properties listed with $0 Municipal Tax and are Class 3 are not taxable.  These applications are made by the Organizations in the event their classification changes* Page 1 of 3

- 96 -



Bylaw No. 2022-49 "Schedule A"

Organization Name Community Charter Folio Number Civic Address Legal Description Additional Comments
Sum of 

Municipal Tax

Ooknakane Friendship Centre 224 (2)(a) 06033-020 146 Ellis St
LT 7  BLK 12  PL KAP479  DL 202  SDYD & 
LT 8  BLK 12  PL KAP479  DL 202  SDYD

 $4,621

Our Redeemer Lutheran Church of Penticton, B.C. 224 (2)(g) 02574-110 1370 Church St LT 8  PL KAP12141  DL 250  SDYD  
EXCPTPLN 17894 26105 75724

 $1,768

Penticton & District Community Arts Council 224 (2)(a) 01807-200 220 Manor Park Ave LT 20  PL KAP5937  DL 250  SDYD  $14,814

Penticton & District Minor Hockey Association 224 (2)(i) 05757-000 399 Power St LT 1  PL KAP58604  DL 2  SDYD  GRP 7  
EXCPTPLN KAP87244

 $1,434

Penticton Alliance Church 224 (2)(a) 02178-060 197 Brandon Ave LT 1  PL KAP24720  DL 116  SDYD  $4,470
Penticton and District Emergency Program Society 224 (2)(a) 07565-010 251 Dawson Ave DL 251  SDYD  LSLCNCNMBR 4320.80  $1,684
Penticton and District Multicultural Society 224 (2)(a) 06300-260 340 Ellis St LT 8  PL KAP32873  DL 202  SDYD  $5,786
Penticton and District Society for Community Living 224 (2)(a) 01031-000 252 Conklin Ave LT 24  PL KAP2518  DL 1  SDYD  $2,252
Penticton and District Society for Community Living 224 (2)(a) 01552-030 180 Industrial Ave W LT 1  PL EPP71459  DL 115  SDYD  $13,069

Penticton and District Society for Community Living 224 (2)(a) 04794-000 259 Backstreet Blvd (up to 15 units) LT A  PL KAP49910  DL 202  SDYD
Only those residential units held in the 
name of PDSCL (up to 15 units). Land 

Title registrations in process.
$12,658

Penticton and District Society for Community Living 224 (2)(a) 06209-000 234 Van Horne St
LT 4  BLK 24  PL KAP479  DL 202  SDYD & 
LT 5  BLK 24  PL KAP479  DL 202  SDYD

 $2,608

Penticton and District Society for Community Living 224 (2)(a) 07475-010 1706 Main St LT A  PL EPP75769  DL 1997S  SDYD  $7,038
Penticton and District Society for Community Living 224 (2)(h) 00375-010 453 Winnipeg St (Chestnut Place) LT A  PL KAP77551  DL 4  SDYD  GRP 7  $3,548
Penticton and District Society for Community Living 224 (2)(j) 01552-040 146 & 150 Bruce Crt LT 2  PL EPP71459  DL 115  SDYD  $12,159

Penticton Art Gallery 224 (2)(a) 05888-000 199 Marina Way

PCL A  BLK C  PL KAP479  DL 202  SDYD  
PRTN (PLAN B166)  EXCPTPLN KAP79184 
& PCL B  BLK C  PL KAP479  DL 202  SDYD  
PRTN (PLAN B166)  EXCPTPLN M86 & LT 
12  PL KAP802  DL 202  SDYD  EXCPTPLN 
KAP79184

 $18,622

Penticton Bethel Pentecostal Tabernacle 224 (2)(a) 01195-020 945 Main St LT A  PL KAP33974  DL 250  SDYD  $6,371
Penticton Bethel Pentecostal Tabernacle 224 (2)(f) 01194-000 65 Preston Ave LT 8  PL KAP5140  DL 250  SDYD  $2,139

Penticton Bethel Pentecostal Tabernacle 224 (2)(f) 01194-505 973 Main St LT 1  PL KAP42595  DL 250  SDYD  
EXCPTPLN 42596

 $4,887

Penticton BMX Society 224 (2)(i) 07338-105 630 Munson Mountain Rd DL 187  SDYD  LSLCNCNMBR 4320-80  $3,310
Penticton Christian School Society 224 (2)(h.1) 01657-001 1060 Main St DL 250  SDYD  LSLCNCNMBR 4320-80  $932
Penticton Community Gardens Society 224 (2)(i) 05986-001 480 Vancouver Ave DL 202  SDYD  $1,564

Penticton Curling Club 224 (2)(a) 05757-040 505 Vees Dr LT 1  PL KAP58604  DL 2  SDYD  GRP 7  
EXCPTPLN KAP87244

 $12,591

Penticton Disc Golf Club 224 (2)(i) 05902-012 500 Marina Way SDYD  LSLCNCNMBR 4320.70  $7,447

Penticton First Baptist Church 224 (2)(g) 02623-000 1498 Government St

LT 2  PL KAP964  DL 250  SDYD  
EXCPTPLN H476 17134 B8017 KAP68050 
KAP69048 & LT 3  PL KAP964  DL 250  
SDYD  EXCPTPLN 17134 B8017 
KAP68050 KAP69048

 $5,794

Penticton Free Presbyterian Church 224 (2)(g) 01202-000 120 Preston Ave LT 2  PL KAP8006  DL 250  SDYD  $3,023

Penticton Golf & Country Club 224 (2)(i) 04245-010 600 Comox St
PCL A  PL KAP11299  DL 366  SDYD  PRTN 
(KD42751)

Approx. 172,000 sf exempt for land and 
all improvements associated with the 
golf course to be exempted with the 

exception of the 6,410 sf restaurant/bar 
area and 1,120 sf pro shop area

$5,228

Penticton Golf & Country Club 224 (2)(i) 04251-000 852 Eckhardt Ave W

LT A  PL KAP40972  DL 2 366 367  SDYD  
EXCPTPLN KAP75590 & PORTION 
OUTSIDE MUN BNDRY (C/REF 715-
02713.010)

 $13,904

Penticton Kiwanis Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 06064-011 101 - 150 Van Horne St LT 1  PL KAS3861  DL 202  SDYD $592
Penticton Kiwanis Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 06064-012 103 - 150 Van Horne St LT 2  PL KAS3861  DL 202  SDYD $493
Penticton Kiwanis Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 06064-013 105 - 150 Van Horne St LT 3  PL KAS3861  DL 202  SDYD $493
Penticton Kiwanis Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 06064-017 113 - 150 Van Horne St LT 7  PL KAS3861  DL 202  SDYD $493
Penticton Kiwanis Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 06064-018 115 - 150 Van Horne St LT 8  PL KAS3861  DL 202  SDYD $600
Penticton Kiwanis Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 06064-019 112 - 150 Van Horne St LT 9  PL KAS3861  DL 202  SDYD $593
Penticton Kiwanis Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 06064-022 104 - 150 Van Horne St LT 12  PL KAS3861  DL 202  SDYD $491
Penticton Kiwanis Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 06064-023 102 - 150 Van Horne St LT 13  PL KAS3861  DL 202  SDYD $593
Penticton Kiwanis Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 06064-024 201 - 150 Van Horne St LT 14  PL KAS3861  DL 202  SDYD $602
Penticton Kiwanis Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 06064-028 209 - 150 Van Horne St LT 18  PL KAS3861  DL 202  SDYD $503
Penticton Kiwanis Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 06064-029 211 - 150 Van Horne St LT 19  PL KAS3861  DL 202  SDYD $503
Penticton Kiwanis Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 06064-030 213 - 150 Van Horne St LT 20  PL KAS3861  DL 202  SDYD $503
Penticton Kiwanis Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 06064-031 215 - 150 Van Horne St LT 21  PL KAS3861  DL 202  SDYD $610
Penticton Kiwanis Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 06064-032 214 - 150 Van Horne St LT 22  PL KAS3861  DL 202  SDYD $603
Penticton Kiwanis Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 06064-033 212 - 150 Van Horne St LT 23  PL KAS3861  DL 202  SDYD $507
Penticton Kiwanis Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 06064-034 210 - 150 Van Horne St LT 24  PL KAS3861  DL 202  SDYD $503
Penticton Kiwanis Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 06064-037 204 - 150 Van Horne St LT 27  PL KAS3861  DL 202  SDYD $501
Penticton Kiwanis Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 06064-038 202 - 150 Van Horne St LT 28  PL KAS3861  DL 202  SDYD $603
Penticton Kiwanis Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 06064-039 301 - 150 Van Horne St LT 29  PL KAS3861  DL 202  SDYD $617
Penticton Kiwanis Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 06064-046 315 - 150 Van Horne St LT 36  PL KAS3861  DL 202  SDYD $622
Penticton Kiwanis Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 06064-047 314 - 150 Van Horne St LT 37  PL KAS3861  DL 202  SDYD $614
Penticton Kiwanis Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 06064-048 312 - 150 Van Horne St LT 38  PL KAS3861  DL 202  SDYD $515
Penticton Kiwanis Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 06064-049 310 - 150 Van Horne St LT 39  PL KAS3861  DL 202  SDYD $514
Penticton Kiwanis Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 06064-050 308 - 150 Van Horne St LT 40  PL KAS3861  DL 202  SDYD $601
Penticton Kiwanis Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 06064-052 304 - 150 Van Horne St LT 42  PL KAS3861  DL 202  SDYD $512
Penticton Kiwanis Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 06064-053 302 - 150 Van Horne St LT 43  PL KAS3861  DL 202  SDYD $614
Penticton Kiwanis Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 06064-054 401 - 150 Van Horne St LT 44  PL KAS3861  DL 202  SDYD $627
Penticton Kiwanis Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 06064-060 413 - 150 Van Horne St LT 50  PL KAS3861  DL 202  SDYD $525
Penticton Kiwanis Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 06064-061 415 - 150 Van Horne St LT 51  PL KAS3861  DL 202  SDYD $632
Penticton Kiwanis Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 06064-062 414 - 150 Van Horne St LT 52  PL KAS3861  DL 202  SDYD $625
Penticton Kiwanis Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 06064-063 412 - 150 Van Horne St LT 53  PL KAS3861  DL 202  SDYD $526
Penticton Kiwanis Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 06064-064 410 - 150 Van Horne St LT 54  PL KAS3861  DL 202  SDYD $522
Penticton Kiwanis Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 06064-065 408 - 150 Van Horne St LT 55  PL KAS3861  DL 202  SDYD $613
Penticton Kiwanis Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 06064-066 406 - 150 Van Horne St LT 56  PL KAS3861  DL 202  SDYD $519
Penticton Kiwanis Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 06064-067 404 - 150 Van Horne St LT 57  PL KAS3861  DL 202  SDYD $519
Penticton Kiwanis Housing Society 224 (2)(a) 06064-068 402 - 150 Van Horne St LT 58  PL KAS3861  DL 202  SDYD $625
Penticton Lawn Bowling Club 224 (2)(i) 05104-010 260 Brunswick St LT A  PL KAP65989  DL 4  SDYD  $4,953
Penticton Masonic Building Association 224 (2)(a) 05289-010 416 Westminster Ave W LT A  PL EPP21235  DL 4  SDYD  GRP 7  $3,808
Penticton New Beginnings Christian Fellowship 224 (2)(f) 01619-000 101 - 96 Edmonton Ave LT 1  PL KAP14625  DL 250  SDYD  $933
Penticton Recovery Resource Society 224 (2)(a) 01679-000 101 Edna Ave LT 9  PL KAP910  DL 250  SDYD  $2,178

Penticton Recovery Resource Society 224 (2)(a) 00634-000 633 Winnipeg St LT 6  PL KAP804  DL 202  SDYD
Qualified for Class 03-Supportive 

Housing in 2022
$0

Penticton Safety Village Society 224 (2)(a) 01603-030 490 Edmonton Ave

LT 4  PL KAP1410  DL 249 250  SDYD  
LSLCNCNMBR 4320.70 & LT 5  PL 
KAP1410  DL 249 250  SDYD  
LSLCNCNMBR 4320.70

 $6,159

Penticton Seniors' Drop-In Centre Society 224 (2)(a) 02233-000 2905 South Main St LT 118  PL KAP333  DL 116  SDYD  
EXCPTPLN B5593 20532 KAP45357

 $23,826

*Properties listed with $0 Municipal Tax and are Class 3 are not taxable.  These applications are made by the Organizations in the event their classification changes* Page 2 of 3

- 97 -



Bylaw No. 2022-49 "Schedule A"

Organization Name Community Charter Folio Number Civic Address Legal Description Additional Comments
Sum of 

Municipal Tax

Penticton Sikh Temple and Indian Cultural Society 224 (2)(a) 03096-010 3290 South Main St PCL A  PL KAP5331  DL 251  SDYD

Class 1 Residential portion not eligible 
for exemptions & 5% of taxable Class 8 

portion not eligible for exemption as not 
usable in relation to worship or 

charitable works.

$7,935

Penticton Tennis Club 224 (2)(i) 05902-025 675 Marina Way DL 3965S  SDYD  $2,658

Penticton United Church 224 (2)(g) 06900-000 696 Main St

LT 6  BLK 33  PL KAP269  DL 202  SDYD & 
LT 7  BLK 33  PL KAP269  DL 202  SDYD & 
LT 8  BLK 33  PL KAP269  DL 202  SDYD & 
LT 9  BLK 33  PL KAP269  DL 202  SDYD & 
LT 10  BLK 33  PL KAP269  DL 202  SDYD  
EXCPTPLN B3558

 $3,179

Penticton Vineyard Community Church 224 (2)(g) 01540-050 102 - 1825 Main St LT 1  PL KAP32190  DL 115  SDYD Class 8 portion only $8,243

Penticton Yacht Club 224 (2)(a) 03909-001 3895 Lakeside Rd SDYD  LSLCNCNMBR 342689  
LNDBRNCHFLNMBR 3403233

$2,224

Penticton Yacht Club 224 (2)(a) 03909-000 124 South Beach Dr LT A  PL KAP9936  DL 189  SDYD  
LSLCNCNMBR 4380.20

Apportioned based on area used for 
commercial tenants; 16% of 

land/improvements eligible for 
exemption.

$759

Penticton Yacht Club 224 (2)(a) 05905-000 293 Marina Way BLK A  DL 4197  SDYD  LSLCNCNMBR 
336979  LNDBRNCHFLNMBR 0079098

Apportioned based on area used for 
liquor sales and commercial tenants; 

93% of land/improvements eligible for 
exemption.

$9,500

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 224 (2)(b) 04641-010 176 Main Street LT 1  PL KAP82201  DL 202  SDYD 10.7% of Class 6 land and improvements $7,004

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 224 (2)(b) 04752-050 153 Estabrook Ave LT A  PL KAP39292  DL 4 202  SDYD 17.7% of Class 6 land and improvements $2,888

S.S. Sicamous Restoration Society 224 (2)(a) 08729-000 1099 Lakeshore Dr W LT 46  PL KAP764  SDYD  $8,387
Seventh-day Adventist Church (British Columbia 
Conference)

224 (2)(f) 02167-000 290 Warren Ave W LT 2  PL KAP26161  DL 115 198  SDYD  $4,568

South Okanagan Similkameen Brain Injury Society 224 (2)(a) 00721-000 742 Argyle St LT 8  PL KAP783  DL 4 202  SDYD  $2,125
South Okanagan Similkameen Brain Injury Society 224 (2)(a) 00739-000 332 Eckhardt Ave W LT 4  PL KAP2757  DL 202  SDYD  $2,664

South Okanagan Women in Need Society 224 (2)(a) NOT DISCLOSED Hughes House LOCATION NOT DISCLOSED
Qualified for Class 03-Supportive 

Housing in 2022
$0

South Okanagan Women in Need Society 224 (2)(a) NOT DISCLOSED Tamarack LOCATION NOT DISCLOSED
Qualified for Class 03-Supportive 

Housing in 2022
$0

South Okanagan Women in Need Society 224 (2)(a) 05838-010 101 - 1027 Westminster Ave W LT 1  PL KAS1711  DL 366  SDYD  $586
South Okanagan Women in Need Society 224 (2)(a) 05838-020 102 - 1027 Westminster Ave W LT 2  PL KAS1711  DL 366  SDYD  $1,206

St. Andrew's Presbyterian Church 224 (2)(a) 04857-000 397 Martin St LT 20  BLK A  PL KAP373  DL 4  SDYD & LT 
21  BLK A  PL KAP373  DL 4  SDYD

 $1,327

St. Ann's Parish 224 (2)(g) 01805-000 1296 Main St LT 3  PL KAP24489  DL 250  SDYD Class 8 portion only $5,851

St. Ann's Parish (Penticton Recovery Resource Society) 224 (2)(a) 05311-000 397 Wade Ave W LT 7  PL KAP810  DL 4  SDYD  GRP 7 & LT 
8  PL KAP810  DL 4  SDYD  GRP 7

 $1,673

St. Ann's Parish (Pregnancy Support Program under 
OneSky Communities)

224 (2)(a) 01804-220 200 Bennett Ave LT 22  PL KAP8070  DL 250  SDYD  $1,732

St. Ann's Parish (St. John Vianney) 224 (2)(f) 05310-000 361 Wade Ave W

LT 1  PL KAP810  DL 4  SDYD  GRP 7 & LT 
2  PL KAP810  DL 4  SDYD  GRP 7 & LT 3  
PL KAP810  DL 4  SDYD  GRP 7 & LT 4  PL 
KAP810  DL 4  SDYD  GRP 7 & LT 5  PL 
KAP810  DL 4  SDYD  GRP 7 & LT 6  PL 
KAP810  DL 4  SDYD  GRP 7

Class 8 portion only $2,618

St. Saviour's Anglican Church 224 (2)(f) 00059-000 150 Orchard Ave LT 7  BLK 17  PL KAP269  DL 4  SDYD  GRP 
7

 $4,193

The British Columbia Society for the Prevention of Cruelty 
to Animals

224 (2)(a) 07658-050 2200 Dartmouth Dr LT 1  PL KAP73659  DL 3821S  SDYD  $15,333

The Care Closet 224 (2)(a) 06572-000 574 Main St LT 10  BLK 19  PL KAP269  DL 202  SDYD  $2,746

The Church of Jesus Christ of Latter-day Saints in Canada 224 (2)(f) 03085-030 2946 South Main St

LT 3  PL KAP1478  DL 251  SDYD  
EXCPTPLN KAP45205 & LT 4  PL KAP1478  
DL 251  SDYD  EXCPTPLN KAP45205 & LT 
5  PL KAP1478  DL 251  SDYD  EXCPTPLN 
KAP45205

 $5,881

The Penticton Church of the Nazarene 224 (2)(a) 00238-010 523 Jermyn Ave LT 1  PL KAP6797  DL 202  SDYD Class 8 portion only $3,237

The Penticton Horseshoe Pitchers Club 224 (2)(a) 02233-005 2905 South Main St LT 118  PL KAP333  DL 116  SDYD  
LSLCNCNMBR 4320.70

 $2,437

The Penticton Kinsmen Disability Resource Center Society 224 (2)(a) 01162-060 216 Hastings Ave LT 1  PL KAP44774  DL 1 5  SDYD  $11,778

The Salvation Army Penticton 224 (2)(a) 02189-010 2399 South Main St LT 1  PL KAP23543  DL 116  SDYD  $12,196
The Salvation Army Penticton 224 (2)(a) 02193-020 2469 South Main St LT A  PL KAP43842  DL 116  SDYD  $4,055
The Salvation Army Penticton 224 (2)(a) 06300-355 318 Ellis St LT A  PL KAP45852  DL 202  SDYD  $4,634
YMCA of Okanagan Association 224 (2)(a) 05628-012 630 Birch Ave LT A  PL KAP91728  DL 2  SDYD  GRP 7  $2,452
Total Permissive Tax Exemptions 186 Properties $617,098

*Properties listed with $0 Municipal Tax and are Class 3 are not taxable.  These applications are made by the Organizations in the event their classification changes* Page 3 of 3

- 98 -



Attachment B – New Applications for the 2023 Tax Year 

 

Penticton Yacht Club Skaha Lake Marina – 3895 Lakeside Road & 124 South Beach Drive 

A portion of these properties are eligible for permissive tax exemption under the Community Charter.  The 
restaurant and bar area do not qualify for an exemption.  The combined estimated value of 2023 municipal 
taxes exempted for these properties would be $2,983.   

Penticton Yacht Club (PYC) is a community focused and community operated club providing moorage and 
member services to over 700 members on both lakes.  We help maintain the City boat launches at both lakes 
that benefit residents and tourists.  Our organization allows visiting non-PYC members to dock and use our 
facilities for a fee.  Other Yacht club members from the Okanagan area are permitted to stay 3 nights free with 
our reciprocal program.  PYC offers competitive rates for all our services that we offer on both lakes. 

We provide safe harbor in our protected break wall for any vessel in distress and danger.  We provide funding 
and comp moorage for both the Penticton Fire department and Search and Rescue.  We plan and participate in 
several sailing events as well as promote safe boating practices. We keep current on local programs like Don't 
Move a Mussel which helps reduce the Spread of Invasive species. 

Members of the PYC society are aligned with the City of Penticton in the objective of building a vibrant 
community by leveraging Penticton's unique key success of recreational and agricultural economies by 
maintaining our natural assets, growing our economy for future tourism benefits.      

 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen – 176 Main Street & 153 Estabrook Avenue 

A portion of these properties are eligible for permissive tax exemption under the Community Charter.  The 
remainder of the building is leased by for-profit entities and remains taxable.  The estimated value of 2023 
municipal taxes exempted for these properties would be $7,004 at 176 Main Street and $2,888 at 153 
Estabrook Avenue. 

RDOS provides waste management, water, recreation emergency and development services to areas 
throughout the south Okanagan and Similkameen regions.   

These locations provide local government services for the region.  Primary use of the 176 Main Street property 
is to house the Finance, Information Technology and Geographic Information Mapping Systems departments 
of the RDOS.  Primary use of the 153 Estabrook Avenue property is to house the EOC department for the 
RDOS. 

When a local government owns a property it automatically qualifies for a property tax exemption, however, 
under a lease from a for-profit entity as is the situation here, they must apply for a permissive exemption. 

Canadian Mental Health Association - South Okanagan Similkameen Branch - 102 & 103 1873 
Main St 

- 99 -



The full properties are eligible for permissive tax exemption under the Community Charter.  The estimated 
value of 2023 municipal taxes exempted for these properties would be $7,035. 

Through a wide variety of approaches and venues, CMHA’s mental health programs and resources increase 
awareness, reduce stigma and build resiliency.  CMHA-SOS supports the mental health of all citizens in our 
community. The people we serve develop the knowledge, skills, and confidence to understand and manage 
their mental health, and build healthy relationships and networks of support. Our work with partner agencies 
ensures appropriate and timely navigation and referrals in the health care system.  

The Canadian Mental Health Association, South Okanagan Similkameen Branch promotes the mental health of 
all and supports the resilience and recovery of people experiencing mental illness. Programs and services 
include: 

Unity Clubhouse:  Provides social, recreational and educational programs for 200+ individuals living with a 
mental illness.  Open 8 hours per day, 7 days per week.  Up to 30-40 clients per day (not all at once). 

Meals program: Dozens of clients gain valuable culinary skills training that can be used in personal lives or to 
become gainfully employed.  It also gives them a sense of purpose and belonging, as they assist in preparing 
delicious meals for their Clubhouse community.  Last year we served over 13,242 meals to clients with a 
mental illness. 

Community Education: Suicide prevention training, mental health first aid, Thrive Learning Centre, Living Life 
to the Full Workshops, 1 hour lunch and learn workshops. 

Supportive Employment program: Participants work at Braemore Lodge in the janitorial program. 

Mental Health Advocacy: provides community-based support and advocacy services to individuals who are 
living with a mental illness. These individuals may be experiencing significant mental health issues and will 
have serious barriers to seeking or acquiring income, health and housing supports or services on their own. 
Implements established activities to meet clients’ activation, life skills, recreational, and social needs. 

Other Services on the Property: serving the public and anyone who needs advocacy services (one on one 
appointments), women's group, art group, yoga, and other recreational activities. 

Fundraising Activities: Ride Don't Hide - an annual bike event along the beautiful KVR trail from Penticton to 
Naramata and back.  Ride Don't Hide was held from 2013-2019.  

 This year we are doing the 1st Annual Pickleball tournament for Mental Health in Penticton on September 16-
18, 2022.  We will have approximately 200 players.  Funds raised will go towards mental health programs in 
our local community.  

Additional info provided:  CMHA has seen an increase in demand for mental health supports and services, 
especially over the last 2 years since Covid, forest fires, floods.  People are really struggling:  

• The main psychological impact to date is elevated rates of stress or anxiety.  
• Quarantine has had a negative effect on people’s mental health. 
• Loneliness, depression, harmful alcohol and drug use, and self-harm or suicidal behaviour are rising. 

- 100 -



We are very excited to host our grand opening on June 8th, 2022.  Invitations will be sent to Mayor and 
Council.  We are thrilled to host a Pickleball tournament for mental health in September and looking forward 
to raising funds and awareness for much needed mental health supports. 

Community Foundation of the South Okanagan Similkameen – 1001 Johnson Road 

The full property is eligible for permissive tax exemption under the Community Charter.  The estimated value 
of 2023 municipal taxes exempted for this property would be $1,900. 

The Community Foundation purchased this property in September 2021 specifically to lease the home to the 
Bridge Youth & Family Services Society. The Bridge has been using the home to provide supported housing 
services to women recovering from addictions. They were informed in mid-2021 that the home was being sold 
and were unable to purchase it themselves. Losing this home would have meant that the service could only 
be offered in Kelowna so the Foundation stepped in and purchased it to ensure continued service. 

This property is a women's addiction recovery home, run by the Bridge Youth & Family Services Society.  The 
entire home is rented by the Bridge Youth & Family Services Society, which is a registered charity. 

The City of Penticton has a clear social mandate and has created a social development department to address 
many pressing social issues in our community. The Community Foundation is an active partner and one of the 
major funders for charities working directly with our community's most vulnerable. As we know, addictions 
are a major cause of homelessness and crime so the purchase of this home, for the sole intent of creating 
recovery space for women, is one step towards improving the lives of up to 12 women per year and positively 
influencing many other social issues. 

The Foundation receives most of its operating support from the admin fee it charges from managing the 
endowment funds. In addition, we raise money by applying for grants and by working with some of our 
donors. We try not to do direct fundraising activity in the community so that we don't end up competing 
directly with other charities who rely so heavily on successful fundraising events.  We apply for grants to fund 
the operations of the Community Foundation, but not specifically the building.  Besides grants applied for 
related to operating the Foundation itself, we also work with donors and sponsors to support budget 
requirements. In addition the Foundation charges a service fee against the total endowment pool it manages, 
which goes directly to paying the operations of the foundation. 

We have 10 volunteer board members who commit between 3 and 12 years of service to the Foundation. In 
addition, we work closely with volunteers in Penticton and all communities in our region to help advise the 
Foundation on grant allocations for our various grants programs. Approximately 25 volunteers work with us 
annually. 

We are available to the public by phone and email and we arrange to meet with people at their 
homes/businesses or in our office. Our office has an elevator for those with accessibility challenges. Residents 
have the opportunity to apply for grants, volunteer on grant selection committees or on the board, and attend 
workshops and events we may host. 

 

- 101 -



- 102 -



- 103 -



- 104 -



- 105 -



 

 
Council Report 

 

   

 

 

Date: September 6, 2022      File No:    RMS/1050 Spiller Rd 
To: Donny van Dyk, Chief Administrative Officer 
From: Nicole Capewell, Planner II, Audrey Tanguay, Planning and Licensing Manager, and  
 JoAnne Kleb, Communications and Engagement Manager 
Address: 1050 Spiller Road 
 
Subject: 1050 Spiller Road Official Community Plan Amendment Engagement Results 
  
 

Staff Recommendation 

THAT Council receive into the record the report dated September 6, 2022 titled “1050 Spiller Road Official 
Community Plan Amendment Engagement Results”; 

AND THAT staff be directed to utilize the “1050 Spiller Road Official Community Plan Amendment 
Engagement Results” report in the evaluation of any applications for land use change of the subject lands at 
1050 Spiller Road.  

Strategic Priority Objective 

Community Vitality: The City of Penticton, guided by the Official Community Plan, will promote the 
economic wellbeing and vitality of the community.  

Executive Summary 

The City received an application in November 2021 to develop 1050 Spiller Road as a single-family 
subdivision development. The plans proposed 111 residential lots, varying from 0.5 acres to 1.5 acres in size. 
The application proposed to amend the Official Community Plan (OCP) Future Land Use Designations and 
zoning on the subject property in order to facilitate the proposed development.  

Upon receiving the application package, staff prepared a report to Council recommending endorsement of 
the community engagement plan to be carried out in keeping with the Community Engagement Procedure 
for OCP Amendments. On May 17, 2022, Council endorsed the engagement plan, which took place between 
May 30, 2022 and July 3, 2022. 

This report provides a summary of the results from the community engagement period. Those engagement 
results have been shared with the applicant who has withdrawn the current application and is looking at an 
alternate development approach based on the engagement results.  

- 106 -



 
Council Report  Page 2 of 11 

 

Proposal 

The subject lands are designated by the City’s Official Community Plan to facilitate a residential 
neighbourhood, consisting of detached residential, ground oriented residential and various parks uses. The 
current zoning is Country Residential with a 7 acre portion zoned for a mobile home park. The current 
application proposed amendments to the OCP to lower the density to support a (0.5 acre – 1 acre lots) single 
family neighbourhood development. A conceptual lot layout plan was submitted that proposed 111 lots, 
across the 51 hectare (126 acre) site. The proposed plan required an amendment to the Official Community 
Plan (OCP) Future Land Use Designations and zoning on the subject property in order to facilitate the 
proposed development. Staff have completed the engagement period for the OCP Amendment, and the 
purpose of this report is to present those results back to Council and the public. As mentioned above the 
development application has recently been withdrawn and the developer is working on an alternative 
development proposal based on the feedback from the public.  

Background 

Official Community Plan 

The Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 2019-08 was adopted in August 2019, establishing a vision for 
Penticton’s growth over the next 30 years and beyond. It provides strategic policies and direction for meeting 
that vision. The plan, however, is not meant to be a static document; it includes a process, through meaningful 
community consultation, where amendments to the plan may be considered as long as the vision and intent 
remains intact.  

The OCP considers population growth and creates a growth plan for how the anticipated growth can be 
accommodated. Penticton’s growth plan places great emphasis on strategic and sensitive use of our limited 
land base. It recognizes that we must make the most efficient use of the land and infrastructure we have 
available, and also protect the natural environment that many residents value.  

 

- 107 -



 
Council Report  Page 3 of 11 

The OCP identifies a growth rate of 0.65% per year up to 2045, however this growth may not occur as a 
steady increase each year. There may be times over the next 25 years where the City sees substantial 
development and growth, and perhaps other times where the growth and pace of development is slower.  

The subject application represented a lowering of the density of the subject lands. Whereas the OCP 
envisions a mixed residential development with urban detached residential (single and two family) and 
ground oriented residential (townhouses) as well as park uses, the application proposed a large lot single 
family neighbourhood. The application looked to change the OCP designation to Country Residential with 
specific language supporting the proposed 0.5 acre lots. These lands have extensive history in coming to the 
current proposal. Please see May 17th staff report for detailed background on the proposed OCP change.   

Council recently adopted the Community Engagement for OCP Amendments Procedure, which outlines how 
public engagement for Official Community Plan amendments should occur. At the May 17, 2022 Council 
meeting, Council directed staff to begin engagement following this procedure. The purpose of the 
engagement was to share information and gather public feedback on the proposal. A summary of this 
engagement is included in this report.  

Community Engagement Summary  

Engagement Process 

Staff followed the Community Engagement Procedure for OCP Amendments to ensure adequate and 
meaningful consultation with the community about this proposal. This procedure was developed following 
the community response to an earlier proposal for the same property which received strong opposition. At 
the time, the City did not have a mechanism for gathering community feedback without giving first reading 
to a bylaw that would see the Official Community Plan amended to allow for the proposal, and initiating a 
public hearing. Since the creation of the procedure, the City has implemented it several times to ensure 
affected landowners and the community are aware of and have the opportunity to share their feedback on 
proposals that would amend the Official Community Plan. A summary of the activities completed in support 
of this proposal is provided below and a detailed timeline of engagement activities is included as Appendix 
A of the Engagement Report (Attachment ‘F’). 

1. 2 signs were installed at the property and on a main thoroughfare leading to the property to ensure 
area residents were aware. 

2. 49 letters were sent to owners and occupants within 500m of the property. 
3. 4 advertisements were placed in local newspapers. 
4. 4 e-blasts were sent to 5,132 subscribers to shapeyourcitypenticton.ca. 
5. 3 posts notified 8,700 followers of the City’s social media channels. 
6. 1 news release was issued to local media and received by penticton.ca subscribers. 
7. 2 online information sessions were attended by 93 participants 
8. 520 participants submitted a feedback form. 

Engagement Findings 

The Engagement Report in Appendix A provides a detailed summary of the engagement findings including 
the results of the feedback form as well as input gathered through the Information Sessions and Open 

- 108 -



 
Council Report  Page 4 of 11 

Houses and received from the Penticton Indian Band and other government and stakeholder organizations. 
The key findings from the report are provided below.  

1. The City received feedback from 520 participants representing a range of interests including 369 
submissions from participants who live in Penticton and 151 who live outside of Penticton. 287 live 
or own a business near the site and 163 are not near the site.  

2. Before providing feedback on the specific proposal, participants were asked about their openness to 
any development on this site.   

a. The City learned that just more than half of participants (54%) are opposed to any 
development at this location because of the environmental sensitivity of the lands and 
potential impact to the local economy.  

b. The remaining are fully supportive of development (16%) because of the need for housing 
and the belief that the lands can support the development in a manner that does not detract 
from the area. Those who support development at this location with conditions (30%) agree 
if the development; 

i. brings City water to the area, 
ii. sufficiently addresses traffic safety, 

iii. mitigates the infrastructure concerns (i.e. storm water), 
iv. protects more natural lands and wildlife, 
v. supports green building and addresses climate impacts, 

vi. features a mixture of larger rural lots that transition, and 
vii. ensures the density and development matches the surrounding area and contributes 

to the area’s brand. 
3. Participants were asked their views on acceptable land use designations for the property. Over 50% 

of participants disagree with the current land use designations. More than 60% disagree with 
changing the land use to allow primarily for single-family residential or changing the land use to 
‘Rural Residential’ as described. Through discussions at the open houses, staff learned that given the 
complexity of the site, it is difficult for participants to distinguish between the land use designations, 
understand the impacts and separate their views about land use from their views about current and 
prior proposals.  

4. Participants were asked about their level of support for the development that is being proposed for 
their site. Most participants strongly oppose (71%) or oppose (8%) the current proposal because of 
the concerns about the potential environmental, traffic and economic impacts.   

5. Recognizing that the current proposal suggests about 1/3 of the density of the prior proposal, staff 
wanted to gauge if this density aligns with community expectations. The reduced density in the 
current proposal did not generate significant support from the community as only about 20% were 
somewhat or significantly more supportive than the previous proposal.  

Penticton Indian Band, Government and Stakeholder Consultation 

In accordance with the Local Government Act, Council is required to consider if local first nations (Penticton 
Indian Band) or other government agencies, Regional Districts, neighbouring municipalities and other 
stakeholders, such as Interior Health or School District #67 need to be consulted when amendments to the 
Official Community Plan are proposed. This requirement respects the involvement of these organizations in 
the development of the Official Community Plan as well as any amendments to the Plan. Through the 
engagement process, the City notified the following organizations about the proposal: 

- 109 -



 
Council Report  Page 5 of 11 

• Penticton Indian Band (PIB) 
• Ministry of Transportation and Infrastructure 
• Ministry of Agriculture 
• Agricultural Land Commission 
• Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen 
• Interior Health 
• School District 67 
• Chamber of Commerce  

The City also identified the Society for the Preservation of the Naramata Bench as a stakeholder organization 
recognizing their interests in previous proposals on this property. A summary of the correspondence from 
the organizations that responded is provided below. Copies of the submissions are included with the 
Engagement Report in Appendix A and supporting documents are available on shapeyourcitypenticton.ca. 

• Penticton Indian Band (PIB) - The City reviewed the current proposal with the Penticton Indian Band 
at their Major Projects Committee meetings on March 31 and May 26, 2022. The proposal was also 
submitted to the Band for formal consideration through their nationsconnect.ca platform on June 6, 
2022. Following these activities, the City received two letters from the Band, one addressed to Mayor 
and Council and a second addressed to staff in response to the submission to nationsconnect.ca. 
Both letters indicate that the Band is opposed to the proposed development as the site is within an 
area of significant syilx Nation interest and will have serious impacts to syilx Food, Social and 
Ceremonial activities. 

• Interior Health - The City received correspondence from Interior Health about the proposal in which 
the health authority commented on the importance of Healthy Neighbourhood Design, 
Transportation Networks, Housing and Environment. They expressed their support for the creation 
of additional housing as a key determinant of health and its effect on many aspects of our wellbeing. 
Interior Health did offer that the type of housing proposed, however, appears to be very 
homogeneous, and seems to offer the community very little by way of affordability. They also 
expressed concern about the proximity of the development to the Campbell Mountain Landfill and 
potential impacts of the landfill on future residents in the neighbourhood.  

• Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen - The City received correspondence from the RDOS 
which indicated that residential development adjacent to the landfill does not align with the shared 
goal of extending the life of the landfill and that a minimum buffer of 500 metres from the landfill 
should be a requirement. The buffer would ensure the life of the landfill and provide an alternate 
location for a joint composting facility pending a decision on a possible location by the Agricultural 
Land Commission. The plans submitted with the application showed development within the 
suggested 500m buffer area.  

• Society for the Preservation of the Naramata Bench - The City officially identified the Society as a 
stakeholder in the engagement process in recognition of their interests in previous proposals. In 
2020, the Society actively opposed an earlier proposal in advance of an application being received 
by Council for consideration. At this time, the Society demonstrated the support for their position 
through a petition, a protest, numerous letters to newspapers, and emails to Council. They also 
prepared an extensive report outlining their concerns that they issued to Council on November 1, 
2020.  

- 110 -



 
Council Report  Page 6 of 11 

When the previous application (2019) for 300+ units was received by Council for consideration, it was denied 
at first reading without initiating the public engagement process to consider the proposed amendments to 
the Official Community Plan. The Society believed that the matter was concluded and were disappointed to 
see a new proposal so soon following the previous submission.  

Members of the Society participated in all of the community engagement activities and also had a dedicated 
session to share their views with staff. In this session, participants shared the following concerns: 

• The potential environmental impacts and the risk to a number of red-listed and blue-listed species as 
well as the elk, low confidence in the effectiveness of the wildlife corridors and the need for more 
conservation lands  

• The proposed rezoning and the potential for dramatically higher density than what currently exists 
with the allowance for carriage houses. In this discussion, it was suggested that if development was 
allowed, it needed to match the surrounding area and it was suggested that there should be a 
mixture of lots, transitioning from east to west (scale from 2 to 5 to 10 acre lots) 

• The geotechnical stability of the area identifying that considerable blasting may affect aquifers and 
the development may create local water management and drainage issues.  

• They suggested the City look at similar proposals in Kelowna that Kelowna staff recommended 
against support to their Council. 

• The health, nuisance and legal concerns created by the proximity to the landfill and indicated that a 
minimum 500m buffer should be considered. 

• The financial projections may not accurately reflect the actual costs to the City over the life of the 
project and the need to take into account net present value. 

• There may be other options that are more in keeping with character of the area such as 
campgrounds, parks and interpretive sites. They would like to see the area treated as a natural asset. 

• Traffic in the area is unsafe and the cumulative effects of development on traffic have not been 
considered.  

• The Naramata Bench is fundamental to the BC and Okanagan economy and an urban housing 
development is not consistent with the area’s brand that is based on agriculture and natural assets. 

• The proposal for a car dependent subdivision which would see the removal of thousands of trees 
does not align with the City’s commitment to climate action.  

At the end of the process, the Society submitted a letter indicating that they are strongly opposed to the 
proposed rezoning of 1050 Spiller Road. They also resubmitted the report they prepared in November 2020 
in response to the previous proposal as they believe the environmental, social, legal and financial risks of the 
project remain. A copy of the letter is attached to the Engagement Report (Attachment ‘F’) and a copy of the 
November 2020 report from the Society has been published at shapeyourcitypenticton.ca with the 
permission of the Society. 

• Other Interest Groups - Council and the City also received a formal letter from First Things First 
Okanagan on July 4, 2022 in which the group urged Council not to approve the Spiller proposal or 
other developments that will increase fossil fuel emissions.  

 

 

- 111 -



 
Council Report  Page 7 of 11 

Engagement Conclusions 

The main goal of the engagement process was to gather feedback on the proposed amendment to the 
future land use designations for this property in the Official Community Plan and to understand if the 
current designations align with the community’s vision for this area. 

Through this process, the City learned that about half of the participants do not support any form of 
development on this site. They believe that the environmental and economic impacts and the cumulative 
effects of development in the area are not fully understood, that the mitigation proposed is inadequate and 
the long-term consequences are significant. They are also skeptical of the proposed land use changes and 
development due to a lack of trust of the applicant and the City based on history and fear that the changes 
may allow for greater density than what is being proposed.  

The remaining half of respondents were split between full support for the development as proposed and 
support for some form of development with conditions. Those that support the proposal see it as an 
opportunity to address the need for housing and recognize that prior studies and plans confirm that this 
area is suitable for development. Those who support it with conditions agree with development, if the 
development addresses the following issues: 

• bringing City water to the area, 
• sufficiently addresses traffic safety, 
• mitigates the infrastructure concerns (i.e. storm water), 
• protects more natural lands and wildlife, 
• supports green building and addresses climate impacts, 
• features a mixture of larger rural lots that transition to the neighbouring agricultural lands, and 
• ensures the density and development matches the surrounding area and contributes to the area’s 

brand. 

The City also learned that while views are mixed on development at this site, there is strong opposition to 
the current proposal from participants. This opposition is attributed to the belief that while the reduced 
density in the new proposal may reduce impacts on traffic, it does not address previous concerns about the 
rural character of the area, , the wildfire interface, the affordability of housing, the proximity to the landfill 
and the environmental impacts.  

In addition to the feedback from the community, the City also received guidance from several government 
and non-government organizations. Of particular note is the correspondence received from the Penticton 
Indian Band indicating their strong opposition to any development on these lands, without greater 
consultation from the Band and showing how any potential development would benefit the Band. This 
opposition is consistent with previous correspondence from the PIB on this location. Further discussion with 
the City and the applicant is invited by the Band.  

Recent Updates and Next Steps 

On August 19, 2022, the applicant (Canadian Horizons) submitted a formal letter to the City, rescinding the 
Official Community Plan and Zoning Amendment Applications (Attachment ‘D’). The applicant advises that 
they have reviewed the comments provided by the public and have decided to not move forward with this 
proposal for the subject property.  

- 112 -



 
Council Report  Page 8 of 11 

The subject property is currently zoned RC (Country Residential) and RSM (Mobile Home Park), which 
permits the development of single family homes, and a mobile home park in their respective zones on the 
property. As this zoning exists on the property, the applicant has development abilities, provided that they 
meet the requirements of these zones with the proposed development.  

Analysis  

The purpose of this report was to present the engagement results to Council. Given that the application has 
been withdrawn, staff are not making any recommendations at this time on any changes to the use for the 
lands. The applicants have indicated that they anticipate making an amended application for the lands, 
presumably taking into account the feedback received through this process.  

The engagement results that were completed will be utilized by staff for any subsequent development 
applications that may come forward for the subject property (and area), as many of the concerns and 
comments raised through the engagement process are regarding development on the property in general, 
and are not applicable only to the proposed development. Staff acknowledge and appreciate the 
engagement and involvement from the community regarding land use in this area of the City.  

Given the above, staff are recommending that Council receive the engagement results into the record.   

Attachments 

Attachment A – Zoning Map 
Attachment B – Official Community Plan Map 
Attachment C – Photos of Property 
Attachment D – Rescinding of Development Applications Letter 
Attachment E – Conceptual Lot Layout 
Attachment F – 1050 Spiller Road Engagement Report 
 

 Respectfully submitted, 

 

Nicole Capewell, RPP, MCIP 
Planner II 

 

 

 

  

Concurrence  

Director of 
Development Services 

Chief Administrative 
Officer 

BL 
 

DvD 
 

- 113 -



 
Council Report  Page 9 of 11 

Attachment A – Zoning Map 

 
  

- 114 -



 
Council Report  Page 10 of 11 

Attachment B – Official Community Plan Map 

 
  

- 115 -



 
Council Report  Page 11 of 11 

Attachment C – Photos of Property 

 

- 116 -



Attachment D - Rescinding of Development Applications Letter - 117 -



²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

² ²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

² ²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²
²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

SPILLER ROAD

R
O

A
D

 A

ROAD D1

ROAD A

ROAD D

SITE BOUNDARY

S
IT

E
 B

O
U

N
D

A
R

Y

300m
 O

FFS
E

T FR
O

M
 LA

N
D

FILL

400m
 O

FFS
E

T FR
O

M
 LA

N
D

FILL

SITE PLAN
0.5 ACRE LOT LAYOUT

20-3064-C30 02

ROAD E

ROAD B

.

SINGLE-FAMILY SUBDIVISION
DISTRICT LOT 203S S.D.Y.D, PENTICTON BC

CANADIAN HORIZONS

20-3064

.

CLIENT:

PROJECT:
JANUARY, 2022

Aplin & Martin Consultants Ltd.
1258 Ellis Street, Kelowna, B.C. Canada V1Y 1Z4

Tel: (250) 448-0157, Fax: (778) 436-2312, Email: general@aplinmartin.com OF 5

Attachment E - Conceptual Lot Layout
- 118 -

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1 KAP47871

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 2 KAP47871

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 3  KAP47871

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1 KAP35393

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 3  KAP35393

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 2  KAP35393

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 4  KAP35393

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1  KAP49937

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 2  KAP49937

AutoCAD SHX Text
DISTRICT LOT 202S S.D.Y.D

AutoCAD SHX Text
DISTRICT LOT 202S S.D.Y.D

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1 KAP48386

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 2 KAP48386

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT B 31416

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 2 PLAN 25561

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1 PLAN 25561

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 2 PLAN 25561

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROP. 6.0m WIDE EMERGENCY ACCESS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROP. SITE ENTRANCE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
ESA-2 BOUNDARY (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/A

AutoCAD SHX Text
1:1750

AutoCAD SHX Text
DISTRICT LOT 203S  S.D.Y.D.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REAR SETBACK = 6.00m

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRONT SETBACK = 4.5m FROM PL TO BUILDABLE AREA (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDE SETBACK = 1.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPICAL LOT SETBACKS NTS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
ESA-1 AREA (INCL. 15m BUFFER)*:  ESA-2 AREA*: NO BUILD/NO DISTURB AREA*:  MULTI-USE PATH/TRAIL:

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN LOT AREA:     2023m² 2023m² MIN LOT WIDTH:     25.0m25.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRONT SETBACK:    4.5m 4.5m GARAGE OR CARPORT SETBACK : 6.0m : 6.0m 6.0m INTERIOR SIDE SETBACK:   1.5m 1.5m EXTERIOR SIDE SETBACK:   3.0m 3.0m REAR SETBACK:     6.0m6.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text
SETBACKS

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.5 ACRE LOTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES:

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN LOT AREA:     4047m² 4047m² MIN LOT WIDTH:     30.0m30.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.0 ACRE LOTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
*No Build/No Disturb Covenant to be registered in dedicated greenspace/ESA areas.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
JRG

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGN:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHJ

AutoCAD SHX Text
JRG

AutoCAD SHX Text
A & M FILE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPR:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECK:

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
VERT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
HORZ.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE :

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
A & M DRAWING NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
The location of existing

AutoCAD SHX Text
underground utilities are shown

AutoCAD SHX Text
in an approximate way only & have

AutoCAD SHX Text
not been independently verified by

AutoCAD SHX Text
location of all existing utilities

AutoCAD SHX Text
before commencing work, and

AutoCAD SHX Text
agrees to be fully responsible for

AutoCAD SHX Text
occasioned by the contractor's

AutoCAD SHX Text
any and all underground utilities.

AutoCAD SHX Text
contractor shall determine the exact

AutoCAD SHX Text
any and all damages which might be

AutoCAD SHX Text
failure to exactly locate and preserve

AutoCAD SHX Text
the owner or its representative. The

AutoCAD SHX Text
TITLE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEVATION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MONUMENT NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
B.M.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCATED AT      STREET &      AVENUE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
DAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CH

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
APP

AutoCAD SHX Text
DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV. NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
JRG

AutoCAD SHX Text
12/01/22

AutoCAD SHX Text
DAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHJ

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
ISSUED FOR INFORMATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRAIL TO CONNECT TO 3 BLIND MICE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EMERGENCY PEDESTRIAN EGRESS (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO NARAMATA ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FUTURE ROAD EXTENSION (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FUTURE ROAD EXTENSION (TYP.)



 

 
 

 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
1050 Spiller Road  
Engagement Report 

 
September 2, 2022 

  

Attachment F - 1050 Spiller Road Engagement Report - 119 -



 

September 2, 2022  2 
 

 
 
 

1.0 Overview 
2.0 Community Participation 
3.0 Feedback Form Results 
4.0 Information Sessions and Open Houses 
5.0 Stakeholder Consultation 
6.0 Conclusions 
 
Appendix A– Engagement Timeline 
Appendix B – Penticton Indian Band 
Appendix C – Interior Health 
Appendix D – Society for the Preservation of the Naramata Bench 
Appendix E – First Things First Okanagan 

 
  

- 120 -



 

September 2, 2022  3 
 

1.0 Overview 
The City received an application to develop 1050 Spiller Road as a single-family 
subdivision development. The applicant is proposing 111 single-family lots, varying 
from 0.5 acre to 1.5 acres in size. This proposal would require an amendment to the 
City’s Official Community Plan (OCP) to remove the ‘Ground Oriented Residential’ and 
‘Detached Residential’ land use designations and be primarily ‘Rural Residential’ and 
allow for 0.5 acre lot sizes. Before considering the amendments, Council directed staff 
to gather feedback from the community about changing the ‘future land use’ of this 
property. The following document summarizes the activities completed and the 
findings from the process. 

2.0 Community Participation 
Staff followed the Community Engagement Procedure for OCP Amendments to 
ensure adequate and meaningful consultation with the community. The engagement 
program was conducted between May 30 and July 3, 2022. The following diagram 
summarizes participation. A detailed timeline of engagement activities is provided in 
Appendix A. 
 

 
  

  

HOW WE INFORMED THE COMMUNITY 

WHO PARTICIPATED 

- 121 -



 

September 2, 2022  4 
 

3.0 Feedback Form Results 
One of the primary ways the City gathers formal feedback is through the use of online 
and print feedback forms. The following section summarizes the approach to 
gathering feedback and the following pages share the results of the responses 
received through the forms.  
 
Special Considerations 
The City’s goal with the feedback form was to ensure there were no barriers to 
participation and that all interested citizens would have an equal voice in the process. 
The following are some of the special considerations that influenced the approach to 
providing the feedback form in support of this goal. 
• As interest in this proposal extends beyond Penticton’s boundaries, the City 

hosted two separate forms – one for residents and one for non-residents (i.e. 
residents of the Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen and Naramata). This 
made it possible for non-residents to provide feedback without having to register 
in the shapeyourcitypenticton.ca database. 

• As previous proposals for this property have been contentious, it was important 
to require that residents be registered on shapeyourcitypenticton.ca in order to 
provide feedback. With registration, the City can ensure that residents only 
complete one form. This was only an option for the resident survey.   

• The City also provides the option for completing a paper form for those who 
prefer not to register on shapeyourcitypenticton.ca or do not have computer 
access. The forms were available at the two open houses as well as at the City’s 
engagement kiosk at the library for the duration of the engagement program.  

• The risk with providing uncontrolled access to the non-resident and paper forms 
is that participants may submit multiple forms to strengthen their response.  A 
review of the non-resident results showed that 13 of the forms were submitted 
by the same participant email(s) and of these, only five of the forms were 
duplicate submissions which is not expected to materially impact the combined 
results. To confirm that the results of the paper forms are consistent with the 
overall findings, the results of select questions were also reported with and 
without the 31 paper submissions and the difference in the findings was also not 
material. 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

WHO DID WE HEAR 
 

- 122 -



 

September 2, 2022  5 
 

Feedback Form Results 

The following are the results of each question of the feedback form. The results 
compare the responses of residents and non-residents as well as the total 
combined responses. 

1. How did you learn about the proposal? Check all that apply. 

 

• The form includes a question to understand what information participants 
considered in forming their opinion and where they accessed this information. 
They have the option of selecting all of the various sources they consulted. Local 
media continues to be an important source for participants. For this proposal, 
newspapers followed by the shapeyourcitypenticton.ca site are the top two 
sources of information.  
 

2. This form is gathering feedback about the proposed land use and proposed 
development. Before you share your views on these specific topics, are you 
open to development at this location? 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

• One of the goals of this engagement process is to gauge support for 
development on this property regardless of the proposal. This was a result of 
reaction to previous proposals that suggested that the current land use on the  
 

- 123 -



 

September 2, 2022  6 
 

property may not reflect the community’s preferences. The results show that 
about half of participants are opposed to any development and half support 
development or support it under certain conditions. The results also show that 
non-residents are more opposed to development on this site than Penticton 
residents and that the paper forms are not materially influencing the results. 

 

3. Please feel free to explain your response. 

The form provides multiple opportunities for participants to expand on their 
responses. The complete comments for each question can be viewed at 
shapeyourcitypenticton.ca. A selection of the verbatim comments from this question 
are provided below. 

• “The property has been designated for future development for over 20 years and 
has had numerous City led plans developed indicating the area is suitable for 
residential development.” 

• “Penticton is in a housing crisis, this project will help add valuable supply to the 
community. Due to community backlash, the number of homes for this 
development has been reduced and land size per plot has increased. This is 
counter intuitive to what we need. This project is needed but will only add homes 
for the small population of wealthy residence in Penticton and the second and 
third home buyers from out of town.” 

• “If this development moves forward, it is critical that city water be extended to 
existing homes on Spiller Road, not only new homes, to mitigate the risk to 
ground water quality and quantity available for existing wells.” 

• “I am extremely concerned about the traffic increase. Naramata Road is already 
dangerous for cyclists and impossible to walk along. I hear nothing about 
improving Naramata road in any plans. Penticton prides itself on agricultural 
areas and the charm of wineries, but if you put in much more housing we will lose 
that particular atmosphere.”  

• “Developing in this location and in the manner proposed is very short-sighted 
and is only contributing to the climate issues we are passing down to the next 
generation.” 

• “The development needs to match the agricultural and rural use of Naramata 
Bench so as to maintain the eco and agri-tourism value of the bench. It also needs 
to be developed keeping in mind safety principles, such as fire and road access as 
well as keeping in mind while developing the land, the issue of erosion and 
damage to Naramata road which is a key access road.” 
 

  

- 124 -



 

September 2, 2022  7 
 

 
4. Tell us what you think about the land use for this property. 

The next three questions seek to understand participants’ views on acceptable land 
use designations for the property. 

Do you agree with the current land use designations? 

 

 

 

 

 

Do you agree with changing the land use to allow primarily for single-family 
residential? 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Do you agree with changing the land use to ‘Rural Residential’ as described? 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- 125 -



 

September 2, 2022  8 
 

 

• Over 50% of participants disagree with the current land use designations. More 
than 60% disagree with changing the land use to allow primarily for single-family 
residential or changing the land use to ‘Rural Residential’ as described. 

• Through discussions at the open houses, staff learned that given the complexity 
of the site, it is difficult for participants to distinguish between the land use 
designations, understand the impacts and separate their views about land use 
from their views about the current and prior proposals.  

5. Please feel free to explain your responses. 

The form provides multiple opportunities for participants to expand on their 
responses. The complete comments for each question can be viewed at 
shapeyourcitypenticton.ca. A selection of the verbatim comments from this question 
are provided below. 

• “I do not completely understand how all the different land uses will affect the 
area so I cannot answer yes or no.” 

• “The current zoning will at least limit the amount of development but not 
eliminate it. The change would over double what is currently allowed which is 
not acceptable, the zoning change then would be asked for by other developers 
and once granted to one it is hard to say no to others. The Naramata bench is on 
a one way path of being as the song says “paved paradise and put up a parking 
lot” here it is a subdivision.” 

• “Detached dwellings (particularly fueled by natural gas) and large lots do not 
accord with Penticton's Climate Action Plan as I read it. The area itself is also at 
high fire risk and, being far from services, promotes increased automobile usage -
- also not according with the Climate Action Plan.” 

• “This land should be used to add beautiful communities to Penticton not estate 
homes for the wealthy. The original plan of more density that was proposed is 
something I am more in favor of. Adding homes is never a bad thing in our 
community so I will always support the development and growth.” 

• “Ideally the land would be utilised for higher density residential. Unfortunately 
during a previous proposal, Mayor and Council indicated that they felt that the 
density was too high. Revising the proposal to be acre and half acre lots is a direct 
response to this previous proposal being defeated.” 

• “The land is too close to the dump and should not be developed. It should be 
designated as agriculture only.” 

• “It is a transition zone. Anything greater in density would like a cluster 
development completely out of sync with the very character of the area.” 

  

- 126 -



 

September 2, 2022  9 
 

 

6. Rate your level of support for the development that is being proposed for 
this site. 

 

• Participants were asked about their level of support for the development that is 
being proposed for their site. Most participants strongly oppose (71%) or oppose 
(8%) the current proposal because of the concerns about the potential 
environmental, traffic and economic impacts.   

7. Please feel free to explain your response. 

The City provided multiple opportunities for participants to comment or explain their 
responses. The complete comments for each question can be viewed at 
shapeyourcitypenticton.ca. Many participants indicated that their comments on this 
question were consistent with comments provided previously. A selection of the 
verbatim comments from this question are provided below. 

• “Not only am I concerned about the amount of traffic in the area, I hear nothing 
about the landfill and I am concerned about rodents, birds such as gulls, and 
perhaps land slumping. I know little about the plans for landfill and have heard 
nothing about road improvements.” 

• “The city needs to realize the Naramata Bench is a gem on a global scale. It needs 
to protect the values that are out there, which are many, and not allow 
development that detracts from that. The entire area should have a management 
strategy developed that would work with the important qualities and 
opportunities that the Naramata Bench provides. This proposal truly doesn't 
mesh with what is there already.” 

• “I strongly support the development of this land, just wish it was higher density 
to support the type of housing needed in Penticton.” 

• “I am pro development and the city needs to continue to go in a strategic and 
structured manner in alignment to the overall goals and objectives of the city’s 
vision captured in the OCP wording. I do not think narrow .5 acre lots bunched 
together in the countryside align with this objective.” 

- 127 -



 

September 2, 2022  10 
 

8. How does your support for this proposed development compare to the 2021 
proposal? 

 

 

 

 

 

 

• Recognizing that the current proposal suggests about 1/3 of the density of the 
prior proposal, staff wanted to gauge if this density aligns with community 
expectations. The reduced density in the current proposal did not generate 
significant support from the community as only about 20% were somewhat or 
significantly more supportive than the previous proposal.  

9. If your level of support changed, please explain why. 

The following is a selection of verbatim comments provided. Complete comments 
can be reviewed at shapeyourcitypenticton.ca. 

• “Lowered density and change in road access to just Reservoir Road. Remain 
concerned about the intersection of Reservoir and Naramata Roads. 

• “The original plan had too many housing units (over 300) for this location. 115 is 
likely still too many and will affect the character of Naramata Bench.” 

•  “I supported the other development, I like the extra green space in the new 
development, I feel the larger lot size could make the housing more expensive 
and will be out of reach for more people. Having protected area for wildlife is 
really good for the future. I feel if this development does not happen. 10-20 years 
down the rd we will get a development with just houses and no green space.” 

• “Last year's proposal would have had a larger negative impact on the traffic 
situation. This proposal is better than that but I still strongly do not support it.” 

• “Preference is higher density for smaller more affordable lots/homes. The 2021 proposal 
was better.” 

 

 

 

- 128 -



 

September 2, 2022  11 
 

 

 
10. Which best describes your interest in providing feedback? 
 

 
 

• The City did receive feedback from a wide range of participants beyond those 
immediately surrounding the site. Those that identified as ‘Other’ are people 
who live elsewhere, own investment properties or visit the area frequently. 

 

4.0 Information Sessions and Open Houses 
 
The City hosted two online information sessions where participants received a short 
presentation and had the opportunity to ask staff questions. The first session was 
attended by 51 attendees and the second session was attended by 42. The City also 
hosted two in-person open houses. The first of which had about 60 attendees and 
the second had about 30. Many of the attendees participated in multiple events. The 
transcript of the chat from the info sessions as well as the list of questions answered 
by staff at the information sessions are available to view at 
shapeyourcitypenticton.ca. The majority of the comments and questions at these 
sessions were consistent with what was received through the feedback form. The 
following section summarizes comments received during these events: 
 

• The planning terminology is technical and it is difficult to distinguish 
between future land use, zoning and the applicant’s proposal. Is easier to 
oppose any development than risk being unclear of what may be developed 
at this location.  

• This proposal is the ‘thin edge of the wedge’. The cumulative impacts of 
development in the region have not been appropriately considered. If this 
proposal advances, further development on adjacent properties as well as in 
the surrounding area is not far behind. The regional impacts have not been 
sufficiently identified and understood. 

- 129 -



 

September 2, 2022  12 
 

• The analysis and mitigation strategies for impacts to traffic, stormwater, 
environment and the landfill are not believed to be accurate or sufficient. 

• The lack of consideration of climate impacts is disappointing. There is 
concern about urban development in a rural area where residents would be 
reliant on single-occupant vehicles due to the distance from the city. The size 
of the natural area that would be disturbed and the loss of trees is also 
concerning. The commitment to responsible development such as providing 
renewable energy alternatives and green building practices and meaningful 
protection of existing wildlife is lacking. 

• Development in this area is short sighted and will negatively impact the 
character of the Naramata Bench irreversibly impacting tourism and the local 
agricultural-based economy.  

• There is low trust of the City and the applicant based on past experiences. 
There is suspicion that despite the lower density suggested in the current 
application, the ability to have carriage houses or second houses on the 
property would double what is proposed. They are reluctant to support any 
future land use. 

• Some participants who support the proposal are reluctant to share their 
views due to community pressure. Those that do support the proposal say 
they agree that this development does reflect the direction of the Official 
Community Plan which reduced the amount of hillside development 
proposed, and limited the development to three areas including the site on 
Spiller Road. They also reference the fact that many studies have been done 
which support the ability of this location to support development and 
provide technical expert opinions on strategies to mitigate many of the issues 
raised. 

 

 

 

  

- 130 -



 

September 2, 2022  13 
 

5.0 Penticton Indian Band, Government and 
Stakeholder Consultation 
 
In accordance with the Community Charter, Council is required to consider if the 
Penticton Indian Band or other government agencies and stakeholders, such as 
Interior Health or School District #67 need to be consulted when amendments to the 
Official Community Plan are proposed. This requirement respects the involvement of 
these organizations in the development of the Official Community Plan as well as the 
potential impacts of any changes. Through the engagement process, the City notified 
the following organizations about the proposal: 

• Penticton Indian Band 
• Ministry of Transportation and Infrastructure 
• Ministry of Agriculture 
• Agricultural Land Commission 
• Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen 
• Interior Health 
• School District 67 
• Chamber of Commerce  

The City also identified the Society for the Preservation of the Naramata Bench as a 
stakeholder recognizing their interests in previous proposals. A summary of the 
correspondence from the organizations that responded is provided below.  
 
Penticton Indian Band 
The City reviewed the current proposal with the Penticton Indian Band at their Major 
Projects Committee meetings on March 31 and May 26, 2022. The proposal was also 
submitted to the Band for formal consideration through their nationsconnect.ca 
platform on June 6, 2022. Following these activities, the City received two letters from 
the Band, one addressed to Mayor and Council and a second addressed to staff in 
response to the submission to nationsconnect.ca. Both letters indicate that the Band 
is opposed to the proposed development as the site is within an area of significant 
syilx Nation interest and will have serious impacts to syilx Food, Social and 
Ceremonial activities.  
 
The letters also indicate that the Band has opposed previous proposals and that this 
newest proposal was brought forward by the applicant to the City prematurely and 
without discussion with the Band. Their prior concerns remain with the newest 
proposal and they are firm in their opposition.  Copies of the letters are attached in 
Appendix B. 
 
Interior Health 
The City received correspondence from Interior Health about the proposal in which 
the health authority commented on the importance of Healthy Neighbourhood 
Design, Transportation Networks, Housing and Environment. They expressed their 
support for the creation of additional housing as a key determinant of health and its 
effect on many aspects of our wellbeing. Interior Health did offer that the type of 
housing proposed, however, appears to be very homogeneous, and seems to offer 
the community very little by way of affordability. They also expressed concern about 

- 131 -



 

September 2, 2022  14 
 

the potential impacts of the landfill and the proximity of the development. A copy of 
this letter is attached in Appendix C. 
 
RDOS 
The City received correspondence from the RDOS which indicated that residential 
development adjacent to the landfill does not align with the shared goal of 
extending the life of the landfill and that a minimum buffer of 500 metres from the 
landfill should be a requirement. The buffer would ensure the life of the landfill and 
provide an alternate location for a joint composting facility pending a decision on a 
possible location by the Agricultural Land Commission. A copy of this letter is 
available in Appendix D. 
 
Society for the Preservation of the Naramata Bench 
The City officially identified the Society as a stakeholder in the engagement process 
in recognition of their interests in previous proposals. In 2020, the Society actively 
opposed an earlier proposal in advance of an application being received by Council 
for consideration. At this time, the Society demonstrated the support for their 
position through a petition, a protest, numerous letters to newspapers, and emails to 
Council. They also prepared an extensive report outlining their concerns that they 
issued to Council on November 1, 2020.  
 
When the application for 300+ units was received by Council for consideration, it was 
denied at first reading without initiating the public engagement process to consider 
the proposed amendments to the Official Community Plan. The Society believed that 
the matter was concluded and were disappointed to see a new proposal so soon 
following the previous submission.  
 
Members of the Society participated in all of the community engagement activities 
and also had a dedicated session to share their views with staff. In this session, 
participants shared the following concerns: 

• The potential environmental impacts and the risk to a number of red-listed 
and blue-listed species as well as the elk, low confidence in the effectiveness 
of the wildlife corridors and the need for more conservation lands  

• The proposed rezoning and the potential for dramatically higher density with 
the allowance for carriage houses. In this discussion, it was suggested that if 
development was allowed, it needed to match the surrounding area and it 
was suggested that there should be a mixture of lots, transitioning from east 
to west (scale from 2 to 5 to 10 acre lots) 

• The geotechnical stability of the area identifying that considerable blasting 
may affect aquifers and the development may create local water 
management and drainage issues. They suggested the City look at similar 
proposals in Kelowna that were recommended against. 

• The health, nuisance and legal concerns created by the proximity to the 
landfill and indicated that a minimum 500m buffer should be considered. 

• The financial projections may not accurately reflect the actual costs to the 
City over the life of the project and the need to take into account net present 
value. 

• There may be other options that are more in keeping with character of the 
area such as campgrounds, parks and interpretive sites. They would like to 
see the area treated as a natural asset. 

- 132 -



 

September 2, 2022  15 
 

• Traffic in the area is unsafe and the cumulative effects of development on 
traffic have not been considered.  

• The Naramata Bench is fundamental to the BC and Okanagan economy and 
an urban housing development is not consistent with the area’s brand that is 
based on agriculture and natural assets. 

• The proposal for a car dependent subdivision which would see the removal of 
thousands of trees does not align with the City’s commitment to climate 
action.  

 
At the end of the process, they submitted a letter indicating that they are strongly 
opposed to the proposed rezoning of 1050 Spiller Road. They also resubmitted the 
report they prepared in November 2020 in response to the previous proposal as they 
believe the environmental, social, legal and financial risks of the project remain. A 
copy of the letter is attached to this summary in Appendix E and copy of the 
November 2020 report from the Society has been published at 
shapeyourcitypenticton.ca with the permission of the Society. 
 
Other Interest Groups 
Council and the City also received a formal letter from First Things First Okanagan on 
July 4, 2022 in which the group urged Council not to approve the Spiller proposal or 
other developments that will increase fossil fuel emissions. A copy of this letter is 
provided in Appendix F. 
 

6.0  Conclusions 
The main goal of this process was to gather feedback on the proposed amendment 
to the future land use designations for this property in the Official Community Plan 
and to understand if the current designations align with the community’s vision for 
this area. 

Through this process, the City learned that about half of the participants do not 
support any form of development on this site. They believe that the environmental 
and economic impacts and the cumulative effects of development in the area are not 
fully understood, that the mitigation proposed is inadequate and the long-term 
consequences are significant. They are also skeptical of the proposed land use 
changes and development due to a lack of trust of the applicant and the City based 
on history and fear that the changes may allow for greater density than what is being 
proposed.  

The remaining half are split between full support for development and support with 
conditions. Those that support the proposal see it as an opportunity to address the 
need for housing and recognize that prior studies and plans confirm that this area is 
suitable for development. Those who support it with conditions agree, if the 
development: 

• brings City water to the area, 
• sufficiently addresses traffic safety, 
• mitigates the infrastructure concerns (i.e. storm water), 
• protects more natural lands and wildlife, 
• supports green building and addresses climate impacts, 

- 133 -



 

September 2, 2022  16 
 

• features a mixture of larger rural lots that transition, and 
• ensures the density and development matches the surrounding area and 

contributes to the area’s brand. 
 

The City also learned that while views are mixed on development at this site, there is 
strong opposition to the current proposal from participants. This opposition is 
attributed to the belief that while the reduced density in the new proposal may 
reduce impacts on traffic, it does not address previous concerns about the landfill, 
the wildfire interface, the affordability of housing, the proximity to the landfill and the 
environmental impacts.  

In addition to the feedback from the community, the City also received guidance 
from the Penticton Indian Band and several government and non-government 
organizations. Of particular note is the correspondence received from the Penticton 
Indian Band indicating their strong opposition to any development on these lands. 
This opposition is consistent with previous correspondence from the PIB on this 
location. Further discussion with the City and the applicant is invited by the Band.  

Next Steps 

The feedback gathered through the engagement program is to be provided to the 
applicant to consider and determine how they would like to proceed. It will also be 
shared with Council and the community-at-large. 

 

 

 

 

 

  

- 134 -



 

September 2, 2022  17 
 

Appendix A - Engagement Timeline 
In accordance with the Community Engagement for OCP Amendments Procedure the 
following list summarizes the main methods that were used to raise awareness about 
the application and the opportunities for residents to provide feedback through the 
community engagement period that took place between May 30 and July 3, 2022: 

Date Activity 

May 30 Press Release announcing engagement 

May 30 – July 3 Project information and feedback form on 
www.shapeyourcitypenticton.ca  

May 30 – July 3 Project fact sheet and feedback forms at Penticton 
Public Library kiosk 

June 1 Notice Signs on subject property and intersection 
of Naramata Road, Reservoir Road and McMillan 
Avenue 

June 1 Notices mailed to neighbours within a 500m buffer 
of the properties 

June 1 and 8 Penticton Western newspaper advertisements 

June 3 and 8 Penticton Herald newspaper advertisements 

June 9 Submission to nationsconnect.ca for review by PIB 
and notices to agencies (SD#67, MOTI, RDOS) 

June 9  Online Info Session #1 

June 23 Online Info Session #2 

June 11  In-person Open House #1 (Uplands Elementary) 

June 25 In-person Open House #2 (Penticton Senior Drop-in 
Centre) 

 

  

- 135 -



 

September 2, 2022  18 
 

Appendix B – Penticton Indian Band 

 

- 136 -



 

September 2, 2022  19 
 

 

- 137 -



 

September 2, 2022  20 
 

 

  

- 138 -



 

September 2, 2022  21 
 

  

- 139 -



 

September 2, 2022  22 
 

 

 

 

Appendix C – Interior Health 
 

 

- 140 -



 

September 2, 2022  23 
 

 

- 141 -



 

September 2, 2022  24 
 

 

  

- 142 -



 

September 2, 2022  25 
 

Appendix D – Regional District of Okanagan 
Similkameen 

 

- 143 -



 

September 2, 2022  26 
 

 

  

- 144 -



 

September 2, 2022  27 
 

Appendix E - Society for the Preservation of the 
Naramata Bench 
 

 

- 145 -



 

September 2, 2022  28 
 

 

  

- 146 -



 

September 2, 2022  29 
 

Appendix F – First Things First Okanagan 

 

  

- 147 -



 

September 2, 2022  30 
 

 

- 148 -



 

 
Council Report 

 

   

 

 

Date: September 6, 2022     File No:    RMS/903 Moosejaw St 
To: Donny van Dyk, Chief Administrative Officer 
From: Nicole Capewell, Planner II 
Address: 903 Moosejaw Street 
 
Subject: Development Variance Permit PL2022-9329 
 

Staff Recommendation 

THAT Council approve “Development Variance Permit PL2022-9329”, for Lot 1 District Lot 4 Group 7 
Similkameen Division Yale (Formerly Yale-Lytton) District Plan 5380, located at 903 Moosejaw Street, a 
permit to vary the following sections of Zoning Bylaw No. 2021-01: 

1. Section 8.2.3.6: to reduce the interior side yard for a carriage house in the R1 zone from 1.5m to 0.9m; 
2. Section 8.2.3.6: to reduce the rear yard for a carriage house from 1.5m to 0.2m; and 
3. Section 8.2.5.3: to allow vehicle access to the carriage house to be from the street. 

AND THAT Council direct staff to issue “Development Variance Permit PL2022-9329”. 

Strategic Priority Objective 

Community Safety: The City of Penticton will support a safe, secure and healthy community. 

Community Vitality: The City of Penticton, guided by the Official Community Plan, will promote the 
economic wellbeing and vitality of the community.  

Proposal 

The applicants are proposing to legalize an existing building on the property located at 903 Moosejaw Street 
that is being used as a carriage house. In order to legalize the use and the building, the applicant requires 
variances to the Zoning Bylaw, including: 

1. Section 8.2.3.6: to reduce the interior side yard for a carriage house in the R1 zone from 1.5m to 0.9m; 
2. Section 8.2.3.6: to reduce the rear yard for a carriage house from 1.5m to 0.2m; and 
3. Section 8.2.5.3: to allow vehicle access to the carriage house to be from the street. 

 

 

- 149 -



 
Council Report  Page 2 of 9 

 

Background 

The subject property is located on the west side of Moosejaw 
Street, at the corner of Moosejaw Street and Scott Avenue 
(Figure 1). The property is located in a residential 
neighbourhood primarily consisting of single detached 
dwellings. The property is zoned R1 (Large Lot Residential) and 
designated by the Official Community Plan (OCP) as ‘Detached 
Residential’. 

The subject property contains a single detached dwelling and an 
accessory structure in the rear yard near the laneway. The main 
house was constructed in approximately 1948, and a permit was 
issued for a detached accessory structure in 1954. The accessory 
structure, however, was relocated on the property by a previous 
owner between 2004-2008 without a permit to review and 
approve the new building location. As such, the building does 
not meet rear or interior side yard setbacks for an accessory 
building or carriage house.  

The City’s Bylaw Enforcement Department began investigating 
the property and unpermitted carriage house in August 2021. 
The current property owner(s) took ownership of the property in 
June 2021, and were unaware that the carriage house on the 
property, which was being rented long term, was not an authorized suite. The property owner has since 
worked with various City staff to prepare a plan to legalize the carriage house.  

Technical Review 

This application was reviewed by the City’s Technical Planning Committee (TPC). No concerns were raised 
related to the requested variances. Comments related to requirements for the future development permit 
and building permit applications were provided to the applicant. These are the next steps for the applicant 
to obtain the required approvals to use the building as a carriage house. The Building Department outlined 
the permit requirements that would be required in order to successfully obtain a building permit and 
legalize the structure.  

Development Statistics 

The following table outlines the proposed development statistics on the plans submitted with the 
development application: 

 
Carriage House 

Requirement 
Provided on Plans 

Minimum Lot Area: 370 m2 890 m2 

Maximum Building Footprint: 90 m2 (15% of lot area) 27.3 m2 

Figure 1 - Property Location Map 

- 150 -



 
Council Report  Page 3 of 9 

Maximum Lot Coverage (carriage 
house): 

15% 3% 

Maximum Lot Coverage (all structures) 40% (R1 zone) 17% 
Maximum Building Height: 7 m and 2 floors 3.6 m and 1 floor 
Siting: Behind principal house Behind principal house 

Amenity Space: 
15 m2 (each for carriage 
house and single family 
dwelling) 

15 m2 (each for carriage house 
and single family dwelling) 

Carriage House Floor Area: 135 m2 27.3 m2 

Privacy Windows: Within 1.5 m of side yard 
No windows within 1.5m of 
side yard 

Required Setbacks 
Front Yard (Moosejaw Street): 
Interior Side Yard (south): 
Exterior Side Yard (north): 
Rear Yard (lane): 

 
Behind principal house 
1.5 m 
3.0 m 
1.5 m 

 
Behind principal house 
0.9 m Variance Required 
11 m 
0.2 m Variance Required 

Additional On-Site Parking Space 
1 space for the carriage 
house provided from the 
laneway 

1 space for the carriage house 
provided from Scott Ave 
Variance Required 

Analysis 

When considering a variance to a City bylaw, staff encourages Council to consider if approval of the variance 
would cause a negative impact on neighbouring properties and if the variance request is reasonable. 

Carriage houses provide additional housing stock in the City and represent a moderate way to increase the 
density in established neighbourhoods. The OCP recognizes the importance of well-designed carriage 
houses: 

OCP Policy 
4.1.3.2 

Increase housing options in low-density single family areas through development of 
secondary suites and carriage houses, and ensure carriage houses are sensitively 
integrated and designed according to the Intensive Residential Development Permit 
Area Guidelines. 

The applicant has requested the following variances from the Zoning Bylaw regulations:  

1. Section 8.2.3.6: to reduce the interior side yard for a carriage house in the R1 zone from 1.5m to 0.9m; 
2. Section 8.2.3.6: to reduce the rear yard for a carriage house from 1.5m to 0.2m; and 
3. Section 8.2.5.3: to allow vehicle access to the carriage house to be from the street. 

Staff have reviewed the requested variances required to proceed with legalizing the structure as a carriage 
house and are recommending that Council support the Development Variance Permit for the following 
reasons: 

1. The current property owner inherited the illegal structure and has worked with staff to bring the 
property into conformance.  

- 151 -



 
Council Report  Page 4 of 9 

The property owner purchased the property in June 
2021, and was unaware that the carriage house was 
completed without permits. Since being made 
aware of the concerns from staff, the owner has 
continued to work with various city staff to identify 
the requirements to bring the carriage house into 
compliance.  
 

2. The neighbour to the south is in support of the 
application. 
The property owner, once becoming aware that a 
variance would be required, reached out to the 
neighbouring property to the south (913 Moosejaw 
Street) to inquire about any concerns for the 
carriage house. The neighbour to the south reached 
out to City staff to better understand the situation and 
explain their support for the carriage house, including 
their awareness of the importance for long term rentals 
in the City. The neighbour understood the variances 
needed, and indicated their support for the structure 
as it exists on the property today (Attachment ‘E’).  
 

3. The property owner is removing portions of the 
structure where possible to bring the building as close 
to required setbacks as possible (Figure 2).  
As shown on the plans, there is a ‘lean-to’ or roof-
overhang on the western side of the structure, which 
overhangs the property line into the laneway. The 
property owner has agreed to remove this portion of 
the structure, should the other variances be supported.  
 

4. Most of the building meets the rear yard setback, except 
a small portion.  

5. Along the rear yard setback, most of the structure meets 
the 1.5m setback (Figure 3), however there is a jog in the 
building wall that contains the bathroom, which is 
located at 0.2m from the rear property line. This is 
approximately 2.1m in length. The structure is only a 
single storey in height, which assists in reducing the 
impact of lessened rear and side yard setbacks. 
 
 
 
 
 

Figure 3 - Existing Structure with Lean-To 

Figure 2 - North Elevation of Structure showing Lean-To 

- 152 -



 
Council Report  Page 5 of 9 

 
 
 

6. Retain mature trees existing on the property.  
The property owner is requesting that vehicle access be 
permitted from the street (Scott Ave), although there is 
a laneway to the rear of the property. The Zoning Bylaw 
requires that all vehicle access for a carriage house be 
provided from the lane, where a lane exists. In this 
instance, requiring vehicle access from the laneway 
would require removal of mature trees that exist near 
the laneway on the property and the City laneway (both 
public and privately owned trees that are worth 
retaining). The owner would prefer to not remove the 
trees (which they feel provide value to their property) to 
provide a vehicle access point, when they have plenty of 
access onto Scott Avenue. Development Engineering 
staff have confirmed the proposed driveway access 
from Scott Avenue is safe and meets bylaw 
requirements. As such, staff recommend that the 
existing vehicle access be permitted to continue from 
the street.  

Staff consider that the proposed conversion of the unpermitted building into a carriage house is aligned 
with the OCP in providing additional dwelling units in desirable areas of the City, gradually increasing 
density through carriage houses and secondary suites in predominantly single family areas, and supporting 
the workforce through affordable housing options being available. Should Council support the variances, 
staff will proceed to work with the applicant to finalize and issue the Development Permit and subsequent 
Building Permit.  

Should Council choose to not support the development variance permit, the property owner(s) would be 
required to either relocate the structure to meet setbacks, and redesign the property to meet parking 
requirements, or demolish the structure. Relocating the accessory dwelling is likely cost-prohibitive, and 
would cause negative impacts to the existing layout of the property (large outdoor patio areas and 
landscaping exist throughout the property). It is likely that should Council deny the variance that the 
carriage house would eventually be removed and the dwelling unit currently available would be lost.  

Alternate Recommendations 

Council may consider that the requested variances are not appropriate in this instance. If this is the case, 
Council should deny the Development Variance Permit. If this decision is made, the applicant will likely 
remove the carriage house and the second dwelling unit on the property would be lost. Staff are not 
recommending this option.  

1. THAT Council, after hearing from the applicant, deny “Development Variance Permit PL2022-9329”. 

Figure 4 - View of Trees along Laneway to Be Retained 

- 153 -



 
Council Report  Page 6 of 9 

 

 

Attachments 

Attachment A – Zoning Map 
Attachment B – Official Community Plan Map 
Attachment C – Photos of Property 
Attachment D – Letter of Intent 
Attachment E – Neighbour Letter of Support (913 Moosejaw Street) 
Attachment F – Draft Development Variance Permit 
 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Nicole Capewell, RPP, MCIP 
Planner II 

 

Concurrence  

Director of 
Development Services 

Chief Administrative 
Officer 

BL 
 

DvD 
 

 

 

  

- 154 -



 
Council Report  Page 7 of 9 

Attachment A – Zoning Map 

 
  

- 155 -



 
Council Report  Page 8 of 9 

Attachment B – Official Community Plan Map 

 
  

- 156 -



 
Council Report  Page 9 of 9 

Attachment C – Photos of Property 

 
Looking south towards subject property from Moosejaw St and Scott Ave intersection 

 
Looking north towards subject property from laneway 

 

- 157 -



To: Penticton City Council 
 
From: Scott Cabianca 
 
Date: May 6, 2022 
 
RE: Letter of Intent – Carriage House Conformance 
 
 
To the Council of the City of Penticton: 
 
 
In June 2021, my wife and I purchased the property at 903 Moosejaw. It has long been our 
intent to move to Penticton to raise our two young boys. We were living on Haida Gwaii at the 
time and drove to Penticton for a day to see the house which had just been listed.  
 
Upon viewing (and subsequently buying) the house we were not aware that the carriage house 
was a non-conforming unit. The carriage house structure and interior design impressed us – it is 
of high quality, and visually in sync with the rest of the property. Ultimately, we put almost the 
entirety of our savings into the purchase of this house and rely on the income from the carriage 
house as an essential factor in our ability to afford the house. 
 
Since learning that the carriage house is not currently a conforming unit, we have been 
transparent with the City of Penticton and have ultimately accommodated every request put 
forth. Specifically, we have participated in a zoom call, allowed inspectors on to the premises 
on numerous occasions, hired several certified tradespeople to perform works and provide 
safety declarations, obtained a land survey, and have proceeded with the development 
application. This has all been done at considerable cost, and effort.  
 
It is our intent to ensure this carriage house becomes a conforming suite. Not only is it crucial to 
our financial limitations with respect to mortgage payments, but we have a health care worker 
residing in the suite who wishes to remain long-term (with limited options in the competitive 
Penticton rental market).  
 
Outlining our project: 
 
We are obtaining Development Permit with Minor Variance requests for an existing carriage 
house structure. In doing so, we are not looking to add to the existing structure in any way. We 
are simply seeking a variance for the current location, and approval to be a conforming and 
habitable suite.  
 
Specifically, two of the walls/sides of the carriage house are conforming to set back 
requirements and two are not. Therefore, we are seeking a variance on the location of the 

Attachment D - Letter of Intent - 158 -



carriage house vis a vis the lane (the majority of the lane wall conforms to the 1.5m setback, 
while a small section of the lane wall is 0.2m from the lane). We are also seeking a variance on 
the location of the carriage house vis a vis and the neighboring property line (the neighbor wall 
is 0.9m from the neighboring property).  
 
Note: at present there is a lean-to structure that extends from the lane wall of the carriage 
house to the property line and fence. This structure will be removed.  
 
Note: the exterior of the existing carriage house is aesthetically consistent with the landscaping 
and the main house. The interior is modern, tidy, and conforms to all major safety measures 
(declarations for gas, electrical, and plumbing have all been approved).  
 
We also seek an additional variance with respect to parking requirements. I’ve had discussions 
with Delphine Maja with respect to the current parking spot for the carriage house. Although 
the entrance is from Scott Rd (and not the laneway), it is preferred that this situation remain in 
order to protect the three mature trees currently bordering the property and laneway. To 
address parking requirements for the main house I have proposed a separate location on the 
property that meets dimension requirements, and has the consent of Ms Maja.  
 
 
What are the impacts on the neighboring properties as a result of your development 
application? 
 
The carriage house has been in its current location for many years (based on historical photos 
we estimate it was moved to the current location between 2004 and 2008). As mentioned, the 
exterior aesthetic is in sync with the main house and vegetation that currently exist. 
Furthermore, the immediate neighbor, Trisha Kaplan, has no problem with the current location 
of the carriage house – it is located at the opposite end of her property from her main house. 
Ms Kaplan has written a letter to the City (she called Nicole Capewell to inform her of her 
consent) indicating she has no issue with the carriage house’s current location. Ms Kaplan is the 
only neighbor potentially impacted by the structure. Ms Kaplan’s letter is attached to the 
application.  
 
What is being done to minimize negative impacts on the neighboring properties? 
 
We are having open dialogue with Trisha Kaplan and keeping her abreast of the situation. The 
fact that the structure is already in place, and has been for many years, gives her no cause for 
concern. Moreover, there is no request within this application to change, alter, or add to the 
size or height of the structure. Instead, the request is to simply leave the structure exactly 
where it is – and this is what Ms Kaplan is most comfortable with.  
 
What makes this development a positive contribution to the community? 
 

- 159 -



The current tenant of the carriage house – Calli Matin – is a healthcare worker in Penticton. Ms 
Martin was living in the carriage house prior to our purchase of the house and seeks to remain 
renting for the foreseeable future. Thus, the carriage house provides an affordable option for a 
young health care worker in the community.  
 
In addition, the carriage house provides a crucial income to assist with our mortgage. The 
additional income allowed us to purchase the house, and how we hope to maintain it. As a 
result, we introduce a new family into Penticton, and two young boys that will be very 
enthusiastic about the soccer facilities directly across the street (another significant reason for 
making this purchase).  
 
Conclusion. 
 
Without the variance we will be forced to decide between moving the structure the 0.4m (on 
the lane side) and 0.6 (on the neighbor side) to meet set back requirements or are remove the 
structure altogether (along with the income it generates). Either of these options will place 
under considerable financial hardship, and likely be beyond our financial capacity. 
 
We are actively doing our best to make this a conforming and habitable unit. We feel burdened 
by the fact that this is a situation we inherited, but at the same time we recognize the concerns 
of the City. We believe we have demonstrated our willingness to remedy the situation. We 
appreciate your consideration on this matter. We look forward to our future in Penticton.  
 
Sincerely,  
 
Scott Cabianca and Leidys Barrios Barona 
 
 
 
 

- 160 -



Scott Cab 

903 Moosejaw Street
1 message

Trisha Kaplan Wed, Mar 9, 2022 at 1:24 PM
To: Nicole Capewell <Nicole.Capewell@penticton.ca>
Cc: "Cabianca, Scott" 

Hi Nicole,

I live at 913 Moosejaw Street and I received a letter from our new neighbour, Scott Cabianca (cc'd here), who
purchased 903 Moosejaw last June.

In the letter, he explained that he is working with the City to legalize the existing carriage house. Through this process,
they have discovered that the current location of the carriage house does not adhere to setback requirements. They
have asked whether we would consent to its current location.

I emailed with Scott and learned that they intend to use the house as is, with the exception of necessary upgrades to
legalize the unit.

By way of this letter, we are letting the City know that we don't have any problems with the current structure remaining
in its current location. Should the carriage house be redeveloped or additional floors be added, we ask to see the
plans so that we can comment. However, I understand that the plan is to leave it as-is.

If you have any questions, feel free to email or phone me.

Thank you,

Trisha Kaplan
Janet Filipenko
913 Moosejaw Street

Attachment E - Neighbour Letter of Support (913 Moosejaw Street) - 161 -

https://www.google.com/maps/search/913+Moosejaw+Street+and+I?entry=gmail&source=g


 
 

City of Penticton 
171 Main St.   |  Penticton B.C.  |  V2A 5A9 

www.penticton.ca   |  ask@penticton.ca 
 

Development Variance Permit 

Permit Number: DVP PL2022-9329 

Owner Name 
Owner Address 

Conditions of Permit  

1. This permit is issued subject to compliance with all of the bylaws of the City, except as specifically 
varied or supplemented by this Permit. 

2. This permit applies to:  

Legal: Lot A District Lot 4 Group 7 Similkameen Division Yale (Formerly Yale-Lytton) 
District Plan 5380 

Civic: 903 Moosejaw Street 

PID: 010-349-375 

3. This permit has been issued in accordance with Section 498 of the Local Government Act, to vary 
the following sections of Zoning Bylaw 2021-01 to allow for the construction of a carriage house, 
as shown in the plans attached in Schedule ‘A’: 

a. Section 8.2.3.6: to reduce the interior side yard for a carriage house in the R1 zone from 
1.5m to 0.9m; 

b. Section 8.2.3.6: to reduce the rear yard for a carriage house from 1.5m to 0.2m; and 

c. Section 8.2.5.3: to allow vehicle access to the carriage house to be from the street. 

General Conditions  

4. In accordance with Section 501 of the Local Government Act, the lands subject to this permit shall 
be developed in general accordance with this permit and the plans attached as Schedule ‘A’.  

5. In accordance with Section 504 of the Local Government Act, if the holder of this permit does not 
commence the development authorized by this permit within 2 years of the date of this permit, this 
permit shall lapse. 

6. This permit is not a building permit.  In order to proceed with this development, the holder of 
this permit must hold a valid building permit issued by the Building Inspection Department.  

7. This permit does not constitute any other municipal, provincial or federal approval. The holder of 
this permit is responsible to obtain any additional municipal, federal, or provincial approvals prior 
to commencing the development authorized by this permit.  

 

 

DVP PL2
02

2-9
32

9 

DRAFT

- 162 -



8. This permit does not include off-site infrastructure costs that may be required at the building permit 
stage, such as Development Cost Charges (DCC’s), road improvements and electrical servicing. 
There may be substantial infrastructure and servicing costs payable at a later date. For more 
information on servicing and infrastructure requirements please contact the Development 
Engineering Department at (250) 490-2501. For more information on electrical servicing costs, 
please contact the Electric Utility at (250) 490-2535.    

Authorized by City Council, the ____ day of ____________, 2022. 

Issued this ____ day of ____________, 2022. 

_________________________ 

Angela Collison 
Corporate Officer 

DVP PL2
02

2-9
32

9 

DRAFT

- 163 -



DVP PL2
02

2-9
32

9 

DRAFT

- 164 -



DVP PL2
02

2-9
32

9 

DRAFT

- 165 -



DVP PL2
02

2-9
32

9 

DRAFT

- 166 -



DVP PL2
02

2-9
32

9 

DRAFT

- 167 -



 

 
Council Report 

 

   

 

 

Date: September 6, 2022      File No:    RMS/114 Chambers Pl 
To: Donny van Dyk, Chief Administrative Officer 
From: Jordan Hallam, Planner I 
Address: 114 Chambers Place  
 
Subject: Development Variance Permit PL2022-9403 
 

Staff Recommendation 

THAT Council approve “Development Variance Permit PL2022-9403” for Lot 11 District Lot 116 Similkameen 
Division Yale District Plan 25568, located at 114 Chambers Place, a permit to vary Section 10.2.2.6.a of Zoning 
Bylaw 2021-01, to reduce the minimum interior side yard from 1.5 m to 1.19 m, in order to legalize an 
existing enclosed sundeck; 

AND THAT Council direct staff to issue “Development Variance Permit PL2022-9403”. 

Strategic Priority Objective 

Community Vitality: The City of Penticton, guided by the Official Community Plan, will promote the 
economic wellbeing and vitality of the 
community.  

Proposal 

The applicant has an enclosed sundeck that was 
constructed as early as 1984 (Attachment D) 
within the interior side yard setback as shown by 
the black line in Figure 1. This variance 
application has come forward to the City of 
Penticton as there is an active enforcement file 
for work being done without a building permit, 
and to legalize the sundeck that was constructed 
within the interior side yard setback. 

Background 

The subject property is located on the west side of Chambers Place in a primarily residential neighbourhood 
(Figure 2). The property contains a single detached dwelling. The property is designated ‘Detached 
Residential’ by the Official Community Plan (OCP) and is zoned R2 (Small Lot Residential) in the Zoning 

Location of 
sundeck. 

Figure 1 – Location of sundeck addition 

- 168 -



 
Council Report  Page 2 of 11 

Bylaw. The principal dwelling was constructed in 1975. A complaint 
was filed with the City of Penticton on February 2nd, 2022 that work 
without a permit was taking place on the subject property. As part of 
the investigation the unpermitted sundeck was discovered. It was 
later confirmed that the works did not meet the setback 
requirements as per the City’s zoning bylaw. As such, a development 
variance permit application is required prior legalizing the 
unpermitted construction.  

Technical Review 

This application was reviewed by the City’s Technical Planning 
Committee (TPC). No comments were brought forward by the TPC in 
regards to this application. The applicant will be required to apply 
for a building permit to legalize the sundeck, should Council 
approve the requested variance. 

Development Statistics 

The following table outlines the proposed development statistics on the plans submitted with the 
development application: 

 R2 Zone Requirement  Provided on Plans 
Minimum Lot Width*: 13 m 20.2 m 
Minimum Lot Area*: 390 m2 566.5 m2 
Required Setbacks 
Front Yard (Chambers Pl): 
Side Yard (north): 
Side Yard (south): 
Rear Yard: 

 
4.5 m 
1.5 m 
1.5 m 
6.0 m 

 
8.39 m 
1.19 m – variance requested 
2.94 m 
9.46 m 

Other Information: *Lot width and lot area are only applicable at the time of subdivision. 

Analysis 

Development Variance Permit 

When considering a variance to a City bylaw, staff encourage Council to consider whether there is a hardship 
that makes meeting the bylaw difficult or impossible, whether approval of the variance would cause a 
negative impact on neighbouring properties and if the variance request is reasonable. The applicant is 
applying to vary Section 10.2.2.6.a of Zoning Bylaw 2021-01, to reduce the minimum interior side yard from 
1.5 m to 1.19 m, in order to facilitate the legalization of an existing enclosed sundeck.  

Staff have reviewed the requested variance and are recommending support for the following reasons: 

 

Figure 2 – Location Map 

- 169 -



 
Council Report  Page 3 of 11 

1. The sundeck has existed for multiple years 
 
The City of Penticton has historical aerial photos that date back to 1994, which show the sundeck 
existed then. The impact to the neighbour directly to the north has been there for multiple years 
without complaints to the City of Penticton regarding the encroachment into the setback. Removal 
of the sundeck or altering it so it met the setback would be a hardship on the current property 
owners who purchased the house with the sundeck and did not realize that the sun deck did not 
meet the side yard setback.  
 

2. Support from neighbours 
 
The applicant has provided letters of support from immediate 
neighbours for the sundeck, including the property to the 
north (46 Dauphin Ave), most impacted by the location of the 
sundeck. Figure 3 shows the letters of support submitted by 
the applicant as part of their variance application. The letters of 
support submitted are included in Attachment ‘E’. The 
immediate neighbours who would be most impacted from the 
sundeck, and having their signatures of support indicates that 
negative impacts on neighbours are not anticipated.  

Given the above, staff are supportive of the variance and recommend 
Council approve the permit.  

Alternate Recommendations 

Council may consider the requested variance is undesirable and that the applicants should build within the 
Zoning Bylaw regulations. If this is the case, Council should deny “Development Variance Permit PL2022-
9403”. If this decision is made, the applicant would either need to remove their sundeck, or modify their 
sundeck to meet the Zoning Bylaw regulations. Staff are recommending against this option, as the 
requested variance is considered reasonable in this instance and the letter of intent and letters of support 
indicates that there will be minimal impacts on surrounding properties. 

1. THAT Council, after hearing from the applicant, deny “Development Variance Permit PL2022-9403”. 

Attachments 

Attachment A – Zoning Map 
Attachment B – Official Community Plan Map 
Attachment C – Photos of Property 
Attachment D – Letter of Intent 
Attachment E – Letters of Support 
Attachment F – Draft Development Variance Permit PL2022-9403 
Respectfully submitted, 

Jordan Hallam 
Planner I 

Director of 
Development 

Services 

Chief 
Administrative 

Officer 

BL 
 

DvD 
 

Figure 3 – Letters of support submitted 
by owners of two properties (yellow). 

- 170 -



 
Council Report  Page 4 of 11 

Attachment A – Zoning Map 

 
  

- 171 -



 
Council Report  Page 5 of 11 

Attachment B – Official Community Plan Map 

 
  

- 172 -



 
Council Report  Page 6 of 11 

Attachment C – Photos of Property 

 

  

Subject Property: 
114 Chambers Pl 

Subject Property: 
114 Chambers Pl 

46 Dauphin Ave 

46 Dauphin Ave 

Chambers Pl 

Chambers Pl 

- 173 -



 
Council Report  Page 7 of 11 

 
  

Subject Property: 
114 Chambers Pl 

46 Dauphin Ave 

Location of 
existing sundeck. 

- 174 -



 
Council Report  Page 8 of 11 

Attachment D – Letter of Intent 

 

  

- 175 -



 
Council Report  Page 9 of 11 

Attachment E – Letters of Support 

 

- 176 -



 
Council Report  Page 10 of 11 

 

- 177 -



 
Council Report  Page 11 of 11 

 

- 178 -



 
 

City of Penticton 
171 Main St.   |  Penticton B.C.  |  V2A 5A9 

www.penticton.ca   |  ask@penticton.ca 
 

Development Variance Permit 

Permit Number: DVP PL2022-9403 

Owner Name 
Owner Address 

Conditions of Permit  

1. This permit is issued subject to compliance with all of the bylaws of the City, except as specifically 
varied or supplemented by this Permit. 

2. This permit applies to:  

Legal: Lot 11 District Lot 116 Similkameen Division Yale District Plan 25568 

Civic: 114 Chambers Place 

PID: 005-425-531 

3. This permit has been issued in accordance with Section 498 of the Local Government Act, to vary 
the following sections of Zoning Bylaw 2021-01 to allow for the placement of a sundeck, as 
shown in the plans attached in Schedule ‘A’: 

a. Section 10.2.2.6.a: to reduce the minimum interior side yard from 1.5 m to 1.19 m 

General Conditions  

4. In accordance with Section 501 of the Local Government Act, the lands subject to this permit shall 
be developed in general accordance with this permit and the plans attached as Schedule ‘A’.  

5. In accordance with Section 504 of the Local Government Act, if the holder of this permit does not 
commence the development authorized by this permit within 2 years of the date of this permit, this 
permit shall lapse. 

6. This permit is not a building permit.  In order to proceed with this development, the holder of 
this permit must hold a valid building permit issued by the Building Inspection Department.  

7. This permit does not constitute any other municipal, provincial or federal approval. The holder of 
this permit is responsible to obtain any additional municipal, federal, or provincial approvals prior 
to commencing the development authorized by this permit.  

8. This permit does not include off-site infrastructure costs that may be required at the building permit 
stage, such as Development Cost Charges (DCC’s), road improvements and electrical servicing. 
There may be substantial infrastructure and servicing costs payable at a later date. For more 
information on servicing and infrastructure requirements please contact the Development 
Engineering Department at (250) 490-2501. For more information on electrical servicing costs, 
please contact the Electric Utility at (250) 490-2535.    

DVP PL2022-9403 Page 1 of 3

DRAFT

- 179 -



Authorized by City Council, the 6th day of September, 2022. 

Issued this ____ day of September, 2022. 

_________________________ 

Angela Collison 
Corporate Officer 

DVP PL2022-9403 Page 2 of 3

DRAFT

- 180 -



DVP PL2022-9403 Page 3 of 3

Sch
ed

ule
 'A

' 

DVP PL2
02

2-9
40

3

- 181 -



August 30, 2022  

 

BY EMAIL: corpadmin@penticton.ca  

 

City of Penticton  

171 Main Street 

Penticton, British Columbia V2A 5A9 

 

Attention: Corporate Officer, City of Penticton 

 

RE:  Development Variance Permit PL2022-9403 

 114 Chambers Place, Penticton, British Columbia V2A 6T7 

 

I am a resident of Chambers Place and received the Public Notice dated August 25, 2022, 

regarding the Development Variance Permit with respect to 114 Chambers Place to reduce the 

minimum interior side yard from 1.5m to 1.19m in order to facilitate the construction of an 

unpermitted sundeck.   

 

I write in support of approving the Development Variance Permit.  

 

The sun deck is not hurting anyone that I’m aware of, it’s not an obstruction, and I’m sure greatly 

enjoyed by the residents of the property. The mandatory removal and potential replacement of 

the sundeck would cause far greater harm to our quiet neighborhood than letting it be.  

 

I kindly request that you approve the variance application as presented to allow the sun deck to 

remain.  

 

 

 

Julie Turner  

Chambers Place Resident, Penticton, BC 

- 182 -

mailto:corpadmin@penticton.ca


 

 
Council Report 

 

   

 

 

Date: September 6, 2022      File No:    RMS/603 Main St 
To: Donny van Dyk, Chief Administrative Officer 
From: Nicole Capewell, Planner II 
Address: 603 Main Street  
 
Subject: Development Variance Permit PL2022-9381 
 Development Permit PL2022-9380 

 

Staff Recommendation 

THAT Council approve “Development Variance Permit PL2022-9381”, for Lot A District Lot 202 Similkameen 
Division Yale District Plan 24480, located at 603 Main Street, a permit to vary the following sections of 
Zoning Bylaw 2021-01,  

1. Section 11.5.2.5.a: to increase the maximum height of a building located in the 600 block of Main Street 
from 15.0m to 17.4m; and 

2. Section 6.1.5.4: to increase the maximum number of small car parking spaces permitted from 25% to 
53%. 

AND THAT Council direct staff to issue “Development Variance Permit PL2022-9381”; 

AND THAT Council, subject to approval of “Development Variance Permit PL2022-9381”, approve 
“Development Permit PL2022-9380”, for Lot A District Lot 202 Similkameen Division Yale District Plan 24480, 
located at 603 Main Street, a permit to allow for the construction of a 5-storey, mixed-use development 
containing 28 residential units and approximately 1,300 sq. ft. of commercial space.  

Strategic Priority Objective 

Vision: A vibrant, innovative, healthy waterfront city focused on sustainability, community and economic 
opportunity.  

Mission: Penticton will serve its residents, businesses and visitors through good governance, partnership 
and the provision of effective and community focused services. 

Community Vitality: The City of Penticton, guided by the Official Community Plan, will promote the 
economic wellbeing and vitality of the community.  

 

- 183 -



 
Council Report  Page 2 of 19 

Proposal 

The applicant is proposing to construct a 5-storey, mixed-use, affordable rental building at 603 Main Street, 
to be operated by M’akola Housing Society, a non-profit housing provider with extensive experience 
operating affordable housing across British Columbia. In order to proceed, the applicant requires the 
following variances to Zoning Bylaw No. 2021-01: 

1. Section 11.5.2.5.a: to increase the maximum height of a building located in the 600 block of Main Street 
from 15.0m to 17.4m; and 

2. Section 6.1.5.4: to increase the maximum number of small 
car parking spaces permitted from 25% to 53%. 

The applicant has also applied for Development Permit 
consideration to review the form and character of the proposal. 
The Development Permit has been included for Council’s 
consideration, and is subject to the Commercial/Mixed-Use, and 
Downtown Development Permit Guidelines.  

Background 

The subject property is 0.211 acres (853m2) in size and is located 
on the corner of Main Street and White Avenue in the 
Downtown (Figure 1). . The surrounding land uses include a wide 
range of zones (C5 – Urban Centre Commercial, RD1 – Duplex 
Housing, RD2 – Duplex Housing: Lane, RM5 – Urban Residential, 
and P1 – Public Assembly) (Attachment ’A’). In 2016, a 
demolition permit was issued to remove the older building on 
site, and the property has remained vacant since.  

The property is currently zoned C5 (Urban Centre Commercial) 
and is designated by the City’s Official Community Plan as 
‘Downtown Mixed-Use’ (Figure 2). Both of these bylaws place a limitation on the height of buildings located 
within the 100-600 blocks of Main Street. This height limit is in place in an effort to maintain the historic 
character of Penticton’s central business district, which is predominately 1-2 storeys with some three storey 
buildings on prominent corners.  

 Figure 2 - OCP Land Use Designation 

Figure 1 - Property Location Map 

- 184 -



 
Council Report  Page 3 of 19 

 

In 2020, Council approved a site-specific text amendment to the OCP for the subject property, to allow for 
up to five storeys in height (Figure 3). The applicant also requested approval of a Development Variance 
Permit to allow an increase in height permitted by the Zoning Bylaw, which was not granted at the time, as 
Council requested that the Development Permit be included prior to further consideration. This would allow 
Council to review the form and character of the building, in determining whether an increase in height is 
warranted and suitable in this location and instance.  

 

Since the 2020 Council consideration, the applicants have received subsequent funding approvals from BC 
Housing, allowing the proposal to proceed through design stages, and prepare the detailed design plans for 
Council’s consideration. The application proposes to introduce a mixed-use development, providing 
approximately 1,300 sq. ft. of commercial space at-grade, fronting Main Street, and 28 residential units (1, 2, 
and 3 bedroom units) on the subject property. The applicant indicates that the proposed development is 
intended to provide a location for a regional office for the project applicant, M’akola Housing Society, and a 
second commercial retail unit. M’akola Housing Society is the largest Indigenous affordable housing 
provider in BC, serving more than 5,000 family members. In establishing an operations office in Penticton, 
the Society expects to pursue more affordable housing projects in Penticton and surrounding communities. 
Further details regarding the applicant and their intentions with the property is included within the Letter of 
Intent (Attachment ‘E’). 

 

 

Figure 3 - Council Outcome from Previous Application 

- 185 -



 
Council Report  Page 4 of 19 

Climate Impact 

The City of Penticton Community Climate Action Plan (CCAP) outlines a path towards a low carbon future: A 
future where City residents experience the benefits of a connected, healthy and economically prosperous 
community while taking action on climate change and adapting to climate impacts.  

The development is representative of smart growth, adding housing and new commercial space in an area 
of the community without the need for infrastructure extensions and that is well serviced by amenities, 
sidewalks, and transit and bicycle routes.  This aligns with Shift 1.1 of the CCAP to optimize policies and 
bylaws for compact growth. The proposal encourages active transportation by providing 16 Class 1 (secure) 
bicycle parking and 10 Class 2 (racks) bicycle parking spaces. Bicycle spaces have been provided for both 
residential users and commercial users, including convenient bike racks at the front entrance to the 
commercial units off of Main Street and White Avenue.  

The applicants have indicated that the proposed development will target Step 3 of the BC Energy Step Code. 

Technical Review 

This application was reviewed by the Technical Planning Committee (TPC). Typical servicing requirements 
have been identified for the Building Permit stage of the project, if the variance and development permit 
applications are supported by Council. These items have been communicated to the applicant. Through the 
review process, the City’s Electrical Department identified a larger space for the pad mount transformer was 
required from the laneway. As a result, the parking plan was amended to decrease the number of parking 
spaces provided from 15 spaces to 14 spaces. Staff have worked with the applicant to continue to provide 15 
spaces, through the use of 8 small car spaces on site, which the applicant indicated should be suitable for 
future tenants. This required an additional variance to allow more small car spaces than permitted by the 
Zoning Bylaw, however staff consider that the additional parking space is more desirable. 

Social Development Review  

Staff also reviewed the positive impact this project will have on Penticton’s affordable and attainable 
housing stock. As the City heard during consultations for the North Gateway Plan, there is an urgent need for 
more affordable and attainable housing across Penticton. The proposed development will help achieve 
targets in the Regional District of the Okanagan Similkameen’s Housing Needs Assessment, which showed 
that approximately 16% of households in Penticton are in core housing need (spend more than 30% of their 
income on housing, which puts them at a significant increased risk of poor social outcomes). As this project 
is funded by a capital grant from BC Housing, the applicant has a certain number of units it must include in 
the new building to receive this funding. This capital grant is essential in making the units attainable so staff 
have worked with the applicant to identify ways in which the project can include the number of units 
associated with the capital funding. This aligns with Policies in the Official Community Plan that identify that 
the City will work with partners to identify ways in which the municipality can support attainable housing in 
the community (e.g., Policy 4.1.2.1 and Policy 4.1.2.9).  

With regard to the number of parking spaces provided, while the number of spaces is under the desired 1 
per unit, staff understand that the resident mix of the building will be such that the parking provided is 
sufficient. Many of the units are intended for individuals with lower incomes and the desirable locations 

- 186 -



 
Council Report  Page 5 of 19 

affords a car free lifestyle for these residents with access to employment, groceries and other life necessities, 
accessed via alternative means.  

Development Statistics 

The following table outlines the proposed development statistics on the plans submitted with the 
development application: 

 Zone Requirement  Provided on Plans 
Minimum Lot Width*: 9.0 m 28.1 m 
Minimum Lot Area*: 275 m2 856.5 m2  
Maximum Lot Coverage: 100% 84% 
Maximum Density: 6.0 Floor Area Ratio (FAR) 2.6 Floor Area Ratio (FAR) 

Vehicle Parking: 
1 space per residential unit 
28 spaces required 

0.54 spaces per residential unit 
15 spaces provided  

Small Car Parking Spaces 
Maximum 25% of spaces 
Maximum permitted = 3 small car 
spaces 

Total provided = 8 small car spaces 
or 53% Variance Required 

Parking Reductions  
As per Zoning Bylaw Section 
6.1.2 

28 parking spaces required 
15 parking spaces provided 
13 parking spaces less than 
requirement 

15 total vehicle parking spaces 
provided  
1 parking space provided through 5 
additional Class 2 bicycle spaces. 
12 parking spaces provided through 
cash-in-lieu ($13,000 per stall = 
$156,000) **. 

Bicycle Parking 
Class 1 

Residential 
0.5 per residential unit 
Residential Class 1 required =14 
spaces 
Commercial 
Min 2, plus one every 125m2 over 
250m2 
Commercial Class 1 required = 2 
spaces 

Total Class 1 required = 16  spaces 
Total Class 1 provided = 16 spaces 

Bicycle Parking 
Class 2 

Residential 
0.1 per residential unit 
Residential Class 2 required = 3 
(2.8) spaces 
Commercial 
Min 2, plus one every 125m2 over 
250m2 

Total Class 2 required = 5 (4.8) 
spaces 
Total Class 2 provided = 10 spaces 
(includes 5 additional Class 2 
spaces) 

- 187 -



 
Council Report  Page 6 of 19 

Commercial Class 2 required = 2 
spaces 

Required Setbacks 
Front Yard (Main Street): 
Interior Side Yard (south): 
Exterior Side Yard (north): 
Rear Yard (lane): 

 
0 m 
0 m 
0 m 
0 m 

 
0 m 
0 m 
0 m 
3.7 m 

Maximum Building Height 15 m 17.4m Variance Required 

Other Information: 

*Lot width and lot area are only applicable at the time of subdivision. 
**Cash-in-lieu: the sum of money will be deposited into the Off-Street 
Parking Reserve and Alternative Transportation Infrastructure Reserve at 
the rate of 75% to the Off Street Parking Reserve and 25% to the 
Alternative Transportation Reserve. 

Analysis 

Development Variance Permit 

When considering a variance to a City bylaw, staff encourage Council to consider whether approval of the 
variance would cause a negative impact on neighbouring properties and if the variance request is 
reasonable. The following variance is being requested. 

1. Section 11.5.2.5.a: to increase the maximum height of a building located in the 600 block of Main Street 
from 15.0m to 17.4m. 

As discussed within the staff report to Council on November 17, 2022, properties within the downtown area 
have a height limitation to ensure new developments integrate into the existing neighbourhood, and 
recognize the unique character of Penticton’s historic Downtown. Although the height limitation has been 
put in place to protect and recognize the existing neighbourhood, it creates a significant challenge for 
opportunities for larger scale development in the downtown. This height limit can challenge the financial 
feasibility of mixed-use developments.  

The City’s 2019 Official Community Plan was developed with detailed Development Permit Area Guidelines 
for the downtown and downtown peripheral areas, providing specific guidelines for development that 
occurs within this unique area of the City. Staff consider that there is City policy to support an increase to 
building height, in unique instances, where the proposed design is critically reviewed. 

Further, staff consider that the proposal is aligned with the ‘Downtown Mixed-Use’ land use designation for 
the property, as it proposes a high-density, mixed-use development with an active ground level, and 
residential uses above. In addition to being aligned with the land use designation, staff consider the 
proposal is in keeping with many goals and objectives of the OCP. Staff cite the following references from 
the OCP to support the proposal: 

Housing Land Use 
Needs and Targets 
(Pg 36) 

While housing in Penticton is predominantly single-detached houses (43% of the 
total), this proportion has been decreasing. This trend is going to continue into the 
future due to the limited options for new single-detached neighbourhood 

- 188 -



 
Council Report  Page 7 of 19 

development, the increased preference for more urban living closer to the 
Downtown and other amenities, increased housing costs, and the needs of an aging 
population. 

Commercial Land 
Use Needs and 
Targets (Pg 38) 

The revitalization of the Downtown and development of mixed-use projects there 
could likely lead to an intensification of retail uses, including smaller-format grocery, 
and a reduction in vacancies. 

Commercial Land 
Use Targets (Pg 38) 

Development of an additional 147,000 square feet of office space with an emphasis 
on high-quality office space in the more desirable parts of the city, particularly the 
Downtown. 

OCP Goal 4.1.3 
Housing Diversity 
(Pg 58) 

Ensure a range of housing types, sizes, tenures and forms exist throughout the city 
to provide housing options for all ages, household types, and incomes. 

OCP Goal 4.3.6 
Business and 
Labour Attraction 
(Pg 72) 

Bring business, investment and labour to Penticton. 

 Supporting Policy 4.3.6.5 – Encourage the development of high-quality ‘Class A’ 
office space in attractive high-amenity areas of the city, particularly the Downtown. 

OCP Goal 4.6.6 
Character Areas 
(Pg 86) 

Recognize and protect the unique character of Penticton’s historic Downtown 
(especially Main Street and Front Street) and character neighbourhoods as these 
areas change and evolve. 

 Supporting Policy 4.6.6.1 – Ensure new developments and renovations integrate 
with existing neighbourhood character through the Downtown, Intensive 
Residential, and Multifamily Development Permit Area Guidelines. 

2. Section 6.1.5.4: to increase the maximum number of small car parking spaces permitted from 25% to 
53%. 

Following the previous application, staff identified to the applicant that the parking ratio would require 
further analysis and justification, as the parking ratio was significantly under the Zoning Bylaw requirement 
of 1 space per residential unit. The applicant has provided a plan that provides parking at a ratio of 0.54 
spaces per residential unit, and supplied staff with a parking study that was completed for the proposed 
development on the subject property. The analysis completed by a third party (Watt Consulting Group) 
reviewed the subject site, transit, walking, and cycling networks, as well as the proposed development and 
the expected need for parking. Observations were also made of representative sites in Penticton and other 
communities. This analysis was used to determine that the expected parking demand for the subject site is 
16 parking spaces, 1 more than is proposed to be supplied on site. Given this information, as well that the 
applicant will be choosing tenants for the development, staff are recommending approval.  

The applicant originally applied to staff with a plan package that proposed 15 parking spaces, with 2 small 
car spaces. Through the review process, the electrical department identified that the spacing requirements 
for the pad mount transformer was larger than the applicant had originally designed for. This resulted in the 
loss of a parking space to be able to accommodate the transformer pad (14 parking spaces). Staff considered 
that more parking spaces provided on site would be more desirable, and as such the applicant redesigned 
the parking layout to be able to accommodate 15 parking spaces in utilizing 8 small car spaces. This 

- 189 -



 
Council Report  Page 8 of 19 

proposal exceeds the maximum allowance of small car parking spaces, however staff consider the additional 
space is more beneficial than the alternative of less parking spaces.  

Staff consider that the proposal to provide 15 parking spaces, with 8 small car spaces, and 1 accessible 
space, supplemented with 16 Class 1 bicycle spaces, and 10 Class 2 bicycle parking spaces is sufficient for the 
proposed development at the subject site.  

Development Permit 

The subject property is considered within the Commercial & Mixed-use and Downtown Development Permit 
Areas. Each of these development permit areas is established to support developments in specific areas. Staff 
have analyzed the guidelines from all of these development permit areas. An in-depth analysis of how the 
proposed development conforms to the guidelines has been attached as Attachment ‘D’. The applicants 
have also provided an analysis of how they meet the guidelines, which is attached as Attachment ‘E’. 

In addition, staff consider that the proposed development is supported through the following OCP Policies: 

Goal 4.1.1 Managing Residential Growth 
Ensure that Penticton retains its compact ‘footprint’ to help protect natural areas and 
environmental values and agricultural lands, avoid excessive infrastructure costs and 
hazard lands, and help create conditions that support transit and active modes of 
transportation. 

• The proposed development is located within an established area of the City. This 
utilizes existing services, rather than extending services to new areas.  

• The location of the subject site will help to create conditions that support transit 
and active modes of transportation, as it is near transit routes and within 
appropriate distances of desired amenities and services for walking or cycling to 
be considered. 

OCP Policy 
4.1.1.1 

Focus new residential development in or adjacent to existing developed areas. 
• The proposed development is within an existing developed area.  
• The subject property is a ‘brownfield’ development, utilizing an existing area, 

rather than disturbing new lands to accommodate development.  
OCP Policy 
4.1.1.2 

Avoid development in environmentally-sensitive areas, geological hazard and flood 
hazard areas, on steep slopes, in agricultural areas and in areas not readily served by 
transit. 

• The proposed development is within an existing developed area and does not 
place pressure on hazard lands.  

OCP Goal 
4.1.3 

Ensure a range of housing types, sizes, tenures and forms exist throughout the city to 
provide housing options for all ages, household types, and incomes. 

• The proposed development will provide a variety of unit sizes (1, 2 and 3 
bedroom units) 

• The more variety of sizes and types of units allows for more units for more 
housing needs.  

OCP Policy 
4.1.3.4 

Encourage developments that include one-bedroom and two-bedroom units in suitable 
neighbourhoods to enable people to downsize as they age and to provide entry-level 

- 190 -



 
Council Report  Page 9 of 19 

housing for those people entering the housing market. At the same time, provide 3-
bedroom units, or larger, to accommodate families. 

• The proposed development includes a variety of units including 1, 2 and 3 
bedroom units. 

OCP Policy 
4.1.3.5 

Ensure through the use of zoning that more-intensive forms of residential development 
are located close to transit and amenities, such as parks, schools and shopping. 

• The subject property is within a high amenity area, within the downtown, located 
along a transit route, and easy park access and lake views.  

OCP Policy 
4.2.3.8 

Require adequate levels of secure bike parking in new multi-family, mixed-use and 
commercial development. 

• The plans provided indicate adequate amounts of secure biking throughout the 
development.  

• Bicycle parking is also provided for visitor of the development at both entrances 
(Main Street and White Avenue). 

The proposed development has been designed with the OCP policies and development permit area 
guidelines in mind. As such, staff recommend that Council approve the Development Permit. 

Alternate Recommendations 

Council may consider that the variance request is unreasonable and is not warranted in this instance. If this is 
the case, Council should deny the development variance permit. Staff are not recommending this option, as 
the proposed development and variance is supported through various OCP Policy. Further, staff consider 
that the proposed development offers a unique opportunity for affordable rental housing provided by a 
well-known housing provider in BC, within a desirable area of the community.  

1. THAT Council, after hearing from the applicant, deny “Development Variance Permit PL2022-9381” and 
“Development Permit PL2022-9380”. 

  

- 191 -



 
Council Report  Page 10 of 19 

Attachments 

Attachment A – Zoning Map 
Attachment B – Official Community Plan Map 
Attachment C – Photos of Property 
Attachment D – Development Permit Analysis (staff) 
Attachment E – Letter of Intent (including Development Permit Analysis) 
Attachment F – Parking Study 
Attachment G – Draft Development Variance Permit PL2022-9381 
Attachment H – Draft Development Permit PL2022-9380 
 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

Nicole Capewell, RPP, MCIP 
Planner II 

  

 
Director of 

Development 
Services 

GM of 
Infrastructure 

Chief 
Administrative 

Officer 

BL 
KD  

DvD 
 

- 192 -



 
Council Report  Page 11 of 19 

Attachment A – Zoning Map 

 
  

- 193 -



 
Council Report  Page 12 of 19 

Attachment B – Official Community Plan Map 

 
  

- 194 -



 
Council Report  Page 13 of 19 

Attachment C – Photos of Property 

 
 

 
  

4 storeys 
Martin St 

6 storeys 
Winnipeg St 

3 storeys 
Main St 

Subject 
Property 

Main Street 

White Ave 

- 195 -



 
Council Report  Page 14 of 19 

Attachment D – Development Permit Analysis (staff) 
Development Permit Analysis 

The proposed development is located within the Commercial & Mixed-Use and Downtown Development 
Permit Areas. The following analysis demonstrates how the proposal is aligned with this development 
permit area. 

Guideline G1 Prior to site design, analysis shall be undertaken to identify significant on-site and off-site 
opportunities and constraints, including built and natural elements (e.g., structures, slopes 
and drainage, significant landscape features, etc.). 

 • The subject site is currently a flat lot that was previously had buildings existing. The 
applicant will need to undergo site preparation before the development commences, 
however the site does not include any significant natural constraints such as structures, 
slopes or other landscape features. 

Guideline G2 Applications shall include a comprehensive site plan – considering adjacent context for 
building and landscape architectural design and neighbourhood character analysis – to 
demonstrate that the development is sensitive to and integrated within its context and 
surrounding uses and neighbours. 

 • The plans prepared incorporate the boulevard areas along Main Street and White 
Avenue, including boulevard trees to be planted.  

• The applicant has also included elevations that show heights of surrounding buildings 
as context for the area. 

Guideline G3 Private and semi-private open spaces should be designed to optimize solar access. 

 • The development includes a courtyard on the second level, which is intentionally 
located to be a south-facing amenity area. 

Guideline G4 Views through to the mountains and the lakes should be carefully considered and 
incorporated into the design of new development 

 • The subject property and proposed development are not in a location where lake views 
would be accessible, however the development has units facing towards the north, 
east and west, which will utilize the mountain views that surround the City. 

Guideline G5 Siting of buildings should support strong street definition by minimizing front yard 
setbacks while sensitively transitioning to neighbouring building setbacks. 

 • The proposed development supports strong street definition by being located at 0m 
along both Main Street and White Avenue. The ground level is set back slightly to 
provide canopy and weather protection, and also to allow the corner visibility triangle 
at the intersection of Main Street and White Avenue. 

Guideline G6 Building placement and orientation should respect significant public water, mountain and 
ridgeline views. 

 • The subject property and proposed development are not in a location where lake views 
would be accessible, however the development has units facing towards the north, 
east and west, which will utilize the mountain views that surround the City. 

- 196 -



 
Council Report  Page 15 of 19 

Guideline G7 All designs shall consider Crime Prevention Through Environmental Design (CPTED) 
principles and balance the reduction of crime and nuisance opportunities with other 
objectives to maximize the enjoyment of the built environment. 

 • The applicant has indicated several considerations that have been made to consider 
CPTED within the design within their Development Permit Analysis, including: 
o  The suites have been oriented facing Main Street, White Avenue and the lane. The 

resulting ‘eyes on the street’ enhances the sense of safety within the public realm. 
o The private outdoor amenity spaces is located on the second floor 
o All doors to the building will be equipped with access controls. 
o The building will be equipped with two exit stairs. One stair exit through the 

residential lobby. The second stairs exits directly onto the public realm along 
White Street. This is considered more desirable than having the stair empty into 
the lane. 

o The north east corner of the building respects the required 4.5m x 4.5m visibility 
triangle. 

o The parking is located at grade, tucked under the building above, and enclosed in 
a semi-transparent screen. An overhead parkade door equipped with access 
controls will control access to the parking area.  

Guideline G8 Secondary buildings should create comfortable and social, semi-public and semi-private 
spaces within interior courtyards and/or side-yards 

 • The project proposes no secondary buildings. 

Guideline G9 Pedestrian connectivity to adjacent properties is encouraged. With the exception of private 
yards, open spaces shall be designed for public access and connectivity to adjacent public 
areas (and publicly-accessible private spaces). 

 • The proposal includes connectivity to the public realm including both Main Street and 
White Avenue. 

Guideline G11 
Guideline G13 

Barrier-free pedestrian walkways to primary building entrances must be provided from 
municipal sidewalks, parking areas, storage, garbage and amenity areas 

 • Barrier free walkways have been provided, including the residential lobby area and the 
commercial units. 

• Connections have also been provided to the parking areas, garbage and amenity areas.  
Guideline G15 
 

Fencing facing an active public realm should be lowered and transparent or semi-
transparent. 

 • No fencing facing a public realm is proposed. 

Guideline G16 Site and building access must prioritize pedestrian movement, minimize conflict between 
various modes of transportation and optimize use of space… 

 • To maximize the number of parking stalls provided, the access to the parkade area is 
provided from White Avenue rather than the laneway.  

• A single parkade access point is proposed.  

- 197 -



 
Council Report  Page 16 of 19 

Guideline G17 On-site parking location and design should minimize visual impact and provide safe 
connections for pedestrians… 

 • The development limits the visual impact of on-site parking, by locating all parking 
within a parkade. This ensure safe connections for pedestrians above ground.  

• Pedestrian connections and walkways have been considered in the parkade areas as 
well. 

Guideline G18 Attached parking structures, their access and associated components (doorways, ramps, 
etc.) should be architecturally integrated into the building so as to minimize visual impact 
to the public realm. 

 • The parking is architecturally integrated into the building, and is partially tucked under 
the building. There is minimal visual impact to the public realm. 

Guideline G19 All multifamily developments should accommodate sustainable modes of transportation 
through… 

 • Bicycle parking has been provided for the development, and includes additional Class 2 
bicycle parking in lieu of one parking space.  

Guideline G20 Designs should respond to Penticton’s setting and climate through use of… 

 • The design is targeting Step Code 3. 
• The commercial storefront includes glazing, which will be shaded by the building 

massing.  
Guideline G21 Orientation of buildings should face public spaces (e.g., street and lane) with a preference 

for ground-oriented types (e.g., a front door for everyone or every business). 

 • The proposed development includes a building face on both Main Street and White 
Avenue. 

• There is access to the commercial units from Main Street and White Avenue and the 
residential units from White Avenue.  

Guideline G22 
Guideline G23 

Massing of larger buildings should be composed of multiple volumes to reduce visual 
impact on the pedestrian realm. 
Articulation of building mass should include horizontal (minor) setbacks and stepbacks 
(along upper storeys) to provide visual interest and enrich the pedestrian experience. 
Balconies and/or cantilevered upper floors may be considered as a means to breaking up 
massing while promoting overlook and/or weather protection. 

 • The design includes multiple volumes and massing step backs, as well as colour and 
material changes to break up the building. 

Guideline G24 Street-facing units should utilize a layering of elements – including but not limited to 
street-facing entries, stairs, stoops, porches, patios and landscape elements – to create 
transitions between the public (e.g., street, sidewalk), semi-public (e.g., walkway, ramp, 
stair), semi-private (e.g., stoop, balcony) and private areas. 

 • The design includes canopies on the first floor, as well as step backs in the massing of 
the building.   

- 198 -



 
Council Report  Page 17 of 19 

Guideline G27 Development should activate the public realm (e.g., sidewalks) and shared open spaces by 
placing active uses at street level. 

 • The proposal includes commercial retail units on the ground level, directly accessed 
from the sidewalk along Main Street and White Avenue.  

• The lobby for the residential area is also provided from White Avenue. 
Guideline G28 Entries should be visible and clearly identifiable from the fronting public street. 

 • The building entries are visible from both of the streets fronting the development 
(Main Street and White Avenue).   

Guideline G29 Development should orient windows, porches, balconies and patios toward the public 
realm, allowing for casual overlook of parks, open spaces, and parking areas. 

 • The building allows for casual overlook of Main Street, White Avenue and the laneway 
to the rear. 

Guideline G33 Water Conservation and Plant Maintenance: Xeriscaping, Irrigation & Mulching 

 • All landscaping areas will include irrigation with fully automatic, underground 
irrigation system.   

Guideline G34 
Guideline G35 

Tree retention… 
Tree planting… 

 • There are no trees existing on the subject property, and the proposed development 
will add several new boulevard trees along both Main Street and White Avenue 
(including replacement of one boulevard tree that is in poor health). 

Guideline G38 Screening and Buffering… 
 • Screening will be included along the laneway to separate the parking area from the 

laneway.  
• The second level amenity area will also utilize raised planters and guard railing to 

buffer from the property to the south.  
Guideline G40 Energy… 
 • Deciduous trees are included into the boulevard areas, which will help to provide 

shade in the summer. 

Guideline G41 Softscapes… 
 • All landscaping improvements have been designed to meet the Canadian Landscape 

Standards. 

Guideline G43 Address both fronting streets in a pedestrian-friendly way, preferably with pedestrian 
entrances and/or windows on both facades. 

 • The proposed development provides a friendly face to both Main Street and White 
Avenue, by having both commercial and residential entrances available.  

Guideline G48 Lighting shall be provided for all building entrances, walkways, driveways, parking areas 
and loading areas and should be sufficient to provide clear orientation, personal safety and 
site security, including allowing for overlook from adjacent buildings. 

 • Lighting will be located along the soffit of the commercial and residential entrances. 
• The lighting will be warmer light sources to avoid light pollution. 

- 199 -



 
Council Report  Page 18 of 19 

Guideline G54 Mechanical/Utility cabinets and transformer pads (units) shall be located at the rear of the 
property, behind the building. 

 • The applicant has worked diligently to accommodate the large pad mount transformer 
that is required to service the development.  

• The pad mount transformer is located from the laneway to the rear and will be 
completely out of view from the public realm.  

Guideline G58 
and Guideline 
G59 

Garbage/recycling areas and other similar structures should be located out of public view 
in areas that mitigate noise impacts and which do not conflict with pedestrian traffic. 
Garbage and recycling bins should be contained within screened enclosures that are 
coordinated with the overall design. 

 • The garbage and recycling areas are located within the building out of view from the 
public realm. 

Guideline G60 Clear access to refuse/recycling areas must be provided 

 • Garbage and recycling rooms are located within the building and located for ease of 
access. 

Guideline CM1 Retail building frontages… 

 • Two commercial units are provided along the Main Street frontage and provide access 
directly to the public sidewalk.  

Guideline CM3 Mixed-use developments require thoughtful consideration to create synergies in mix and 
placement of uses 

 • The proposal includes commercial uses at grade and residential uses on the second 
floor and above.  

Guideline CM4 Locate parking areas to the rear or interior of a site rather than between the street and 
building.  

 • All parking is located under the building, accessed from White Avenue, out of view 
from the public street.  

Guideline 
CM10 

Visual connection to the store interior maintained through at least 75% glazing along the 
primary store front.  

 • The design targets 100% glazing along the street. 

Guideline DT4 Awnings and canopies are encouraged on all buildings with street-oriented retail at grade 
to form a sheltered environment for pedestrians. 

 • The frontages include covered areas as the ground level is recessed back, allowing 
weather protection for pedestrians.  

Guideline MF6 Entrances to apartment lobbies should be connected to adjacent sidewalks and provide 
seating, as well as clear pedestrian-oriented signage. Public art is also encouraged. 

 • Each building lobby is connected to the adjacent sidewalk with walkways. 

Guideline MF7 Minimize shadowing on adjacent parks, public and private open spaces and priority 
pedestrian facilities 

- 200 -



 
Council Report  Page 19 of 19 

 • Shadow impacts on adjacent public areas are lessened through several strategies that 
the applicant has identified within their DP Analysis. 

Guideline MF8 Pay special attention to preserving or enhancing public views by: 

 • As mentioned in previous comments, the applicants have considered views 
throughout the entire design process to ensure views are preserved and maintained.  

Guideline MF9 To increase their attractiveness, taller buildings should demonstrate… 

 • The applicant has indicated within their DP Analysis provided that the development 
will use a variety of attractive and durable cladding as well as colour to create a quality 
design suitable for the prominent location.  

• The tower will also use wood toned and grey and white paneling in varying 
combinations to create interest along with glazing patterns.  

Guideline 
MF10 

To create a positive street presence and contribution to the public realm… 

 • The tower has been designed with a podium for amenity space on the ‘third floor’. 
• The Marina Way frontage also utilizes 2 storey townhouse units, as a way of providing 

pedestrian-scaled units at grade.  
Guideline DT4 
and DT5 

Awnings and canopies are encouraged on all buildings with street-oriented retail at grade 
to form a sheltered environment for pedestrians. Other commercial, and multifamily 
apartment residential uses shall have awnings overtop of main entrances. 
Awnings and canopies should be designed an extension of the architectural expression of 
the building façade. 

 • Covered areas are proposed at each building entrance to provide shelter at the 
entranceway, as the ground level is recessed back, the upper levels provide weather 
protection.  

 

 

- 201 -



AUG 18, 2022

DEVELOPMENT PERMIT APPLICATION
603 MAIN STREET, PENTICTON, BC

Attachment E - Letter of Intent (including Development Permit Analysis) - 202 -



22

- 203 -



3603 MAIN STREET, PENTICTON AUG 18, 2022 DEVELOPMENT PERMIT TPC RESPONSE

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1 Letter of Intent

2 MHS Design Precedents

3 Development Permit Analysis

4 Appendix A: Technical Planning Committee Responses

5 Appendix B: Technical Drawings

6 Appendix C: Landscape Drawings

7 Appendix D: Material board

Main Street

Project Site

Main Street
Project site

White Avenue

N

Copyright reserved. This design and drawing is the exclusive property 
of WMW Public Architecture and Communication Inc. and cannot be 
used for any purpose without the written consent of the Architect. 
This drawing is not to be used for construction until issued for that 
purpose by the Architect. Prior to commencement of the Work the 
Contractor shall verify all dimensions, datums and levels to identify 
any errors and omissions; ascertain any discrepancies between this 
drawing and the full Contract Documents; and, bring these items to 
the attention of the Architect for clarification.

ISSUES + REVISIONS
NO     DATE                     DESCRIPTION

1495 FRANCES STREET
VANCOUVER BC V5L 1Z1
TEL 604 738 4323
WWW.PUBLICDESIGN.CA

PROJECT CODE

SHEET

SCALE

20
22

-0
8-

18
 1

1:
00

:3
0

AM
C

:\
U

se
rs

\W
ilk

in
\D

oc
um

en
ts

\2
01

8 
M

H
S 

60
3 

M
ai

n 
St

_R
20

21
_w

ilk
in

3W
2Z

W
.r

vt

1 : 400

A0.11

MHS 603 Main St.

603 Main St., Penticton, BC

2018

Site axonometric
and site sections

/ 1 : 400A0.101

Site Section N-S looking east1

/ 1 : 400A0.101

Site Section N-S looking west2

/ 1 : 400A0.101

Site Section E-W looking north3

B May 31, 2022 DP Submission
C Aug 18, 2022 DP - TPC response

/

Site Axonometric4

- 204 -



44

- 205 -



5603 MAIN STREET, PENTICTON AUG 18, 2022 DEVELOPMENT PERMIT TPC RESPONSE

 
 

This development will provide a range of affordable units, serving residents of Penticton and reflects the 
commitment MHS and the City of Penticton have made to affordable, appropriate housing. MHS is excited 
to work with the City to bring affordable housing units to Main Street. 

 

ABOUT THE OPERATOR 

The  project  proponent  and  operator, M’akola  Housing  Society,  is  the  largest  Indigenous  affordable 
housing provider  in British Columbia serving more than 5,000 family members. MHS offers a variety of 
housing to suit the needs of its applicants and tenants including family housing in townhouse complexes, 
apartment  buildings,  and  single‐family  dwellings. MHS  also  offers  housing  geared  to  individuals  and 
couples and has two assisted living facilities for elders and seniors. 

MHS and its nearly 100 full‐time employees manage more than 1,600 homes serving both Indigenous and 
non‐Indigenous people across Vancouver Island, the Sunshine Coast and Northwest BC. This project would 
be a major development for MHS in the BC Interior, an area of the province in which the society has a 
growing presence. M’akola proposes to construct a regional operations and property management office 
and a second office space on the ground floor facing Main Street. The remainder of the first floor would 
include screened tuck under parking, accessible from White Avenue.  

With this operations office established, the Society expects to pursue more affordable housing projects in 
Penticton and surrounding communities. MHS hopes that this will be the first step in a long commitment 
to the City of Penticton and the BC Interior. 

 

LOCATION  
The project is proposed for 603 Main Street, at the intersection of Main Street and White Avenue, 1.2 km 
from  Highway  97. The subject site is  currently  zoned Urban  Centre  Commercial  (C5)  and  has  already 
received  an  OCP  amendment  to  permit  a  five‐story  development.  The  surrounding  land  is a mix  of 
C5, Mixed Use Commercial  (C3), Public Assembly  (P1), Major Utilities  (P3), and Duplex Housing:  Lane 
(RD2). Families  will  thrive  at  this  location  which  is  located  in  Downtown  Penticton  and  within  one 
kilometer of:  
 

 Okanagan College, Penticton  Secondary  School, KVR Middle  School, Queen’s Park Elementary 
School, and four preschools;   

 Four daycares and two after school programs;   
 Penticton Public Library, Penticton Community Centre, and Penticton Memorial Arena;   
 Eateries, Safeway, Foodland, Shoppers Drug Mart, and Salvation Army Thrift Store;   
 Office spaces; and  
 All local bus routes 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 15, 16, and 21, as well as most of the regional bus routes.  

 
In  close  proximity  to  603 Main  Street  are  a  number  of  sites  that  have  similar  height  profiles  to  the 
proposed development and set a reliable precedent for a development of this size in the area. A six‐storey 
residential building, located a few blocks north‐west of the subject site at 472 Winnipeg Street, houses 46 
units and 650 Martin Street, a  five‐storey building, has ground  floor  commercial with  four  storeys of 
residential on top. 
 

 
 

 
 
May 31th, 2022 
 
VIA ELECTRONIC DELIVERY 
 
 
Planning Department – Development Services Division 
ATTN: Nicole Capewell, Planner 
171 Main St.  
Penticton, BC  V2A 5A9 
planning@penticton.ca  
 
 
RE:   LETTER OF INTENT– 603 MAIN STREET DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION  
 
To whom it may concern:  
 
On  behalf  of M’akola  Housing  Society  (MHS), we  are  pleased  to  submit  the  attached  development 
application  for a Development Permit and Zoning Bylaw Variance to accommodate additional building 
height for the property located at 603 Main Street. This letter serves as an introduction to the application 
package  provided  and  considers  initial  feedback  from  the  City  of  Penticton’s  Technical  Planning 
Committee  (TPC). City Council  approved  an OCP Amendment  (Bylaw No.  2020‐49)  for  the project  in 
December 2020. 
  

PROPOSED  DEVELOPMENT    

M’akola Housing Society is proposing to develop an affordable, multi‐family housing project at 603 Main 
Street, based on  the  requirements of  the Building BC: Community Housing Fund  funding call  from BC 
Housing. 

The proposed building will be five storeys to accommodate a mix of one‐, two‐, and three‐bedroom units 
for families, seniors, and individuals. The units will be operated by M’akola Housing Society, a non‐profit 
housing provider with extensive experience operating affordable housing across the British Columbia. In 
addition, MHS proposes to develop a regional office on the ground level of the building fronting Main St.  

To achieve financial viability while meeting the requirements of BC Housing’s Community Housing Fund, 
we are proposing a height variance to permit the development of a five‐storey mixed‐use building at 603 
Main Street. This will allow for a unit mix that meets the requirements for funding, allows MHS to provide 
homes at affordable rates, maximizes the number of three‐bedroom family units, and maintain an office 
use on the ground level of the building.  

To  accommodate  local  development  permit  guidelines  and  neighbouring  buildings,  our  team  has 
identified ways to mitigate the impacts of the increased height by introducing overhangs and stepbacks, 
with  creative use of exterior  cladding  to  create  carved‐out  forms. Attached  is a Development Permit 
Analysis which provides a detailed overview of building design and parking for the proposed development.  

1 LETTER OF INTENT

- 206 -



66

 
 

TARGET POPULATION 

M’akola Housing Society intends to target tenants that will reflect the values of its organization and the 
findings of  the Penticton Housing Needs Assessment. As a housing provider  for  Indigenous and non‐
Indigenous elders, seniors and families, the design of this building promotes as many three‐bedroom units 
as possible. MHS will tenant these units according to its policies that prioritize Indigenous families as the 
location, close to schools and amenities, is ideal for that demographic. There  is also an open courtyard 
that  is  expected  to provide  a  culturally  appropriate  gathering  and play  space.  This project will bring 
necessary affordable housing to long‐term Penticton families and individuals and ensure the development 
and its residents are active participants their neighbourhood. 

 

NEED & DEMAND  

The  City  of  Penticton Housing Needs  Assessment  conducted  as  part  of  the OCP  process  found  that 
residents are navigating an extremely tight rental housing market. Roughly 37% of all renter households 
are  in core housing need, most of whom were struggling to meet their needs because of affordability 
concerns.  The  study  also  emphasized  a  need  for more  non‐market  housing  options  and  encouraged 
partnerships between Provincial agencies and non‐profit operators. Every unit in this development will be 
offered at a non‐market rate, with rents either limited by an affordability metric set by the Province or 
geared to tenants’ incomes. 

The  Housing  Needs  Assessment  makes  several  recommendations,  nearly  all  of  which  this  project 
addresses: 

 Address housing needs; 
 Enhance housing supply for households in core housing need; 
 Address non‐market housing needs; 
 Enhance the supply of rental housing; 
 Facilitate development on underutilized or vacant land; and 
 Address declining housing affordability. 

Over the next 25 years, the Housing Needs Report identifies a need for approximately 1,120 non‐market 
housing units, 620 if which are expected to be needed for families and seniors. Given a current (as of the 
publication of the report) inventory of only 661 total non‐market units, the City of Penticton would need 
to add at  least 500 new units of non‐market housing to meet projected demand  in 2046. This project 
directly addresses the deficit of non‐market housing for seniors and families.  

The latest housing needs assessment makes it abundantly clear that renters, individuals, and families who 
make  lower  incomes are struggling to meet  their housing needs  in Penticton. The project will address 
those needs by bringing stable, high‐quality, affordable housing to those who need it most. 

 

KEY DESIGN ELEMENTS 

The massing of  the proposed building  is  simple  to permit  economical  construction,  improved energy 
efficiency, and  increased  livability. To soften the  transition to  the existing structures to  the south, the 
massing shoulders inwards in plane and downwards in section to the three‐storey level. Similar easing is 
included at the upper northwest and southwest corners. 

 
 

To celebrate the  intersection of Main Street and White Avenue the massing steps upwards  in section. 
Entries to commercial and residential uses are covered with continuous weather projection and the south 
facing courtyard is proposed as an amenity area for the families living in the building.  

A  horizontal  metal  siding  board  is  prefinished  with  a  colour  palette  that  reinforces  the  massing 
manipulations of a carved‐out form. White is the primary colour to minimize solar heat gain while copper 
color  is deliberately used  in recessed areas as an accent. Copper  is a highlighting colour that  is visually 
cohesive with the surrounding landscape. 

 

INTERIOR COURTYARD 

The building design  also  features  an  interior  courtyard  located which  is noted  in  the  attached  south 
elevation drawing.  The courtyard, which is accessible from the second level, provides outdoor space for 
tenants and families to congregate. The interior of the upper floors has windows overlooking the second 
floor outdoor amenity space. Since  the  first  level  is occupied by commercial office space, parking and 
other building features, the courtyard allows for outdoor communal space in the downtown location.  

See attached Development Permit Analysis for a detailed design rationale.  

BYLAW  VARIANCE  DETAILS  AND  RATIONALE 

As identified above, to facilitate the level of affordability that M’akola intends to bring to this project the 
subject  property would need  a  variance of  the  height  for  the  proposed development.  The proposed 
development meets all other regulations of the C5 zoning. After preliminary feedback from the City of 
Penticton, the proposed building will be 5‐storeys maximum.  

The height for the proposed 5‐storey building measures 17.43m to top of parapet of flat roof.  

See attached  section plans  in  the design package  for more details. Please  see below Zoning Analysis 
comparing the proposed zone to the proposed development.  

  C5 Zone Requirements  Proposed Building   Action If Non‐Aligned 
Permitted Use   Dwelling Units 

Office 
Dwelling Units 
Office 

 

Maximum Lot 
Coverage 

100%  <83%   

Maximum Density  6.0 FAR  2.6 FAR   
Maximum Height  15 m (Exception for 

Main Street)  
17.43 m  
(Measured at top of 
parapet of flat roof, 5‐
storey building) 

Variance Required to 
meet building’s 5‐
storey maximum 
height 

Minimum Front Yard  0 m  0 m   
Minimum Interior 
Side Yard 

0 m   0 m   

Minimum Exterior 
Side Yard 

0 m   0 m   

Minimum Rear Yard  0 m   3.755 m   

- 207 -



7603 MAIN STREET, PENTICTON AUG 18, 2022 DEVELOPMENT PERMIT TPC RESPONSE

 
 

Parking   1 space/unit  0.50 spaces/unit (5‐
storeys, 28 Units) 

Bike Parking and Cash‐
in‐Lieu Required 

PARKING  

The proposed number of parking  stalls  represents  the maximum number possible given  site  size and 
considers  target  tenants  for affordable housing and potential commercial use  for  the proposed office 
spaces. In order to maintain a commercial/office use fronting Main Street, the site can only support 14 
parking stalls. MHS intends to supplement the stalls with bike parking and will pursue in‐lieu contributions 
to make up the difference. Of the 28 total units, 14 units would be without a parking stall. MHS is confident 
that with  the deep  affordability of many of  the units  and proximity of  the development  to  services, 
transportation, downtown walkability, and additional bicycle parking, 14 stalls will be sufficient. A parking 
study  completed  in  2021  concurred  those  15  stalls, with  bike  parking  and  additional  transportation 
demand management strategies would adequately meet the needs of all tenants. 

The table below highlights parking ratios of other MHS projects that have been completed in comparison 
with the proposed 603 Main Street Affordable Housing Project. MHS’s Braidwood, Hope Centre, and 731 
Station  projects  all  received municipal  approvals  to  reduce  the number of  parking  stalls  required  by 
bylaws.  

PARKING RATIOS OF OTHER M’AKOLA HOUSING SOCIETY PROJECTS  

Development Site   Units  Number of 
Parking Stalls  Spaces/Unit 

Braidwood Affordable Housing Project, 
Courtenay, BC   35  10  0.29 

Hope Centre Affordable Housing Project, 
Sooke, BC   25  14  0.56 

731 Station Residences Affordable Housing 
Project, Langford, BC   100  116  

(128 required)  0.86 

Proposed 603 Main Street Affordable 
Housing Project, Penticton, BC  28  15  0.53 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

   

CLOSURE  
Based on the surrounding  land uses, close amenities, and  ideal  location, MHS has identified this site as 
ideal for  increased residential density and feel the development permit and variance for the proposed 
development can help meet  the housing needs of Penticton  residents and  the goals of key Penticton 
planning documents.  

We  look  forward  to  the City’s  review of  the proposed application. Should any  further  information or 
clarification be required, please feel free to contact the undersigned.    

Sincerely,  

 

Mark Christian, Project Manager 
M’akola Development Services 
107‐731 Station Ave., Victoria, BC V9B 5R5 
778.265.7489 
mchristian@makoladev.com 
 
Attachments to the letter: 

1. Development Permit Analysis 
2. Completed Application Form  
3. Agency Agreement  
4. Title Search 
5. Site Disclosure Statement  
6. Development Plans 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

- 208 -



88

731 STATION AVE AFFORDABLE HOUSING PROJECT | M’AKOLA HOUSING SOCIETY 

Attachment A: M'akola Housing Society Projects & Design Precedents 
 

 

M’akola Development Services (MDS) is working as a development consultant for M’akola Housing 
Society (MHS) for the design and construction of the mixed use (commercial and residential) Station 
Avenue project in Langford, BC. 

 
The development is a two-phased affordable housing project in downtown Langford designed to 
support urban Indigenous families, Elders/seniors, and singles in need of stable, affordable and high- 
quality housing in the Westshore area. This project is funded by BC Housing’s Provincial Investment in 
Affordable Housing: Aboriginal Housing Initiative (PIAH). 

 
Phase one of the Station Avenue project includes the construction of a six-storey, wood frame building 
consisting of 60 units of self-contained rental units in studio, one-bedroom, two-bedroom, and three- 
bedroom layouts. Approximately, 6,500 sq. ft. of commercial space will be owned and operated by 
Hulitan Family and Community Services Society (HFCSS). HFCSS provides social and emotional support 
through programs and services to Indigenous children, Indigenous youth, and Indigenous families. In 
addition, approximately, 4,000 sq. ft. of commercial space on the ground floor will be used as MDS office 

space. Construction began for Phase One in December 2019 and is anticipated to reach occupancy in 
March 2020. 

 
Phase two will involve the construction of a six-storey development with 40 units of affordable housing 
in a second building at the rear of the site. This project was approved under the 2018 Indigenous Housing 
Funding call and has received full support from BC Housing. 

 
The M’akola Development Services team is responsible for the feasibility analysis, business case 
development, site planning, and project management through construction. 

 

Project Location 
Building Size 
Total Units 
Total Budget 
Project / Occupancy Date 

Langford, BC 
68,222 sq. ft 
60 units 
$42,951,044.87 
2016 – March 2020 

Project Relevance • Design team procurement 
• Project development funding (BC Housing) 
• Pre-development work; development permit; building permit 
• Construction draw management 

Project References Kevin A. Albers, Chief Executive Officer, M’akola Housing Society 
P: 250.590.0204 ext. 3502 
E: kalbers@makola.bc.ca 
Website: http://makola.bc.ca/ 

 
 

2 MHS DESIGN PRECEDENTS 

- 209 -



9603 MAIN STREET, PENTICTON AUG 18, 2022 DEVELOPMENT PERMIT TPC RESPONSE

 
 
 

 

The development at 550 Goldstream Ave is a four-storey, mixed-use building, comprised of residential 
units and commercial office space, which is used for the M’akola administration and development service 
head offices. The building replaced five of the 17 existing townhouses on the property, and now houses 
136 people in the 36 apartment units on the second, third, and fourth floor. The target tenants are urban 
Aboriginal families in need of stable, affordable, high-quality housing in the Westshore area. 

 
M’akola was responsible for the feasibility analysis, business case development, and site planning. The 
feasibility analysis and final business case focused on increasing the density and including a commercial 
component to the housing development. Site planning looked at existing buildings that were being 
retained, and challenging site geography, access, and subdivision. 

 
The successful completion of this project, on time and on budget, demonstrates the success of this model 
for future development projects. 

 
Project Location 
Building Size 
Total Units 
Total Budget 
Project / Occupancy Date 

550 Goldstream Avenue, Langford, BC 
51,000 sq. ft. 
36 units (30 two-bedroom, 6 three-bedroom) 
$13 Million 
August 2014 

550 Goldstream I M’AKOLA HOUSING SOCIETY Project Relevance • Feasibility Analysis 
• Development Consultant 
• Project Manager 
• Capital and Operating Budget 
• RFP & EOI 
• Risk Management 
• Contract Management 

Funding Partners • M’akola Housing Society: $1.25 M (land contribution) 
• M’akola Housing Society: $750,000 (sewer upgrades) 
• City of Langford: Development Cost Charge Reduction (residential – 

$158,400, and commercial – $70,000), Property Tax Exemptions, 
Affordable Housing Fund $200,000 

• BC Housing: $4,163,645 (AHI Grant) 

Project References Kevin A. Albers, Chief Executive Officer, M’akola Group of Societies 
P. 250-590-0204 ext. 110 
E. kalbers@makola.bc.ca 
Website address: http://makoladevelopment.com 

 

 

- 210 -



1010

 
 

 

Hope Centre is a mixed-used housing, education, training, support and social service/thrift store building 
designed to provide layers of complementary support to the homeless and homeless-at-risk youth 
populations of the community of Sooke, with a focus on Aboriginal persons. The ground floor includes 
commercial space, while the remaining three floors is comprised of 25 residential units and 3445 sf of 
non-profit/serve-oriented office space. For this project, MDS was able to help M’akola and Saint Vincent 
de Paul pull together funding/financing from four different levels of government (federal, provincial, 
regional and municipal) as well as some more traditional third party lending in order to create this mixed- 
use partnership project. 

 

Project Location 
Building Size 
Total Units 
Total Budget 
Project / Occupancy Date 

6750 West Coast Road, Sooke, BC 
12,344 sq. ft. 
25 units (18 bachelor, 7 one-bedroom) Commercial Space – 3,122 sf 
$6 Million 
August 2014 

Project Relevance • Housing Study 
• Feasibility Analysis 
• Business Plan 
• Funding/Financing Applications 
• Partnership Protocol 
• Operating and Management Plans/Procedures 
• RFP & EOI 
• Capital and Operating Budget 
• Development Consulting 
• Joint Venture Development 
• Full “Turn-Key” Development 
• Contract management 

Funding Partners • Government of Canada Homelessness Partnership Strategy: $1.8 M 

Hope Centre I M’AKOLA HOUSING SOCIETY  • BC Housing Grant: $1 Million 
• CRD Regional Housing Trust Fund: $375,000 
• District of Sooke: $83,462 
• CMHC Seed Funding: $10,000 
• BC Housing Community Partnership Initiative: Construct and take-out 
• Society of St. Vincent de Paul, Vancouver Island: $375,500 (land 

contribution) 

Project References Kevin A. Albers, Chief Executive Officer, M’akola Group of Societies 
P. 250-590-0204 ext. 110 
E. kalbers@makola.bc.ca 
Website address: http://makoladevelopment.com 

 

 

- 211 -



11603 MAIN STREET, PENTICTON AUG 18, 2022 DEVELOPMENT PERMIT TPC RESPONSE

BRAIDWOOD APARTMENTS I M’AKOLA HOUSING SOCIETY 
 

 

M’akola Housing Society (MHS), in partnership with the City of Courtenay, the Wachiay Friendship 
Centre, and the support of the Comox Valley Regional District, developed a 35-unit affordable housing 
complex for low-income singles and those at risk of homelessness, with a focus on Indigenous peoples, 
in Courtenay, BC. 

 
The high need for adequate and suitable housing in the Comox Valley, as well as MHS’s 19 years of 
experience operating in the region, garnered the project a high level of support from the community at 
large and has become a strategic priority for the City of Courtenay. 

The M’akola Development Services team was responsible for the feasibility analysis, coordination of 
design development, site planning, and project management through construction. In addition, the 
team facilitated partnerships between numerous organizations and collaborated to honour the 
traditional territory of the K’ómoks First Nation. Construction was completed in the Spring of 2019. 

Project Location 
Building Size 
Total Units 
Total Budget 
Project / Occupancy Date 

Courtenay, BC | K’ómoks territory 
18,062 sq. ft. 
35 units 
$7.2M 
2016 – February 2019 

Project Relevance • Feasibility analysis 
• Need and demand study 
• BCH IHI funding application 
• Procurement 
• Partnership building 
• Community engagement 
• Ongoing construction administration services 

Project References Kevin A. Albers, Chief Executive Officer, M’akola Group of Societies 
P. 250-590-0204 ext. 110 
E. kalbers@makola.bc.ca 
Website address: http://makoladevelopment.com 

 
 

- 212 -



1212

3 DEVELOPMENT PERMIT ANALYSIS 

1. Site Planning

5.2.2.0 General Guidelines

White Avenue, the proposed building supports strong street 
definiton by aligning the east and north facades on the respective 
property lines. The ground floor is set back at the building entries 
to provide additional weather protection. The west facade is 
provided with a larger set back to enhance the livability and sense 
of privacy for those suites facing the lane.

G6. Building placement and orientation should respect significant 
public water, mountatin and ridgeline views.

R: The proposed building is not tall enough to enjoy views to 
either lake, however all suites are oriented to take advantage of 
the mountains framing the city.

G7. All designs shall consider Crime Prevention Through 
Environmental Design (CPTED) principles and balance the reduction 
of crime and nuisance opportunities with other objectives to maximize 

Designing in Context

G1. Prior to site design, analysis shall be undertaken to identify 
significant on-site and off-site opportunities and constraints, including 
built and natural elements (e.g., structures, slopes and drainage, 
significant landscape features, etc.)

R: The site of the proposed building is currently an flat empty lot 
devoid of any constructed or natural features.

G2. All site/landscape plans should incorporate the boulevard.

R: The site and landscape plans incorporate the boulevards along 
Main Street and White Avenue. One boulevard tree per 8-12m 
parcel frontage will be provided in accordance with Bylaw 2004-
81, Schedule G, Section 00400-Roads, Section 17.

G3. Private and semi-private open spaces should be designed to 
optimize solar access.

R: The outdoor amenity space is intentionally located on second 
floor of the project in the form of a south-facing courtyard. Sun-
access modeling confirms that the courtyard receives plentiful 
year-round solar access.

G4. Views through to the mountains and the lakes should be carefully 
considered and incorporated into the design of new development

R: The proposed building is not tall enough to enjoy views to 
either lake, however all suites are oriented to take advantage of 
the mountains framing the city.

Framing Space

G5. Siting of buildings should support strong street definition by 
minimizing front yard setbacks while sensitively transitioning to 
neighbourhood building setbacks. 

R: Similar to neighbouring buildings along Main Street and 

the enjoyment of the built environment.

R: The design of the proposed building incorporates CPTED 
principles as follows:

 ⋅  The suites have been oriented facing Main Street, White Avenue 
and the lane.  The resulting"eyes on the street" enhances to sense 
of safety within the public realm.

 ⋅  The private outdoor amenity space is located on the second 
floor. Access is limited to residents of the building. While a tall 
landscape screen located along the south edge of the courtyard is 
intended to visually separate the courtyard from the unattractive 
neighbouring roofscape, it also functions as a security barrier 
between buildings. Suites overlooking the outdoor amenity lend a 
sense of safety to user of the courtyard.

 ⋅  All doors to the building will be equipped with access controls.

- 213 -



13603 MAIN STREET, PENTICTON AUG 18, 2022 DEVELOPMENT PERMIT TPC RESPONSE

 ⋅  The building will be equipped with two exit stairs.  One stair exit 
through the residential lobby. The second stairs exits directly 
into the public realm along White Street. This is considered more 
desirable than having the stair empty into the lane.

 ⋅  The north east corner of the building respects the required 4.5m x 
4.5m visibility triangle.

 ⋅  The parking is located at grade, tucked under the building above, 
and enclosed in a semi-transparent screen. An overhead parkade 
door equipped with access controls will control access to the 
parking area.

G8. Secondary buildings should create comfortable and social, semi-
public and semi-private spaces within interior courtyards and/or side-
yards.

R: The project proposes no secondary buildings. A tall landscape 
screen located along the south edge of the second floor courtyard 
is intended to frame the comfortable amenity space and visually 
separate the courtyard from the unattractive neighbouring 
roofscape.  The screen will be designed to ensure sun access to 
the space is not comprised. 

Prioritizing Pedestrians

G9. Pedestrian connectivity to adjacent properties is encouraged. 
With the exception of private yards, open spaces shall be designed for 
public access and connectivity to adjacent public areas (and publicly-
accessible private spaces).

R: Connectivity to neighbouring properties takes place through 
the public realm. The proposed building will occupy the entire site 
and no open space at grade is proposed.

G10. Development of larger parcels should provide pedestrian 
connections to adjacent public areas and create an effective street-
fronting block scale of 60m-190m.

R: The site is relatively small (28m x 30m) and meets the intent 
effective street fronting scale of of 60m-190m.

G11. Barrier-free pedestrian walkways to primary building entrances 
must be provided from municipal sidewalks, parking areas, storage, 

garbage and amenity areas.

R: The site is relatively flat. Access to all building entries will be 
accommodated using a maximim two percent slope between the 
property line and building entries. 

G12. Where feasible, indicate pedestrian ways with continuity of paving 
treatments/paving materials.

R: The proposed building occupies the entire site. Paving 
treatments within the site be an extention of the public realm 
concrete paving pattern

G13. Entry to ground-level residential units should be no more 
than 1.8m (6.0 ft.) above the grade of adjacent public sidewalks and 
walkways (see Figure G14).

R: All residential suites are located on the upper four floors of the 
project. No residential suites are proposed on the ground floor.

G14. The outdoor space of a residential unit should be raised no more 
than 1.2m (3.9 ft.) above adjacent public sidewalks and a “front stair” 
pedestrian connection shall be provided (see Figure 5-2).

R: All residential suites are located on the upper four floors of the 
project. No residential suites are proposed on the ground floor.

G15. Fencing facing an active public realm should be lowered and 
transparent or semi-transparent.

R: No fencing facing an active public realm is proposed.

Cars and Parking

G16. Site and building access must prioritize pedestrian movement, 
minimize conflict between various modes of transportation and 
optimize use of space:

• Off-street parking and servicing access should be provided 
from the rear lane (where one exists) to free the street for 
uninterrupted pedestrian circulation and boulevard landscaping 
(see Figure 5-4).

R: The site is relatively small and its dimensions make it 
economically unfeasible to construct an underground parkade. In 

lieu, the project proposes parking be located at grade and tucked 
under the building above. The number of stalls is impacted by the 
Owner's need (and City's requirement) to maintain commercial 
continuity along Main Street. To maximize the number of stalls 
provided onsite, a straightforward double-loaded parking aisle is 
proposed with access off White Street.

• Where possible, shared automobile accesses should be 
considered to optimize land use, and to reduce impermeable 
surface coverage and sidewalk crossings.

R: A single parkade access point is proposed.

G17. On-site parking location and design should minimize visual 
impact and provide safe connections for pedestrians:

• Parking between the front of buildings and the street is not 
permitted.

R: The project proposes no parking between the front of the 
building and the street.

• Parking should be located at the rear of buildings/sites.

R: The project proposes all parking be located at-grade, tucked 
under the building above, and adjacent to the lane.

• Shared parking (where varying uses have parking demands 
that peak at different times of the day) is encouraged to reduce 
parking requirements.

R: 1-2 on-site parking stall(s) will be shared among the office 
staffs during the day and tenants at the evening, the remaining 
parking stalls will be reserved for residential use only.

• Outdoor surface parking areas should incorporate pathways that 
provide safe, accessible and comfortable pedestrian connections 
to entries/destinations. 

R: Secure resident parking is provided at-grade. Access to 
the the building's lobby is designed to be safe, accessible and 
comfortable.

G18. Attached parking structures, their access and associated 

components (doorways, ramps, etc.) should be architecturally 
integrated into the building so as to minimize visual impact to the 
public realm.

R: Secure resident parking is provided at-grade. The parking area 
is situated partially tucked under the building and integrated into 
the architecture of the building. 

G19. All multifamily developments should accommodate sustainable 
modes of transportation through:

• Provision of bike parking and/or safe storage of alternative 
transportation/ mobility equipment (bikes, mobility scooters, 
etc.).

R: Bicycle parking, in compliance with the City's requirements, 
will be provided.

• Provision of electric vehicle charging stations.

R: Electric vehicle charging stations, in compliance with the City's 
requirements, will be provided.

• Internal circulation and/or upgrades to adjacent rights-of-way 
to accommodate alternative transportation (e.g., multi-use 
pathways, separated bike lanes, etc.).

R: The proposed building occupies the entire site. No internal 
outdoor circulation is proposed.

- 214 -



1414

Architecture
Design for Our Climate: 

G.20. Designs should respond to Penticton's setting and climate 
through use of:

• passive solar strategies;

R: Commercial storefront glazing is recessed and therefore 
shaded by the building form above. Residential windows will be 
equipped with facade-mounted window shades.

• optimized placement of windows to maximize natural light;

R: The commercial storefront glazing extends from floor to ceiling 
and is expected to allow ample daylight into the commercial.  The 
residential windows are sized to address the need to balance 
dayight access, thermal comfort and energy efficiency. The 
residential corridors on the upper levels are also equipped with 
windows to provide daylighting into the circulation spaces.

• energy-efficient building design;

R: The design is targeting Step Code 3.

• passive solar principles;

R: Commercial storefront glazing is recessed and therefore 
shaded by the building form above. Residential windows will be 
equipped with facade-mounted window shades.

• landscape design and plantings that provide cooling through 
shade in summer months;

R: The street trees will contribute to shading the lower extents of 
the building along Main Street. Planting in the Level 2 courtyard 
will provide shading for courtyard users.

• selecting roof materials to minimize heat loading and increase 
reflectivity; and,

R: High-albedo roofing materials will be specified to manage 
solar heat gain through the roof assembly.

• strategies for cross-ventilation

R: The u-shape building form originated, in part, to optimize the 

opportunity for passive cross-ventilation. Eight of twenty-eight 
suites are positioned to benefit from through-ventilation across 
opposite facades. Another eight of the twenty-eight suites are 
positioned as corner units benefiting from cross-ventilation 
across adjacent facades. All suites, including the remaining 
twelve suites, have access to cross-ventilation utilizing operable 
windows located in the circulation spaces framing the courtyard.

Friendly Faces, Friendly Neighbours (Orientation & Massing)

G21. Orientation of buildings should face public spaces (e.g., street and 
lane) with a preference for ground-oriented types (e.g., a front door for 
everyone or every business)

R: The u-shape building positions all commercial and residential 
suites facing the public realm - Main Street, White Avenue and 
the lane. The design anticipates two commercial tenants.  Each 
is provided with its own entry facing Main Street. The residential 
suites are accessed through a residential lobby facing White 
Avenue. 

G22. Massing of larger buildings should be composed of multiple 
volumes to reduce visual impact on the pedestrian realm

R: The proposed building is relatively small in scale. To address 
the proposed building height concern, the design proposes 
multiple volumes through massing setbacks and a change of 
materials/colour on the upper and lower floors.

G23  Articulatation of building mass should include horizontal (minor) 
setbacks and stepbacks (along upper storeys) to provide visual interest 
and enrich the pedestrian experience.

R: The design proposes massing setbacks and a change of 
materials/colour on the upper and lower floors to provide 
visual interest and enrich the pedestrian experience. The lower 
floor setbacks are intended to also provide enhance weather 
protection.

G24. Street-facing units should utilize a layering of elements – 
including but not limited to street-facing entries, stairs, stoops, 
porches, patios and landscape elements – to create transitions 

between the public (e.g., street, sidewalk), semi-public (e.g., walkway, 
ramp, stair), semi-private (e.g., stoop, balcony) and private areas.

R: All residential suites are located on the upper floors of the 
project. No residential suites are proposed on the ground floor.

G25. Where appropriate, stepped massing should be utilized to 
transition and improve the relationship between developments of 
differing scale. In areas where there is an OCP Land Use Designation 
change, adjacent building heights should not be greater than one-
and-a-half storeys higher than existing adjaent development with 
additional storeys terraced back with a minimum stepback of 3.0 
metres.

R: The proposed building will be located on a vacant corner 
lot and framed largely by older single-storey buildings. Newer 
buildings located directly across White Avenue and the lane west 
of the site are indicative of the potential buildout of this part of the 
downtown. To address the interim condition however, the building 
massing is stepped back at the upper and lower floors to address 
the height differences between the proposed building and its 
existing neighbours.

G26. Building designs should minimize impacts on the privacy of 
adjacent dwellings, including private open spaces.

R: The u-shape building positions all commercial and residential 
suites facing the public realm - Main Street, White Avenue and the 
lane. Adjacent buildings are separated from the proposed building 
by public rights-of-way. The south facing courtyard overlooks 
rooftops of the neighbouring buildings to the south.

Eyes on the Street

G27. Development should activate the public realm (e.g., sidewalks) 
and shared open spaces by placing active uses at street-level.

R: The proposed building activates the public realm by locating 
commercial two units along Main Street. At approximately 12m 
each, the commercial units maintain the granularity commercial 
units found along Main Street. The residential lobby is located 
along the north facade of the building and is intended to continue 

the active building edge around the corner onto White Avenue.

G28. Entries should be visible and clearly identifiable from the fronting 
public street.

R: All building entries face the public realm and are clearly visible 
from the sidewalk. Signage will also be provided at each of the 
entries clearly identifying the respective uses.

G29. Development should orient windows, porches, balconies and 
patios toward the public realm, allowing for casual overlook of parks, 
open spaces, and parking areas.

R: The u-shape building positions all commercial and residential 
suites either Main Street, White Avenue or the lane - providing a 
sense of safety for users of the public realm.

G30. Extensive blank walls (over 5m in length, and including retaining 
walls) along the street should be avoided.

R: The design proposes just one blank wall located adjacent to 
the residential entrance along White Avenue. The 6m long wall 
is intended, in part, to conceal the waste/recycling area from the 
street.

G31. Provide screening (e.g., varied materials/textures, murals, 
greenwalls or vines) on solid walls that exist as a function of an 
internal program (e.g., for privacy, merchandising, etc.)

R: The design proposes to provide screening along White Avenue 
and the lane to conceal, and provide security for, the tuck-under 
parking area. 

- 215 -



15603 MAIN STREET, PENTICTON AUG 18, 2022 DEVELOPMENT PERMIT TPC RESPONSE

different ground plane materials and the incorporation of 
at-grade planting areas near the CRU and office spaces on the 
main floor.

G40. Energy

R: Deciduous tree plantings are incorporated into the streetscape 
design to assist with passive cooling in the summer from the 
shade of their canopies and passive solar gains in the winter 
months when the leaves have dropped.

G41. Softscapes

R: All softscape landscape improvements have been designed 
to meet the Canadian Landscape Standards (the latest version 
of the BC Landscape Standards, in association with the BC 
Society of Landscape Architects and the BC Landscape Nursery 
Association). The plant palette was designed to offer year-round 
interest through foliage and bloom times and includes a mix of 
composition and heights. Soil volumes were a large consideration 
for the plant material, particularly those on the second level 
where weight may be limited. The plant palette also incorporates 
adaptive, drought-tolerant plant choices to reduce water use. 
Synthetic turf is incorporated on the second-floor amenity space 
due to maintenance considerations and structural considerations.

G42. Hardscapes

R: Hardscape materials were selected to create comfortable, 
pedestrian-scale environments and assist in defining public and 
private spaces. These were considered for their maintenance 
requirements, longevity and durability and will complement 
Penticton’s natural setting and the urban setting established 
through the site’s location within the City. 

Corner Lots

G43. Address both fronting streets in a pedestrian-friendly way, 
preferably with pedestrian entrances and/or windows on both facades.

R: The proposed building will be constructed on a corner lot. The 
u-shape form positions all commercial and residential suites 
facing Main Street, White Avenue and the lane.  Setbacks in the 
massing at the upper and lower floors is intended to provide 
visual interest and enrich the pedestrian experience. The lower 
floor setbacks are intended to also provide enhance weather 
protection.

The proposed building further activates the public realm by 
locating commercial two units with floor-to-soffit glazing along 
Main Street. At approximately 12m each, the commercial units 
maintain the granularity commercial units found along Main 
Street. The residential lobby is located along the north facade of 
the building and is intended to continue the active building edge 
around the corner onto White Avenue.

G44. Support wayfinding by framing views (or open space) and/or 
utilizing landmark architectural elements (if appropriate).

R: The site is relatively small in area. All building entries face the 
public realm and are clearly visible from the sidewalk. Signage 
will also be provided at each of the entries clearly identifying the 
respective uses.

G45. Utilize corner entrances, angled facades at intersections, and 
stepped designs in areas of higher pedestrian traffic and commercial 
uses. Where open space is proposed for a corner lot, amenities 
like seating, drinking fountains, and garbage receptacles should be 
incorporated into open space designs.

R: In lieu of a full-height chamfered building form at the 
intersection of main Street and White Avenue, the design 
proposes to incorporate a 4.5m x 4.5m visibility triangle that 
extends to the underside of the the third level. The third and 
fourth floors extend to the property line forming a 90 degree 
corner.  The fifth floor steps back but maintains the 90 degree 
profile. The unchamfered form enhances the livability of the 

Special Considerations
R: There is only one existing tree on site, within the public 
boulevard, which appears to be in poor health/condition. New 
tree plantings are proposed in place of this existing tree and shall 
include larger tree pits for adequate soil volume to encourage 
healthy tree growth.

G34. Tree planting

R: New boulevard tree plantings have been proposed for both the 
street frontages of Main Street and White Avenue West to provide 
shading and are spaced at 8.0m on-centre. Tree plantings include 
an underground tree pit to ensure there is adequate soil volume 
to encourage healthy tree growth. These will be irrigated with a 
fully automatic irrigation system.

Functional Use of Landscapes

G36. Habitat: designs should provide for and/or enhance value (e.g., 
birds, pollinators, etc.) through the use of selected plant material 
(food & nutrients) and/or structural/grading improvements (e.g., 
hibernacula; pools, etc.).

R: Habitat value is somewhat limited due to the urban nature 
of the project; however, plant selection includes varieties that 
encourage pollinator species.

G37. Stormwater management: mitigate impacts of runoff by diverting 
stormwater to infiltration galleries or other appropriate green 
infrastructure. 

R: The incorporation of the amenity space on the second level 
and boulevard tree plantings will assist in mitigating stormwater 
runoff.

G38. Screening & Buffering

R: Screening of the ground floor parking area will be achieved 
using an opaque fence along the property perimeter. The second 
level amenity space will be buffered from the adjacent property 
using raised planters and an opaque or semi-opaque guardrail.

G39. Defining the Public and Private Realms

R: Public and private realms are thoughtfully defined with 

Landscape Architecture
Design with Nature

G32. Stream and Riparian Protection

• Sites adjacent to creeks, lakes and wetlands should retain or 
enhance fish and/or riparian habitat, through:

 i. Retension, enhancement and restoration of trees and shrubs that 
shade streams and stabilize soil, with a preference for native species;

 ii. Management of post-development total yearly flow, magnitude (in 
individual events), and duration to mimic pre-development conditions; 
and,

 iii. Management/restriction of access to protect stream banks and 
meet Riparian Area Regulations (RAR)

R: The 603 Main Street project is not located near streams or 
riparian areas so this design guideline does not apply.

G33. Water Conservation and Plant Maintenance: Xeriscaping, 
Irrigation & Mulching

• Employ xeriscaping principles (see Glossary) in landscape design 
that reduce the need for supplemental water from irrigation.

• Employ strategies such as stormwater management reuse 
(including rain gardens and water reclamation) to minimize 
impact on infrastructure and the use of potable water.

R: The soft landscape improvements proposed for the project 
incorporate xeriscape principles, including irrigation through a 
fully automatic, subsurface drip irrigation system and adaptive, 
drought-tolerant plant choices to reduce water use. Furthermore, 
all planting beds utilize a natural wood mulch surface to retain 
soil moisture.

G34. Tree retention

• New development should retain, where possible, existing mature 
and native trees and protect their root systems;

• Pre- and post-development tree surveys are required must be 
undertaken.

- 216 -



1616

residential corner suites.

Public Art

G46. Opportunities for the inclusion of public art should be explored in 
public and semi-public open spaces, especially plazas.

R: The applicant will work with the City to identify opportunities 
for public art inclusion.

G47. Historical references should be carefully and collaboratively 
chosen.

R: The design maintains the streetwall character of the downtown 
core, and at approximately 12m each, the commercial units 
maintain the granularity commercial units found along Main 
Street. The building form and materiality draw inspiration 
from more contemporary precedents, not unlike other recently 
constructed projects in the downtown core.

Lighting

G48. Lighting shall be provided for all building entrances, walkways, 
driveways, parking areas and loading areas and should be sufficient to 
provide clear orientation, personal safety and site security, including 
allowing for overlook from adjacent buildings. 

• The scale and intensity of lighting should be adapted to its 
setting and application: 

R: The proposed building occupies the entire site. Lighting located  
in the soffit above the commercial and residential storefronts 
will supplement the street lighting along Main Street and White 
Avenue. The scale and intensity of lighting will be designed to 
meet the intent of the OCP. 

• Lighting design shall prioritize pedestrian-scaled lighting while 
ensuring vehicular access and parking is sufficiently lit for safe 
maneuvering;

R: Lighting located in the soffit above the commercial and 
residential storefronts will provide pedestrian-scaled lighting 
along the storefront facades. The tuck-under parking area will 
be illuminated using soffit lighting - similer to that used in the 

commercial soffits.  The courtyard amenity will be illuminated 
with low-level lighting. 

• Light fixtures should utilize “cut-off” (zero intensity at or above 
an angle of 90°) luminaries to minimize glare;

R: All exterior light fixtures will utilize cut-off housing to avoid 
light pollution.

• Warmer light sources (<4000k) are strongly encouraged.

R: Warmer light sources will be provided.

G49. Minimize light pollution through the use of full cut-off lighting, 
avoiding light reflectance, and directing lighting downwards. 
Exceptions may be made for signage and architectural lighting (e.g., 
enhancing special features or aesthetic qualities).

R: All exterior light fixtures will utilize cut-off housing to avoid 
light pollution.

G50. Avoid lighting that illuminates streams, wetlands, lakes and other 
natural areas.

R: The site of the proposed building is not located near any 
streams, wetlands, lakes, or other natural areas.

G51. Avoid negative light impacts on neighbours

R: All exterior light fixtures will utilize cut-off housing to avoid 
light pollution.

Signage

G52. Signage should complement overall form and character as an 
extension of associated building and landscape designs.

R: Building signage will complement the overall form and 
character of the building.

G53. All signage shall comply to the City of Penticton’s Sign Bylaw, 
(which regulates the number, size, type, form, appearance and 
location of signs).

R: Building signage will comply to the City's Sign Bylaw.

Utilities, Mechanical services and Servicing:

G54. Mechanical/Utility cabinets and transformer pads (units) shall be 
located at the rear of the property, behind the building. 

R: The proposed building will be equipped with a pad-mounted 
transformer located in the southwest corner of the site and 
accessed from the lane.

G55. Where this is unachievable, units may be located at the edge of 
the front yard and must be incorporated into landscaped areas and 
screened from the street. 

R: The proposed building will be equipped with a pad-mounted 
transformer located in the southwest corner of the site and 
accessed from the lane.

G56. Units shall not obstruct private views onto public space that 
might otherwise provide safety through passive surveillance. 

R: The proposed building will be equipped with a pad-mounted 
transformer located in the southwest corner of the site and 
accessed from the lane and will not obscure private views onto 
public spaces.

G57. Units shall not be installed in in riparian setbacks (SPEA) and 
Environmental Protection areas

R: The site of the proposed building is not located near any 
riparian areas.

Waste Management 

G58. Garbage/recycling areas and other similar structures should be 
located out of public view in areas that mitigate noise impacts and 
which do not conflict with pedestrian traffic,

R: Waste and recycling will be accommodated in a enclosed 
space within the tuck-under parking area concealed from public 
view.  The room is located as to avoid any potential conflict with 
pedestrian traffic.

G59. Garbage and recycling bins should be contained within screened 
enclosures that are coordinated with the overall design.

R: Waste and recycling will be accommodated in a enclosed space 
within the tuck-under parking area and inccorporated into the 
overall design of the building.

G60. Clear access to refuse/recycling areas must be provided.

R: Tenants will access the the waste/recycling room from the 
tuck-under parking area.

Fences:

G61. Fencing located along a street edge should be low and/or not 
create a solid barrier (i.e. it should be visually transparent). 

R: The design proposes no fencing in the project. A tall screen 
partially concealing the tuck-under parking area extends the 
entire length of the lane and the western portion of the site facing 
White Avenue. The design of the screen will complement the 
overall form and character of the building.

G62. Fencing along the street edge should be supplemented with low 
profile landscape plantings.

R: The screen concealing the parking area from White Avenue is 
intended to complement the building form and character.  It is not 
intended to appear as a fence. 

G63. All plans should show intended fencing.

R: The drawings indicate the extent of site screening.

- 217 -



17603 MAIN STREET, PENTICTON AUG 18, 2022 DEVELOPMENT PERMIT TPC RESPONSE

5.3.2.7 Multifamily Residential Guidelines

Site Planning
Framing Space

MF1. All multifamily developments should incorporate community 
amenity spaces that provide opportunity for recreation and play 
and address the needs of all age groups likely to reside within the 
development. 

R: The u-shape building creates a south-facing courtyard at 
the second level that provides outdoor amenity space for the 
residents. The amenity will provide opportunities for leisure and 
play for residents of all ages.

MF2. In an effort to promote community and social sustainability, 
multifamily developments should exhibit a preference for courtyard 
forms with views into them from ground oriented ground floor units. 

R: The u-shape building creates a south-facing courtyard at 
the second level that provides outdoor amenity space for the 
residents. The courtyard is partially framed by the internal 
circulation spaces accessing the suites. The circulation spaces 
are provided with windows that bring daylight to the corridors and 
offer views into the shared amenity space. Eight of the suites will 
also enjoy direct views into the courtyard.

MF3. Amenity spaces should incorporate vegetation for the purposes 
of active and passive recreation and/or visual interest, and incorporate 
safe play areas in interior courtyards.

R: The courtyard will be provided with vegetation in raised 
planters framing a flexible open space. The open space will be 
provided with paving and furnishings that supports both active 
and passive recreation.

Parking

MF4. Visitor parking should be:

• in public view,

R: Residential visitor parking will be provided within the tuck-
under parking area.

• easily accessible near the main entry to the site,

R: Access to the parking area is located near the residential 
lobby.

• clearly indicated by pavement markings and/or signs

R: Visitor parking stalls will be clearly marked. 

Attractive Entries

MF6. Entrances to apartment lobbies should be connected to adjacent 
sidewalks and provide seating, as well as clear pedestrian-oriented 
signage. Public art is also encouraged.

R: The residential entry is located on, and will be clearly 
visible from, White Avenue. Signage and seating adjacent to the 
residential entry will be provided.

Tall Buildings

R: At five stories, the proposed building is not considered a tall 
building.

Architecture

Special Considerations

5.3.3.7 Commercial and Mixed Use Guidelines

Site Planning
Framing Space

CM1. Retail building frontages:

• shall meet the sidewalk at grade;

R: Two commercial units are anticipated along Main Street. Both 
are located at grade and directly accessible from the public 
realm.

• are encouraged to be built to the property line so that a 
continuous commercial street frontage is maintained;

R: Columns from the building face above meet grade at the 
property line lending continuity to the commercial street frontage 
along Main Street. The glazing face of the commercial units and 
residential lobby is setback from the property line.  The intent is 
to allow for enhanced weather protection for pedestrians, passive 
solar shading of the storefront glazing, and add to help create 
visual interest and enrich the pedestrian experience. 

• may be setback at a maximum of 4.0m from the property line to 
allow for an active outdoor use such as a courtyard or patio, or to 
respond to a building setback from an adjacent property, where 
necessary (see Figure 5-18).

R: The glazing face of the commercial units and residential lobby 
is setback approximately 2m from the property line. In addition 
to providing the benefits above, this outdoor space also provides 
an opportunity for potential cafe seating or commercial sidewalk 
displays.

• may feature outdoor displays and patios provided a minimum 
2.0m wide clear pedestrian zone within the public sidewalk is 
maintained. 

R: The full width of the sidewalks along Main Street and White 
Avenue is proposed to remain as existing.

CM2. Plazas

R: The proposed building occupies the entire site. No street-side 
plazas are proposed.

CM3. Mixed-use developments require thoughtful consideration to 

create synergies in mix and placement of uses.

• Mixed-use buildings should be designed with compatible uses, 
with more public uses (e.g., retail, commercial) on the ground 
floors fronting high pedestrian traffic areas and more private 
uses (e.g., residential, office) on upper floors or along quieter 
streets.

R: The design proposes commercial units at grade along Main 
Street and a residential lobby along White Avenue. The residential 
lobby provides access to the residential suites occupying the four 
upper floors.

• Mixed-use developments should be ground-oriented and should 
address, activate and, where setbacks allow, expand the public 
realm.

R: The frontage of the commercial units along Main Street and 
frontage of the residential lobby along White Avenue are setback 
from their respective property lines, effectively expanding the 
public realm onto the site.

• Mixed-use developments require additional consideration for 
resident amenity spaces within and/or adjacent to buildings.

R: The design proposes a private outdoor amenity space in a 
south facing courtyard located on the second level.

Parking

CM4. Locate parking areas to the rear or interior of a site rather than 
between the street and building.

R: The design proposes to locate the parking area under the 
building but at-grade between the commercial units and the lane.  
The parking will not be visible from Main Street.

- 218 -



1818

CM5. Support a “Park Once” approach by locating and connecting 
parking to the greater pedestrian network. 

R: 1-2 on-site parking stall(s) will be shared among the office 
staffs during the day and tenants at the evening, the remaining 
parking stalls will be reserved for residential use only. The 
downtown location of the project allow end-users to access to 
various facilities conveniently in a walkable distance.

CM6. Provide off-street parking access from secondary streets if lane 
access is not possible.

R: The design proposes to locate access to the parking area from 
White Avenue to maximize the number of onsite parking stalls.

Friendly Faces (Massing and Articulation)

CM7. Small Frontages: retail bays shall be no wider than 15 metres 
in order to create or maintain a fine-grained pattern of shops. A 
maximum spacing of 10 metres for entrances is desired along the key 
pedestrian-oriented high streets. 

R: Columns from the building face above meet grade at the 
property line lending continuity to the commercial street frontage 
along Main Street. The columns are spaced at approximately 6m 
apart lending to the continuity of granularity of frontages along 
Main Street.  The face of the commercial units is setback from the 
property line. The design anticipates two commercial units. The 
frontage length of the commercial units is approximately 12m.

CM8. Building Projections: building projections that do not incorporate 
living space (e.g., roof overhangs, cornices and entry features) may 
encroach up to 1.25 metres into street right of way, provided that they 
are no less than 2.75 metres above the sidewalk

R: No projections within 2.75m above the sidewalk are proposed.

Commercial Frontages

CM9. Clearly signed and generously sized entries to indicate primary 
pedestrian access.

R: The commercial and residential entries are intended to enliven 
the pedestrian realm through the use of continuous storefront 
glazing. The entries will be clearly signed and equipped with 
double doors.

CM10. Visual connection to the store interior maintained through at 
least 75% glazing along the primary store frontage. Windows shall be 
transparent and clear of obstructions (e.g., posters, decorative decals, 
reflective and highly tinted glass, etc.) looking onto display materials 
and/or active uses.

R: The design targets 100% glazing. The commercial storefronts 
and residential will be equipped with clear glazing that spans 
from floor to soffit and extends the entire length of of the 
commercial units and wrapping the corner to capture the 
residential lobby.

Architecture
CM11. Outdoor spaces that serve to complement the street realm (e.g., 
street-side plazas, outdoor eating and cafe seating areas).

R: The frontage of the commercial units along Main Street and 
frontage of the residential lobby along White Avenue are setback 
from their respective property lines, effectively expanding the 
public realm onto the site.

CM12. Blank walls should be no greater than 20% of the storefront 
along the primary store façade; secondary façades should be no 
greater than 50% blank.

• Where blank walls exist as a function of a building’s internal 
program (e.g., merchandising and/or “back of house”), 
opportunities for creating interest shall be explored, including: 
murals, architectural design features, etc

R: No blank walls along Main Street facade are proposed. One 
blank wall concealing the waste/recycling area is proposed 
along White Avenue is proposed. This wall is less than 50% of 
the White Avenue frontage. The wall will be incorporated into the 
architectural expression of the building.

Weather Protection

CM13. Awnings and canopies are encouraged on all buildings with 
street-oriented retail at grade to form a sheltered environment for 
pedestrians. Other commercial, light industrial and multifamily 
apartment residential uses shall have awnings overtop of main 
entrances.

R: Columns from the building face above meet grade at the 
property line lending continuity to the commercial street 
facades along Main Street and White Avenue. The frontage of 
the commercial units along Main Street and frontage of the 
residential lobby along White Avenue are setback from their 
respective property lines., The resulting arcade is intended, in 
part, to offer weather protection for pedestrians.

CM14. Design awnings and canopies as an extension of the 
architectural expression of the building façade.

R: The design proposes no awnings and canopies at the 

commercial frontages. The facade mounted window shades is a 
tentative feature for the residential suites.

CM15. Canopies should have a minimum vertical clearance of 2.75m 
measured from the sidewalk. Canopies should preferably extend out 
over the sidewalk by at least 1.8m while maintaining a minimum 0.6 m 
setback from the outer face of the curb.

R: No projections within 2.75m above the sidewalk are proposed. 

CM16. Placement of awnings and canopies should balance weather 
protection with daylight penetration. Avoid opaque canopies that run 
the full length of façades.

R: The design proposes no awnings and canopies at the 
commercial frontages.

Signage

CM17. Notwithstanding the City of Penticton’s Sign Regulations 
Bylaw, the following are preferred or acceptable types of commercial 
signage: 

R: The proposed signage will be developed to meet the intent of 
the OCP.

CM18. Notwithstanding the City of Penticton’s Sign Regulations 
Bylaw, the following the following are strongly discouraged types of 
commercial signage:

R: The proposed signage will be developed to meet the intent of 
the OCP.

CM19. Signage on commercial buildings shall clearly identify uses and 
business name and be pedestrian-oriented 

R: The proposed signage will be developed to meet the intent of 
the OCP.

CM20. Signage directing traffic to parking shall be provided and visible 
from the street

R: The proposed signage will be developed to meet the intent of 
the OCP.

- 219 -



19603 MAIN STREET, PENTICTON AUG 18, 2022 DEVELOPMENT PERMIT TPC RESPONSE

Integrated Lighting, Signage and Weather Protection Design

CM21. A signage and lighting program for commercial developments 
should be designed, with signs, lighting, and weather protection 
architecturally integrated from the outset. The signage and lighting 
plan should be provided with the Development Permit application

R: The proposed signage will be developed to meet the intent of 
the OCP.

Live / Work (Home Occupation)

CM22. Building Interface - live/work units may serve as gallery or 
retail space for residents. In such instances, the “work” portion of the 
unit should front the street.

R: The design does not propose inclusion of live/work studios.

CM23. Flexible Space - live/work units should have a minimum floor to 
floor height at-grade of 4.0m in order to provide workspaces that offer 
flexibility for such diverse uses as retail operations, graphic and visual 
arts, or small-scale manufacturing.

R: The design does not propose inclusion of live/work studios.

CM24. Buildings containing live/work uses should be identifiable by 
the design of frontages.

R: The design does not propose inclusion of live/work studios.

5.4.1.7 Downtown Guidelines

Site Planning
Framing Space

DT1. Public spaces should be designed to accommodate various needs 
for seasonal use and for all times of the day and night with appropriate 
consideration of public safety and health.

R: The proposed building occupies the entire site. No on-site 
publicly accessible space is proposed.

DT2. Temporary parks are encouraged to animate vacant areas of the 
Downtown.

R: The proposed building occupies the entire site. No vacant site 
area will remain once construction starts.

DT3. Pocket parks and plazas in the downtown are encouraged to 
increase social spaces and vegetation in the Downtown.

R: The proposed building occupies the entire site. No on-site 
publicly accessible space is proposed.

Special Considerations
Weather Protection

DT4. Awnings and canopies are encouraged on all buildings with 
street-oriented retail at grade to form a sheltered environment for 
pedestrians. Other commercial, and multifamily apartment residential 
uses shall have awnings overtop of main entrances.

R: Columns from the building face above meet grade at the 
property line lending continuity to the commercial street 
facades along Main Street and White Avenue. The frontage of 
the commercial units along Main Street and frontage of the 
residential lobby along White Avenue are setback from their 
respective property lines., The resulting arcade is intended, in 
part, to offer weather protection for pedestrians.

DT5. Awnings and canopies should be designed an extension of the 
architectural expression of the building façade.

R: The design proposes no awnings and canopies at the 
commercial frontages.

DT6. Canopies should have a minimum vertical clearance of 2.75m 
measured from the sidewalk. Canopies should preferably extend out 
over the sidewalk by at least 1.8 m while maintaining a minimum 0.6 
m setback from the outer face of the curb.

R: No projections within 2.75m above the sidewalk are proposed. 

DT7. Placement of awnings and canopies should balance weather 
protection with daylight penetration. Opaque canopies that run the full 
length of façades should be avoided.

R: The design proposes no awnings and canopies at the 
commercial frontages.

Signage, Lighting, Furniture, Public Art

DT8. Incorporate branding for Downtown character areas (see 
Penticton’s Downtown Plan) through design of signage, lighting, 
furniture, public art designs / standards.

R: The applicant will work with the City to determine how the 
proposed building can support the intent of the OCP.

DT9. Lighting, signage, furniture and public art should be designed 

and located to enhance the entertainment experience and safety of the 
Downtown at night.

R: The applicant will work with the City to determine how the 
proposed building can support the intent of the OCP.

DT10. Wayfinding signage orienting pedestrians to specific amenities 
and areas of interest (features, attractions and businesses) should 
be incorporated into larger/ corner lot developments and in public 
places.

R: The applicant will work with the City to determine how the 
proposed building can support the intent of the OCP.

- 220 -



2020

R: Mechanical penthouse shrunk below 10% of roof area to meet 
with ZBL requirement. Additional outdoor mechanical space 
provided with louver screening. See table below for detail.

Roof area 10% of roof 
area

Mechanical 
penthouse

Outdoor 
mechanical 
space (open to 
above)

508.7 sqm 50.9 sqm 46.8 sqm 27.2 sqm

6. Parking spaces that are adjacent to walls must add 0.3m to the 
width to allow doors to open and close (ZBL Section 6.1.5.2). 

R: Noted, refer to the revised G/F plan submitted.

APPENDIX A TECHNICAL PLANNING COMMITTEE RESPONSES 

TPC Comments dated Jul 15, 2022

Planning Department

1. Property is within airport flight path, please complete the 
Aeronautical Assessment form for obstacle notice and assessment for 
Transport Canada (see attached).  

R: Noted. See attachment #1.

2. The compliance table indicates there is 1 onsite and 1 offsite 
accessible parking space. Please clarify what this means. Parking 
requirements must be provided on site.  

R: This is an error in applicant wording in the compliance table.
Only 1 onsite accessible parking space is provided. It only meets 
50% of the accessibility requirement as per zoning by law. 

3. Planning continues to review the Development Permit submission, 
specifically regarding the proposed parking. Staff will review and 
provide an update at the meeting scheduled for July 20th, 2022 with 
the applicant.  

R: Noted.

4. The letter of intent mentions a parking study that was done in 2021. 
Is it possible to receive a copy of this if we have not already

R: See attachment #2 - parking study, dated Jun 15, 2021.

5. The mechanical equipment on the roof area exceeds 10% (ZBL 
Section 4.4) of the roof area and would be required to be counted in 
height. It is recommended that this be reviewed to determine if it can 
be shrunk to not exceed 10%. 

7. Is there an opportunity to add more bicycle parking spaces? This 
may assist with the substantial vehicle parking request. There is 
also a provision to allow for 1 parking space to be provided with 5 
additional bike spaces provided on site. We often see this utilized to 
remove 1 of the cash in lieu spaces, and also provides more bicycle 
parking on site. This may be something to consider. 

R: 5 additional short-term bicycle parking space in front of CRU 
provided for 1 parking stall reduction. Only exterior short-term 
bicycle parking space can be accommodated.

8. Supply a material board (digital) for the proposal to detail the 
colours and materials proposed. 

R: See attachment #3, material board.

- 221 -



21603 MAIN STREET, PENTICTON AUG 18, 2022 DEVELOPMENT PERMIT TPC RESPONSE

9. The proposal doesn’t appear to include any private outdoor space 
(i.e. through balconies). Were balconies considered in the design 
process? 

R: As discussed in meeting on July 20, 2022 with the City of 
Penticton, balconies are not included, but rather a large, central 
courtyard will be implemented as a shared outdoor amenity 
space. The courtyard will feature outdoor seating, plantings and 
space for building tenants to gather. Costs, building design and 
size where all deciding factors to propose a courtyard amenity 
space.

10. Is there an access from the parkade to the stairs and residential 
units above without having to leave the parkade to the street to come 
back in the main lobby entrance? 

R: Refer to the revised Ground floor plan submitted.

Parks Department

1. Plans should show continuous soil trench underneath all tree wells 
and sidewalk with structural soil (see attached sketch). 

Noted and refer to revised landscape plans.

2. Update landscape plan to show the downtown boulevard tree spec 
S-R18b (see attached). 

Noted and refer to revised landscape plans.

3. Landscape plan should include a detail/section drawing of the 
continuous soil trench.  

Noted and refer to revised landscape plans.

Electrical Department

1. Is there gate in front of the transformer?  LOOKING FOR 4M X 4M 
for the transformer, show dimensions on the drawing.

R: A PMT with 4m x 4m clearance provided. Parking stalls has 
been reduced from 15 to 14 in consequence.

2. Show existing overhead lines and poles on civil plans. Reference 
clearances to overhead lines. 

R: See attachment #4, civil plans.

- 222 -



2222

TPC Comments dated Nov 03, 2020

Planning Department

1. Staff are concerned with the level of detail provided.

R: Please refer to the attached Development Permit application.

2. The following items have been discussed by the planning team:

2.a At this time, staff are comfortable supporting a height increase to 
a maximum of 5 storeys (no additional space above). Increasing the 
height of building would contribute to the parking ratio concern.

R: The proposed building height remains at 5 storeys.

2.b Staff are concerned with the detail of the plans provided, 
however we will move forward and place a significant emphasis on 
the Development Permit process. The expectation for plans at this 
application stage will be significantly higher, and we look forward 
to working with the applicant and their agents to complete the final 
design of the structure.

R: The attached Development Permit application comprises of 
Development Permit level of drawings.

2.b.i The Economic Prosperity and Development Services Advisory 
Committee provided support for the requested increase in height, 
provided that the design of the building fits with the existing 
streetscape of Main Street and is of a high design quality.

R: The design proposes massing setbacks and a change of 
materials/colour on the upper and lower floors to provide 
visual interest and enrich the pedestrian experience. The lower 
floor setbacks are intended to also provide enhance weather 
protection. The proposed material and colour palette is similar 
to that of newer buildings recently constructed in the Downtown 
area. 

2.c Staff are very concerned with the parking ratio that has been 
provided with the proposal. The level of parking provided is 
significantly under the requirements of the Zoning Bylaw. We are also 
concerned adequate justification has not been provided.

R: The site is relatively small and its dimensions make it 
economically unfeasible to construct an underground parkade. In 
lieu, the project proposes parking be located at grade and tucked 
under the building above. The number of stalls is impacted by the 
Owner's need (and City's requirement) to maintain commercial 
continuity along Main Street. To maximize the number of stalls 
provided onsite, a straightforward double-loaded parking aisle 
is proposed with access off White Street. The covering letter 
prepared by M'akola proposes an alternate strategy to meet the 
parking requirements for this project.

3. With the above items of a high importance, staff are willing to move 
forward to Council on November 17th with a positive recommendation 
for the application, as we understand the limited timelines associated 
with funding opportunities for the proposal. In order to move forward 
with a positive recommendation, staff will be including the following 
conditions to the staff recommendation:

3.a Require that the Development Permit be subject to Council 
approval. Further, within the Development Permit application, a strong 
alignment with the Development Permit Guidelines must be clearly 
demonstrated.

R: The attached Development Permit application provides 
a response to all the relevant requirements found in the 
Development Permit Area Guidelines of the Official Community 
Plan Bylaw No. 2019-08.

3.b The parking ratio and unit counts will be reviewed in further detail 
at the Development Permit application, and will require significant 
justification to be provided from the applicant.

R: Please refer to the attached covering letter prepared by 
M'akola.  The letter proposes an alternate strategy to meet the 
parking requirements for this project.

4. Moving forward to Council on November 17th, Staff would request 
the following items:

4.a Update to the letter of intent

 i. Place emphasis on the final design of the building being a high 
standard.

R: Please refer to the attached precedent projects developed by 
M'akola. The precedents demonstrate a commitment to quality 
their projects in terms of both resident livebility and as thoughtful 
additions to the context they are constructed 

 ii. Further parking justification.

R: Please refer to the attached covering letter prepared by 
M'akola.  The letter proposes an alternate strategy to meet the 
parking requirements for this project.

iii. Reflect the maximum height of request to be 5 storeys.

R: The proposed building remains at 5 storeys.

4.b Provide examples of existing M’akola developments in the province 
(photos and building precedents).

R: Please refer to the attached precedent projects developed by 
M'akola.

4.c Parking ratios of other M’akola developments.

R: Please refer to the attached covering letter prepared by 
M'akola. The letter includes a table comparing thie proposed 
building with other projects they have developed.

4.d Indicate total height of building to the top of the structure – this is 
required to prepare the variance permit. Note that flat, sloped roofs 
are measured to the top of the building. Peaked roofs are measured to 
the mid-point.

R: Please refer to the attached technical drawings. The building 
height is identified on the exterior elevations.

4.e Coloured elevations would be beneficial to have provided, although 
are not required.

R: Please refer to the attached Development Permit application. 
Coloured renderings from the public realm are included in the 
application. The technical drawings include coloured exterior 
elevations.

4.f Further, a parking study to provide further justification for the 
proposal would be beneficial, although it is understood this may ot be 
available until the December 8th Public Hearing to be presented to 
Council.

R: Please refer to the attached covering letter prepared by 
M'akola. The letter includes a table comparing thie proposed 
building with other projects they have developed.

5. Addressing will be reviewed at the building permit stage. The 
proposed dwelling will be assigned an address, in accordance with 
Civic Address and Street Naming Bylaw No. 2018-51.

R: The application identifies the current street address for 
the site. The applicant understands that the address(s) will be 
confirmed during the Building Permit review process.t

- 223 -



PUBLIC ARCHITECTURE + COMMUNICATION INC

1495 FRANCES ST.
VANCOUVER BC  V5L 1Z1
TEL 604 738 4323

PUBLIC would like to acknowledge that the land 
on which we gather is the unceded, traditional, 
and ancestral territories of the Musqueam, Squa-
mish, and Tsleil-Waututh Nations. 

INFO@PUBLICDESIGN.CA
PUBLICDESIGN.CA

Thank you for your interest. For more information, 
please contact us at our studio.

- 224 -



 

 

#501-740 Hillside Avenue 
Victoria, BC V8T 1Z4 
 
T  250.388.9877 
F  250.388.9879 
wattconsultinggroup.com 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

603 MAIN STREET, PENTICTON 

Parking Study 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   
Author: Filippos Gkekas, MCRP, MSc  Reviewer: Tania Wegwitz, RPP, MCIP 
   

January 5, 2021 
File No. 2942.B01 

Attachment F - Parking Study - 225 -



   
              

 
603 Main Street, Penticton  i 
Parking Study  

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

1.0 INTRODUCTION ................................................................................................... 1 

1.1 Subject Site .................................................................................................................... 1 

1.2 Site Characteristics & Policy Context ..................................................................... 2 

2.0 PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT ............................................................................ 6 

2.1 Land Use ......................................................................................................................... 6 

2.2 Proposed Parking Supply .......................................................................................... 6 

3.0 PARKING REQUIREMENT .................................................................................. 7 

3.1 Vehicle Parking ............................................................................................................. 7 

3.2 Bicycle Parking.............................................................................................................. 7 

4.0 EXPECTED PARKING DEMAND ....................................................................... 8 

4.1 Affordable Rental Housing ....................................................................................... 8 

4.2 Summary of Expected Parking Demand ............................................................ 11 

5.0 ON-STREET PARKING ...................................................................................... 12 

6.0 TRANSPORTATION DEMAND MANAGEMENT.......................................... 14 

7.0 CONCLUSIONS................................................................................................... 14 

8.0 RECOMMENDATIONS ...................................................................................... 18 

 
  
 

- 226 -



   
              

 
603 Main Street, Penticton  1 
Parking Study  

1.0 INTRODUCTION 
Watt Consulting Group (WATT) was retained by M’akola Housing Society (MHS) to 
conduct a parking study for the proposed affordable multi-family housing development 
at 603 Main Street, (henceforth referred to as the “Affordable Housing Development”) in 
the City of Penticton, BC. The purpose of this study is to [a] review and document the 
City of Penticton’s minimum parking supply requirements, as well as related Official 
Community Plan policies that support increased density and sustainable transportation, 
and [b] assess the adequacy of the proposed parking supply by considering parking 
demand at representative sites and parking demand adjustment factors.  
 

1.1 SUBJECT SITE 
The proposed development sits at the corner of Main Street and White Avenue. The 
rear of the site backs onto a laneway which will be utilized for off-street parking. The 
location of the proposed development is shown in Figure 1. 
 

  FIGURE 1. SUBJECT SITE 

Subject Site 

- 227 -



   
              

 
603 Main Street, Penticton  2 
Parking Study  

1.2 SITE CHARACTERISTICS & POLICY CONTEXT 
The following provides information regarding services and transportation options in 
proximity to the development. In addition, the City of Penticton’s planning policies 
pertaining to sustainable transportation and parking management are summarized. 
 

 

COMMUNITY POLICIES 
The City of Penticton’s Official Community Plan (OCP) provides policies 
and objectives to guide decisions on planning and land use management. 
Most recently updated in August 2019, the OCP contains a number of 
25-year goals in 15 distinct topic areas that give expression to 
Penticton’s sustainability commitment and work toward the achievement 
of long-term sustainability goals. Section 4.2 of the OCP (Transportation 
and Infrastructure) contains a number of goals and policy directions to 
reduce overall dependency on single occupancy vehicles and prioritize 
sustainable modes of travel including walking, cycling, and transit, among 
others. 
 
As identified in Section 4.2.7 of the City of Penticton Official Community 
Plan (OCP)1, the City should consider reductions in parking requirements 
where they: 
 

4.2.7.6 Support the expansion of car share opportunities by 
encouraging their provision in multifamily developments and by 
allocating dedicated public parking stalls in suitable areas. 
 
4.2.7.7 Create a balanced parking strategy assessing costs and 
benefits that supports businesses while also encouraging active 
modes of transportation such as walking, biking and transit. 

 
 
1 City of Penticton (2019). Official Community Plan, Available online at: 
https://www.penticton.ca/sites/default/files/images/business-and-building/official-community-plan/2019-
08%20Official%20Community%20Plan%20Bylaw.pdf 

- 228 -

https://www.penticton.ca/sites/default/files/images/business-and-building/official-community-plan/2019-08%20Official%20Community%20Plan%20Bylaw.pdf
https://www.penticton.ca/sites/default/files/images/business-and-building/official-community-plan/2019-08%20Official%20Community%20Plan%20Bylaw.pdf


   
              

 
603 Main Street, Penticton  3 
Parking Study  

 
4.2.7.8 Ensure new residential developments provide an 
appropriate amount of parking for residents and their guests. 

 

 

SERVICES 
The site is conveniently situated in the core area of the City, within 500 m 
(about a 6-minute walk) of amenities such as restaurants, retail stores, 
financial services, and a pharmacy. There are a few small grocery stores 
within this 500 m radius, as well as a variety store located 650 m from 
the site (about an 8-minute walk). For larger shopping trips, there is a 
Safeway supermarket 1.3 km away (about a 16-minute walk) in the 
Penticton Plaza. The site is also close to schools and childcare centres 
such as Playshare Pre-School (72 m, about a 1-minute walk), Penticton 
Secondary (300 m, about a 4-minute walk), KVR Middle (650 m, about a 
9-minute walk), and Queen’s Park Elementary (1.3 km, about a 16-minute 
walk). This means that many day-to-day needs that may be required by 
families—shopping, services, school—are in relative proximity to the site.  
 

 

TRANSIT 
The proposed development is well-connected to transit, with Penticton 
City Centre Exchange on Wade Avenue East / West located 
approximately 350 m away (about a 4-minute walk). This transit hub 
provides access to many local and regional routes, including: 

• Route 1 Okanagan Lake / Wiltse 
• Route 2 Westside / Penticton Ave. 
• Route 3 Uplands / Skaha Lake 
• Route 4 Westside / Duncan East 
• Route 5 Main St. 
• Route 10 Naramata / Penticton 
• Route 70 Penticton / Kelowna 

- 229 -



   
              

 
603 Main Street, Penticton  4 
Parking Study  

These routes serve a variety of major destinations across Penticton and 
the broader Okanagan-Similkameen and Central Okanagan regions, 
including schools, shopping centres, and the communities of Naramata 
and Kelowna. Routes 1, 2, 3, and 4 offer hourly service, while Route 5 
offers service every 45 minutes and connects the site with Downtown, 
Penticton Plaza, Cherry Lane Shopping Centre, and Peachtree Square. 
 
The Okanagan-Similkameen Transit Future Plan2 identifies Main Street as 
a future Frequent Transit Corridor, which will greatly enhance the site’s 
access to frequent transit service. The Frequent Transit Network is 
intended to provide medium- to high-density mixed land use corridors a 
convenient, reliable and frequent transit service. Projected frequencies 
would offer weekday service at 15-minute frequency between 
approximately 7:00 am and 6:00 pm.  
 
 

 

WALKING 
As outlined in the Services section above, the proposed development is 
within walking distance of several key destinations. It has a walk score3 of 
79 out of 100, meaning that the development is situated in a ‘very 
walkable’ area and most errands can be accomplished on foot. Currently, 
Main Street and the surrounding roads benefit from sidewalks on both 
sides, providing pedestrian access to numerous destinations in the City’s 
core. Furthermore, the City of Penticton is in the process of developing its 
Transportation Master Plan4 which prioritizes infrastructure 
improvements for people walking or using wheelchairs or mobility 
scooters over those for other modes of transportation. This is supported 

 
 
2 BC Transit (2015). Okanagan-Similkameen Transit Future Plan. Available online at 
https://www.bctransit.com/documents/1507213427438 
3 More information about the site’s walk score is available online at https://www.walkscore.com/score/603-main-st-
penticton-bc-canada 
4 More information about the City’s Transportation Master Plan is available online at 
https://www.shapeyourcitypenticton.ca/transportation-master-plan 

- 230 -

https://www.bctransit.com/documents/1507213427438
https://www.walkscore.com/score/603-main-st-penticton-bc-canada
https://www.walkscore.com/score/603-main-st-penticton-bc-canada
https://www.shapeyourcitypenticton.ca/transportation-master-plan


   
              

 
603 Main Street, Penticton  5 
Parking Study  

by the policies outlined in Section 4.2.2 of the City’s Official Community 
Plan5. 
 

 

CYCLING 
With a bike score6 of 72 out of 100, the site is considered ‘very bikeable’ 
(it is located in an area where cycling is convenient for most trips). As 
indicated on the City of Penticton’s Cycling Plan (Schedule “F” Trails & 
Cycling Network7), the site is close to an existing trail/multi-use path and 
lies one block away from a proposed bicycle lane corridor along Eckhardt 
Avenue. A proposed corridor for separated bicycle facilities is also nearby, 
on Winnipeg Street. These proposed routes would join with the existing 
trail/multi-use path connecting Okanagan Lake and Skaha Lake, which is 
also slated to become a designated bicycle route. Given the types of 
active transportation investments that the City is planning to provide over 
time, it is expected that they would have a significant impact in promoting 
cycling, especially in the core downtown. 
 

 

  

 
 
5 City of Penticton (2019). Official Community Plan, Available online at: 
https://www.penticton.ca/sites/default/files/images/business-and-building/official-community-plan/2019-
08%20Official%20Community%20Plan%20Bylaw.pdf 
6 More information about the site’s bike score is available online at https://www.walkscore.com/score/603-main-st-
penticton-bc-canada 
7 More information about the City of Pencticton Schedule “F” Trails & Cycling Network is available online at 
https://www.penticton.ca/sites/default/files/docs/city-services/TRAILS-CYCLING-NETWORK-2012-MAR-05.pdf 

- 231 -

https://www.penticton.ca/sites/default/files/images/business-and-building/official-community-plan/2019-08%20Official%20Community%20Plan%20Bylaw.pdf
https://www.penticton.ca/sites/default/files/images/business-and-building/official-community-plan/2019-08%20Official%20Community%20Plan%20Bylaw.pdf
https://www.walkscore.com/score/603-main-st-penticton-bc-canada
https://www.walkscore.com/score/603-main-st-penticton-bc-canada
https://www.penticton.ca/sites/default/files/docs/city-services/TRAILS-CYCLING-NETWORK-2012-MAR-05.pdf


   
              

 
603 Main Street, Penticton  6 
Parking Study  

2.0 PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 
2.1 LAND USE 
The proposed development includes a mix of land uses, which are described in detail in 
this section. The proposed 5 storey development includes 28 below market affordable 
rental housing units on the upper floors and two office spaces on the ground floor. One 
of the office spaces will be occupied by the M’akola Housing Society regional office and 
the other would be occupied by a local not-for-profit. 
 
TABLE 1. LAND USE BREAKDOWN 

Land Use Unit Type Units 

Affordable Rental Housing 

1 bedroom 8 

2 bedroom 10 

3 bedroom 10 

Total 28 

Office 

M’akola Housing Society 110 m2 

Local Not-for-Profit 80 m2 

Total 190 m2 

 

2.2 PROPOSED PARKING SUPPLY 
2.2.1 VEHICLE PARKING 
A total of 15 parking spaces are proposed for this development. 
 

2.2.2 BICYCLE PARKING 
The applicant is proposing at total of 16 Class I (indoor, secured) bicycle parking spaces 
and 5 Class II (short-term, visitor) bicycle spaces.  
  

- 232 -



   
              

 
603 Main Street, Penticton  7 
Parking Study  

3.0 PARKING REQUIREMENT 
3.1 VEHICLE PARKING 
The City of Penticton’s Zoning Bylaw No. 2017-08 identifies the parking requirements 
for the site. The proposed development falls in the ‘C5 – Urban Centre Commercial’ zone 
and the parking requirements for each table are presented on Table 2. Based on the 
proposed development, the site is required to provide 28 parking spaces. The applicant 
is not meeting this requirement by 13 parking spaces. 
 

TABLE 2. PARKING REQUIREMENT 

Land Use Requirement Required Spaces 

Dwelling Unit in C5 / C6 Zone 1 space per unit 28 

Any use in the C5 and C6 Zone 
(Office) 

No Parking Required 0 

Total  28 

 

 

3.2 BICYCLE PARKING 
The City of Penticton Zoning Bylaw No. 2017-08 also prescribes the minimum long-
term and short-term bicycle parking requirement based on each land use. The 
applicable land uses are shown in Table 3. Overall, the proposed development is 
required to provide 21 bicycle parking spaces (16 long-term spaces and 5 short-term 
spaces). The applicant is meeting this requirement. 
 

TABLE 3. BICYCLE PARKING REQUIREMENTS 

Land Use 
Zoning Bylaw No. 2017-08 Rate 

Long-term Spaces Short-term Spaces 

Apartment 0.5 spaces per unit 0.1 spaces per unit 

Commercial Uses Minimum of 2, plus one for every 125 
m2 over 250 m2 

Minimum of 2, plus one for every 125 
m2 over 250 m2 

Land Use Required Spaces 

Apartment 14 spaces 3 spaces 

Commercial Uses 2 spaces 2 spaces 

- 233 -



   
              

 
603 Main Street, Penticton  8 
Parking Study  

4.0 EXPECTED PARKING DEMAND 
Expected parking demand for the affordable housing site has been estimated to 
determine if the proposed supply will adequately accommodate demand. Expected 
parking demand is based on [a] in-field observations of representative sites, [b] vehicle 
ownership data provided by property managers of representative sites, and [c] relevant 
research to support the findings. 
 

4.1 AFFORDABLE RENTAL HOUSING 
Expected parking demand is estimated based on observations and vehicle ownership 
data from similar affordable multi-family rental buildings in the City of Penticton and the 
City of Kelowna to determine what is the appropriate parking supply for the proposed 
development. Those municipalities were selected because of their somewhat similar 
geographical and transportation context. More specifically, the representative sites 
within these municipalities were selected based on their similar use case (i.e. affordable 
rental housing), walkability, access to services, and transportation options. 
 

4.1.1 OBSERVATIONS + VEHICLE OWNERSHIP DATA 
A total of 10 affordable rental multi-family housing sites were reviewed. Observations 
of parked vehicles were completed at seven representative affordable rental multi-
family housing sites that have surface parking, which allowed for access to complete 
counts of parked vehicles. Property Managers of three additional sites provided vehicle 
ownership data for their secured underground lots. See Table 5. 
 
  

- 234 -



   
              

 
603 Main Street, Penticton  9 
Parking Study  

TABLE 2. REPRESENTATIVE SITES 

Address Walk Score Municipality Data 

603 Main St 79 Penticton - 

320 Brunswick St 73 Penticton Observations 

2872 Skaha Lake Rd 53 Penticton Observations 

259 Backstreet Blvd 76 Penticton Observations 

150 Bruce Court 52 Penticton Observations 

1720 Ethel St 74 Kelowna Observations 

882 Francis Ave 47 Kelowna Observations 

285 Nanaimo Avenue West 72 Penticton 
Vehicle Ownership 

Data 

2970 Tutt St 72 Kelowna 
Vehicle Ownership 

Data 

150 Kneller Road 53 Kelowna 
Vehicle Ownership 

Data 
 
Observations were conducted on Wednesday December 2, 2020 and Thursday 
December 3, 2020 between 9:00pm and 10:30pm. 
 

4.1.2 ADJUSTMENT FACTORS 

Observations are a useful method of assessing parking demand rates; however, there 
are limitations. One such limitation is the fact that an observation may not “catch” all 
residents while they are home with their parked car on-site. On a typical weeknight, it 
can be expected that some residents return home very late at night or in the next 
morning or have driven out of town for business or vacation.  
 
A large scale apartment parking study commissioned by Metro Vancouver reported that 
observations of parking occupancy (percent of stalls occupied by a car or truck) 

- 235 -



   
              

 
603 Main Street, Penticton  10 
Parking Study  

increased later in the night.8 The study also suggested that occupancy surveys that start 
between 9PM – 10:30PM should have a 10% adjustment factor while a survey 
conducted between 10:30PM and 11:00PM should have a 5% adjustment factor.  As 
the observations in this study occurred between 10:00PM and 11:00PM, a conservative 
10% adjustment factor was applied to the observed parking demand to determine peak 
parking demand. The adjusted peak parking demand is 0.57 spaces per unit and is 
shown in Table 3. This rate applied to the proposed development results in a parking 
demand of 16 spaces for the affordable housing units. 
 
TABLE 3. OBSERVATIONS + VEHICLE OWNERSHIP DATA OF REPRESENTATIVE 
AFFORDABLE RENTAL SITES 

Site Units 
Observed Vehicles 

Demand 
Rate9 

Adjusted 
Demand 
(+10%) 

Wednesday 
2-Dec-2020 

Thursday 
3-Dec-2020 

320 Brunswick St 23 7 7 0.30 0.33 

2872 Skaha Lake Rd 40 8 8 0.20 0.22 

259 Backstreet Blvd 40 20 21 0.53 0.58 

150 Bruce Court 10 4 4 0.40 0.44 

1720 Ethel St 21 11 11 0.52 0.58 

882 Francis Ave 7 5 5 0.71 0.79 

Site Units Vehicle Ownership Data Demand Rate10 

285 Nanaimo Avenue 
West 

56 45 0.80 

2970 Tutt St 39 18 0.46 

150 Kneller Road 78 73 0.94 

Average 0.54 0.57 

 
 
8 Metro Vancouver. (2012). The Metro Vancouver Apartment Parking Study, Technical Report. Available online at: 
http://www.metrovancouver.org/services/regional-
planning/PlanningPublications/Apartment_Parking_Study_TechnicalReport.pdf  
9 The demand rate reflects the higher observed parking count. 
10 Vehicle ownership data do not warrant an adjustment as they represent the actual parking demand. 

- 236 -

http://www.metrovancouver.org/services/regional-planning/PlanningPublications/Apartment_Parking_Study_TechnicalReport.pdf
http://www.metrovancouver.org/services/regional-planning/PlanningPublications/Apartment_Parking_Study_TechnicalReport.pdf


   
              

 
603 Main Street, Penticton  11 
Parking Study  

 

4.1.3 VISITOR PARKING 
Observations were conducted as part of a study by Metro Vancouver11 that concluded 
typical visitor parking demand is less than 0.1 vehicles per unit. This is also consistent to 
observations that were conducted for parking studies in other BC municipalities, such as 
the City of Langford and the City of Victoria, and indicates that visitor parking demand is 
not strongly influenced by location.  
 
For the subject site, a rate of 0.1 vehicles per unit is considered appropriate for visitor 
parking spaces, which results in a total of 3 vehicle parking spaces. 
 

4.2 SUMMARY OF EXPECTED PARKING DEMAND 
Based on the above analysis, the resident parking demand is estimated at 16 parking 
spaces, with an additional 3 parking spaces reserved for resident visitor parking. A total 
of 19 parking spaces is expected, which is 4 spaces more than what is being proposed 
(15 proposed spaces). Therefore, parking management and TDM options will be 
required to reduce parking demand and are outlined in the following sections. 
 
TABLE 3. SUMMARY OF EXPECTED PARKING DEMAND 

Land Use Number of 
Units 

Demand Rate 
 

(vehicles per unit) 
Expected 

Parking Demand 

Affordable 
Housing 

Resident 
28 

0.57 16 

Visitor Parking 0.10  3 

Total 19 

 
 
11 Metro Vancouver. (2018). The 2018 Regional Parking Study. Technical Report. Available online at: 

http://www.metrovancouver.org/services/regional-planning/PlanningPublications/RegionalParkingStudy-
TechnicalReport.pdf 

- 237 -



   
              

 
603 Main Street, Penticton  12 
Parking Study  

5.0 ON-STREET PARKING 
On-street parking observations were completed to determine the site’s surrounding on-
street parking conditions. In light of ongoing the COVID-19 pandemic in BC (and the 
world) there have been significant changes in daily transportation routines. These 
changes have significantly changed the number of vehicles on the roadways, tourists 
visiting, retail shopping patterns, and visitors to residential housing. Although it appears 
that patterns are starting to go back to more typical conditions, it is acknowledged that 
they may not reflect normal patterns of the pre-COVID-19 era. Counts were conducted 
at weekday evening times, reflecting when residents and visitors may be seeking on-
street parking. Counts were conducted at the following times: 
 

• Wednesday December 9, 2020 at 8:00pm (weekday late evening) 
• Thursday December 10, 2020 at 8:00pm (weekday late evening) 

 
The observations found that the 204 on-street parking spaces closest to the subject site 
were approximately 32% occupied (139 spaces unoccupied) during the Wednesday 
evening observation (peak period). Occupancy was somewhat similar for the other 
count period with occupancy at 29% (145 spaces unoccupied). 
 
Appendix A includes a complete summary of the on-street parking occupancy results. 
The following conclusion can be drawn from the observations, as follows: 
 

• The area experiences low on-street parking utilization and there is capacity to 
accommodate additional vehicles without negatively impacting the ability for 
existing residential or commercial land uses to access available on-street 
parking.  

  
Based on the above analysis and given the especially low utilization of on-street parking 
during evenings, when resident visitor parking is peaking, it is considered acceptable to 
accommodate visitor parking—which by its nature is temporary—on-street. Therefore, it 
is considered that the 3 resident visitor parking spaces can be accommodated on-street 
without negatively impacting parking conditions in the area. 

- 238 -



   
              

 
603 Main Street, Penticton  13 
Parking Study  

 
Based on the above analysis, the accommodation of the resident visitor parking spaces 
on-street, the expected parking demand for the site is 16 spaces, one more than is 
proposed to be supplied. 

  

- 239 -



   
              

 
603 Main Street, Penticton  14 
Parking Study  

6.0 TRANSPORTATION DEMAND MANAGEMENT 
Transportation demand management (TDM) is the application of strategies and policies 
to influence individual travel choice, most commonly to reduce single-occupant vehicle 
travel. TDM measures typically aim to encourage sustainable travel, enhance travel 
options and decrease parking demand. The following sections present a menu of TDM 
measures that the applicant could pursue for the proposed development. All of the TDM 
measures are recommended, but the applicant will ultimately need to decide what they 
will commit to, should there be a shortfall of parking supply based on the expected 
parking demand of 16 vehicle spaces. For all of the TDM measures, an approximate 
reduction in parking demand has been included. 
 

6.1 LONG TERM BIKE PARKING FOR NEW MOBILITY 
There are opportunities to design the long-term bicycle parking in such a way that could 
further reduce vehicle parking demand at the site and meet the transportation objectives 
in the City’s OCP.  
 
Given that E-bikes have the potential to replace private motor vehicles, a 2% reduction 
in resident parking demand would be supported at the site if the applicant commits to 
designing at least 50% of the spaces with access to an 110V wall outlet to facilitate 
charging for the user. An additional 2% reduction would be supported if the applicant 
commits to designing a minimum of 5% of the long-term bicycle parking spaces to 
accommodate larger bicycles such as cargo bikes. 
 

6.1.1 ELECTRIC BIKE PARKING 
Electric Bikes (E-bikes) are an emerging transportation phenomenon that are gaining 
popularity worldwide. With supportive cycling infrastructure in place, E-bikes have the 
potential to substitute for, or completely replace, almost all trips taken by a gasoline 
powered car, which could address congestion issues and mitigate parking challenges 
within urban areas.  
 

- 240 -



   
              

 
603 Main Street, Penticton  15 
Parking Study  

Research has reported that one of the main barriers facing prospective E-bike users is 
the lack of secure parking available, which is critical for helping minimize theft of the 
electric bike.12  
 
As electric bikes are an emerging form of mobility, there is limited research that has 
quantified the impact of these bikes on vehicle ownership / parking demand. A recent 
study presented results of a North American survey of electric bike owners. The study 
reported that E-Bikes have the capacity to replace various modes of transportation 
commonly used for utilitarian and recreational trips including motor vehicles, public 
transit, and regular bicycles. Specifically, the study reported that 62% of E-Bike trips 
replaced trips that otherwise would have been taken by car. Of these trips previously 
taken by car, 45.8% were commute trips to work or school, 44.7% were other utilitarian 
trips (entertainment, personal errands, visiting friends and family, or other), and 9.4% 
were recreation or exercise trips. The average length of these previous car trips was 15 
kilometres.13 One recent study found that approximately 39 kilometres of driving per 
week is displaced by the average e-bike adopter along with 14 kilometres of travel by 
conventional bicycle.14   
 

6.1.2 CARGO BIKE PARKING 
Cargo bikes are typically electric-assist (e-bikes) and longer than regular bicycles 
because they are capable of carrying cargo and/or multiple passengers with the 
assistance of the battery. Cargo bikes (electric-assisted or not) can be as long as 2.5m 
and as wide as 0.9m. They can also reduce reliance on automobiles as they provide 
enhanced ability to pick up larger items (such as many bags of groceries) or for a parent 
with smaller children to travel together on the same bike. 

 
 
12 WATT Consulting Group. (2018). Capital Region Local Government Electric Vehicle + Electric Bike Infrastructure 
Backgrounder. Available at: https://www.crd.bc.ca/docs/default-source/climate-action-pdf/reports/electric-vehicle-and-e-
bike-infrastructure-backgrounder-sept-2018.pdf?sfvrsn=a067c5ca_2  

13 MacArthur, J., Harpool, M., & D. Scheppke. (2018). A North American Survey of Electric Bicycle Owners. National 
Institute for Transportation and Communities, NITC-RR-1041. 

14 Bigazzi, A & E Berjisian. (2019). Electric Bicycles: Can they reduce driving and emissions in Canada. Plan Canada Fall 
2019. 

- 241 -

https://www.crd.bc.ca/docs/default-source/climate-action-pdf/reports/electric-vehicle-and-e-bike-infrastructure-backgrounder-sept-2018.pdf?sfvrsn=a067c5ca_2
https://www.crd.bc.ca/docs/default-source/climate-action-pdf/reports/electric-vehicle-and-e-bike-infrastructure-backgrounder-sept-2018.pdf?sfvrsn=a067c5ca_2


   
              

 
603 Main Street, Penticton  16 
Parking Study  

6.2 TRANSIT PASSES 

As discussed in Section 1.2, the site has good transit access, which will make transit 
appealing to future residents, visitors and employees. Due to the location of the site, if 
the applicant is able to secure and administer a transit pass program for residents, a 
10% reduction in parking demand would be supported.  
 
In some other BC Transit system jurisdictions, such as the Kelowna Region and the 
Victoria Region, there is an option where developments or large employers can provide 
bus pass programs for residents or employees. For example, within the Victoria 
Regional Transit System, BC Transit currently offers the EcoPASS Program for New 
Developments, which is a program that provides Capital Regional District developers 
with a potential transit-oriented solution for parking variance requests. Under the 
EcoPASS Program, the occupants of a new residential, commercial or mixed-use 
development receive annual bus passes for a pre-determined number of years that are 
valid for use throughout the Victoria Regional Transit System. Each annual pass has a 
cost to the developer of $1,000. The size and value of the TDM program is established 
by the municipal government, with a minimum required program value of $5,000. BC 
Transit confirmed that the EcoPASS program assigns passes to units and not individual 
residents. Developers are required to submit a record of the person that each pass is 
assigned to in order for BC Transit to provide replacement passes and to discourage 
fraudulent use or resale. 
 
Given the system size and governance structures of transit within the City of Penticton 
and its surrounding region, setting up a similar program here could be explored but may 
not be feasible. 
 
An alternative approach would be to bulk purchase monthly passes or single tickets to 
the equivalent worth of one year of transit per unit and provide them to future tenants 
on a monthly basis to ensure that only tenants residing at that time at the site will 
benefit from this incentive. The applicant could allocate $15,120 (number based on the 
equivalent value of a year’s worth Local Adult Monthly Pass for each unit) on a transit 

- 242 -



   
              

 
603 Main Street, Penticton  17 
Parking Study  

fund that would be used for monthly passes or single tickets for residents that express 
interest until the fund is depleted. The applicant could administer the program, having 
an office in the ground floor and provide the passes or tickets to interested residents.  
 
Another related approach would be to offer a monthly pass at a discount to residents, 
who would therefore be able to roll their payment for transit into their monthly rental 
cost. This option is similar to that described above but would mean that the initial 
contribution amount (such as $15, 120) could extend across more years if residents also 
contributed. In some cases where similar programs were implemented, the cost of 
resident vehicle parking spaces was also unbundled from the monthly apartment rental 
amount. For instance, if residents had the option of paying an additional $20 per month 
either to park a vehicle on site or receive a bus pass, the funds raised in one stream (i.e. 
parking) could help offset that of the transit pass program. 
 
To support a 10% reduction, the applicant should commit to one of these options that 
will be available to all residents: 

1. Provide monthly passes OR single tickets to each unit that expresses interest to 
the program on a monthly basis until the fund of $15,120 is depleted. 

2. Implement a deeply discounted (i.e. 50% discount or greater) monthly pass 
program for residents that enables them to easily purchase transit passes as part 
of their monthly rental payment. The discount could draw from the same 
$15,120 amount noted in Option 1 and/or could potentially draw from 
unbundled parking costs if that is pursued.  
 

Optional tasks for the applicant to evaluate and ensure that this can be a successful 
program are: 

• When the program finishes, the applicant should communicate the new process 
to the residents. 

• Undertake surveys at the beginning and end of the program to identify whether 
travel habits changed before and after.  

- 243 -



   
              

 
603 Main Street, Penticton  18 
Parking Study  

7.0 CONCLUSIONS 
The applicant is proposing to provide a mix of residential and office land uses. A total of 
28 multi-family below market rental (affordable) housing units are proposed. Two office 
spaces on the ground floor totaling 190 m2 are proposed. 
 
The applicant is proposing to provide 15 vehicle parking spaces, whereas the City’s 
minimum parking requirement is 28 spaces (shortfall of 13 spaces). The expected 
parking demand for the site is 19 parking spaces, which is 4 space greater than what 
the applicant is proposing.  
 
An on-street parking analysis of the surrounding area was conducted, which concluded 
that given the especially low utilization of on-street parking during evenings—when 
resident visitor parking is peaking and is by its nature temporary—it is considered 
acceptable to accommodate visitor parking on-street. Therefore, it is considered that the 
3 resident visitor parking spaces can be accommodated on-street without negatively 
impacting parking conditions in the area.  
 
Based on that, the expected parking demand is reduced to 16 (shortfall of 1 space), in 
order to reduce the shortfall, the applicant has committed to either provide an additional 
parking space by reducing some of the office space or pursuing one or more of the TDM 
strategies outlined in Section 6.0. 
 

8.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 
The proposed development is supported under one of the following conditions: 

• The applicant provides 16 vehicles parking spaces for resident vehicle parking, 
OR 

• The applicant commits to one or more of the TDM strategies outlined in Section 
6.0 that would reduce parking demand by one or more vehicle parking spaces. 

  

- 244 -



   
              

 
603 Main Street, Penticton  19 
Parking Study  

  

APPENDIX A: ON-STREET PARKING OBSERVATIONS 

- 245 -



   
              

 
603 Main Street, Penticton  20 
Parking Study  

 

Observed % Occupied Observed % Occupied

East
8 0 0% 1 13%

West
9 2 22% 1 11%

East
16 2 13% 4 25%

West
10 2 20% 3 30%

East
19 6 32% 4 21%

West
18 3 17% 6 33%

East
18 6 33% 1 6%

West
19 6 32% 4 21%

East
18 7 39% 8 44%

West
14 12 86% 8 57%

East
16 5 31% 6 38%

West
15 10 67% 9 60%

North
5 0 0% 1 20%

South
5 0 0% 0 0%

North
7 1 14% 0 0%

South
7 3 43% 3 43%

204 65 32% 59 29%

White Ave W

Martin St to Main 

St

Main Street to 

Ellis St

2943 - 603 Main Street

Notes
DATE (TIME)

Street Side AvailableSegment

DATE (TIME)

Martin St

Totals

White Ave W to 

Eckhardt Ave W

White Ave W to 

Eckhardt Ave W

Main Street

Padmore Ave E to 

White Ave W

Padmore Ave E to 

White Ave W

White Ave W to 

Eckhardt Ave W

Padmore Ave E to 

White Ave W

Ellis St

- 246 -



 
 

City of Penticton 
171 Main St.   |  Penticton B.C.  |  V2A 5A9 

www.penticton.ca   |  ask@penticton.ca 
 

Development Variance Permit 

Permit Number: DVP PL2022-9381 

Owner Name 
Owner Address 

Conditions of Permit  

1. This permit is issued subject to compliance with all of the bylaws of the City, except as specifically 
varied or supplemented by this Permit. 

2. This permit applies to:  

Legal: Lot A District Lot 202 Similkameen Division Yale District Plan 24480 

Civic: 603 Main Street 

PID: 005-916-984 

3. This permit has been issued in accordance with Section 498 of the Local Government Act, to vary 
the following sections of Zoning Bylaw 2021-01 to allow for the construction of a 5-storey, mixed 
use development, with 28 residential units, as shown in the plans attached in Schedule ‘A’: 

a. Section 11.5.2.5.a: to increase the maximum height of a building located in the 600 block 
of Main Street from 15.0m to 17.4m; and 

b. Section 6.1.5.4: to increase the maximum number of small car parking spaces permitted 
from 25% to 53%. 

General Conditions  

4. In accordance with Section 501 of the Local Government Act, the lands subject to this permit shall 
be developed in general accordance with this permit and the plans attached as Schedule ‘A’.  

5. In accordance with Section 504 of the Local Government Act, if the holder of this permit does not 
commence the development authorized by this permit within 2 years of the date of this permit, this 
permit shall lapse. 

6. This permit is not a building permit.  In order to proceed with this development, the holder of 
this permit must hold a valid building permit issued by the Building Inspection Department.  

7. This permit does not constitute any other municipal, provincial or federal approval. The holder of 
this permit is responsible to obtain any additional municipal, federal, or provincial approvals prior 
to commencing the development authorized by this permit.  

 

 

 

DVP PL2
02

2-9
38

1 

DRAFT

- 247 -



8. This permit does not include off-site infrastructure costs that may be required at the building permit 
stage, such as Development Cost Charges (DCC’s), road improvements and electrical servicing. 
There may be substantial infrastructure and servicing costs payable at a later date. For more 
information on servicing and infrastructure requirements please contact the Development 
Engineering Department at (250) 490-2501. For more information on electrical servicing costs, 
please contact the Electric Utility at (250) 490-2535.    

Authorized by City Council, the ____ day of September, 2022. 

Issued this ____ day of September, 2022. 

_________________________ 

Angela Collison 
Corporate Officer 

DVP PL2
02

2-9
38

1 

DRAFT

- 248 -



UP

1

F

3 4

C

2

E

D

Commercial

106

Lobby

100

Commercial

105

Refuse collection

108

A2.01

2

A2.011A2.01 3

A2.01

4

Circulation

101

Elevator

103

Water entry

109

White avenue

M
a

in
 s

tr
e

e
t

356993

356993

356993

356993

PMT

110

15

12

O
n

-g
ra

d
e

 p
a

rk
in

g
 o

p
e

n
 t

o
 a

b
o

ve

360L cart x 6

240L cart x 2

356540

1
.8

8
%

8
.3

3
%

Electrical

107

356540

Bicycle Storage

112

1
.9

4
%

1

2.00%

356993

356900

356640

ø 1500

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

1

A4.01

5

4925 8125 9050 8179

30280

ø 1500

Vestibule

113

Universal WC 1

114

Universal WC 2

115

4000

4
0
0
0

3
0
0

A

3
0
0

2
7
0
0

2
5
0
0

2
5
0
0

2
5
0
0

2
5
0
0

2
5
0
0

2
5
0
0

2
5
0
0

2
5
0
0

3
3
3

B

1
3
2
5

1
4
0
7
5

2
0
5
0

2
5
0
0

7
9
8
1

2
7
9
3
1

S
M

A
L

L
 C

A
R

14

13

12

11

10

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

Jan closet

511

3
7
0
0

3
0
0

4
0
0
0

2
7
0
0

2
7
0
0

2
7
0
0

2
7
0
0

2
7
0
0

1
5
5
0

1415

3
9
2
5

3095

1

S
M

A
L

L
 C

A
R

S
M

A
L

L
 C

A
R

S
M

A
L

L
 C

A
R

S
M

A
L

L
 C

A
R

S
M

A
L

L
 C

A
R

S
M

A
L

L
 C

A
R

S
M

A
L

L
 C

A
R

Copyright reserved. This design and drawing is the exclusive property 

of WMW Public Architecture and Communication Inc. and cannot be 
used for any purpose without the written consent of the Architect. 

This drawing is not to be used for construction until issued for that 

purpose by the Architect. Prior to commencement of the Work the 
Contractor shall verify all dimensions, datums and levels to identify 

any errors and omissions; ascertain any discrepancies between this 

drawing and the full Contract Documents; and, bring these items to 
the attention of the Architect for clarification.

ISSUES + REVISIONS

NO     DATE                     DESCRIPTION

1495 FRANCES STREET

VANCOUVER BC V5L 1Z1

TEL 604 738 4323
WWW.PUBLICDESIGN.CA

PROJECT CODE

SHEET

SCALE

PROJECT NORTH TRUE NORTH

2
0

2
2

-0
8

-1
9

 1
2

:1
7

:0
6

P
M

C
:\

U
se

rs
\W

il
k

in
\D

oc
u

m
e

n
ts

\2
0

1
8

 M
H

S
 6

0
3

 M
a

in
 S

t_
R

2
0

2
1_

w
il

k
in

3
W

2
Z

W
.r

vt

1 : 100

A1.01

MHS 603 Main St.

603 Main St., Penticton, BC

2018

Floor plan - L1

A Jan 15, 2015 Revision 1

B May 31, 2022 DP Submission

C Aug 18, 2022 DP - TPC response

DVP PL2
02

2-9
38

1 

DRAFT

- 249 -

Wilkin
Text Box
PARKING OPTION 2: Total Parking stalls = 15Accessible stalls = 1Small car stalls = 8



Level 1 0

Level 2 4620

Level 3 7620

Level 4 10620

Level 5 13620

Roof 16584

T/O parapet 17134

F CE D

26
86

55
0

29
64

30
00

30
00

30
00

46
20

1325 14075 2050 2500 7981

376360 P.L.P.L.

357100
356660

E1.1

E2.1

Level 1 CRU 453

E2.1

E1.1

Exterior shade (typical)

Exterior shade (typical)

41
67

45
3

T/O elevator overrun 19820

17
13

4

367660

370660

AB

27931

P3.1G1.2 G1.1

E2.2

P3.1G1.1

Level 1 0

Level 2 4620

Level 3 7620

Level 4 10620

Level 5 13620

Roof 16584

T/O parapet 17134

134 2

46
20

30
00

30
00

30
00

29
64

55
0

26
86

4925812590508179

P.L. P.L.

356660
356356

E2.1

E1.1

G1.1

Metal fence

370663

Level 1 CRU 453

P1.2

45
3

41
67

T/O elevator overrun 19820

17
13

4

G1.2

376360

Building 
Signage

5

30280

E2.2

P3.1P3.1

Level 1 0

Level 2 4620

Level 3 7620

Level 4 10620

Level 5 13620

Roof 16584

T/O parapet 17134

FC ED

26
86

55
0

29
64

30
00

30
00

30
00

46
20

7981 2500 2050 14075 1325

P.L. P.L.

356241

E2.1

Metal fence Roof canopy

Building height - 15.0m max

Proposed building height - 17.24m

T/O mech penthouse - 19.92m

367663

376370

Level 1 CRU 453

356677

41
67

45
3

T/O elevator overrun 19820

17
13

4

356439

371439

373677

A B

27931

E1.1

E2.1E2.2

Level 1 0

Level 2 4620

Level 3 7620

Level 4 10620

Level 5 13620

Roof 16584

T/O parapet 17134

1 3 42

26
86

55
0

29
64

30
00

30
00

30
00

46
20

4925 8125 9050 8179

P.L. P.L.

356660
357097

E2.1 E2.1

E1.1

Metal picket guardRoof canopy

367663367663

Level 1 CRU 453

E2.1

Existing firewall

41
67

45
3

T/O elevator overrun 19820

17
13

4

376360

5

30280

E1.1

E1.1E1.1 E1.1E1.2E1.2

Copyright reserved. This design and drawing is the exclusive property 
of WMW Public Architecture and Communication Inc. and cannot be 
used for any purpose without the written consent of the Architect. 
This drawing is not to be used for construction until issued for that 
purpose by the Architect. Prior to commencement of the Work the 
Contractor shall verify all dimensions, datums and levels to identify 
any errors and omissions; ascertain any discrepancies between this 
drawing and the full Contract Documents; and, bring these items to 
the attention of the Architect for clarification.

ISSUES + REVISIONS
NO     DATE                     DESCRIPTION

1495 FRANCES STREET
VANCOUVER BC V5L 1Z1
TEL 604 738 4323
WWW.PUBLICDESIGN.CA

PROJECT CODE

SHEET

SCALE

20
22

-0
8-

18
 1

1:
01

:3
9

AM
C

:\
U

se
rs

\W
ilk

in
\D

oc
um

en
ts

\2
01

8 
M

H
S 

60
3 

M
ai

n 
St

_R
20

21
_w

ilk
in

3W
2Z

W
.r

vt

1 : 100

A2.01

MHS 603 Main St.

603 Main St., Penticton, BC

2018

Building elevations

/ 1 : 100A1.011

Building elevation - east1
/ 1 : 100A1.011

Building elevation - north2

/ 1 : 100A1.011

Building elevation - west3
/ 1 : 100A1.011

Building elevation - south4

Exterior material schedule

Type Type Mark

E1.1 - Exterior cladding - stucco E1.1
E1.2 - Exterior cladding - stucco (raked and
impregnated)

E1.2

E2.1 - Exterior cladding - metal siding E2.1
E2.2 - Mechanical screen E2.2
G1.1 - Storefront glazing G1.1
G1.2 - Storefront spandrel G1.2
W1.1 - White concrete partition 200mm P1.1
W1.1 - White concrete column 400mm P1.2
P2.1 - Concrete Masonry Unit 254mm -
painted white

P2.1

P2.2 - Concrete Masonry Unit 152 + 76mm
insulation

P2.2

P3.1

B May 31, 2022 DP Submission
C Aug 18, 2022 DP - TPC response

DVP PL2
02

2-9
38

1 

DRAFT

- 250 -



Level 1 0

Level 2 4620

Level 3 7620

Level 4 10620

Level 5 13620

Roof 16584

T/O parapet 17134

F E D
32

36
29

64
30

00
30

00
30

00
46

20

1325 14075

15400

E2.1

Metal fence

361160

367663

Level 1 CRU 453

W2.1

41
67

45
3

T/O elevator overrun 19820

17
13

4

Level 1 0

Level 2 4620

Level 3 7620

Level 4 10620

Level 5 13620

Roof 16584

T/O parapet 17134

FED

32
36

29
64

30
00

30
00

30
00

46
20

14075 1325

15400

E2.1

367663

Level 1 CRU 453

17
13

4

41
67

45
3

T/O elevator overrun 19820

W1.1

Copyright reserved. This design and drawing is the exclusive property 
of WMW Public Architecture and Communication Inc. and cannot be 
used for any purpose without the written consent of the Architect. 
This drawing is not to be used for construction until issued for that 
purpose by the Architect. Prior to commencement of the Work the 
Contractor shall verify all dimensions, datums and levels to identify 
any errors and omissions; ascertain any discrepancies between this 
drawing and the full Contract Documents; and, bring these items to 
the attention of the Architect for clarification.

ISSUES + REVISIONS
NO     DATE                     DESCRIPTION

1495 FRANCES STREET
VANCOUVER BC V5L 1Z1
TEL 604 738 4323
WWW.PUBLICDESIGN.CA

PROJECT CODE

SHEET

SCALE

20
22

-0
8-

18
 1

1:
02

:0
2

AM
C

:\
U

se
rs

\W
ilk

in
\D

oc
um

en
ts

\2
01

8 
M

H
S 

60
3 

M
ai

n 
St

_R
20

21
_w

ilk
in

3W
2Z

W
.r

vt

1 : 100

A2.02

MHS 603 Main St.

603 Main St., Penticton, BC

2018

Building elevations

/ 1 : 100A1.021

Courtyard elevation - east1
/ 1 : 100A1.021

Courtyard elevation - west2

B May 31, 2022 DP Submission
C Aug 18, 2022 DP - TPC response

Exterior material schedule

Type Type Mark

E1.1 - Exterior cladding - stucco E1.1
E1.2 - Exterior cladding - stucco (raked and
impregnated)

E1.2

E2.1 - Exterior cladding - metal siding E2.1
E2.2 - Mechanical screen E2.2
G1.1 - Storefront glazing G1.1
G1.2 - Storefront spandrel G1.2
W1.1 - White concrete partition 200mm P1.1
W1.1 - White concrete column 400mm P1.2
P2.1 - Concrete Masonry Unit 254mm -
painted white

P2.1

P2.2 - Concrete Masonry Unit 152 + 76mm
insulation

P2.2

P3.1

DVP PL2
02

2-9
38

1 

DRAFT

- 251 -



 
 

City of Penticton 
171 Main St.   |  Penticton B.C.  |  V2A 5A9 

www.penticton.ca   |  ask@penticton.ca 
 

Development Permit 

Permit Number: DP PL2022-9380 

Owner Name 
Owner Address 

 Conditions of Permit  

1. This permit is issued subject to compliance with all of the bylaws of the City, except as specifically 
varied or supplemented by this Permit. 

2. This permit applies to:  

Legal: Lot A District Lot 202 Similkameen Division Yale District Plan 24480 

Civic: 603 Main Street 

PID: 005-916-984 

3. This permit has been issued in accordance with Section 489 of the Local Government Act, to permit 
the construction of 5-storey, mixed use development, with 28 residential units, as shown in the plans 
attached in Schedule ‘A’. 

4. In accordance with Section 502 of the Local Government Act a deposit or irrevocable letter of credit, 
in the amount of $__________ must be deposited prior to, or in conjunction with, an application for 
a building permit for the development authorized by this permit. The City may apply all or part of the 
above-noted security in accordance with Section 502 of the Local Government Act, to undertake 
works or other activities required to:  

a. correct an unsafe condition that has resulted from a contravention of this permit,  

b. satisfy the landscaping requirements of this permit as shown in Schedule ‘A’ or otherwise 
required by this permit, or 

c. repair damage to the natural environment that has resulted from a contravention of this 
permit.  

5. The holder of this permit shall be eligible for a refund of the security described under Condition 4 
only if: 

a. The permit has lapsed as described under Condition 8, or 

b. A completion certificate has been issued by the Building Inspection Department and the 
Director of Development Services is satisfied that the conditions of this permit have been 
met.    

6. Upon completion of the development authorized by this permit, an application for release of 
securities (Landscape Inspection & Refund Request) must be submitted to the Planning Department. 
Staff may carry out inspections of the development to ensure the conditions of this permit have been 
met. Inspection fees may be withheld from the security in accordance with the City of Penticton Fees 
and Charges Bylaw (as amended from time to time). 

DP PL2
02

2-9
38

0 

DRAFT

- 252 -



General Conditions  

7. In accordance with Section 501(2) of the Local Government Act, the lands subject to this permit shall 
be developed in general accordance with this permit and the plans attached as Schedule ‘A’.  

8. In accordance with Section 504 of the Local Government Act, if the holder of this permit does not 
commence the development authorized by this permit within 2 years of the date of this permit, this 
permit shall lapse. 

9. This permit is not a building permit.  In order to proceed with this development, the holder of 
this permit must hold a valid building permit issued by the Building Inspection Department.  

10. This permit does not constitute any other municipal, provincial or federal approval. The holder of this 
permit is responsible to obtain any additional municipal, federal, or provincial approvals prior to 
commencing the development authorized by this permit.  

11. This permit does not include off-site infrastructure costs that may be required at the building permit 
stage, such as Development Cost Charges (DCC’s), road improvements and electrical servicing. There 
may be substantial infrastructure and servicing costs payable at a later date. For more information on 
servicing and infrastructure requirements please contact the Development Engineering Department 
at (250) 490-2501. For more information on electrical servicing costs, please contact the Electric Utility 
at (250) 490-2535.    

Authorized by City Council, the ____ day of September, 2022. 

Issued this ____ day of September, 2022. 

_________________________ 

Angela Collison 
Corporate Officer 

DP PL2
02

2-9
38

0 

DRAFT

- 253 -



Copyright reserved. This design and drawing is the exclusive property 
of WMW Public Architecture and Communication Inc. and cannot be 
used for any purpose without the written consent of the Architect. 
This drawing is not to be used for construction until issued for that 
purpose by the Architect. Prior to commencement of the Work the 
Contractor shall verify all dimensions, datums and levels to identify 
any errors and omissions; ascertain any discrepancies between this 
drawing and the full Contract Documents; and, bring these items to 
the attention of the Architect for clarification.

ISSUES + REVISIONS
NO     DATE                     DESCRIPTION

1495 FRANCES STREET
VANCOUVER BC V5L 1Z1
TEL 604 738 4323
WWW.PUBLICDESIGN.CA

PROJECT CODE

SHEET

SCALE

20
22

-0
8-

18
 1

1:
02

:0
7

AM
C

:\
U

se
rs

\W
ilk

in
\D

oc
um

en
ts

\2
01

8 
M

H
S 

60
3 

M
ai

n 
St

_R
20

21
_w

ilk
in

3W
2Z

W
.r

vt

G0.00

MHS 603 Main St.

603 Main St., Penticton, BC

2018

Cover sheet

M'AKOLA HOUSING 603 MAIN STREET

View looking northwest from Main St. towards White Ave. View looking southwest from White Ave. towards Main St.

B May 31, 2022 DP Submission
C Aug 18, 2022 DP - TPC response

DP PL2
02

2-9
38

0 

DRAFT

- 254 -



UP

DN

W/D

447.4 m²
Parkade

17.0 m²
Garbage

36.6 m²
Commercial

38.9 m²
Lobby

14.2 m²
Electrical

73.2 m²
Commercial

8.8 m²
Water entry

33.5 m²
Bicycle Storage

6.1 m²
Elev shaft

24.6 m²
PMT

40.4 m²
Stair

3.7 m²
Vestibule

3.0 m²
Jan closet

7.4 m²
Uni WC

7.4 m²
Uni WC

135.2 m²
Courtyard

89.2 m²
3-bed

88.5 m²
3-bed

50.1 m²
1-bed

65.7 m²
2-bed

52.4 m²
1-bed 76.6 m²

2-bed

50.1 m²
1-bed

20.8 m²
Stair

60.9 m²
Circulation

6.3 m²
Elev shaft1.2 m²

Shaft

0.9 m²
Elec closet

1.3 m²
Jan closet

89.2 m²
3-bed

88.5 m²
3-bed

50.1 m²
1-bed

65.7 m²
2-bed

49.7 m²
1-bed

95.6 m²
3-bed

52.4 m²
1-bed

20.8 m²
Stair

6.3 m²
Elev shaft

60.9 m²
Circulation

1.2 m²
Shaft

0.9 m²
Elec closet

1.3 m²
Jan closet

70.1 m²
2-bed

69.5 m²
2-bed

50.5 m²
1-bed

50.1 m²
1-bed

95.6 m²
3-bed

52.4 m²
1-bed

65.7 m²
2-bed

1.2 m²
Shaft

20.8 m²
Stair

6.3 m²
Elev shaft

60.9 m²
Circulation

1.3 m²
Jan closet

0.9 m²
Elec closet

70.1 m²
2-bed

69.5 m²
2-bed

50.5 m²
1-bed 41.4 m²

1-bed

75.3 m²
2-bed

52.7 m²
1-bed

65.7 m²
2-bed

1.2 m²
Shaft

20.8 m²
Stair

6.3 m²
Elev shaft

60.9 m²
Circulation

60.9 m²
Circulation

60.9 m²
Circulation

1.3 m²
Jan closet

0.9 m²
Elec closet

21.9 m²
Mechanical penthouse

8.5 m²
Elev shaft

4.6 m²
Shaft

11.8 m²
Stair

27.2 m²
Outdoor mechanical space

443.7 m²
Roof

Copyright reserved. This design and drawing is the exclusive property 
of WMW Public Architecture and Communication Inc. and cannot be 
used for any purpose without the written consent of the Architect. 
This drawing is not to be used for construction until issued for that 
purpose by the Architect. Prior to commencement of the Work the 
Contractor shall verify all dimensions, datums and levels to identify 
any errors and omissions; ascertain any discrepancies between this 
drawing and the full Contract Documents; and, bring these items to 
the attention of the Architect for clarification.

ISSUES + REVISIONS
NO     DATE                     DESCRIPTION

1495 FRANCES STREET
VANCOUVER BC V5L 1Z1
TEL 604 738 4323
WWW.PUBLICDESIGN.CA

PROJECT CODE

SHEET

SCALE

20
22

-0
8-

18
 1

1:
02

:4
7

AM
C

:\
U

se
rs

\W
ilk

in
\D

oc
um

en
ts

\2
01

8 
M

H
S 

60
3 

M
ai

n 
St

_R
20

21
_w

ilk
in

3W
2Z

W
.r

vt

1 : 200

G0.01

MHS 603 Main St.

603 Main St., Penticton, BC

2018

Project information
& drawing list

CLIENT
Mark Christian
M'akola Housing Society
104-550 Goldstream Avenue
Victoria, BC V9B 2W7
T: (855) 897-6922
E: mchristian@makoladev.com

ARCHITECT
Brian Wakelin, Architect AIBC, FRAIC, LEED/AP
PUBLIC: Architecture + Communication
1495 Frances Street
Vancouver BC  V5L 1Z1
T: (604) 738-4323
E: brian@publicdesign.ca

MECHANICAL
Tony Pagnotta
Reinbold
301, 1664 Richter Street 
Kelowna, BC V1Y 8N3
T: (403) 813-8439
E: Tpagnotta@reg-eng.com

STRUCTRUAL
Michael Blackman
RJC
1626 Richter Street, Suite 214 
Kelowna, BC V1Y 2M3
T: (778) 738-1701
E:  mblackman@rjc.ca

PROJECT TEAM

Regulated by:
Major occupancy:
Building area:
No. of storeys:
Building height:
Streets/access routes:
Building classification:
Sprinkler system:
Standpipe:
Fire alarm:
High building:
Permitted construction:
Mezzanine area:
Occupant load:
Hazardous substances:

BUILDING CODE SUMMARY DRAWING LIST

BCBC 2018, Part 3
Group C (Residential)
745.6 sqm
5
17.24m
2

Sheets - architectural

A0.0 SERIES - GENERAL
A0.03 Survey & grades
A0.10 Site plan
A0.11 Site axonometric and site

sections

A1.0 SERIES - FLOOR AND CEILING PLANS
A1.01 Floor plan - L1
A1.02 Floor plan - L2
A1.03 Floor plan - L3
A1.04 Floor plan - L4
A1.05 Floor plan - L5
A1.06 Roof plan
A1.12 Reflected ceiling plan - L2
A1.13 Reflected ceiling plan - L3
A1.14 Reflected ceiling plan - L4
A1.15 Reflected ceiling plan - L5
A1.16 Reflected ceiling plan - Roof

A2.0 SERIES - ELEVATIONS
A2.01 Building elevations
A2.02 Building elevations

A3.0 SERIES - SECTIONS
A3.01 Building sections
A3.10 Wall sections

A4.0 SERIES - ENLARGED DRAWINGS
A4.01 Enlarged plan - L1
A4.02 Enlarged plan - L2 courtyard
A4.03 Enlarged plan - suite layout
A4.04 Enlarged plan - 1 bed type A
A4.05 Enlarged plan - 1 bed type B
A4.06 Enlarged plan - 1 bed type C
A4.07 Enlarged plan - 2 bed type A
A4.08 Enlarged plan - 2 bed type B
A4.09 Enlarged plan - 2 bed type C
A4.10 Enlarged plan - 2 bed type D
A4.11 Enlarged plan - 3 bed type A
A4.12 Enlarged plan - 3 bed type B
A4.13 Enlarged plan - 3 bed type C

A5.0 SERIES - DETAILS
A5.01 Plan details - ext
A5.10 Section details - ext
A5.11 Section details - ext

/ 1 : 200A2.011

Level 11
/ 1 : 200A2.011

Level 22
/ 1 : 200A2.011

Level 33

/ 1 : 200A2.011

Level 44 / 1 : 200A2.011

Level 55

Area Schedule - net unit area

Name Area

3-bed 95.6 m²
Circulation 60.9 m²
Elec closet 0.9 m²
Elev shaft 6.3 m²
Jan closet 1.3 m²
Shaft 1.2 m²
Stair 20.8 m²
Level 3 582.6 m²

1-bed 50.1 m²
1-bed 50.5 m²
1-bed 52.4 m²
2-bed 65.7 m²
2-bed 69.5 m²
2-bed 70.1 m²
3-bed 95.6 m²
Circulation 60.9 m²
Elec closet 0.9 m²
Elev shaft 6.3 m²
Jan closet 1.3 m²
Shaft 1.2 m²
Stair 20.8 m²
Level 4 545.2 m²

1-bed 41.4 m²
1-bed 50.5 m²
1-bed 52.7 m²
2-bed 65.7 m²
2-bed 69.5 m²
2-bed 70.1 m²
2-bed 75.3 m²
Circulation 60.9 m²
Elec closet 0.9 m²
Elev shaft 6.3 m²
Jan closet 1.3 m²
Shaft 1.2 m²
Stair 20.8 m²
Level 5 516.6 m²

Elev shaft 8.5 m²
Mechanical
penthouse

21.9 m²

Outdoor
mechanical
space

27.2 m²

Roof 443.7 m²
Shaft 4.6 m²
Stair 11.8 m²
Roof 517.7 m²

3623.6 m²

Area Schedule - net unit area

Name Area

Bicycle
Storage

33.5 m²

Commercial 36.6 m²
Commercial 73.2 m²
Electrical 14.2 m²
Elev shaft 6.1 m²
Garbage 17.0 m²
Jan closet 3.0 m²
Lobby 38.9 m²
Parkade 447.4 m²
PMT 24.6 m²
Stair 40.4 m²
Uni WC 7.4 m²
Uni WC 7.4 m²
Vestibule 3.7 m²
Water entry 8.8 m²
Level 1 762.2 m²

1-bed 50.1 m²
1-bed 50.1 m²
1-bed 52.4 m²
2-bed 65.7 m²
2-bed 76.6 m²
3-bed 88.5 m²
3-bed 89.2 m²
Circulation 60.9 m²
Courtyard 135.2 m²
Elec closet 0.9 m²
Elev shaft 6.3 m²
Jan closet 1.3 m²
Shaft 1.2 m²
Stair 20.8 m²
Level 2 699.3 m²

1-bed 49.7 m²
1-bed 50.1 m²
1-bed 52.4 m²
2-bed 65.7 m²
3-bed 88.5 m²
3-bed 89.2 m²

TECHNICAL DATA SUMMARY

/ 1 : 200A2.011

Roof6

A Jan 15, 2015 Revision 1
B May 31, 2022 DP Submission
C Aug 18, 2022 DP - TPC response

ELECTRICAL
Bruce Candline
Falcon Engineering
210-1715 Dickson Ave 
Kelowna, BC V1Y 9G6
T: (250) 470-8443
E:  bruce.candline@falcon.ca

CIVIL
Inera/Ecora
Graham Birds
2045 Enterprise Way, 
Kelowna, BC V1Y 9T5
T: (250) 492-2227 x1039
E: graham.birds@ecora.ca

LANDSCAPE
Ecora
Fiona Barton
2045 Enterprise Way, 
Kelowna, BC V1Y 9T5
T: (250) 868-9270
E:  fiona.barton@ecora.ca

BUILDING ENVELOPE
Aqua Coast
Pat Cuthbert
2045 Enterprise Way, 
Kelowna, BC V1Y 9T5
T: (604) 946-9910
E: pcuthbert@aquacoast.ca

DP PL2
02

2-9
38

0 

DRAFT

- 255 -



aff = above finished floor
cl = centre line
c/w = complete with
eq = equal
exist = existing
ext = exterior
int = interior
max = maximum
min = minimum
na = not applicable
nic = not in contract
oc = on centre
osci = owner supplied contractor installed
osoi = owner supplied owner installed
rec = recessed
reqd = required
rm = room
sim = similar
tme = to match existing
t/o = top of
typ = typical
uno = unless noted otherwise
u/s = underside
vif = verify in field
w/ = with

Abbreviation legendGraphic legend

elevation relative to main floor

grid line identification

assembly tag / refer to assembly schedule

section reference

north arrow

room tag

door tag / refer to schedule

centre line

ceiling elevation

2

ROOM NAME
202

222m2

D222b

window tag / refer to scheduleW2

WXX

LEVEL NAME 1000

drawing 
number

sheet 
number

room 
number area

X
AX.XX

new construction

existing construction to be demolished

existing construction to remain

0hr fire seperation

1hr fire seperation

2hr fire seperation

Equipment legend

thermostat - see mechanical

fourplex receptacle - see electrical

single pole switch - see electrical

duplex receptacle - see electrical

pot light - see electrical

ceiling-mounted sprinkler - see mechanical

exit sign - see electrical

fire alarm pull station - see electrical

linear light - see electrical

T

F

fire alarm gong/speaker - see electrical

occupancy sensor - see electrical

supply air - see mechanical

vacancy sensor - see electrical

wall-mounted sprinkler - see mechanical

floor drain - see mechanicalFD

exhaust air - see mechanical

return air - see mechanical

supply air, wall-mounted - see mechanical

camera - see security

WAP - see communications

floor box - see electrical

EX

smoke alarm - see electrical

smoke detector - see electrical

return air, wall-mounted - see mechanical

Copyright reserved. This design and drawing is the exclusive property 
of WMW Public Architecture and Communication Inc. and cannot be 
used for any purpose without the written consent of the Architect. 
This drawing is not to be used for construction until issued for that 
purpose by the Architect. Prior to commencement of the Work the 
Contractor shall verify all dimensions, datums and levels to identify 
any errors and omissions; ascertain any discrepancies between this 
drawing and the full Contract Documents; and, bring these items to 
the attention of the Architect for clarification.

ISSUES + REVISIONS
NO     DATE                     DESCRIPTION

1495 FRANCES STREET
VANCOUVER BC V5L 1Z1
TEL 604 738 4323
WWW.PUBLICDESIGN.CA

PROJECT CODE

SHEET

SCALE

20
22

-0
8-

18
 1

1:
02

:4
8

AM
C

:\
U

se
rs

\W
ilk

in
\D

oc
um

en
ts

\2
01

8 
M

H
S 

60
3 

M
ai

n 
St

_R
20

21
_w

ilk
in

3W
2Z

W
.r

vt

As indicated

G0.02

MHS 603 Main St.

603 Main St., Penticton, BC

2018

Legends and
abbreviations

Keynote Description

GB1 Interior gypsum board for walls and ceilings
GBA1 Corner bead
GBA2 L bead
GBA3 J bead
GBA4 Reveal
GBA5 V reveal
GBA6 F reveal
GBA7 Z reveal
GBA8 W reveal

Keynote legend

A Jan 15, 2015 Revision 1
B May 31, 2022 DP Submission
C Aug 18, 2022 DP - TPC response

DP PL2
02

2-9
38

0 

DRAFT

- 256 -



PID: 005-916-984
CIVIC ADDRESS: 603 MAIN STREET, PENTICTON, B.C.

MANDEVILLE LAND SURVEYING INC.

DAMAGES ARISING OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH ANY DIRECT OR INDIRECT USE
INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, DIRECT, INDIRECT, SPECIAL, AND CONSEQUENTIAL
FOR AND HEREBY DISCLAIM ALL OBLIGATIONS AND LIABILITIES FOR DAMAGES
LAND SURVEYING COMPANY AND SURVEYOR ACCEPT NO RESPONSIBILITY

UNREGISTERED INTERESTS HAVE NOT BEEN CONSIDERED.
SURVEY AUTHORITY RECORDS AND A FIELD SURVEY.
THIS PLAN IS BASED ON LAND TITLE AND

PROFESSIONAL B.C. AND CANADA LAND SURVEYORS
582 MARTIN STREET, PENTICTON, B.C.

PH: 250-488-6377    WEB: MSURVEYING.COM

FILE: 20-174 DWG: 20-174

WHITE AVENUE

M
AIN

 STR
EET

SLAB/FOUNDATION
OLD CONCRETE

bl.

bl.
bl.

bl.

bl.

bl.

EXISTING BUILDING FACE

SCALE  1:250

2.55 15 metres1050

SPOT ELEVATION

BOLLARD
CATCH BASIN

WATER VALVE

FIRE HYDRANT

LAMP STANDARD
OLD SIGN POLE

ALL DIMENSIONS ARE IN METRES AND DECIMALS THEREOF

FIELD SURVEY COMPLETED THIS 16th DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2020.

THIS PLAN IS PREPARED SOLELY FOR A LIMITED
CONTRACTUAL USE BETWEEN MANDEVILLE LAND SURVEYING
AND OUR CLIENT. IT IS NOT TO BE USED FOR THE LOCATION
OF PROPERTY LINES. WE ACCEPT NO RESPONSIBILITY FOR ANY

PENTICTON MONUMENT #4890
ELEVATIONS ARE GEODETIC (ORTHOMETRIC HTv2.0) DERIVED FROM

UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED

UNAUTHORIZED USE.

PIPES IN THIS AREA
TWO YELLOW

LS

LS

LS
FH

GUTTERLINE

G
U

TTER
LIN

E

35
6.7

1

35
6.6

6

35
6.9

8

35
6.6

9

35
6.7

9

35
6.7

6

35
6.5

8

35
6.6

7

35
6.8

4

35
6.9

5

35
7.1

0

35
7.1

5

35
6.8

4

35
6.6

8

35
6.6

7

35
6.4

3

35
6.4

0

35
7.0

635
6.8

9

35
6.6

8

35
6.0

3
35

6.6
2

35
6.1

8

35
6.3

2

35
6.5

1

35
6.6

5

35
6.6

4

35
6.4

2

35
6.7

0

35
6.6

6

35
6.6

4
35

6.5
7

35
6.4

1

35
6.4

4

35
6.3

5

35
6.3

5

35
6.4

1

35
6.5

7

35
6.4

6

35
6.0

0

35
5.9

6

35
6.1

8

35
6.2

3

35
6.3

4

35
6.3

3

35
6.3

7

35
6.4

6

35
6.4

7
35

6.5
1

35
6.3

7

35
6.2

1

35
6.0

8

35
5.8

8

35
5.7

7

35
6.5

9

35
6.5

3

35
6.5

0

35
6.5

0

35
6.4

7

35
6.5

7
35

6.6
9

35
6.8

0
35

6.8
8

35
6.9

8

35
7.1

8

35
6.9

5

35
6.7

5

35
6.3

9

35
6.2

5

35
6.0

1

35
6.9

6

35
6.6

0 35
6.6

3

BO
LLAR

D
S

PAD
C

O
NC.

PAD
C

O
N

C
R

ETE

BRICK

CB

CB

CB

CB

LETDOWN

LETDOWN

LETDOWN

30.511

28.109

28.102

30.465

CEN
TER

 LIN
E O

F PAVED RO
AD

CENTER LINE OF PAVED ROAD

CEN
TER LIN

E O
F PAVED LAN

E
EDG

E O
F ASPHALT

C
O

NCR
ETE SID

EW
ALK

BR
ICK SID

EW
ALK

CONCRETE SIDEWALK

BRICK SIDEWALK

PLAN 269BLOCK 34
2

PLAN 269BLOCK 34
1

PLAN 269BLOCK 34
18

PLAN 24480

LOT A

LAN
E

SITE PLAN SHOWING TOPOGRAPHIC FEATURES ON LOT A, DL 202, SDYD, PLAN 24480

LEGEND

Rescaled to 1:400

Copyright reserved. This design and drawing is the exclusive property 
of WMW Public Architecture and Communication Inc. and cannot be 
used for any purpose without the written consent of the Architect. 
This drawing is not to be used for construction until issued for that 
purpose by the Architect. Prior to commencement of the Work the 
Contractor shall verify all dimensions, datums and levels to identify 
any errors and omissions; ascertain any discrepancies between this 
drawing and the full Contract Documents; and, bring these items to 
the attention of the Architect for clarification.

ISSUES + REVISIONS
NO     DATE                     DESCRIPTION

1495 FRANCES STREET
VANCOUVER BC V5L 1Z1
TEL 604 738 4323
WWW.PUBLICDESIGN.CA

PROJECT CODE

SHEET

SCALE

PROJECT NORTH TRUE NORTH

20
22

-0
8-

18
 1

1:
00

:0
3

AM
C

:\
U

se
rs

\W
ilk

in
\D

oc
um

en
ts

\2
01

8 
M

H
S 

60
3 

M
ai

n 
St

_R
20

21
_w

ilk
in

3W
2Z

W
.r

vt

1 : 100

A0.03

MHS 603 Main St.

603 Main St., Penticton, BC

2018

Survey & grades

B May 31, 2022 DP Submission
C Aug 18, 2022 DP - TPC response

1 : 400  

DP PL2
02

2-9
38

0 

DRAFT

- 257 -



UP

Parkade Entry

Corner 
visiblity 
triangle

White avenue

M
ai

n 
st

re
et

Ex. building

Ex. building

Ex. building

Ex. building

O
n-

gr
ad

e 
pa

rk
in

g 
op

en
 to

 a
bo

ve

2
A0.11

1
A0.11 Ex. building

Ex. building

Ex. building

Legal center line

Property line 356674

356768

356705

356734

356905

4500

45
00

L4/L5 Front yard setback

1125

L4 Rear yard setback

4883

Residential Entry

Setback

Se
tb

ac
k

Se
tb

ac
k

Setback

Setback

Se
tb

ac
k

28
10

9 
P.

L.
 to

 P
.L

.

30465 P.L. to P.L.

28
10

2 
P.

L.
 to

 P
.L

.

Ex. building

Fire Hydrant

2117

Principal 
entrance

Acess route from fire hydrant = 16.5m

Se
tb

ac
k

Se
tb

ac
k

Ex. building

Ex. building

Ex. building

La
ne

w
ay

In
te

ri
or

 s
id

e 
ya

rd
 s

et
ba

ck

23
39

3
A0.11

CRU / Office Entry

Ex. building

Ex. building

Ex. building

Ex. building

Ex. building

356993

356540

356748 356540

356868

4 .0 6%

3.54%

Annuciator

Mailboxes

CRU /Office Entry

356993

356760

356090

1.
94

%
8.

33
%

1.
88

%

356540

356993

2.00%

Fire dept accessR 15000

356993

356640

356867 356910

PMT

30508 P.L. to P.L.

357102

8723

Rear yard setback

3755

L4
/L

5 
Fr

on
t y

a r
d 

se
tb

ac
k

10
63

SM
AL

L 
CA

R
SM

AL
L 

CA
R

Copyright reserved. This design and drawing is the exclusive property 
of WMW Public Architecture and Communication Inc. and cannot be 
used for any purpose without the written consent of the Architect. 
This drawing is not to be used for construction until issued for that 
purpose by the Architect. Prior to commencement of the Work the 
Contractor shall verify all dimensions, datums and levels to identify 
any errors and omissions; ascertain any discrepancies between this 
drawing and the full Contract Documents; and, bring these items to 
the attention of the Architect for clarification.

ISSUES + REVISIONS
NO     DATE                     DESCRIPTION

1495 FRANCES STREET
VANCOUVER BC V5L 1Z1
TEL 604 738 4323
WWW.PUBLICDESIGN.CA

PROJECT CODE

SHEET

SCALE

PROJECT NORTH TRUE NORTH

20
22

-0
8-

18
 1

1:
00

:0
4

AM
C

:\
U

se
rs

\W
ilk

in
\D

oc
um

en
ts

\2
01

8 
M

H
S 

60
3 

M
ai

n 
St

_R
20

21
_w

ilk
in

3W
2Z

W
.r

vt

1 : 200

A0.10

MHS 603 Main St.

603 Main St., Penticton, BC

2018

Site plan

B May 31, 2022 DP Submission
C Aug 18, 2022 DP - TPC response

DP PL2
02

2-9
38

0 

DRAFT

- 258 -



Main Street

Project Site

Main Street
Project site

White Avenue

N

Copyright reserved. This design and drawing is the exclusive property 
of WMW Public Architecture and Communication Inc. and cannot be 
used for any purpose without the written consent of the Architect. 
This drawing is not to be used for construction until issued for that 
purpose by the Architect. Prior to commencement of the Work the 
Contractor shall verify all dimensions, datums and levels to identify 
any errors and omissions; ascertain any discrepancies between this 
drawing and the full Contract Documents; and, bring these items to 
the attention of the Architect for clarification.

ISSUES + REVISIONS
NO     DATE                     DESCRIPTION

1495 FRANCES STREET
VANCOUVER BC V5L 1Z1
TEL 604 738 4323
WWW.PUBLICDESIGN.CA

PROJECT CODE

SHEET

SCALE

20
22

-0
8-

18
 1

1:
00

:3
0

AM
C

:\
U

se
rs

\W
ilk

in
\D

oc
um

en
ts

\2
01

8 
M

H
S 

60
3 

M
ai

n 
St

_R
20

21
_w

ilk
in

3W
2Z

W
.r

vt

1 : 400

A0.11

MHS 603 Main St.

603 Main St., Penticton, BC

2018

Site axonometric
and site sections

/ 1 : 400A0.101

Site Section N-S looking east1

/ 1 : 400A0.101

Site Section N-S looking west2

/ 1 : 400A0.101

Site Section E-W looking north3

B May 31, 2022 DP Submission
C Aug 18, 2022 DP - TPC response

/

Site Axonometric4

DP PL2
02

2-9
38

0 

DRAFT

- 259 -



White ave.

M
ai

n 
st

.

White ave.

M
ai

n 
st

.

White ave.

M
ai

n 
st

.

White ave.

M
ai

n 
st

.

White ave.

M
ai

n 
st

.

White ave.

M
ai

n 
st

.

White ave.

M
ai

n 
st

.

7'
 -

 4
 1

/4
"

22
43 20' - 3 3/4"

6191

16' - 9 3/4"

5125

White ave.

M
ai

n 
st

.

White ave.

M
ai

n 
st

.

Copyright reserved. This design and drawing is the exclusive property 
of WMW Public Architecture and Communication Inc. and cannot be 
used for any purpose without the written consent of the Architect. 
This drawing is not to be used for construction until issued for that 
purpose by the Architect. Prior to commencement of the Work the 
Contractor shall verify all dimensions, datums and levels to identify 
any errors and omissions; ascertain any discrepancies between this 
drawing and the full Contract Documents; and, bring these items to 
the attention of the Architect for clarification.

ISSUES + REVISIONS
NO     DATE                     DESCRIPTION

1495 FRANCES STREET
VANCOUVER BC V5L 1Z1
TEL 604 738 4323
WWW.PUBLICDESIGN.CA

PROJECT CODE

SHEET

SCALE

PROJECT NORTH TRUE NORTH

20
22

-0
8-

18
 1

1:
00

:5
8

AM
C

:\
U

se
rs

\W
ilk

in
\D

oc
um

en
ts

\2
01

8 
M

H
S 

60
3 

M
ai

n 
St

_R
20

21
_w

ilk
in

3W
2Z

W
.r

vt

1 : 600

A0.20

MHS 603 Main St.

603 Main St., Penticton, BC

2018

Shadow study

/ 1 : 600A2.011

Shadow study - 21 Mar 9AM1
/ 1 : 600A2.011

Shadow study - 21 Mar 12PM2
/ 1 : 600A2.011

Shadow study - 21 Mar 5PM3

/ 1 : 600A2.011

Shadow study - 21 Sep 9AM4
/ 1 : 600A2.011

Shadow study - 21 Sep 12PM5
/ 1 : 600A2.011

Shadow study - 21 Sep 5PM6

/ 1 : 600A2.011

Shadow study - 21 Dec 9AM7
/ 1 : 600A2.011

Shadow study - 21 Dec 12PM8
/ 1 : 600A2.011

Shadow study - 21 Dec 5PM9

B May 31, 2022 DP Submission
C Aug 18, 2022 DP - TPC response

DP PL2
02

2-9
38

0 

DRAFT

- 260 -



UP

1

F

3 4

C

2

E

D

Commercial

106

Lobby

100

Commercial

105

Refuse collection

108

A2.01

2

A2.011A2.01 3

A2.01

4

Circulation

101

Elevator

103

Water entry

109

White avenue

M
a

in
 s

tr
e

e
t

356993

356993

356993

356993

PMT

110

15

12

O
n

-g
ra

d
e

 p
a

rk
in

g
 o

p
e

n
 t

o
 a

b
o

ve

360L cart x 6

240L cart x 2

356540

1
.8

8
%

8
.3

3
%

Electrical

107

356540

Bicycle Storage

112

1
.9

4
%

1

2.00%

356993

356900

356640

ø 1500

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

1

A4.01

5

4925 8125 9050 8179

30280

ø 1500

Vestibule

113

Universal WC 1

114

Universal WC 2

115

4000

4
0
0
0

3
0
0

A

3
0
0

2
7
0
0

2
5
0
0

2
5
0
0

2
5
0
0

2
5
0
0

2
5
0
0

2
5
0
0

2
5
0
0

2
5
0
0

3
3
3

B

1
3
2
5

1
4
0
7
5

2
0
5
0

2
5
0
0

7
9
8
1

2
7
9
3
1

S
M

A
L

L
 C

A
R

14

13

12

11

10

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

Jan closet

511

3
7
0
0

3
0
0

4
0
0
0

2
7
0
0

2
7
0
0

2
7
0
0

2
7
0
0

2
7
0
0

1
5
5
0

1415

3
9
2
5

3095

1

S
M

A
L

L
 C

A
R

S
M

A
L

L
 C

A
R

S
M

A
L

L
 C

A
R

S
M

A
L

L
 C

A
R

S
M

A
L

L
 C

A
R

S
M

A
L

L
 C

A
R

S
M

A
L

L
 C

A
R

Copyright reserved. This design and drawing is the exclusive property 

of WMW Public Architecture and Communication Inc. and cannot be 
used for any purpose without the written consent of the Architect. 

This drawing is not to be used for construction until issued for that 

purpose by the Architect. Prior to commencement of the Work the 
Contractor shall verify all dimensions, datums and levels to identify 

any errors and omissions; ascertain any discrepancies between this 

drawing and the full Contract Documents; and, bring these items to 
the attention of the Architect for clarification.

ISSUES + REVISIONS

NO     DATE                     DESCRIPTION

1495 FRANCES STREET

VANCOUVER BC V5L 1Z1

TEL 604 738 4323
WWW.PUBLICDESIGN.CA

PROJECT CODE

SHEET

SCALE

PROJECT NORTH TRUE NORTH

2
0

2
2

-0
8

-1
9

 1
2

:1
7

:0
6

P
M

C
:\

U
se

rs
\W

il
k

in
\D

oc
u

m
e

n
ts

\2
0

1
8

 M
H

S
 6

0
3

 M
a

in
 S

t_
R

2
0

2
1_

w
il

k
in

3
W

2
Z

W
.r

vt

1 : 100

A1.01

MHS 603 Main St.

603 Main St., Penticton, BC

2018

Floor plan - L1

A Jan 15, 2015 Revision 1

B May 31, 2022 DP Submission

C Aug 18, 2022 DP - TPC response

DP PL2
02

2-9
38

0 

DRAFT

- 261 -

Wilkin
Text Box
PARKING OPTION 2: Total Parking stalls = 15Accessible stalls = 1Small car stalls = 8



DN

W/D

1

F

3 4

C

2

E

D

1 bed A -
accessible

204.1

3 bed A
203.1

3 bed B
209.1

1 bed C -
accessible

208.1

1 bed B
206.1

A2.01

2

A2.011A2.01 3

A2.01

4

A2.021 A2.02 2

Bedroom 1
203.2

Bedroom 2
203.3

Bedroom 3
203.4

WC
203.5

Storage
203.6

Bedroom
204.2

WC
204.3

2 bed A
205.1

Bedroom 2
205.3

WC
205.4

Bedroom 1
205.2

Stair
200

Bedroom
206.2

WC
206.3

Bedroom 1
207.2

Bedroom 2
207.3

WC
207.4

WC
208.3

Bedroom
208.2

Bedroom 2
209.3

Bedroom 1
209.2

Bedroom 3
209.4

WC
209.5

Storage
209.6

80548274

Elevator
202

Circulation
201

2 bed B
207.1

1
A4.02

5

13
25

14
07

5
20

50
25

00
79

81

4925 8125 9050 8179

30280

A

B
27

93
1

11
83

Jan closet
210

Elec closet
211

Copyright reserved. This design and drawing is the exclusive property 
of WMW Public Architecture and Communication Inc. and cannot be 
used for any purpose without the written consent of the Architect. 
This drawing is not to be used for construction until issued for that 
purpose by the Architect. Prior to commencement of the Work the 
Contractor shall verify all dimensions, datums and levels to identify 
any errors and omissions; ascertain any discrepancies between this 
drawing and the full Contract Documents; and, bring these items to 
the attention of the Architect for clarification.

ISSUES + REVISIONS
NO     DATE                     DESCRIPTION

1495 FRANCES STREET
VANCOUVER BC V5L 1Z1
TEL 604 738 4323
WWW.PUBLICDESIGN.CA

PROJECT CODE

SHEET

SCALE

PROJECT NORTH TRUE NORTH

20
22

-0
8-

18
 1

1:
01

:0
0

AM
C

:\
U

se
rs

\W
ilk

in
\D

oc
um

en
ts

\2
01

8 
M

H
S 

60
3 

M
ai

n 
St

_R
20

21
_w

ilk
in

3W
2Z

W
.r

vt

1 : 100

A1.02

MHS 603 Main St.

603 Main St., Penticton, BC

2018

Floor plan - L2

B May 31, 2022 DP Submission
C Aug 18, 2022 DP - TPC response

DP PL2
02

2-9
38

0 

DRAFT

- 262 -



1

F

3 4

C

2

E

D

A2.01

2

A2.011A2.01 3

A2.01

4

A2.021 A2.02 2

1 bed A -
accessible

304.1

3 bed A
303.1

3 bed B
309.1

1 bed C -
accessible

308.1

1 bed B
306.1

Bedroom 1
303.2

Bedroom 2
303.3

Bedroom 3
303.4

WC
303.5

Storage
303.6

Bedroom
304.2

WC
304.3

2 bed A
305.1

Bedroom 2
305.3 WC

305.4

Bedroom 1
305.2

Circulation
301

Stair
300

Elevator
302

Bedroom
306.2

WC
306.3

Bedroom
308.2

WC
308.3

Bedroom 2
309.3

Bedroom 1
309.2

Bedroom 3
309.4

WC
309.5

Storage
309.6

3 bed C
307.1

Bedroom 2
307.3

Bedroom 1
307.2

Bedroom 3
307.4

WC
307.6

Storage
307.7

12

5

4925 8125 9050 8179

30280

Storage
307.5

A

B

13
25

14
07

5
20

50
25

00
79

81

27
93

1

Jan closet
310

Elec closet
311

Copyright reserved. This design and drawing is the exclusive property 
of WMW Public Architecture and Communication Inc. and cannot be 
used for any purpose without the written consent of the Architect. 
This drawing is not to be used for construction until issued for that 
purpose by the Architect. Prior to commencement of the Work the 
Contractor shall verify all dimensions, datums and levels to identify 
any errors and omissions; ascertain any discrepancies between this 
drawing and the full Contract Documents; and, bring these items to 
the attention of the Architect for clarification.

ISSUES + REVISIONS
NO     DATE                     DESCRIPTION

1495 FRANCES STREET
VANCOUVER BC V5L 1Z1
TEL 604 738 4323
WWW.PUBLICDESIGN.CA

PROJECT CODE

SHEET

SCALE

PROJECT NORTH TRUE NORTH

20
22

-0
8-

18
 1

1:
01

:0
2

AM
C

:\
U

se
rs

\W
ilk

in
\D

oc
um

en
ts

\2
01

8 
M

H
S 

60
3 

M
ai

n 
St

_R
20

21
_w

ilk
in

3W
2Z

W
.r

vt

1 : 100

A1.03

MHS 603 Main St.

603 Main St., Penticton, BC

2018

Floor plan - L3

B May 31, 2022 DP Submission
C Aug 18, 2022 DP - TPC response

DP PL2
02

2-9
38

0 

DRAFT

- 263 -



DN

1

F

3 4

C

2

E

D

A2.01

2

A2.011A2.01 3

A2.01

4

A2.021 A2.02 2

1 bed A -
accessible

404.1

2 bed C
403.1 2 bed D

409.1

1 bed C -
accessible

408.1

1 bed B
406.1

Bedroom 1
403.2 Storage

403.5

Bedroom 2
403.3

WC
403.4

Bedroom
404.2

WC
404.3

2 bed A
405.1

Bedroom 2
405.3

Bedroom 1
405.2

Circulation
401

Stair
400

Elevator
402

Bedroom
406.2

WC
406.3

Bedroom
408.2

WC
408.3

Storage
409.5

Bedroom 1
409.2

Bedroom 2
409.3

WC
409.4

3 bed C
407.1

Bedroom 2
407.3

Bedroom 1
407.2

Bedroom 3
407.4

WC
407.6

Storage
407.7

12

5

4925 8125 9050 8179

30280

Storage
407.5WC

115

A

B

13
25

14
07

5
20

50
25

00
79

81

27
93

1

Jan closet
410

Elec closet
411

Copyright reserved. This design and drawing is the exclusive property 
of WMW Public Architecture and Communication Inc. and cannot be 
used for any purpose without the written consent of the Architect. 
This drawing is not to be used for construction until issued for that 
purpose by the Architect. Prior to commencement of the Work the 
Contractor shall verify all dimensions, datums and levels to identify 
any errors and omissions; ascertain any discrepancies between this 
drawing and the full Contract Documents; and, bring these items to 
the attention of the Architect for clarification.

ISSUES + REVISIONS
NO     DATE                     DESCRIPTION

1495 FRANCES STREET
VANCOUVER BC V5L 1Z1
TEL 604 738 4323
WWW.PUBLICDESIGN.CA

PROJECT CODE

SHEET

SCALE

PROJECT NORTH TRUE NORTH

20
22

-0
8-

18
 1

1:
01

:0
4

AM
C

:\
U

se
rs

\W
ilk

in
\D

oc
um

en
ts

\2
01

8 
M

H
S 

60
3 

M
ai

n 
St

_R
20

21
_w

ilk
in

3W
2Z

W
.r

vt

1 : 100

A1.04

MHS 603 Main St.

603 Main St., Penticton, BC

2018

Floor plan - L4

B May 31, 2022 DP Submission
C Aug 18, 2022 DP - TPC response

DP PL2
02

2-9
38

0 

DRAFT

- 264 -



DN

1

F

3 4

C

2

E

D

A2.01

2

A2.011A2.01 3

A2.01

4

A2.021 A2.02 2

1 bed A
504.1

2 bed C
503.1

2 bed D
509.1

1 bed C
508.1

1 bed B
506.1

Bedroom 1
503.2 Storage

503.5

Bedroom 2
503.3

WC
503.4

Bedroom
504.2

WC
504.3

2 bed A
505.1

Bedroom 2
505.3

WC
505.4

Bedroom 1
505.2

Circulation
501

Stair
500

Elevator
502

Bedroom
506.2

WC
506.3

Bedroom
508.2

WC
508.3

Storage
509.4

Bedroom 1
509.2

Bedroom 2
509.3

WC
509.5

2 bed B
507.1

Bedroom 1
507.2

Bedroom 2
507.3

WC
507.4

12

5

4925 8125 9050 8179

30280

A

B

13
25

14
07

5
20

50
25

00
79

81

27
93

1

Jan closet
510

Elec closet
511

Copyright reserved. This design and drawing is the exclusive property 
of WMW Public Architecture and Communication Inc. and cannot be 
used for any purpose without the written consent of the Architect. 
This drawing is not to be used for construction until issued for that 
purpose by the Architect. Prior to commencement of the Work the 
Contractor shall verify all dimensions, datums and levels to identify 
any errors and omissions; ascertain any discrepancies between this 
drawing and the full Contract Documents; and, bring these items to 
the attention of the Architect for clarification.

ISSUES + REVISIONS
NO     DATE                     DESCRIPTION

1495 FRANCES STREET
VANCOUVER BC V5L 1Z1
TEL 604 738 4323
WWW.PUBLICDESIGN.CA

PROJECT CODE

SHEET

SCALE

PROJECT NORTH TRUE NORTH

20
22

-0
8-

18
 1

1:
01

:0
6

AM
C

:\
U

se
rs

\W
ilk

in
\D

oc
um

en
ts

\2
01

8 
M

H
S 

60
3 

M
ai

n 
St

_R
20

21
_w

ilk
in

3W
2Z

W
.r

vt

1 : 100

A1.05

MHS 603 Main St.

603 Main St., Penticton, BC

2018

Floor plan - L5

B May 31, 2022 DP Submission
C Aug 18, 2022 DP - TPC response

DP PL2
02

2-9
38

0 

DRAFT

- 265 -



DN

1

F

3 4

C

2

E

D

A2.01

2

A2.011A2.01 3

A2.01

4

A2.021 A2.02 2

1
A3.01

Courtyard @ L2

10
79

13
25

14
07

5
20

50

4925 8125 9050 8179

Mechanical
penthouse

601

Stair
600

2
A3.01

O
n-

gr
ad

e 
pa

rk
in

g 
op

en
 to

 a
bo

ve
  @

  L
1

5

A

B

24
00

37
50

10386

5721

43
78

10686

Outdoor
mechanical space

603

Elevator
602

30280

25
00

79
81

27
93

1

3 4

C

3
A3.01

1
A3.01

2
A3.01

9050

Top of mechanical penthouse

B

Outdoor mechanical space below (open to above)

25
00

Copyright reserved. This design and drawing is the exclusive property 
of WMW Public Architecture and Communication Inc. and cannot be 
used for any purpose without the written consent of the Architect. 
This drawing is not to be used for construction until issued for that 
purpose by the Architect. Prior to commencement of the Work the 
Contractor shall verify all dimensions, datums and levels to identify 
any errors and omissions; ascertain any discrepancies between this 
drawing and the full Contract Documents; and, bring these items to 
the attention of the Architect for clarification.

ISSUES + REVISIONS
NO     DATE                     DESCRIPTION

1495 FRANCES STREET
VANCOUVER BC V5L 1Z1
TEL 604 738 4323
WWW.PUBLICDESIGN.CA

PROJECT CODE

SHEET

SCALE

PROJECT NORTH TRUE NORTH

20
22

-0
8-

18
 1

1:
01

:0
7

AM
C

:\
U

se
rs

\W
ilk

in
\D

oc
um

en
ts

\2
01

8 
M

H
S 

60
3 

M
ai

n 
St

_R
20

21
_w

ilk
in

3W
2Z

W
.r

vt

1 : 100

A1.06

MHS 603 Main St.

603 Main St., Penticton, BC

2018

Roof plan

/ 1 : 100A2.011

Floor plan - Roof1

B May 31, 2022 DP Submission
C Aug 18, 2022 DP - TPC response

/ 1 : 100A2.011

T/O elevator overrun2

DP PL2
02

2-9
38

0 

DRAFT

- 266 -



Level 1 0

Level 2 4620

Level 3 7620

Level 4 10620

Level 5 13620

Roof 16584

T/O parapet 17134

F CE D

26
86

55
0

29
64

30
00

30
00

30
00

46
20

1325 14075 2050 2500 7981

376360 P.L.P.L.

357100
356660

E1.1

E2.1

Level 1 CRU 453

E2.1

E1.1

Exterior shade (typical)

Exterior shade (typical)

41
67

45
3

T/O elevator overrun 19820

17
13

4

367660

370660

AB

27931

P3.1G1.2 G1.1

E2.2

P3.1G1.1

Level 1 0

Level 2 4620

Level 3 7620

Level 4 10620

Level 5 13620

Roof 16584

T/O parapet 17134

134 2

46
20

30
00

30
00

30
00

29
64

55
0

26
86

4925812590508179

P.L. P.L.

356660
356356

E2.1

E1.1

G1.1

Metal fence

370663

Level 1 CRU 453

P1.2

45
3

41
67

T/O elevator overrun 19820

17
13

4

G1.2

376360

Building 
Signage

5

30280

E2.2

P3.1P3.1

Level 1 0

Level 2 4620

Level 3 7620

Level 4 10620

Level 5 13620

Roof 16584

T/O parapet 17134

FC ED

26
86

55
0

29
64

30
00

30
00

30
00

46
20

7981 2500 2050 14075 1325

P.L. P.L.

356241

E2.1

Metal fence Roof canopy

Building height - 15.0m max

Proposed building height - 17.24m

T/O mech penthouse - 19.92m

367663

376370

Level 1 CRU 453

356677

41
67

45
3

T/O elevator overrun 19820

17
13

4

356439

371439

373677

A B

27931

E1.1

E2.1E2.2

Level 1 0

Level 2 4620

Level 3 7620

Level 4 10620

Level 5 13620

Roof 16584

T/O parapet 17134

1 3 42

26
86

55
0

29
64

30
00

30
00

30
00

46
20

4925 8125 9050 8179

P.L. P.L.

356660
357097

E2.1 E2.1

E1.1

Metal picket guardRoof canopy

367663367663

Level 1 CRU 453

E2.1

Existing firewall

41
67

45
3

T/O elevator overrun 19820

17
13

4

376360

5

30280

E1.1

E1.1E1.1 E1.1E1.2E1.2

Copyright reserved. This design and drawing is the exclusive property 
of WMW Public Architecture and Communication Inc. and cannot be 
used for any purpose without the written consent of the Architect. 
This drawing is not to be used for construction until issued for that 
purpose by the Architect. Prior to commencement of the Work the 
Contractor shall verify all dimensions, datums and levels to identify 
any errors and omissions; ascertain any discrepancies between this 
drawing and the full Contract Documents; and, bring these items to 
the attention of the Architect for clarification.

ISSUES + REVISIONS
NO     DATE                     DESCRIPTION

1495 FRANCES STREET
VANCOUVER BC V5L 1Z1
TEL 604 738 4323
WWW.PUBLICDESIGN.CA

PROJECT CODE

SHEET

SCALE

20
22

-0
8-

18
 1

1:
01

:3
9

AM
C

:\
U

se
rs

\W
ilk

in
\D

oc
um

en
ts

\2
01

8 
M

H
S 

60
3 

M
ai

n 
St

_R
20

21
_w

ilk
in

3W
2Z

W
.r

vt

1 : 100

A2.01

MHS 603 Main St.

603 Main St., Penticton, BC

2018

Building elevations

/ 1 : 100A1.011

Building elevation - east1
/ 1 : 100A1.011

Building elevation - north2

/ 1 : 100A1.011

Building elevation - west3
/ 1 : 100A1.011

Building elevation - south4

Exterior material schedule

Type Type Mark

E1.1 - Exterior cladding - stucco E1.1
E1.2 - Exterior cladding - stucco (raked and
impregnated)

E1.2

E2.1 - Exterior cladding - metal siding E2.1
E2.2 - Mechanical screen E2.2
G1.1 - Storefront glazing G1.1
G1.2 - Storefront spandrel G1.2
W1.1 - White concrete partition 200mm P1.1
W1.1 - White concrete column 400mm P1.2
P2.1 - Concrete Masonry Unit 254mm -
painted white

P2.1

P2.2 - Concrete Masonry Unit 152 + 76mm
insulation

P2.2

P3.1

B May 31, 2022 DP Submission
C Aug 18, 2022 DP - TPC response

DP PL2
02

2-9
38

0 

DRAFT

- 267 -



Level 1 0

Level 2 4620

Level 3 7620

Level 4 10620

Level 5 13620

Roof 16584

T/O parapet 17134

F E D
32

36
29

64
30

00
30

00
30

00
46

20

1325 14075

15400

E2.1

Metal fence

361160

367663

Level 1 CRU 453

W2.1

41
67

45
3

T/O elevator overrun 19820

17
13

4

Level 1 0

Level 2 4620

Level 3 7620

Level 4 10620

Level 5 13620

Roof 16584

T/O parapet 17134

FED

32
36

29
64

30
00

30
00

30
00

46
20

14075 1325

15400

E2.1

367663

Level 1 CRU 453

17
13

4

41
67

45
3

T/O elevator overrun 19820

W1.1

Copyright reserved. This design and drawing is the exclusive property 
of WMW Public Architecture and Communication Inc. and cannot be 
used for any purpose without the written consent of the Architect. 
This drawing is not to be used for construction until issued for that 
purpose by the Architect. Prior to commencement of the Work the 
Contractor shall verify all dimensions, datums and levels to identify 
any errors and omissions; ascertain any discrepancies between this 
drawing and the full Contract Documents; and, bring these items to 
the attention of the Architect for clarification.

ISSUES + REVISIONS
NO     DATE                     DESCRIPTION

1495 FRANCES STREET
VANCOUVER BC V5L 1Z1
TEL 604 738 4323
WWW.PUBLICDESIGN.CA

PROJECT CODE

SHEET

SCALE

20
22

-0
8-

18
 1

1:
02

:0
2

AM
C

:\
U

se
rs

\W
ilk

in
\D

oc
um

en
ts

\2
01

8 
M

H
S 

60
3 

M
ai

n 
St

_R
20

21
_w

ilk
in

3W
2Z

W
.r

vt

1 : 100

A2.02

MHS 603 Main St.

603 Main St., Penticton, BC

2018

Building elevations

/ 1 : 100A1.021

Courtyard elevation - east1
/ 1 : 100A1.021

Courtyard elevation - west2

B May 31, 2022 DP Submission
C Aug 18, 2022 DP - TPC response

Exterior material schedule

Type Type Mark

E1.1 - Exterior cladding - stucco E1.1
E1.2 - Exterior cladding - stucco (raked and
impregnated)

E1.2

E2.1 - Exterior cladding - metal siding E2.1
E2.2 - Mechanical screen E2.2
G1.1 - Storefront glazing G1.1
G1.2 - Storefront spandrel G1.2
W1.1 - White concrete partition 200mm P1.1
W1.1 - White concrete column 400mm P1.2
P2.1 - Concrete Masonry Unit 254mm -
painted white

P2.1

P2.2 - Concrete Masonry Unit 152 + 76mm
insulation

P2.2

P3.1

DP PL2
02

2-9
38

0 

DRAFT

- 268 -



City of

´

City of Penticton Web Map

Ter ms of Use : The City of Penticton is a depository of public information in both printed and digital form. The source,

accuracy and completeness  of this information varies. As a result, the City does  not warrant in any way the mapping

information including the accuracy or suitability thereof. The user of this  information does so at their own risk and

should not rely upon the information without independent verification as to the accuracy or suitability thereof.

1:720

0

50

25

Meters

 May 20, 2022 3:08:38 PM

Coordinate System: NAD 1983 CSRS UTM Zone 11N

DOWNTOWN BOULEVARD

TREE PLANTING

APPROVED DWG NO.

August, 2019

S-R18b

SCALE

NTS

REV

1

STANDARD DETAIL DRAWINGS

DP PL2
02

2-9
38

0 

DRAFT

- 269 -



City of

´

City of Penticton Web Map

Ter ms of Use : The City of Penticton is a depository of public information in both printed and digital form. The source,

accuracy and completeness  of this information varies. As a result, the City does  not warrant in any way the mapping

information including the accuracy or suitability thereof. The user of this  information does so at their own risk and

should not rely upon the information without independent verification as to the accuracy or suitability thereof.

1:720

0

50

25

Meters

 May 20, 2022 3:08:38 PM

Coordinate System: NAD 1983 CSRS UTM Zone 11N

DP PL2
02

2-9
38

0 

DRAFT

- 270 -



Metal siding system in copper color

E2.1
E2.3
G1.2

Stucco in pearl white color

E1.1
                                P2.1 (matching color paint)
                                P2.2 (matching color paint)

Vinyl in black color Fair-faced concrete

Typical unit windows and spandrels P3.1

MHS 603 Main

DP PL2
02

2-9
38

0 

DRAFT

- 271 -



- 272 -



- 273 -



Late Submission for item 7.13 - 
DVP PL2022-9381 / DP PL2022-9380 -

603 Main Street



Late Submission for item 7.13 - 
DVP PL2022-9381 / DP PL2022-9380 -

603 Main Street



Late Submission for item 7.13 - 
DVP PL2022-9381 / DP PL2022-9380 -

603 Main Street







Attn: Corporate Office, City of Penticton, Audrey Tanquay

SUBJECT:603 Main St.

Letter regarding proposed five (5) story low-income units in Penticton, BC at 603 Main St. from amending OCP ByJaw of only three

(3) stories to five I was strongly against as well for reason below earlier email in December 2020 as well in City council I Zoom]

meeting: which was a total train wreck regards to persons presentations (audio), static interruptions, screen distorted to freezing, etc. thus a lot of audio content

'for or against'adding 5 stories'the oCP and By-law amend plan'all translation'lost. There should have been a re-scheduled public meeting.

The steady lncrease {on-going problems) continues to disrupt 500 - 600 block businesses daily operations, family's safety, seniors,

young people walking thro to schools, parking lot, church, or home. We have since had to add more security and fencing to

protecting y/our own homes in the 500 - 600 block radius. Businesses insurances have increased due to [break-ins, smashed

windows / damaged broken doors / stolen goodsl etc. and external damages to buildings. This as well happens up and into the

downtoVvn core. The street person(s) feels ownership and 'entitlement'to comb and sit on your porch, plug in their phone devices

during our business hours, camp out on property, etc. intimates all clients trying to access our businesses, to losing those clients.

Since 2015 - 2022, By-law and or Police call out service has increased up Io 2O0To from residents and businesses in 500-600 block,

which is now considered a 'high risk' area by both departments. Response times hindered due by more urgent matters [Bylaw or

Police) getting to us, or not, including Ambulance service or Fire department.

Our concerns (residents / businesses) is that the M'AKOLA Development housing units, property owners and residents will now

experience these same drug activities, related crimes, and personal property, (car, etc.) damages. Alleyways and Main Street

problems have increased tenfold since 20L5 with all businesses or residents havingto clean up afterthey leave attimes.

A more open public input and communication regarding the Makola Development site proceeding (adding 5 stories to 53% parking)

from the origina13 stories and 25o/o parking plan. Three btory cir five storie5 either way'will have a profound impact on our immediate

neighborhood residents, property values, personal safety of senioi3; families, businesses, walking our streets and homeowners.

Makola 603 Project needs to serve their (1't) preference by being on First Nations land supporting their people. Which begs the
question: Why not on Penticton lndian Band or other native land? Costs to taxpayers build on 603 Main St. Penticton proposed site.?

.,.,,- irrr Hhi,!lr-!\rr, r!Jq1..je f1.rlJ!t ija (1ltcr rro..

No doubt the "Makola' housing proposal will add to the current 'street-crime' problems already associated with the 'soup kitchen' as

welf the NEW'Burdock House' problems (we're) already dealing with. So, adding another housing [five story] project is beyond

being reasonable or showing any consideration of our already 'fragile''unsafe neighborhoods, to enjoying our home, doing yard

work, running our businesses, attending church, oi fe?:ling safe on cjur owrl comtnunity' [500-6001 street block and neighborhoods.

Why are we being subjected to and surrounded by BC Housing or NEW housing projects? Residents, RCMP / gy-law can't currently

cope by adding more 'with-in a block' radius of all,the above,properties [ploplgmsl,;nentigned. This will impact our own comfort of

and safety in our own place of worship, businesses, shopping, retirement homes, our homes, and neighborhoods. The NEW Makola

housing proposal location is not a neighborhood fiU whether three or five stories. Problems to come will certainly devastate our

neighborhood even more.

Regards,

Denis Chaykowski, 570 Martin St. V2A 514 Penticton, BC

't 4,530/ 7() z?--

Late Submission for item 7.13 - 
DVP PL2022-9381 / DP PL2022-9380 -

603 Main Street



 

 
Council Report 

 

   

 

 

Date: September 6, 2022     File No:    RMS/4025 Lakeside Rd 
To: Donny van Dyk, Chief Administrative Officer 
From: Steven Collyer, Planner II 
Address: 4025 Lakeside Road 
 
Subject: Development Variance Permit PL2022-9389 
 

Staff Recommendation 

THAT Council approve “Development Variance Permit PL2022-9389” for Lot 1 District Lot 190 Similkameen 
Division Yale District Plan EPP120561, located at 4025 Lakeside Road, a permit to vary the following sections 
of Zoning Bylaw 2021-01 to allow for an addition onto the existing single detached dwelling: 

• Section 10.1.2.4.a: to increase the maximum principal building height from 10.5m to 11.4m; 
• Section 10.1.2.5: to reduce the minimum front yard setback from 6.0m to 4.0m; 

AND THAT Council direct staff to issue the permit. 

Strategic Priority Objective 

Community Vitality: The City of Penticton, guided by the Official Community Plan, will promote the 
economic wellbeing and vitality of the community.  

Proposal 

The applicant is proposing to construct an addition on the existing single detached home on the subject 
property. The addition includes an attached garage on the street facing side of the house, constructing 
additional living space on the west side of the home towards the lake, replacing the existing second floor 
with a rooftop deck over the expanded main floor, and installing an elevator to exit into a rift in the bedrock 
to provide access to the lake. The applicant describes the proposal in more detail in their Letter of Intent 
(Attachment ‘E’).  

To facilitate the proposed addition, a development variance permit application has been submitted to the 
City to vary two sections of Zoning Bylaw 2021-01. The applicant is requesting that the maximum building 
height be increased from 10.5m to 11.4m and that the minimum front yard setback be reduced from 6.0m to 
4.0m. All other applicable R1 zone regulations have been met with the proposed design. 

  

- 274 -



 
Council Report  Page 2 of 16 

Background 

The subject property is located on the west side of Lakeside Road, near Finnerty Road (Figure 1). The 
property contains a single detached dwelling originally 
constructed in 1951 and a detached garage built in 1958. 
The buildings are constructed on exposed bedrock 
which results in variable grading across the lot 
(Attachment ‘D’). Surrounding land uses are low-density 
residential homes, with a mix of older homes and new 
construction immediately around the property. The 
subject property is zoned R1 (Large Lot Residential) in 
the Zoning Bylaw and designated as ‘Detached 
Residential’ in the Official Community Plan.  

The property is located adjacent to Skaha Lake and is 
within the Riparian and Environmental Development 
Permit Areas as outlined by the Official Community Plan 
(OCP) (Attachment ‘C’). As such, the applicant will 
require an issued Riparian Development Permit prior to 
applying for the building permit and commencing 
construction. The applicant has retained a Qualified 
Environmental Professional (QEP) who has completed a 
review of the proposed works and submitted a riparian 
report to the Province for approval.  

The applicant has begun some works on the property near Lakeside Road, which is outside the Riparian 
Development Permit Area. The applicant is installing a U-shaped driveway, under an approved driveway 
permit issued by the City, to help address the current access situation and allow for easier ingress and egress 
between the property and Lakeside Road, which has some visibility concerns in this area, as noted in the 
letter of intent (Attachment ‘E’). 

Climate Impact 

The proposed construction is an addition onto an existing single detached dwelling. Additions do not need 
to meet the BC Energy Step Code requirements. The reduced front yard setback and increased building 
height does not have an impact on the Community Climate Action Plan goals.  

Technical Review 

This application was reviewed by the City’s Technical Planning Committee, a group of internal staff who 
review development applications. No concerns were raised related the two requested variances. Staff 
confirmed the need for a Riparian Development Permit prior to the building permit stage. Comments related 
to the future building permit application were also provided to the applicant, to help expedite that future 
approvals process should Council ultimately approve the requested variances. 

  

Figure 1 - Property location map 

- 275 -



 
Council Report  Page 3 of 16 

Development Statistics 

The following table outlines how the proposed development meets the applicable Zoning Bylaw 
regulations: 

 R1 Zone Requirement  Provided on Plans 
Maximum Lot Coverage: 40% 35% 
Required Setbacks 
Front Yard (Lakeside Rd): 
Side Yard (north): 
Side Yard (south): 
Rear Yard (Skaha Lake): 

 
6.0 m 
1.5 m 
1.5 m 
6.0 m 

 
4.0 m – Variance Requested 
2.0 m 
1.6 m 
15.6 m 

Maximum Building Height 10.5 m 11.4m – Variance Requested 

Analysis 

When considering a variance application, staff encourage Council to consider whether approval of the 
variance would cause a negative impact on neighbouring properties and if the variance request is 
reasonable. Staff have reviewed the requested variances and are recommending support for both variances 
for the following reasons: 

1. Section 10.1.2.4.a: to increase the maximum permitted principal building height from 10.5m to 
11.4m: 

a. The proposal involves an addition onto the existing single detached dwelling, 
b. The east-side base of the existing dwelling is set 1-2m below the road which helps reduce its 

visual height from the street, 
c. The completed dwelling will be a single storey home with a rooftop patio area and elevator 

housing, 
d. The subject property has a substantial grade change of approximately 13m, dropping down 

from east to west towards the lake, 
e. Building height is measured from the base of the support posts (located on the west side of 

house) to the top of the pergola attached to the rooftop patio area (Figure 2),  
f. From the street, the additional 0.9m building height being requested will not be noticeable, 

as the highest section of the building faces out towards the lake, 
g. Neighbouring homes have been constructed with a similar building height, with a house to 

the south (4039 Lakeside Road) recently approved for 11.2m building height through a 
Development Variance Permit, 

h. The applicant has considered potential impacts to the views of neighbours on Finnerty Road 
to the east in their design, as per their Letter of Intent (Attachment ‘E’), and 

i. Negative impacts to neighbouring property owners are not anticipated: 
i. A letter of support was submitted from the direct neighbour to the south – 4037 

Lakeside Road (Attachment ‘F’). 

- 276 -



 
Council Report  Page 4 of 16 

 

Figure 2 - Rendering of the west (lake-side) facade of the proposed addition. Building height is measured from the average of 
the support posts below the addition to the top of the rooftop deck pergola (red arrow). 

2. Section 10.1.2.5: to reduce the minimum front yard setback from 6.0m to 4.0m: 
a. The proposal involves an addition onto the existing house, which is currently placed in a way 

that does not allow space for the garage portion of the addition to meet the minimum 6.0m 
front yard setback in the R1 zone, 

b. The addition design provides the garage door facing parallel to the street, rather than 
towards the street, keeping with the intent of the new U-driveway, 

c. The addition was designed with the Riparian DP guidelines in mind, siting the addition closer 
to the street rather than to the lake, 

d. Due to the significant grade changes on this lot, less lot regrading is required for a street-side 
addition compared to building closer to the lake side, and 

e. Other properties on the west side of Lakeside Road have been developed under a reduced 
front yard setback due to similar grading challenges, for example the neighbour to the south 
was approved for a 3.0m front yard setback granted through a Development Variance 
Permit. 

Given the reasons above, staff consider the two requested variances to be reasonable in this instance and 
recommend that Council direct staff to issue the permit. 

Alternate Recommendations 

Council, after reviewing any correspondence from impacted neighbours, may consider the requested 
variance is undesirable or could cause negative impacts to surrounding residents. If this is the case, staff 
recommend that the applicant be given an opportunity to address Council. Alternatively, Council may deny 
the application. 

1. THAT Council, after hearing from the applicant, deny “Development Variance Permit PL2022-9389”. 

  

- 277 -



 
Council Report  Page 5 of 16 

Attachments 

Attachment A – Zoning Map 
Attachment B – Official Community Plan Map 
Attachment C – Riparian Development Permit Area Map 
Attachment D – Photos of Property 
Attachment E – Letter of Intent 
Attachment F – Letter of Support (neighbour) 
Attachment G – Draft Development Variance Permit PL2022-9389 
 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Steven Collyer, RPP, MCIP 
Planner II 

 

Concurrence  

Director of 
Development Services 

Chief Administrative 
Officer 

BL 
 

DvD 
 

 

 

  

- 278 -



 
Council Report  Page 6 of 16 

Attachment A – Zoning Map

 
  

- 279 -



 
Council Report  Page 7 of 16 

Attachment B – Official Community Plan Map

 
  

- 280 -



 
Council Report  Page 8 of 16 

Attachment C – Riparian Development Permit Area Map

 
  

- 281 -



 
Council Report  Page 9 of 16 

Attachment D – Photos of Property

Subject Property: 
4025 Lakeside Rd 

Lakeside Rd 

Future U-driveway 

- 282 -



 
Council Report  Page 10 of 16 

Grade Change 
Subject Property: 
4025 Lakeside Rd 

- 283 -



 
Council Report  Page 11 of 16 

Detached garage to be demolished 
Subject Property: 4025 Lakeside Rd 

Homes on Finnerty Rd 

- 284 -



 
Council Report  Page 12 of 16 

Subject Property: 
4025 Lakeside Rd 

Exposed Bedrock 

- 285 -



 
Council Report  Page 13 of 16 

 

Subject Property: 
4025 Lakeside Rd 

Exposed Bedrock 

Exposed Bedrock 

Bottom of 
future elevator 

- 286 -



 
Council Report  Page 14 of 16 

  

4023 Lakeside Rd 
(northern neighbour) 

Subject Property: 
4025 Lakeside Rd 

- 287 -



 
Council Report  Page 15 of 16 

Attachment E – Letter of Intent 

 
  

- 288 -



 
Council Report  Page 16 of 16 

Attachment F – Letter of Support (neighbour) 
 

 

- 289 -



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DRAFT

- 290 -



DRAFT

- 291 -



 3
3
9
 

3
4
0

 3
4

1
 

3
4
2

 3
4
3
 

 3
4
4
 

 345 

3
4
6

 3
4
7
 

 3
4
8
 

4025

L
a
k
e
s
id

e
 R

d

Property Line
26.19

Skaha Lake Project Lot

Proposed 
House

4035

4023

4037

Pr
op

er
ty

 L
in
e

4.
07

Property Line

4.53

Property Line
11.65

P
ro

pe
rt

y 
Li

n
e

1
5
.2

2

Property Line
44.51

P
ro

pe
rt

y 
Li

n
e

1
5
.2

4

Property Line

Property Line
16.99

P
ro

pe
rt

y 
Li

n
e

1
7
.1

8

6
.0

m
 F

ro
n
t

S
et

ba
ck

6
.0

m
 F

ro
n
t

S
et

ba
ck

1.5m Side Setback

6.0m Rear 

Setback

6
.0

m
 R

ea
r

S
et

ba
ck

1.5m Side Setback

water line

Property Line
13.95

HWM Line (338.10)

Natural Boundary

Existing Retaining wallExisting Retaining wall

Existing Retaining wall

Retaining wall

E
xistin

g R
etain

in
g w

all
Existing Retaining wall

E
xistin

g
 R

etain
in

g w
all

Bottom of Rock

Bottom of Rock

B
o
tto

m
 o

f R
o
ck

To
p 

of
 R

oc
k

Top of Rock

E
xi

st
in

g 
C
on

c.
 W

al
l

C
o
n
c.

 W
al

l

15m Riparian setback

New
 5

 fo
ot

 r
et

ain
in
g 

wa
ll

4
.0

m
 F

ro
n
t

S
et

ba
ck

 V
ar

ia
n
ce

4
.0

m
 F

ro
n
t

S
et

ba
ck

 V
ar

ia
n
ce

Proposed 
Garage

3.66 m

3.41 m

4.03 m

4.26 m
Li
ne

 o
f e

xis
tin

g 
fo

ot
pr

in
t

Li
ne

 o
f e

xis
tin

g 
fo

ot
pr

in
t

5.
74

 m7.
42

 m

13
.4

6 
m

16.04 m

15.57 m
12" roof overhang on north sides

2
4
" 
ro

o
f 

o
ve

rh
an

g
 o

n
 g

ar
ag

e

Li
ne

 o
f 

ex
is

ti
ng

 g
ar

ag
e

Slope

S
lo

pe
S

lo
pe

8.10 m

1.
62

 m

ROW

ed
ge

 o
f 

ro
ad

 c
u
rb

11.41 m

Driveway Drain

base meter 
location

Existing 
Utility 
pole to 
be moved

pedestrian entrance / 

natural depression

Rooftop Deck

Elevator

Location of 
new utility 
pole

348.768

344.672

343.449

345.071

343.301

345.197

346.457

350.928

Exist

1.51 m

Ex
ist1.

46
 m

4'-0" concrete pony wall

Project / Zoning Data
Project address: 4025 Lakeside Road, Penticton, BC
Legal description: Lot A, District Lot 190, Similkameen Div of Yale, District Plan KAP48810
Zoning: R1 (Large Lot Residential)
ALR: No
Site area: 14,200 SQFT (0.326 Acres)
Footprints:

Proposed Dwelling: 4,990 - SQFT

NOTES***
Builder is to confirm building locations with owner prior to construction & confirm existing conditions
Roof drainage system splash pads required for roof rain water leaders as per geotech.
No vented soffiting an any overhang that is within 1.2m of property line. If soffit is vented within 1.2m fire blocking 
at eaves is required.

Penticton bylaw requirements for principal dwellings in R1 zones:

Maximum lot coverage: 40 % 
Maximum height: 10.5 m
Setbacks:

Front yard: 6.0 m
Interior side yard: 1.5 m
Exterior side yard: 3.0 m
Rear yard: 6.0 m

Proposed Elevations
Garage - 350.892
Main floor - 349.939
Top of roof - 354.854

Appurtenances consisting less than 10% of roof area can project 
beyond height limit.

Appurtenance at 3.89% (Elevator Shaft)
Appurtenance at 4.90% (Garage Upper Roof)

Project bylaw summary:

Lot coverage: 463.59 m² (35.14%)
Height: 11.39 m (Variance)
Setbacks:

Front yard: 4.03 m (Variance)
Rear yard: 13.46 m
Interior side yard: 1.46 m (North - Existing)
Exterior side yard: N/A

N

JOB NO.
SCALE

DATE

SHEET NUMBER

THIS PLAN AND DESIGN IS AND AT ALL TIMES 
REMAINS THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY OF 
GARTNERS CUSTOM HOUSE DESIGNS (GCHD) 
AND MAY NOT BE USED OR DUPLICATED 
WITHOUT THE GCHD'S WRITTEN CONSENT. GCHD 
SHALL BE INFORMED OF ANY VARIATIONS FROM 
INFORMATION SHOWN ON THIS DRAWING.

Gartner's Custom House Designs
168 - 1458 Penticton Ave
Penticton, BC | V2A 8L3

(250) 487 8278
www.gartnersdesigns.com
gartnersdesign@gmail.com

DRAWING TITLE

PROJECT TITLE

CONTRACTORS ARE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE 
VERIFICATION OF ALL DIMENSIONS AND SITE 
CONDITIONS PRIOR TO ANY CONSTRUCTION OR 
FABRICATION. ANY DISCREPANCIES ARE TO  BE 
BROUGHT TO THE IMMEDIATE ATTENTION OF THE 
DEVELOPER

Th
is

 d
ra

w
in

g 
sh

al
l 

n
o
t 

be
 r

ep
ro

du
ce

d 
o
r 

re
vi

se
d 

w
it

h
o
ut

 t
h
e 

w
ri

tt
en

 c
o
n
ce

n
t 

fr
o
m
 t

h
e 

de
si

gn
er

th
e 

co
n
tr

ac
to

r 
sh

al
l 

ch
ec

k 
an

d 
ve

ri
fy

 a
ll

 d
im

en
si

o
n
s 

an
d 

re
po

rt
 a

ll
 e

rr
o
rs

 a
n
d 

o
m
is

si
o
n
s 

to
 t

h
e 

de
si

gn
er

D
o
 n

o
t 

sc
al

e 
an

y 
o
f 

th
e 

dr
aw

in
g 

sh
ee

ts

ONE OF GCHD'S GOALS IS TO IMPROVE THESE 
DRAWINGS.
FEEDBACK IS IMPORTANT. THERE MAY BE 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION NEEDED OR THERE 
MIGHT BE A BETTER WAY TO BUILD. GCHD 
WOULD LIKE TO HEAR ABOUT IT.
LET US KNOW IF THESE DRAWINGS CAN BE MADE 
BETTER FOR YOU.

As indicated

Gardner
Renovation

A101
Site Plan & Site

Information

July 19, 2022

220401

1/8" = 1'-0"1 Site

No. DATE REVISION

1 06/10/2022 Issue for Variance

Sch
edule 'A

' 

DVP PL2022-9389

- 292 -



Garage
4' - 1 1/2"

T/O Roof
22' - 4"

Main Floor
1' - 4"

Roof Deck
13' - 4"

Supporting structure by others

Lowest Point
-15' - 0 15/32"

M
ax

 =
 1

0.
5 m

11
.3

9 
m

Garage door

Concrete retaining wall

Fascia board

Vertical corrugated metal siding

Vertical corrugated metal siding

Existing Foundation

GlazingGlazing Glazing Glazing Glazing

Fascia board

Fascia board

Fascia board

Vertical 
corrugated 
metal siding

Vertical corrugated metal siding

Rooftop pergola

(345.051)

(350.041)

(350.892)

(353.699)

9'
-0

"
9'

-2
 1

/2
"

2'
-9

 1
/2

"
16

'-4
 1

/2
"

2.
74

3 
m

2.
80

7 
m

0.
85

1 
m

4.
99

0 
m

T/O Existing
House

18' - 11 11/32" (355.410)

(356.442)

Garage
4' - 1 1/2"

T/O Roof
22' - 4"

Roof Deck
13' - 4"

Vertical corrugated metal siding

Garage door

Concrete 
wall

Concrete retaining wall

Glazing Glazing Glazing

Glazing Glazing

Fascia board Fascia board

Fascia board

Vertical 
corrugated 
metal siding

Vertical 
corrugated metal 

siding

Vertical corrugated 
metal siding

(350.892)

(353.699)

9'
-0

"
9'

-2
 1

/2
"

2.
74

3 
m

2.
80

7 
m

T/O Existing
House

18' - 11 11/32" (355.410)

(356.442)

JOB NO.
SCALE

DATE

SHEET NUMBER

THIS PLAN AND DESIGN IS AND AT ALL TIMES 
REMAINS THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY OF 
GARTNERS CUSTOM HOUSE DESIGNS (GCHD) 
AND MAY NOT BE USED OR DUPLICATED 
WITHOUT THE GCHD'S WRITTEN CONSENT. GCHD 
SHALL BE INFORMED OF ANY VARIATIONS FROM 
INFORMATION SHOWN ON THIS DRAWING.

Gartner's Custom House Designs
168 - 1458 Penticton Ave
Penticton, BC | V2A 8L3

(250) 487 8278
www.gartnersdesigns.com
gartnersdesign@gmail.com

DRAWING TITLE

PROJECT TITLE

CONTRACTORS ARE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE 
VERIFICATION OF ALL DIMENSIONS AND SITE 
CONDITIONS PRIOR TO ANY CONSTRUCTION OR 
FABRICATION. ANY DISCREPANCIES ARE TO  BE 
BROUGHT TO THE IMMEDIATE ATTENTION OF THE 
DEVELOPER

Th
is

 d
ra

w
in

g 
sh

al
l 

n
o
t 

be
 r

ep
ro

du
ce

d 
o
r 

re
vi

se
d 

w
it

h
o
ut

 t
h
e 

w
ri

tt
en

 c
o
n
ce

n
t 

fr
o
m
 t

h
e 

de
si

gn
er

th
e 

co
n
tr

ac
to

r 
sh

al
l 

ch
ec

k 
an

d 
ve

ri
fy

 a
ll

 d
im

en
si

o
n
s 

an
d 

re
po

rt
 a

ll
 e

rr
o
rs

 a
n
d 

o
m
is

si
o
n
s 

to
 t

h
e 

de
si

gn
er

D
o
 n

o
t 

sc
al

e 
an

y 
o
f 

th
e 

dr
aw

in
g 

sh
ee

ts

ONE OF GCHD'S GOALS IS TO IMPROVE THESE 
DRAWINGS.
FEEDBACK IS IMPORTANT. THERE MAY BE 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION NEEDED OR THERE 
MIGHT BE A BETTER WAY TO BUILD. GCHD 
WOULD LIKE TO HEAR ABOUT IT.
LET US KNOW IF THESE DRAWINGS CAN BE MADE 
BETTER FOR YOU.

1/4" = 1'-0"

Gardner
Renovation

A301
North & East

Elevations

July 19, 2022

220401

Elevation & Exterior Notes

No. DATE REVISION

1 06/10/2022 Issue for Variance

1.   Windows 9.7.4.2 2018 BCBC - All windows, doors and skylights to conform to NAFS and A440S1. 
Minimum rating requirement of PG20 for buildings less than 10m in height.
2.   Top of windows are assumed to be 6'-8" above subfloor except where indicated.
3.   Resistance to forced entry required for windows within 2.0m of finished grade
4.   Flashing installation 9.27.3.8.2018 BCBC - Flashing required above & below all unprotected 
openings & horizontal transitions. Flashing to be minimum 50mm upwards inboard of the sheathing 
membrane. Slope not less then 6% towards the exterior. Terminate at each end with a dam
5.   No soffit may be vented within 1.2m of interior side lot lines
6.   Structural wood elements within 1'- 6" of finished grade must be pressure treated
7.   Concrete shall not be placed against wood framing
8.   All grades to slope away from project
9.   BCBC 9.3.2.9. (3) a, - Provide 6" (150MM) clearance from finished grade to framing.
10. BCBC 9.28.1.4. Stucco finish shall not be less than 8" (200mm) from finished grade except when 
applied over concrete or masonry

1/4" = 1'-0"1 Northern

1/4" = 1'-0"2 Eastern

Sch
edule 'A

' 

DVP PL2022-9389

- 293 -



Garage
4' - 1 1/2"

T/O Roof
22' - 4"

Main Floor
1' - 4"

Roof Deck
13' - 4"

Supporting structure by others

Lowest Point
-15' - 0 15/32"

M
AX

 =
 1

0.
5m

11
.3

9 
m

Vertical corrugated metal siding

Fascia board

Fascia board Fascia board

Glass wall

Glazing

GlazingGlazing

Vertical corrugated metal siding

Localized depression / 
Pedestrian entrance

Elevator
Rooftop pergola

Existing Foundation

Concrete wall

(345.051)

(350.041)

(350.892)

(353.699)

9'
-0

"
9'

-2
 1

/2
"

2'
-9

 1
/2

"
16

'-4
 1

/2
"

2.
74

3 
m

2.
80

7 
m

0.
85

1 
m

4.
99

0 
m

(356.442)

T/O Existing
House

18' - 11 11/32" (355.410)

Garage
4' - 1 1/2"

T/O Roof
22' - 4"

Main Floor
1' - 4"

Roof Deck
13' - 4"

Supporting structure by others

Lowest Point
-15' - 0 15/32"

M
ax

 =
 1

0.
5m

11
.3

9 
m

Vertical corrugated metal siding

Glazing

Glazing Glazing Glazing

Glazing
Glazing

Fascia board

Fascia board Fascia board

Fascia board

Vertical corrugated 
metal siding

Vertical corrugated 
metal siding

Vertical corrugated metal 
siding

Vertical corrugated metal siding

Localized depression / 
Pedestrian entrance

Elevator

Rooftop pergola

Existing Foundation

343.905

344.263

345.569

345.244

345.591345.733

(345.051)

2.
74

3 
m

2.
80

7 
m

0.
85

1 
m

4.
99

0 
m

(350.041)

(350.892)

(353.699)

9'
-0

"
9'

-2
 1

/2
"

2'
-9

 1
/2

"
16

'-4
 1

/2
"

T/O Existing
House

18' - 11 11/32" (355.410)

(356.442)

JOB NO.
SCALE

DATE

SHEET NUMBER

THIS PLAN AND DESIGN IS AND AT ALL TIMES 
REMAINS THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY OF 
GARTNERS CUSTOM HOUSE DESIGNS (GCHD) 
AND MAY NOT BE USED OR DUPLICATED 
WITHOUT THE GCHD'S WRITTEN CONSENT. GCHD 
SHALL BE INFORMED OF ANY VARIATIONS FROM 
INFORMATION SHOWN ON THIS DRAWING.

Gartner's Custom House Designs
168 - 1458 Penticton Ave
Penticton, BC | V2A 8L3

(250) 487 8278
www.gartnersdesigns.com
gartnersdesign@gmail.com

DRAWING TITLE

PROJECT TITLE

CONTRACTORS ARE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE 
VERIFICATION OF ALL DIMENSIONS AND SITE 
CONDITIONS PRIOR TO ANY CONSTRUCTION OR 
FABRICATION. ANY DISCREPANCIES ARE TO  BE 
BROUGHT TO THE IMMEDIATE ATTENTION OF THE 
DEVELOPER

Th
is

 d
ra

w
in

g 
sh

al
l 

n
o
t 

be
 r

ep
ro

du
ce

d 
o
r 

re
vi

se
d 

w
it

h
o
ut

 t
h
e 

w
ri

tt
en

 c
o
n
ce

n
t 

fr
o
m
 t

h
e 

de
si

gn
er

th
e 

co
n
tr

ac
to

r 
sh

al
l 

ch
ec

k 
an

d 
ve

ri
fy

 a
ll

 d
im

en
si

o
n
s 

an
d 

re
po

rt
 a

ll
 e

rr
o
rs

 a
n
d 

o
m
is

si
o
n
s 

to
 t

h
e 

de
si

gn
er

D
o
 n

o
t 

sc
al

e 
an

y 
o
f 

th
e 

dr
aw

in
g 

sh
ee

ts

ONE OF GCHD'S GOALS IS TO IMPROVE THESE 
DRAWINGS.
FEEDBACK IS IMPORTANT. THERE MAY BE 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION NEEDED OR THERE 
MIGHT BE A BETTER WAY TO BUILD. GCHD 
WOULD LIKE TO HEAR ABOUT IT.
LET US KNOW IF THESE DRAWINGS CAN BE MADE 
BETTER FOR YOU.

1/4" = 1'-0"

Gardner
Renovation

A302
South & West

Elevations

July 19, 2022

220401

Elevation & Exterior Notes

No. DATE REVISION

1 06/10/2022 Issue for Variance

1.   Windows 9.7.4.2 2018 BCBC - All windows, doors 
and skylights to conform to NAFS and A440S1. Minimum 
rating requirement of PG20 for buildings less than 10m 
in height.
2.   Top of windows are assumed to be 6'-8" above 
subfloor except where indicated.
3.   Resistance to forced entry required for windows 
within 2.0m of finished grade
4.   Flashing installation 9.27.3.8.2018 BCBC - Flashing 
required above & below all unprotected openings & 
horizontal transitions. Flashing to be minimum 50mm 
upwards inboard of the sheathing membrane. Slope not 
less then 6% towards the exterior. Terminate at each 
end with a dam
5.   No soffit may be vented within 1.2m of interior side 
lot lines
6.   Structural wood elements within 1'- 6" of finished 
grade must be pressure treated
7.   Concrete shall not be placed against wood framing
8.   All grades to slope away from project
9.   BCBC 9.3.2.9. (3) a, - Provide 6" (150MM) clearance 
from finished grade to framing.
10. BCBC 9.28.1.4. Stucco finish shall not be less than 
8" (200mm) from finished grade except when applied over 
concrete or masonry

1/4" = 1'-0"1 Southern

1/4" = 1'-0"2 Western

Sch
edule 'A

' 

DVP PL2022-9389

- 294 -



 

 
Council Report 

 

   

 

 

Date: September 6, 2022     File No:    RMS/3923 Lakeside Road 
To: Donny van Dyk, Chief Administrative Officer 
From: Jordan Hallam, Planner I 
Address: 3923 Lakeside Road  
 
Subject: Development Variance Permit PL2022-9363 
 

Staff Recommendation 

THAT Council approve “Development Variance Permit PL2022-9363” for Amended Lot 1 (DD 244322F) 
District Lot 190 Similkameen Division Yale District Plan 5524 Except Plan KAP47795, located at 3923 Lakeside 
Road, a permit to vary the following sections Zoning Bylaw 2021-01: 

• Section 8.2.3.8: to allow the siting of a carriage house in the R1 zone to be located closer to the front 
lot line than the principal dwelling; and 

• Section 8.2.3.3: to allow the maximum building footprint to be increased from 90 m2 to 124 m2  

AND THAT Council direct staff to issue “Development Variance Permit PL2022-9362”. 

Strategic Priority Objective 

Community Vitality: The City of Penticton, guided by the Official Community Plan, will promote the 
economic wellbeing and vitality of the community.  

Proposal 

The applicant is proposing to construct a single-storey 
carriage house (Figure 1) on the subject property 
along with a single family dwelling. As this property is 
lakefront on Skaha Lake, the applicants would like to 
build their single family dwelling closer to the lake. 
The Zoning Bylaw limits carriage house siting to be 
located no closer to the front lot line than the 
principal dwelling. As such, the applicants have requested 
a variance to allow for the siting of the carriage house to be in 
front of the principal dwelling, along Lakeside Road. In addition, the proposed carriage house is limited to a 
maximum building footprint of 90 m2 as per the Zoning Bylaw. As such, the applicants have also requested a 
variance to increase the maximum building of 120 m2. 

Figure 1 – Proposed Carriage House 

- 295 -



 
Council Report  Page 2 of 10 

Background 

The subject property is located on the west side of Lakeside 
Road, south of the Skaha Marina in a primarily residential 
neighbourhood (Figure 2). The property is currently vacant, 
after the previous house on the lands were destroyed by fire 
in 2017. The property is designated ‘Detached Residential’ 
by the Official Community Plan (OCP) and is zoned ‘R1 
(Large Lot Residential)’ in the Zoning Bylaw. Both the OCP 
and zoning support carriage house construction.  

A City of Penticton sewer right of way runs through the 
middle of the subject property. Buildings cannot be built on 
this right of way, and the applicant has provided plans that 
show the proposed principal dwelling and proposed 
carriage will not be within this right of way. 

A Riparian Development Permit was issued in April, 2022 to 
allow for the construction of a new single family home and 
carriage house, along with associated driveways, patios and 
decks. The Riparian Areas Protection Regulation (RAPR) 
Assessment Report was prepared by Dwight Shanner (QEP), of Aarde Environmental Ltd. 

Carriage houses are considered within the Intensive Residential Development Permit Area in the OCP. Staff 
have delegated authority to process the form and character development permit for the proposed carriage 
house. The applicant will have to apply for a building permit, should Council approve the requested variance 
and development permit for the form and character of the proposed carriage house. 

Climate Impact 

The proposed carriage house will add a second dwelling on the property. This increases the density of the 
area, allowing more residents to live on an established piece of property within the City of Penticton. The 
subject property is within walking distance to Skaha Lake Beach, and amenities at the south end of 
Penticton. This promotes walkability and less dependence on vehicle use. 

The carriage house will be built to Step 3 of the BC Energy Step Code.  

Technical Review 

This application was reviewed by the Technical Planning Committee, a group of City staff from various 
departments who review development applications. Staff have highlighted that the sanitary right of way 
area must remain accessible to the City and its contractors for operation and maintenance. Additional 
comments related to the future building permit application stage were provided to the applicant by the 
committee. 

 

 

Figure 2 – Property Location Map 

- 296 -



 
Council Report  Page 3 of 10 

Development Statistics 

The following table outlines the proposed development statistics on the plans submitted with the 
development application: 

 
Carriage House Requirement 

(Section 8.2) 
Provided on Plans 

Minimum Lot Area: 370 m 1780.6 m2 
Maximum Building 
Footprint 

90 m2 124 m2 – Variance Requested 

Maximum Lot Coverage: 15% 6.7% 

Siting 
No closer to the street than the 
main building 

Closer to the street than main 
building – Variance Requested 

Required Setbacks 
Front Yard (Lakeside Rd): 
Side Yard (north): 
Side Yard (south): 
Rear Yard (Skaha Lake): 

 
6.0 m 
1.5 m 
1.5 m 
1.5 m 

 
23.3 m 
1.9 m 
8.6 m 
61.0 m 

Maximum Building Height 5.0 m and one storey 4.75 m and one storey 

Parking:  
One additional parking space for 
carriage house 

Three total parking spaces (two 
for single detached dwelling, 1 
for carriage house) 

Analysis 

Development Variance Permit 

When considering a variance to a City bylaw, staff encourage Council to consider whether approval of the 
variance would cause a negative impact on neighbouring properties; and, if the variance request is 
reasonable. Staff have reviewed the requested variances and are recommending support for the following 
reasons: 

1. Neighbour has carriage house closer to the street and lakefront property 
 
The neighbour to the north of the subject property (3919 Lakeside Rd) applied and had a variance 
request approved to allow a carriage house which has siting closer to the street than the principal 
dwelling.  
 
Lakefront properties pose a challenge when considering a carriage house. The applicants are proposing 
to build a principal dwelling closer to Skaha Lake to take advantage of their property and live closer to 
the lake. Staff feel this is a hardship and support the requested variance to allow the siting of the carriage 
house to be closer to the street in this instance. 
 
 
 
 

- 297 -



 
Council Report  Page 4 of 10 

2. Size of the lot 
 
The applicant has submitted a letter of intent (Attachment D), which states that they plan to eventually 
live and age in place in the carriage house. They have requested a variance to increase the building 
footprint so the living area is spread out over a single floor, minimizing lost space with staircases and 
hallways. The size of the lot allows for a generous single floor building. The single-storey design of the 
carriage house will help ensure the carriage house is considered accessory compared to the primary 
dwelling, which is two storeys in height and much larger than the carriage house. The size of the subject 
property is approximately 1780 m2 in area. The maximum lot coverage for a carriage house as per the 
Zoning Bylaw is 15%, the submitted plans show the carriage house to have a lot coverage of 6.7%. This is 
well within the Zoning Bylaw requirement, and as such staff support the requested variance.  
 
In addition, the lot is such that the applicants could subdivide the lot and create two separate lots with 
two larger single family houses. The desire though is for the lot to remain one lot and to have the 
carriage house a subordinate structure on the property.  

Given the reasons above, staff consider the variance requests are reasonable in this instance. As such, staff 
are recommending that Council approve the variance and direct staff to issue the permit. 

Should Council approve the variance, staff would proceed with processing the required Development 
Permit prior to construction occurring.  

Alternate Recommendations 

Council may consider the requested variance is undesirable and that the applicants should build within the 
Zoning Bylaw regulations. If this is the case, Council should deny “Development Variance Permit PL2022-
9363”. If this decision is made, the applicant would need to update their plans to meet the Zoning Bylaw 
carriage house regulations, which would result in a smaller building footprint and moving the siting of the 
carriage house. If the applicant revises their plans to meet Zoning Bylaw regulations, staff have delegated 
approval authority to process the Development Permit on its own. Staff are recommending against this 
option, as the requested variances are considered reasonable in this instance. 

1. THAT Council deny “Development Variance Permit PL2022-9363”. 

Attachments 

Attachment A – Zoning Map 
Attachment B – Official Community Plan Map 
Attachment C – Photos of Property 
Attachment D – Letter of Intent 
Attachment E – Draft Development Variance Permit PL2022-9363 
 

 

 

 

- 298 -



 
Council Report  Page 5 of 10 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Jordan Hallam 
Planner I 

 

  

Director of 
Development Services 

Chief Administrative 
Officer 

BL 
 

DvD 
 

- 299 -



 
Council Report  Page 6 of 10 

Attachment A – Zoning Map

 

  

- 300 -



 
Council Report  Page 7 of 10 

Attachment B – Official Community Plan Map 

 

  

- 301 -



 
Council Report  Page 8 of 10 

Attachment C – Photos of Property

 

 

Subject Property: 
3923 Lakeside Rd 

Subject Property: 
3923 Lakeside Rd 

Lakeside Rd 

Lakeside Rd 

Location of proposed 
carriage house. 

- 302 -



 
Council Report  Page 9 of 10 

 

  

Subject Property: 
3923 Lakeside Rd 

Lakeside Rd 

Location of proposed 
carriage house. 

3919 Lakeside Rd 
Carriage House 

- 303 -



 
Council Report  Page 10 of 10 

Attachment D – Letter of Intent 

 

- 304 -



 
 

City of Penticton 
171 Main St.   |  Penticton B.C.  |  V2A 5A9 

www.penticton.ca   |  ask@penticton.ca 
 

Development Variance Permit 

Permit Number: DVP PL2022-9363 

Owner Name 
Owner Address 

Conditions of Permit  

1. This permit is issued subject to compliance with all of the bylaws of the City, except as specifically 
varied or supplemented by this Permit. 

2. This permit applies to:  

Legal: Amended Lot 1 (DD 244322F) District Lot 190 Similkameen Division Yale District 
Plan 5524 Except Plan KAP47795 

Civic: 3923 Lakeside Road 

PID: 010-358-846 

3. This permit has been issued in accordance with Section 498 of the Local Government Act, to vary 
the following sections of Zoning Bylaw 2021-01 to allow for the construction of a carriage house, 
as shown in the plans attached in Schedule ‘A’: 

a. Section 8.2.3.8: to allow the siting of a carriage house in the R1 zone to be located closer 
to the front lot line than the principal dwelling; and 

b. Section 8.2.3.3: to allow the maximum building footprint to be increased from 90 m2 to 
124 m2. 

General Conditions  

4. In accordance with Section 501 of the Local Government Act, the lands subject to this permit shall 
be developed in general accordance with this permit and the plans attached as Schedule ‘A’.  

5. In accordance with Section 504 of the Local Government Act, if the holder of this permit does not 
commence the development authorized by this permit within 2 years of the date of this permit, this 
permit shall lapse. 

6. This permit is not a building permit.  In order to proceed with this development, the holder of 
this permit must hold a valid building permit issued by the Building Inspection Department.  

7. This permit does not constitute any other municipal, provincial or federal approval. The holder of 
this permit is responsible to obtain any additional municipal, federal, or provincial approvals prior 
to commencing the development authorized by this permit.  

8. This permit does not include off-site infrastructure costs that may be required at the building permit 
stage, such as Development Cost Charges (DCC’s), road improvements and electrical servicing. 
There may be substantial infrastructure and servicing costs payable at a later date. For more 
information on servicing and infrastructure requirements please contact the Development 

DP PL2022-9363 Page 1 of 5

DRAFT

- 305 -



Engineering Department at (250) 490-2501. For more information on electrical servicing costs, 
please contact the Electric Utility at (250) 490-2535.    

Authorized by City Council, the ____ day of September, 2022. 

Issued this ____ day of September, 2022. 

_________________________ 

Angela Collison 
Corporate Officer 

DP PL2022-9363 Page 2 of 5

DRAFT

- 306 -



1,794sm
LOT 01

7.5m
 SETBAC

K

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 L
IN

E

PANTRY

ELEVATOR

UPDN

FOYER

DEN

DINING

KITCHEN

SUNDECK w/
3" CONC. FINISHPWDR RM

GARAGE

MUD RM

BATH

gas fireplace

GAMES/ BAR

LIVING

DN

CARRIAGE HOUSE
968sft (90sm)
BLDG FOOTPRINT 1,301sft (120.8sm)

VARIANCE REQ'D

MAIN HOUSE
BLDG FOOTPRINT: 2,973sft (276.2sm)

LANDSCAPE BED

LANDSCAPE BED

15sm AMENITY SPACE
FOR CARRIAGE HOUSE

M
ET

AL
/ C

O
N

C
R

ET
E 

FE
N

C
E

W
IT

H
 A

U
TO

M
AT

IC
 G

AT
E 

AL
O

N
G

FR
O

N
T 

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 L

IN
E

min 1.2m PAVED PATH

3rd PARKING
SPACE

OVERALL SITE PLAN

A2.00

KANDOLA HOUSE
PROJECT

3923 LAKESIDE RD, PENTICTON, BC

DRAWING NUMBER

DRAWINGS ARE NOT TO BE SCALED
ALL DIMENSIONS TO BE VERIFIED ON JOB

DRAWING TITLE

No. DATE REVISION

01 2021-11-03 issued for Coordination

DATE

JOB #

SCALE

DRAWN

2022-04-11

20-107

AS SHOWN

PH

Copyright reserved. This plan and design
is the exclusive property of
HUNDAL LEGACY HOMES ltd. and may
not be used or reproduced without the designers
written permission.
All information shown on this drawing is for the
use on this specific projecy only

02 2022-04-11 issued for BP

DP PL2022-9363 Page 3 of 5

Sch
ed

ule
 'A

' 

DVP PL2
02

2-9
36

3

- 307 -



GENERAL NOTES:

10
'0

"x
9'

0"
 G

A
R

A
G

E
 D

O
O

R

CLG. HT.
10'-0 3/4"

5'0x7'0
EGRESS

fri
dg

e
di

sh
w

as
he

r

closet

bench

4'0x4'0

GARAGE

cl
os

et

KITCHEN

BEDROOM 2

BEDROOM 1

BATH

LIVING

SUNDECK

stack
washer/

dryer

MECH.

21'0"x15'0"

11'0"x11'0"

11'8"x5'6"

11'8"x13'0"

3'0x8'0

2'8x8'0

2'8x8'0

2'8x8'0

2-
2'

0x
8'

0

3'6x8'0
3'0x10'0 8'0x10'0

3'0x8'0

2'6x10'0

2-2'6x8'0

CLG. HT.
9'-6 3/4"

LED STRIP LIGHT

LED STRIP LIGHT

LE
D

 S
TR

IP
 L

IG
H

T

LE
D

 S
TR

IP
 L

IG
H

T

2x
4 

B
E

A
R

IN
G

 W
A

LL

SMOKE ALARMS TO BE INTERCONNECTED

LINE OF ROOF ABOVE

LI
N

E
 O

F 
R

O
O

F 
A

B
O

V
E

LI
N

E
 O

F 
R

O
O

F 
A

B
O

V
E

LINE OF ROOF ABOVE

CORNER WINDOW
(SEE ELEVATIONS)

E
G

R
E

S
S

3'
0x

10
'0

GARAGE

KITCHEN

BEDROOM 2

BEDROOM 1

BATH

LIVING

SUNDECK

MECH.

PLYWOOD CRICKETS
TO ENSURE POSITIVE SLOPE
TO DRAINS (V.O.S.)

U/S TRUSS
±12'-0"

U/S TRUSS
10'-0 3/4"

U/S TRUSS
±14'-0"

RAISED PARAPETS ABOVE
POP-OUTS TO BE SITE FRAMED

CARRIAGE HOUSE
FLOOR & ROOF PLAN

A3.05

CARRIAGE HOUSE PLAN
968sft (90sm)

KANDOLA HOUSE
PROJECT

3923 LAKESIDE RD, PENTICTON, BC

DRAWING NUMBER

DRAWINGS ARE NOT TO BE SCALED
ALL DIMENSIONS TO BE VERIFIED ON JOB

DRAWING TITLE

No. DATE REVISION

01 2021-11-03 issued for Coordination

DATE

JOB #

SCALE

DRAWN

2022-04-11

20-107

AS SHOWN

PH

Copyright reserved. This plan and design
is the exclusive property of
HUNDAL LEGACY HOMES ltd. and may
not be used or reproduced without the designers
written permission.
All information shown on this drawing is for the
use on this specific projecy only

02 2022-04-11 issued for BP

ROOF PLAN

DP PL2022-9363 Page 4 of 5

Sch
ed

ule
 'A

' 

DVP PL2
02

2-9
36

3

- 308 -



2'6x10'0
26sf

CARRIAGE HOUSE
ELEVATIONS

A4.03

KANDOLA HOUSE
PROJECT

3923 LAKESIDE RD, PENTICTON, BC

DRAWING NUMBER

DRAWINGS ARE NOT TO BE SCALED
ALL DIMENSIONS TO BE VERIFIED ON JOB

DRAWING TITLE

No. DATE REVISION

01 2021-11-03 issued for Coordination

DATE

JOB #

SCALE

DRAWN

2022-04-11

20-107

AS SHOWN

PH

Copyright reserved. This plan and design
is the exclusive property of
HUNDAL LEGACY HOMES ltd. and may
not be used or reproduced without the designers
written permission.
All information shown on this drawing is for the
use on this specific projecy only

02 2022-04-11 issued for BP

DP PL2022-9363 Page 5 of 5

Sch
ed

ule
 'A

' 

DVP PL2
02

2-9
36

3

- 309 -



 

 
Council Report 

 

   

 

 

Date: September 6, 2022      File No:    RMS/850 Wiltse Blvd 
To: Donny van Dyk, Chief Administrative Officer 
From: Steven Collyer, Planner II 
Address: 850 Wiltse Boulevard and 160 Crow Place 
 
Subject: Hillside Development Permit PL2021-9206 
 

Staff Recommendation 

THAT Council approve “Hillside Development Permit PL2021-9206”, a permit to allow for the phased 
development of a 686 unit residential development at Lot B District Lot 2710 Similkameen Division Yale 
District Plan 43260 Except Plans KAP72732 and EPP74771 and Lot A District Lot 2710 Similkameen Division 
Yale District Plan KAP70035, located at 850 Wiltse Boulevard and 160 Crow Place; 

AND THAT Council direct staff to issue the permit. 

Strategic Priority Objective 

Community Vitality: The City of Penticton, guided by the 
Official Community Plan, will promote the economic 
wellbeing and vitality of the community.  

Background 

On June 21, 2022, Council adopted “Official Community Plan 
Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-29” and “Zoning Amendment 
Bylaw No. 2022-30” which put the land use in place for 
residential development on the North Wiltse Block (850 Wiltse 
Boulevard and 160 Crow Place) (Figure 1). This followed an 
extensive public engagement period which saw almost 600 
feedback form responses from community members. The 
development will be constructed in phases over many years, 
ultimately reaching a full build out of 686 new dwelling units 
in single detached, duplex, townhouse and apartment forms. 

The subject lands are within the Hillside Development Permit 
Area, outlined by the Official Community Plan (OCP).  

Figure 1 - North Wiltse Block location map 

- 310 -



 
Council Report  Page 2 of 7 

The intent of the Hillside Development Permit Area is to direct development on hillsides that respects the 
natural setting by minimizing risk from hazards, minimizing ecological and visual impacts, and creating 
development that ‘settles’ into the landscape. The Hillside Development Permit guidelines are also intended 
to mitigate the typical hillside challenges of low connectivity and poor walkability by making special efforts 
to create pedestrian and cycling connections. 

Given the large scale of the North Wiltse Block development, this is the first of many future Hillside 
Development Permits for the site. This first Hillside Development Permit sets the City’s expectations to be 
met at each phase of the development, and future Hillside Development Permits will have to show 
conformance with this overarching Hillside Development Permit. 

Climate Impact 

Council adopted the Community Climate Action Plan (CCAP) in 2021. The North Wiltse Block is consistent 
with the following aspects of the CCAP: 

• Shift Beyond the Car: Encourage active & accessible transportation and transit 
o A separated bike lane will be provided to the North Wiltse Block. 
o Trails and pedestrian connections will be provided throughout the development. 

• Step Up New Buildings: All new buildings will be required to meet the BC Energy Step Code 
requirements at the time of construction. 

o The applicable Step may vary depending on the time of building permit application and the 
type of building. 

Technical Review 

This application has been reviewed by the City’s Technical Planning Committee. Staff have worked with the 
applicants and their professional consultants to ensure consistency with the Hillside Development Permit 
Area guidelines. Servicing and other technical aspects of the development will be dealt with through the 
subdivision approval process on a phase-by-phase basis. All infrastructure shall meet Subdivision and 
Development Bylaw standards and good engineering practice.   

Analysis 

The Hillside Development Permit Area applies to subdivision developments located on sloping terrain and 
requires a range of special considerations to mitigate risk and negative impacts. The purpose of the Hillside 
Development Permit is to support safe residential development on steep slopes by respecting the natural 
terrain where possible. 

The applicants are applying for this development permit for concept approval of the overall grading plan, 
based on the neighbourhood-scale technical reviews completed on the site to date. More detailed technical 
reviews will be completed and considered on a phase by phase basis through future Hillside Development 
Permits.  

The applicants submitted the following plans and technical reports in support of their Hillside Development 
Permit application: 

• Geohazard Assessment Report • Environmental Assessment Report 

- 311 -



 
Council Report  Page 3 of 7 

• Grading Plan 
• Retaining Walls Plan 
• Slope Analysis Plan 
• Green Spaces Plan 

• Offsite Views Plan 
• Cut and Fill Plan 
• Site Inventory Plan 

 

The permit application includes strategies that will be followed for mitigating risk from hazards, minimizing 
ecological and visual impacts, and natural landscape retention where possible. The applicants describe the 
technical reviews they completed to meet the Hillside Development Permit Area requirements in their letter 
of intent (Attachment ‘C’). Within their letter, the applicants have included a development permit analysis 
showing how each of the Hillside Development Permit Area guidelines have been considered with this 
development proposal. Further, staff have also prepared a development permit analysis of those guidelines 
(Attachment ‘K’). These attachments demonstrate the conformance of the development proposal with the 
Hillside Development Permit Area guidelines in the OCP. 

Permit Conditions 

This Hillside Development Permit is drafted with specific conditions in order to ensure the intent of the Hillside 
Development Permit Area guidelines is met, as well as to address some concerns raised through the public 
engagement period and previous Council meetings related to the OCP amendment and rezoning for the 
North Wiltse Block. The permit conditions are summarized in the table below, with justification provided for 
each condition: 

Permit Condition  Justification 

A Hillside Development 
Permit is required at each 
phase of the development 

The proposed development is such a large scale that detailed technical 
reviews are not realistic at this stage. As development proceeds phase-by-
phase, this condition requires the applicants to submit more detailed 
Hillside Development Permit applications, which must demonstrate 
conformance with this overarching Hillside Development Permit, as well as 
the applicable OCP design guidelines. 

Landscaping deposits to 
be held through each 
future Hillside 
Development Permit 

The City often holds landscaping deposits to ensure works are carried out in 
accordance with approved landscaping plans. Future Hillside Development 
Permits will include landscaping deposits to cover the value of the 
landscaping work to be completed in each phase and ensure the works 
occur in accordance with the City’s expectations and the approved plans. 

Retaining walls spanning 
multiple lots to be built at 
time of subdivision 

The Retaining Walls Plan (Attachment ‘E’) shows multiple locations on the 
site where retaining walls will cross proposed property lines within the 
development. This condition sets a requirement that these walls be 
constructed prior to subdivision registration because it becomes much more 
challenging to construct those walls when lots are created and different 
property owners are involved. This condition helps ensure the proposed 
grading plan is carried out in accordance with the Hillside Development 
Permit Area guidelines at a neighbourhood scale, rather than lot by lot. 

- 312 -



 
Council Report  Page 4 of 7 

Permit Condition  Justification 

Retaining walls shall use 
natural-looking textures 
and natural colours 

This condition helps mitigate the visual impact of retaining walls, helping 
them blend into the landscape. The details of colours and finish materials 
will be determined through future Hillside Development Permits. 

Setting a maximum 
retaining wall height at 
2.4m as per the Retaining 
Walls Plan 

Higher retaining walls generally have more impact than lower walls. 
Recognizing the steep topography of this hillside location, retaining walls 
will be required. This condition sets the maximum retaining wall height of 
2.4m based on the retaining walls shown on the Retaining Walls Plan 
(Attachment ‘E’). Any other retaining walls will be required to meet the 
Zoning Bylaw regulations, which currently is a maximum height of 1.2m 
within a required yard setback and 2.4m outside a required yard setback. 

Natural and undisturbed 
areas to be properly 
protected through 
development, possibly 
through covenant(s) 

The Green Spaces Plan (Attachment ‘G’) shows natural and undisturbed 
areas which will be dedicated to the City as natural parkland, to be left in a 
natural state. This condition ensures proper protection for these areas to 
ensure they are not encroached upon or otherwise disturbed as a result of 
development activity. Protective covenants may be required at future 
phases of the development. 

Limiting tree clearing to a 
phase-by-phase basis 

Clear cutting was a concern raised through the public engagement period 
and by Council. This condition requires that tree removal only be completed 
within the active phase of the development, and not for the entire site. This 
limits the likelihood of erosion and dust impacts on the neighbourhoods 
below, while also reducing the visual impact on the hillside. 

Tree inventory and 
replacement plan will be 
required with each future 
Hillside Development 
Permit (minimum 1:1 tree 
replacement is the 
expectation) 

This condition sets an expectation of a minimum 1:1 tree replacement for 
trees removed to facilitate the development. The tree replacement ratio may 
be subject to change upon the completion of a wildfire threat assessment 
report, which may have recommendations regarding tree species or 
thinning related to wildfire impacts. That assessment will be a requirement 
of future Hillside Development Permits. 

Limited hours for 
earthworks and other 
construction-related 
disturbances to the 
surrounding 
neighbourhoods 

Concerns around potential development-related disturbances were raised 
frequently through the public engagement period. This condition requires 
that future Hillside Development Permits set limits on hours of work, 
including days of the week, to provide some reprieve to area neighbours 
while the development is underway beyond the applicable regulations of 
the Good Neighbour Bylaw. 

The proposal recognizes the challenging geotechnical context of the North Wiltse Block and the objectives of 
minimizing hazard from steep slope while also aiming to achieve a fit with the natural landscape. The 
development is considered to meet the applicable Hillside Development Permit Area guidelines. As such, staff 

- 313 -



 
Council Report  Page 5 of 7 

recommend that Council approve “Hillside Development Permit PL2021-9206” and direct staff to issue the 
permit. 

Alternate Recommendation 

Council may not support the development permit. If that is the case, Council should deny the permit. Staff do 
not recommend denying the permit as this development is in line with the OCP and the applicants have 
shown conformance to the Hillside Development Permit Area guidelines. 

1. THAT Council deny “Hillside Development Permit PL2021-9206”. 

Attachments 

Attachment A – Zoning Map 
Attachment B – Official Community Plan Map 
Attachment C – Letter of Intent and Development Permit Analysis (applicant) 
Attachment D - Grading Plan 
Attachment E - Retaining Walls Plan 
Attachment F – Slope Analysis Plan 
Attachment G - Green Spaces Plan 
Attachment H - Offsite Views Plan 
Attachment I - Cut and Fill Plan 
Attachment J - Site Inventory Plan 
Attachment K – Development Permit Analysis (staff) 
Attachment L – Draft Hillside Development Permit PL2021-9206 
 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Steven Collyer, RPP, MCIP 
Planner II 

 

Concurrence  

Director of 
Development Services 

Chief Administrative 
Officer 

BL 
 

DvD 
 

 

 

  

- 314 -



 
Council Report  Page 6 of 7 

Attachment A – Zoning Map 

  

- 315 -



 
Council Report  Page 7 of 7 

Attachment B – Official Community Plan Map 

 

- 316 -



Ecora Engineering & Resource Group Ltd. 
201 - 284 Main Street, Penticton, BC  V2A 5B2 
| P: 250.492.2227 | F: 250.492.2135  
 www.ecora.ca 

March 17, 2022 Ecora File No: 180225 

City of Penticton 
171 Main Street 
Penticton BC V2A 5A9 

Attention: Planning Department 

Reference: Hillside Development Permit for the Wiltse North Block – 850 Wiltse Boulevard 
and 160 Crow Place 

Ecora Engineering and Resource Group Ltd. (Ecora) was requested to submit a Hillside Development 
Permit Application for the development of the Wiltse North Block lands. This Hillside DP is submitted 
concurrently with an application for Community Plan and Zoning Bylaw amendments for a major new 
residential neighbourhood on the eastern hillsides of the City with 686 new single and multiple family 
dwelling units. 

The site is designated as a Hillside Development Permit Area in the Official Community Plan. The 
purpose of the HDP designation is to:  

• Minimize and mitigate hazards such as steep slopes, wildfire and floods
• Fit with the natural landscape and climate
• Protect and enhance views toward the valley and lakes from above
• Avoid necessary scarring of the hillside to protect views back to the hillside
• Create a sense of built form fitting with the land
• Create movement connections for both people and wildlife

Hillside DP Strategy 

It is proposed that this HDP be established as a guideline for the overall development of the North 
Block roads, lots, multiple family sites, parks, natural areas and corridors and the overall approach to 
site grading with slopes and retaining walls. It is also proposed that a separate HDP will be required for 
every stage of subdivision.  At that time, detailed engineering for road and utilities, grading, retaining 
walls, revegetation of slopes with plant materials, irrigation and cost estimates for securities will be 
provided.  At each Phase, an environmental assessment, monitoring and restoration will also be carried 
out.   

The Site 

The North Block is a forested hillside property that features rugged terrain with bedrock outcrops, knoll, 
undulating ridges, benches and bluffs.   Extensive land disturbances have occurred over past years and 
includes gravel extraction on the northern area, logging, forest fire, fire guard, and dirt access roads 

Attachment C - Letter of Intent and Development Permit Analysis (applicant)- 317 -



Subject Bluffs HDP  File No: 18-289 March 2022 
 

 

 

 
 2 

  

and trails. The Fortis power line passes through the site from the southern west end of 160 Crow Place 
to the northeastern area of 850 Wiltse Boulevard. 

Geohazard Assessment for Proposed North Wiltse Development, Penticton, BC by Ecora 
Engineering Ltd., 2019 

The purpose of this assessment was to identify the presence and extent of geotechnical hazards with 
respect to soil, rockfall, drainage or topographic conditions that may pose risk to proposed development 
of the property located at 850 Wiltse Blvd and 160 Crow Place.  The topography varies across the site, 
ranging from moderate to very steep slopes with the east and southeast sections increasing in slope. 

The majority of the planned development is in very low to moderate terrain hazard areas. The Study 
recommends development avoidance of some areas and mitigation measures for other areas, as well 
as ongoing geotechnical field work, site grading and storm management and hydrological assessment. 

While there have been some changes to the Development Plan from that originally assessed in the 
Geohazard Report, the changes reflect a readjustment of housing types and densities in the lands west 
of the Fortis R/W and do not have a substantial impact on the Report recommendations.   

The Geohazard Report identifies a number of Development Hazard Zones that are reflected in the 
Development Plan: 

• H1, High Hazard:  H1 lands have rock fall hazards – includes the sides of a drainage channel. 
These lands are largely on the east side of the Fortis right-of-way and in areas also designated as 
having High Environmental Values. This H1 area is not recommended for development and will be 
protected as Conservation lands. 

• H2, Moderate Hazard:  H2 lands reflect flood hazards of a drainage channel east of Fortis and a 
channel above the Evergreen Reservoir. H2 lands are to remain free of development and protected 
as Conservation/Natural Lands. 

• H3, Moderate Hazard: H3 lands have a rock fall hazard and are located mainly east of the Fortis 
R/W and in the northern part of the site.  Where H3 lands are proposed for development mitigation 
includes site grading and protection measures such as ditches, berms and fences. 

Parks may be located in low to moderate hazard areas pending further geotechnical assessment and 
appropriate design. Active play areas and high use facilities should not be located in high hazard areas 
as per the attached geotechnical hazard figures. 

 

Environmental Addendum Report for the North Wiltse Property, Penticton BC by Ecora.  April 
2021 

This Environmental Addendum Report is for the rezoning of the North Block Wiltse lands based on the 
land use designations in the Penticton Community Plan.  The Report addresses mapped Critical 
Habitat as well as current Community Plan and Terms of Reference for Environmental Assessment 
Reports that have been updated since Ecora submitted the previous Environmental Mapping and 

- 318 -



Subject Bluffs HDP  File No: 18-289 March 2022 
 

 

 

 
 3 

  

Assessment Report in 2017. Minor amendments to the Report were also carried out in February 2022 
to reflect the revised Development Plan. 

The proposed development avoids impacts to sensitive environmental features including high value 
Environmentally Sensitive Areas (ESA), aquatic features and associated setbacks and important 
wildlife habitats associated with species of management concern.  The development layout results in 
the protection of a substantial portion of the land east of the Fortis right-of-way.  This conservation area 
will be continuous with lands to the east, including the Provincially designated Wildlife Management 
Area, Skaha Bluffs Provincial Park and lands to the south in the Skaha Bluffs development 

The proposed development plan will avoid all areas designated as ESA1.  A small area (6.5ha) 
overlaps a mapped ESA2.  The remaining 67.5 ha of ESA2 will remain undeveloped.   The majority of 
the lands to be developed at 31 ha overlaps low value ESA3. 

The Report outlines an environmental management and mitigation strategy for the construction of the 
development. 

 

COMMUNITY PLAN HILLSIDE DEVELOPMENT PERMIT AREA 

In terms of the Community Plan Hillside Guidelines, the following applies. 

Site Features Inventory 

The attached Site Inventory and Slope Analysis Plans provides the following information about the 
topography of the North Block: 

• Property lines, the Fortis R/W and location of adjacent access roads 
• Pre-development site slopes at 0-10%, 10-20%, 20-30% and over 30% shown on the Slope 

Analysis Plan.  This Plan illustrates that the North Block is not a uniform hillside slope and includes 
some gently sloping areas under 10% grade and significant areas with over 20-30% slopes.  

• The Site Inventory Plan highlights the former gravel pit and original Fortis R/W as well as Steep 
Banks at over 30%. 

• Prominent views. Site views are mainly to the west, overlooking the City, but also to the north over 
the Cantex gravel pit, Ellis Creek and Upper Carmi areas. 

• Tree Inventory.  The vegetation on the North Block is a mix of coniferous woodland, shrub step and 
grassland.   Ponderosa Pine the dominant evergreen, with some Douglas Fir.  A tree inventory is 
not deemed necessary as there are significant natural areas being preserved and a strategy to 
revegetate disturbed slopes to recreate natural hillside features and visual amenity is included in 
this HDP application. 

The Geohazards and Environmental features are outlined in these reports and integrated into the 
Development Concept.  The attached Green and Natural Areas Plan identifies existing site features that 
will be protected from development as well as extensive regraded and vegetated slopes within the 
development, and parks and trail networks.  Natural features that are to be protected include the 
following: 

• Large Conservation Area on the east side of the Fortis right-of-way with natural vegetation and 
steep rock faces 

- 319 -



Subject Bluffs HDP  File No: 18-289 March 2022 
 

 

 

 
 4 

  

• Large areas of the Fortis right-of-way 
• Natural steep slope retained in the Park located at the Wiltse Boulevard entrance 
• Steep vegetated slope above Evergreen Drive 
• Steep slope features in the large public park 
• Major slope in the north east area of the site 
• Natural slopes south of Road D  

With the Fortis right-of-way and steep environmentally sensitive lands to the east, the amount of 
developable land on the North Block is limited to about 50 ha (124 acres). To support the costs of a 
new water system and extend sanitary and storm sewer systems there needs to be a sizeable new 
residential development for a feasible project and meet housing needs in the last large new growth area 
of the City over the next 10-15 years.  An efficient road and lot layout at urban densities necessitates 
development of the available lands to achieve these objectives.  Due to the topography noted above, 
significant grading of the site to accommodate the road network and new housing sites is required while 
addressing hillside development guidelines. 

Development Concept Plan 

This Plan is attached to the Community Plan and Rezoning Application and includes the location of 
roads, lanes, single family lots, multiple family sites, parks, trails and open spaces. 

 

HILLSIDE DP SITE PLANNING GUIDLEINES 

HS1:  The Environmental Impact Assessment is provided with the Community Plan and Rezoning 
Application and as is the Geotechnical Hazard Report.  The Development Concept is based on these 
reports that identify significant on-site environmental features and development hazards. 

HS2:  Development of the Subject Property will be under the supervision of a Qualified Professional 
Geotechnical Engineer. 

HS3: Wildfire Assessment.  With the proposed grading plan, the native ponderosa pine forest will be 
removed from the site over the time of the development staging.  There are also existing fuel breaks 
with the Fortis R/W and rocky cliffs to the east.   It is proposed to carry out a Wildfire Assessment with 
the first phase subdivision. 

HS4: Parks and Open Spaces are integrated throughout the site. 

HS5:  Environmentally Sensitive Areas are avoided. Trails and wildlife corridors connect parks, 
residential areas and link to the Fortis right-of-way corridor and Conservation Lands beyond.  The 
western Natural Area provides a visual buffer between the existing Wiltse residential community and 
the new North Block development. 

HS6:  This guideline is to retain the greatest possible hillside area in its natural condition, with a target 
of 30% of the landscape in a natural condition and grade and/or achieve a similar outcome through a 
restoration plan that mimics the natural slope and vegetation. 

The North Block development concept retains about 28 ha in a natural condition, including the large 
Conservation Area east of the Fortis R/W of 26.7 ha, 1.4 ha along the western edge of the property and 
other natural areas within the development. This represents 36% of site subject to Rezoning. The Fortis 

- 320 -



Subject Bluffs HDP  File No: 18-289 March 2022 
 

 

 

 
 5 

  

R/W at 7.3 ha is additional open space area, as well as three neighbourhood parks of 4.4 ha, linked by 
a greenway and sidewalk network. bringing the total open / natural area up to 51% of the site area 
outlined in this application.  These Open Spaces are located around the edges and within the 
development site.   

Due to site topography, significant grading is required to construct roads and establish building pads for 
single family lots and multiple family housing sites.  The proposed grading plan does not provide flat 
building lots but does provide a building pad with engineered slopes in front or rear yards of the lots.  
Most lots do not have a significant grade changes on the side yards except in the northern area of the 
site, near the main Collector Road and in a number of identified areas.  Retaining walls are addressed 
in Section HS17 of this report. 

It is proposed that site grading occurs for each development stage and that the undeveloped areas of 
the property will remain in a natural condition. This will reduce site disturbance until subdivision takes 
place and will prevent large disturbed areas sitting idle for a number of years before being developed. 

The front and rear yard graded slopes are to be revegetated at the time of subdivision through a 
restoration plan to mimic the natural slope with ecologically-appropriate planting.  These slopes will be 
established at the time of subdivision, will be subject to geotechnical covenants and the Developer will 
be responsible for slope restoration.  

The Green and Natural Areas Plan illustrates the restored slopes, all of which on located on private 
property, except for park sites: 

These slopes will have a major positive visual impact on the development and will recreate a hillside 
environment as provided in this Hillside Development Permit Guideline.  All of the more significant 
slopes are located on multiple family development sites that are generally located along the Collector 
Road and Road G.  These slopes are required at the time of subdivision to support the roads and 
development sites and will be restored and vegetated with topsoil, coco-mats and hydroseeded by the 
Developer if needed in the interim (before the adjacent MF site is developed).  By locating the major 
slopes within multiple family development sites, there will be a strata corporation for on-going irrigation 
and vegetation maintenance. 

HS7:  House sites are identified on the Grading Plan and will be pre-graded at the time of subdivision 
and engineered slopes to achieve the Hillside DP objectives. 

HS8:  Lot views are addressed in a number of ways.  The grading plan provides terraced development, 
particularly for the steeper areas of the site, allowing views over the lots below.  The Site Cross 

Sections Plan, submitted with Engineering component of the OCP/Rezoning application, illustrates the 
future view potential of new lots and multiple family sites.  Lot lines are proposed to be angled to the 
road, mainly in the northern of the North Block to maximize views. 

Views from the City towards the North Block are shown on the Offsite View Plan from: 

• Government – Eckhardt; 
• Walmart parking lot; 
• Industrial / Main Street;  
• Carmi/Holden 

These site lines give an indication of the farthest and closest locations where the North Block 
development can be seen from these built-up areas of the City. The steep Conservation Area east of 

- 321 -



Subject Bluffs HDP  File No: 18-289 March 2022 
 

 

 

 
 6 

  

the Fortis R/W provides a backdrop to all site lines.  Revegetated slopes and natural coloured retaining 
walls will aid in reducing visual impact of the development as seen from the city below.  Note that 
existing buildings and trees, are not shown on the Plan, will also reduce the visual impact, depending 
on the location of the viewer. 

STREETS AND PARKING 

HS10:  There are 3 cul-de-sacs – all are in compliance with the Subdivision and Development Bylaw. 

HS11:  Emergency access lanes may be required on a temporary basis, as the development is phased 
and will comply with guidelines. 

HS12:  Driveway grades will comply with City of Penticton design standards. 

ARCHITECTURE 

Single family developments are exempted from the need for a HDP for house construction in Section 
5.13 of the Community Plan. 

HS13, HS14, HS15 and HS16:  While the architectural style and building finish guidelines are not 
applicable, the grading plan is based on a “stepped building form”.  For lots accessed from the front lot 
line, the intention is for the main floor elevation to be close to the road elevation, with the second floor 
located below or above the main floor.  For lots accessed from the rear or lane lot line, the homes are 
stepped down from the lane towards the lower road. 

HS17:  Maximum retaining wall height of 8’ (2.4m) is identified in the HDP Guidelines.  On the attached 
Retaining Wall Plan Overview and Retaining Wall Typical Sections Plan most of the lots will have 
retaining walls of 4’ or less (1.2m) in the side yards.  For lots located on steep road sections, retaining 
walls up to 2.4m are indicated on the Plans.  

The Retaining Wall Overview Plan identifies areas along the Collector Road and Road G with proposed 
retaining walls of a maximum height of 2.4 m and retaining walls within multiple family development 
sites of up to 2.4m in height.  In some area walls have multiple terraces with vegetation and natural 
coloured and textured building materials and tree planting at the base of these walls to reduce visual 
impact, as well as integration with the adjacent buildings.  At the development stage when bedrock 
locations are outlined, natural rock faces may be established in lieu of retaining walls that may be 
permitted to be taller than 2.4m (to be determined in each HDP phase).  Landscape Concept Plans 
showing landscape treatment of typical sections with multiple retaining walls and areas with slopes are 
attached. 

HS18   Natural-looking textures and natural colours are required in the retaining wall design guidelines.  
Redi-Rock walls are proposed for this development and the Appendix of Retaining Walls outlines wall 
textures, colours, and visual appearance.  Landscape Concept Plans illustrate the integration of 
landscaping opportunities with retaining walls. 

HS19:  Reconstructed slopes are to be replanted with appropriate native plant material to blend the 
hillside setting and to stabilize the slope.   See Landscape Concept Plans noted in HS18 above. 

LIGHTING 

- 322 -



Subject Bluffs HDP  File No: 18-289 March 2022 
 

 

 

 
 7 

  

HS20:  The requirement to provide street lighting on hillside streets only at street intersections is 
supported to reduce the visual impact of multiple tall lighting fixtures.   Alternative lighting approaches 
such as pedestrian level lighting or bollards are suggested for local streets. 

STEEP SLOPES 

HS21:  Approval of development on natural slopes of more than 30% is proposed to be considered on 
overall basis as opposed to a “lot-by-lot basis” due to the comprehensive nature of the grading plan. 
The overall grading plan is based on geotechnical input and for each lot and development site 
geotechnical review and direction will be required for every building permit.  Sloped building sites are 
proposed throughout the North Block and the visual assessment of the development is addressed in 
this Hillside Development Permit. 

 

We trust this report meets your present requirements. If you have any questions or comments, please 
contact the undersigned.  

Sincerely 

Ecora Engineering & Resource Group Ltd. 

 
 
Donna Butler, MCIP, RPP 
Senior Planner 
Direct Line: 250.492 2227 x 1070 
donna.butler@ecora.ca 
 

- 323 -



APPENDIX OF RETAINING WALLS 

Redi-Rock walls offer a variety of textures and colours to suit the local landscape.   

The range of block colours includes greys, browns, earth tones, reds and so on to 

blend in with the natural surroundings and provide an attractive feature to 

complement the neighbourhood.  A number of block textures provide a random, 

stacked stone look, limestone finish, weathered natural stone outcrop look and 

quarried stone appearance. 

Wall construction options includes Gravity Retaining Walls, with reduced 

excavation and smaller footprint without geogrid and Reinforced Retaining Walls 

that support heavy live loads. 

The photos below illustrate the textures available.  The remaining pictures 

illustrate the scale and massing of sample retaining walls and landscaping 

opportunities. 

 

BLOCK TEXTURES 

 

Ledgestone 

 

Limestone 

- 324 -



 

Kingstone 

 

Cobblestone 

 

 

- 325 -



 

 

 

 

- 326 -



 

 

- 327 -



- 328 -



 

- 329 -



49
5

50
0

50
5

51
0

51
5 52

0

52
5

53
0

53
5

53
5

54
0

54
0

54
5

545

54
0

54
5

55
0

55
5

55
5

56
0

560

53
5

54
0

54
5

550

55
5

555

56
0

560

565

56
5

565

530

535

540

545

550

555

560

565

535

54
0

545

545

54
5

54
5

510

515

520

525

53
0

510

51
0

510

515

515

520

52
0

52
5

52
5

530

530

51
5

520

525
550

55
5

555

52
5

52
5

53
0 535

53
0

53
5

535

52
0

52
5

53
0

51
0

51
5

CH'KDREVISIONDRNDATE (YY/MM/DD)NO.

Drawing  No. Rev.No
SCALE:

DATE:

CHECKED:

DESIGN:

DRAWN:

SEAL

RT

RT

-

2021/09/16

1:1500

PENTICTON
850 WILTSE BOULEVARD

WILTSE HOLDINGS LTD.
GRADING PLAN OVERVIEW B18-225-C103.0

N

Attachment  D - Site Grading Plans - 330 -

AutoCAD SHX Text
40.233m R/W R.P. A-2766

AutoCAD SHX Text
2m R/W KAP-84203

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAWTHORNE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAWTHORNE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
84H9642

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD G

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANE 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD A

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD D

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLLECTOR 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD G

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD B

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD A

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD D

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLLECTOR 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD F

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD C

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD C

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD E

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD E

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD B

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILTSE BLVD

AutoCAD SHX Text
EVERGREEN DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAWTHORNE DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANE 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD F

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERLAND FLOW ROUTE

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
21/11/09

AutoCAD SHX Text
BD

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIMINARY DESIGN - FOR REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
RT

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
22/05/20

AutoCAD SHX Text
BD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
RT

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILE LOCATION: Y:\- 2018\18-225-WIT\04_drawings\04-01_working_dwgs\SHEET FILES\Rezone Application\18-225 GRADING PLAN.dwg    PRINTED ON: 5/20/2022 9:12 AMY:\- 2018\18-225-WIT\04_drawings\04-01_working_dwgs\SHEET FILES\Rezone Application\18-225 GRADING PLAN.dwg    PRINTED ON: 5/20/2022 9:12 AM    PRINTED ON: 5/20/2022 9:12 AM5/20/2022 9:12 AM

AutoCAD SHX Text
#201-284 MAIN STREET PENTICTON, B.C. V2A 5B2 PHONE: 250-492-2227 www.ecora.ca

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED FOR CONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY ENGINEER

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS-BUILT APPROVAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKS DIVISION Super.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRICAL DIV. Eng.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS Mgr.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE



48
47

46

45

44

8

9

10

11

1213

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30 31

6362616059

58

57

56

55

54

53

52

51

50

96

84

83

82

81

80

79

78 77

43

42

41

40

39

495

500

505

510

53
5

510

525

530

51
0

510

51
0

515

51
5

520

525

530

515

52
0

510

51
0.

0

51
5.

0
52

0.
0

52
5.

0

53
0.

0

50
6.

0
50

7.
0

50
8.

0
50

9.
0

51
1.

0
51

2.
0

51
3.

0

513.0

51
3.

0
51

4.
0

51
6.

0
51

7.
0

51
8.

0
51

9.
0

52
1.

0

521.0

52
1.

0
52

2.
0

52
3.

0

523.0

52
3.

0
52

4.
0

52
6.

0
52

7.
0

52
8.

0
52

9.
0

53
1.

0

532.0

533.0

534.0

505.0

510.0

515.0

520.0

525.0

530.0

535.0

540.0

506.0
507.0
508.0
509.0

511.0
512.0
513.0

514.0

516.0
517.0
518.0

519.0

521.0

522.0
523.0
524.0

526.0
527.0
528.0
529.0

531.0
532.0

533.0

534.0

536.0
537.0

538.0
539.0

541.0
542.0

495.0

500.0

505.0

494.0

496.0

497.0

498.0

499.0

501.0

502.0

503.0

504.0

506.0

507.0
508.0

509.0

49
3.

0

493.0

493.0

49
0.

0

49
5.

0

500.0

50
5.

0

49
1.

0
49

2.
0

49
3.

0
49

4.
0

49
6.

0
49

7.
0

49
8.

0

499.0

501.0

502.0

50
3.

0
50

4.
0

50
6.

0
50

7.
0

50
8.

0
50

9.
0

513.0

CH'KDREVISIONDRNDATE (YY/MM/DD)NO.

Drawing  No. Rev.No
SCALE:

DATE:

CHECKED:

DESIGN:

DRAWN:

SEAL

RT

RT

-

2021/09/16

1:500

PENTICTON
850 WILTSE BOULEVARD

WILTSE HOLDINGS LTD.
GRADING PLAN SHEET 1 B18-225-C103.1

N

Scale: 1:10000
KEYPLAN1

C
O

N
T

'D
 O

N
 C

10
3.

2

CONT'D ON C103.3 CONT'D ON C103.4

- 331 -

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANE 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLLECTOR 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD B

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD A

AutoCAD SHX Text
EVERGREEN DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVENANT   K A P  6 7 9 9 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVENANT   K A P  6 7 9 9 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
EVERGREEN DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W KAP-64128

AutoCAD SHX Text
EVERGREEN DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
40.233m R/W R.P. A-2766

AutoCAD SHX Text
BARTON CRT

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W KAP-68492

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W KAP-68491

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W KAP-68491

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVENANT KAP-74210

AutoCAD SHX Text
C O V E N A N T   K A P - 7 4 5 9 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
C O V E N A N T     K A P - 7 4 5 9 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W KAP-74594

AutoCAD SHX Text
KAP-74595

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W KAP-76683

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAS KAP-82307

AutoCAD SHX Text
2m R/W KAP-84203

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARTRIDGE DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAWTHORNE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAWTHORNE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
84H9642

AutoCAD SHX Text
84H9647

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERLAND FLOW ROUTE

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
21/11/09

AutoCAD SHX Text
BD

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIMINARY DESIGN - FOR REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
RT

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
22/05/20

AutoCAD SHX Text
BD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
RT

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILE LOCATION: Y:\- 2018\18-225-WIT\04_drawings\04-01_working_dwgs\SHEET FILES\Rezone Application\18-225 GRADING PLAN.dwg    PRINTED ON: 5/20/2022 9:12 AMY:\- 2018\18-225-WIT\04_drawings\04-01_working_dwgs\SHEET FILES\Rezone Application\18-225 GRADING PLAN.dwg    PRINTED ON: 5/20/2022 9:12 AM    PRINTED ON: 5/20/2022 9:12 AM5/20/2022 9:12 AM

AutoCAD SHX Text
#201-284 MAIN STREET PENTICTON, B.C. V2A 5B2 PHONE: 250-492-2227 www.ecora.ca

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED FOR CONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY ENGINEER

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS-BUILT APPROVAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKS DIVISION Super.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRICAL DIV. Eng.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS Mgr.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE



1

23

45

67

8

9

10

11

28

29

30 31 32

33 34 35 36

37 38

7271706968676665646362616059

58

81

80

79

78 77

76

75

74

73

53
5

54
0

54
5

55
0

55
5

56
0

51
5

52
0

525

530

52
5

505.0

510.0

515.0

520.0

525.0

530.0

535.0

540.0

506.0
507.0
508.0
509.0

511.0
512.0
513.0

514.0

516.0
517.0
518.0

519.0

521.0

522.0
523.0
524.0

526.0
527.0
528.0
529.0

531.0
532.0

533.0

534.0

536.0
537.0

538.0
539.0

541.0
542.0

510.0

507.0
508.0

509.0

511.0
512.0

513.0

52
2.

0

52
3.

0

52
4.

0

545.0
550.0

541.0 542.0 543.0 544.0 546.0 547.0 548.0 549.0 551.0 552.0

CH'KDREVISIONDRNDATE (YY/MM/DD)NO.

Drawing  No. Rev.No
SCALE:

DATE:

CHECKED:

DESIGN:

DRAWN:

SEAL

RT

RT

-

2021/09/16

1:500
 

PENTICTON
850 WILTSE BOULEVARD

WILTSE HOLDINGS LTD.
GRADING PLAN SHEET 2 B18-225-C103.2

N

Scale: 1:10000
KEYPLAN1

C
O

N
T

'D
 O

N
 C

10
3.

5

CONT'D ON C103.4

C
O

N
T

'D
 O

N
 C

103.1

- 332 -

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD G

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANE 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD A

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD B

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANE 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVENANT   K A P  6 7 9 9 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVENANT   K A P  6 7 9 9 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
EVERGREEN DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W KAP-64128

AutoCAD SHX Text
EVERGREEN DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
40.233m R/W R.P. A-2766

AutoCAD SHX Text
BARTON CRT

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W KAP-68492

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W KAP-68491

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W KAP-68491

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVENANT KAP-74210

AutoCAD SHX Text
C O V E N A N T   K A P - 7 4 5 9 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
C O V E N A N T     K A P - 7 4 5 9 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W KAP-74594

AutoCAD SHX Text
KAP-74595

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W KAP-76683

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAS KAP-82307

AutoCAD SHX Text
2m R/W KAP-84203

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARTRIDGE DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAWTHORNE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAWTHORNE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
84H9642

AutoCAD SHX Text
84H9647

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERLAND FLOW ROUTE

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
21/11/09

AutoCAD SHX Text
BD

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIMINARY DESIGN - FOR REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
RT

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
22/05/20

AutoCAD SHX Text
BD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
RT

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILE LOCATION: Y:\- 2018\18-225-WIT\04_drawings\04-01_working_dwgs\SHEET FILES\Rezone Application\18-225 GRADING PLAN.dwg    PRINTED ON: 5/20/2022 9:12 AMY:\- 2018\18-225-WIT\04_drawings\04-01_working_dwgs\SHEET FILES\Rezone Application\18-225 GRADING PLAN.dwg    PRINTED ON: 5/20/2022 9:12 AM    PRINTED ON: 5/20/2022 9:12 AM5/20/2022 9:12 AM

AutoCAD SHX Text
#201-284 MAIN STREET PENTICTON, B.C. V2A 5B2 PHONE: 250-492-2227 www.ecora.ca

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED FOR CONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY ENGINEER

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS-BUILT APPROVAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKS DIVISION Super.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRICAL DIV. Eng.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS Mgr.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE



51

50

49

95
94

93

92

91

90

89

88

87

86

85

131

132

133

134

135
136

137

515

520

525

55
0

530

53
5

540

545

545

51
5

520

525

520

525

530

515

515.0

52
0.

0

52
5.

0

530.0

513.0

514.0

516.0

517.0

518.0

519.0

521.0

52
2.

0
52

3.
0

52
4.

0 52
6.

0

527.0

528.0

529.0

515.0

520.0

52
5.

0

530.0

514.0

516.0

517.0

518.0

51
9.

0

521.0

52
2.

0

52
3.

0

52
4.

0

52
6.

0

527.0

528.0

529.0

530.0

535.0

540.0

531.0
532.0 533.0

534.0 536.0
537.0 538.0 539.0 541.0

54
5.

0

54
1.

0

54
2.

0

54
3.

0

54
4.

0

54
6.

0
54

7.
0

54
8.

0
54

9.
0

50
5.

0

51
0.

0 51
5.

0

50
3.

0
50

4.
0

50
6.

0
50

7.
0

50
8.

0
50

9.
0

51
1.

0

51
2.

0
51

3.
0

51
4.

0

51
6.

0 51
7.

0 51
8.

0

52
0.

0

52
5.

0

51
9.

0

52
1.

0

52
2.

0

52
3.

0

52
4.

0

52
6.

0
52

7.
0

53
5.

0

53
2.

0
53

3.
0

534.0

53
6.

0

537.0

53
8.

0
53

9.
0

54
5.

0

54
2.

0
54

3.
0

54
4.

0

54
6.

0

54
8.

0

54
9.

0

CH'KDREVISIONDRNDATE (YY/MM/DD)NO.

Drawing  No. Rev.No
SCALE:

DATE:

CHECKED:

DESIGN:

DRAWN:

SEAL

RT

RT

-

2021/09/16

1:500
 

PENTICTON
850 WILTSE BOULEVARD

WILTSE HOLDINGS LTD.
GRADING PLAN SHEET 3 B18-225-C103.3

N

Scale: 1:10000
KEYPLAN1

C
O

N
T

'D
 O

N
 C

10
3.

4

CONT'D ON C103.6

CONT'D ON C103.6

- 333 -

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD G

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVENANT   K A P  6 7 9 9 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVENANT   K A P  6 7 9 9 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
EVERGREEN DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W KAP-64128

AutoCAD SHX Text
EVERGREEN DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
40.233m R/W R.P. A-2766

AutoCAD SHX Text
BARTON CRT

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W KAP-68492

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W KAP-68491

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W KAP-68491

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVENANT KAP-74210

AutoCAD SHX Text
C O V E N A N T   K A P - 7 4 5 9 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
C O V E N A N T     K A P - 7 4 5 9 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W KAP-74594

AutoCAD SHX Text
KAP-74595

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W KAP-76683

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAS KAP-82307

AutoCAD SHX Text
2m R/W KAP-84203

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARTRIDGE DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAWTHORNE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAWTHORNE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
84H9642

AutoCAD SHX Text
84H9647

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERLAND FLOW ROUTE

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
21/11/09

AutoCAD SHX Text
BD

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIMINARY DESIGN - FOR REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
RT

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
22/05/20

AutoCAD SHX Text
BD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
RT

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILE LOCATION: Y:\- 2018\18-225-WIT\04_drawings\04-01_working_dwgs\SHEET FILES\Rezone Application\18-225 GRADING PLAN.dwg    PRINTED ON: 5/20/2022 9:12 AMY:\- 2018\18-225-WIT\04_drawings\04-01_working_dwgs\SHEET FILES\Rezone Application\18-225 GRADING PLAN.dwg    PRINTED ON: 5/20/2022 9:12 AM    PRINTED ON: 5/20/2022 9:12 AM5/20/2022 9:12 AM

AutoCAD SHX Text
#201-284 MAIN STREET PENTICTON, B.C. V2A 5B2 PHONE: 250-492-2227 www.ecora.ca

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED FOR CONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY ENGINEER

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS-BUILT APPROVAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKS DIVISION Super.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRICAL DIV. Eng.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS Mgr.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE



54

53

52

51

50
89

88

87

86

85

84

83

82

107

106

105

104

103

102

101

100

98

99

97

117

116

115

114

113

112

111

110

108

128

129

130

131

132

133

134

135
136

109

118

119

120

121

122

535

540

545

55
0

560

560

56
5

565

56
5

530

53
5

54
0

54
5

53
5

540

545

545

520

525

530

515

550

555

55
5

53
0.

052
8.

0
52

9.
0

53
1.

0

532.0

533.0

534.0

535.0

540.0

536.0
537.0

538.0
539.0

541.0
542.0

545.0
550.0

541.0 542.0 543.0 544.0 546.0 547.0 548.0 549.0 551.0 552.0

530.0

52
6.

0

527.0

528.0

529.0

530.0

52
6.

0

527.0

528.0

529.0

540.0

536.0
537.0 538.0 539.0 541.0

54
5.

0

54
1.

0

54
2.

0

54
3.

0

54
4.

0

54
6.

0
54

7.
0

54
8.

0
54

9.
0

535.0

540.0

545.0

536.0
537.0

538.0

539.0 541.0

54
2.

0

543.0
544.0

545.0

550.0
544.0 546.0 547.0

548.0 549.0 551.0

552.0 553.0 554.0

54
0.

0
54

5.
0

55
0.

0

53
7.

0
53

8.
0

53
9.

0
54

1.
0

54
2.

0
54

3.
0

54
4.

0
54

6.
0

54
7.

0
54

8.
0

54
9.

0
55

1.
0

55
0.

0
55

5.
0

54
7.

0
54

8.
0

54
9.

0
55

1.
0

55
2.

0
55

3.
0

55
4.

0
55

6.
0

55
7.

0
55

8.
0

565.0

561.0

562.0

563.0

564.0

56
0.0

55
7.0

55
8.0

55
9.0

56
1.0

56
2.0

56
3.0

564.0

56
0.0

56
1.0

56
2.0

56
3.0

56
4.0

560.0

557.0

558.0

559.0

561.0

562.0

560.0

561.0

56
2.

0 560.0

561.0

562.0

563.0

564.0

55
5.0

56
0.0

55
2.0 55

3.0 55
4.0

55
6.0 55

7.0 55
8.0 55

9.0
561.0

560.0

556.0

557.0

558.0

559.0

561.0

562.0

54
5.

0

54
2.

0

CH'KDREVISIONDRNDATE (YY/MM/DD)NO.

Drawing  No. Rev.No
SCALE:

DATE:

CHECKED:

DESIGN:

DRAWN:

SEAL

RT

RT

-

2021/09/16

1:500
 

PENTICTON
850 WILTSE BOULEVARD

WILTSE HOLDINGS LTD.
GRADING PLAN SHEET 4 B18-225-C103.4

N

Scale: 1:10000
KEYPLAN1

C
O

N
T

'D
 O

N
 C

10
3.

5

C
O

N
T

'D
 O

N
 C

103.3

CONT'D ON C103.6

CONT'D ON C103.2CONT'D ON C103.1

- 334 -

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD G

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD D

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD G

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD D

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD C

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD F

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVENANT   K A P  6 7 9 9 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVENANT   K A P  6 7 9 9 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
EVERGREEN DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W KAP-64128

AutoCAD SHX Text
EVERGREEN DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
40.233m R/W R.P. A-2766

AutoCAD SHX Text
BARTON CRT

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W KAP-68492

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W KAP-68491

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W KAP-68491

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVENANT KAP-74210

AutoCAD SHX Text
C O V E N A N T   K A P - 7 4 5 9 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
C O V E N A N T     K A P - 7 4 5 9 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W KAP-74594

AutoCAD SHX Text
KAP-74595

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W KAP-76683

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAS KAP-82307

AutoCAD SHX Text
2m R/W KAP-84203

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARTRIDGE DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAWTHORNE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAWTHORNE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
84H9642

AutoCAD SHX Text
84H9647

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERLAND FLOW ROUTE

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
21/11/09

AutoCAD SHX Text
BD

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIMINARY DESIGN - FOR REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
RT

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
22/05/20

AutoCAD SHX Text
BD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
RT

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILE LOCATION: Y:\- 2018\18-225-WIT\04_drawings\04-01_working_dwgs\SHEET FILES\Rezone Application\18-225 GRADING PLAN.dwg    PRINTED ON: 5/20/2022 9:12 AMY:\- 2018\18-225-WIT\04_drawings\04-01_working_dwgs\SHEET FILES\Rezone Application\18-225 GRADING PLAN.dwg    PRINTED ON: 5/20/2022 9:12 AM    PRINTED ON: 5/20/2022 9:12 AM5/20/2022 9:12 AM

AutoCAD SHX Text
#201-284 MAIN STREET PENTICTON, B.C. V2A 5B2 PHONE: 250-492-2227 www.ecora.ca

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED FOR CONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY ENGINEER

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS-BUILT APPROVAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKS DIVISION Super.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRICAL DIV. Eng.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS Mgr.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE



35 36

37 38

7271706968

74

73

102

101

100

98

99

97

119

120

121

122

123

124

125

126

127

555

560

54
5

55
0

55
5

56
0

56
5

530

555

55
5

550.0548.0 549.0 551.0 552.0

560.0

556.0

557.0

558.0

559.0

561.0

562.0

555.0

560.0

554.0

556.0

557.0

558.0

559.0

561.0

562.0

563.0

CH'KDREVISIONDRNDATE (YY/MM/DD)NO.

Drawing  No. Rev.No
SCALE:

DATE:

CHECKED:

DESIGN:

DRAWN:

SEAL

RT

RT

-

2021/09/16

1:500
 

PENTICTON
850 WILTSE BOULEVARD

WILTSE HOLDINGS LTD.
GRADING PLAN SHEET 5 B18-225-C103.5

N

Scale: 1:10000
KEYPLAN1

C
O

N
T

'D
 O

N
 C

103.4

CONT'D ON C103.4

- 335 -

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD D

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD B

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD F

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVENANT   K A P  6 7 9 9 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVENANT   K A P  6 7 9 9 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
EVERGREEN DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W KAP-64128

AutoCAD SHX Text
EVERGREEN DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
40.233m R/W R.P. A-2766

AutoCAD SHX Text
BARTON CRT

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W KAP-68492

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W KAP-68491

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W KAP-68491

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVENANT KAP-74210

AutoCAD SHX Text
C O V E N A N T   K A P - 7 4 5 9 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
C O V E N A N T     K A P - 7 4 5 9 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W KAP-74594

AutoCAD SHX Text
KAP-74595

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W KAP-76683

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAS KAP-82307

AutoCAD SHX Text
2m R/W KAP-84203

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARTRIDGE DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAWTHORNE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAWTHORNE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
84H9642

AutoCAD SHX Text
84H9647

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERLAND FLOW ROUTE

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
21/11/09

AutoCAD SHX Text
BD

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIMINARY DESIGN - FOR REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
RT

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
22/05/20

AutoCAD SHX Text
BD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
RT

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILE LOCATION: Y:\- 2018\18-225-WIT\04_drawings\04-01_working_dwgs\SHEET FILES\Rezone Application\18-225 GRADING PLAN.dwg    PRINTED ON: 5/20/2022 9:12 AMY:\- 2018\18-225-WIT\04_drawings\04-01_working_dwgs\SHEET FILES\Rezone Application\18-225 GRADING PLAN.dwg    PRINTED ON: 5/20/2022 9:12 AM    PRINTED ON: 5/20/2022 9:12 AM5/20/2022 9:12 AM

AutoCAD SHX Text
#201-284 MAIN STREET PENTICTON, B.C. V2A 5B2 PHONE: 250-492-2227 www.ecora.ca

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED FOR CONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY ENGINEER

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS-BUILT APPROVAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKS DIVISION Super.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRICAL DIV. Eng.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS Mgr.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE



135
136

137

138

139

140

141

142

143

144

145

146

147

148

149

150

151

152

530

535

540

545

55
0

555

560

545

545

545

525

530

535

530

53
5.

0

540.0

53
2.

0
53

3.
0

534.0

53
6.

0

537.0

53
8.

0
53

9.
0

54
1.

0

542.0

54
5.

0

55
0.

0

54
2.

0
54

3.
0

54
4.

0

54
6.

0
54

7.
0

54
8.

0

54
9.

0

55
5.

0

56
0.

0
55

2.
0

55
3.

0
55

4.
0

55
6.

0
55

7.
0

55
8.

0
55

9.
0

56
1.

0

52
5.

0

53
0.

0

52
2.

0

52
3.

0
52

4.
0

52
6.

0
52

7.
0

52
8.

0
52

9.
0

53
1.

0

53
2.

0
53

3.
0

53
4.

0

CH'KDREVISIONDRNDATE (YY/MM/DD)NO.

Drawing  No. Rev.No
SCALE:

DATE:

CHECKED:

DESIGN:

DRAWN:

SEAL

RT

RT

-

2021/09/16

1:500
 

PENTICTON
850 WILTSE BOULEVARD

WILTSE HOLDINGS LTD.
GRADING PLAN SHEET 6 B18-225-C103.6

N

Scale: 1:10000
KEYPLAN1

CONT'D ON C103.7

CONT'D ON C103.3 CONT'D ON C103.4

- 336 -

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAWTHORNE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD C

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD E

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVENANT   K A P  6 7 9 9 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVENANT   K A P  6 7 9 9 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
EVERGREEN DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W KAP-64128

AutoCAD SHX Text
EVERGREEN DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
40.233m R/W R.P. A-2766

AutoCAD SHX Text
BARTON CRT

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W KAP-68492

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W KAP-68491

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W KAP-68491

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVENANT KAP-74210

AutoCAD SHX Text
C O V E N A N T   K A P - 7 4 5 9 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
C O V E N A N T     K A P - 7 4 5 9 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W KAP-74594

AutoCAD SHX Text
KAP-74595

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W KAP-76683

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAS KAP-82307

AutoCAD SHX Text
2m R/W KAP-84203

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARTRIDGE DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAWTHORNE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAWTHORNE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
84H9642

AutoCAD SHX Text
84H9647

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERLAND FLOW ROUTE

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
21/11/09

AutoCAD SHX Text
BD

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIMINARY DESIGN - FOR REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
RT

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
22/05/20

AutoCAD SHX Text
BD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
RT

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILE LOCATION: Y:\- 2018\18-225-WIT\04_drawings\04-01_working_dwgs\SHEET FILES\Rezone Application\18-225 GRADING PLAN.dwg    PRINTED ON: 5/20/2022 9:12 AMY:\- 2018\18-225-WIT\04_drawings\04-01_working_dwgs\SHEET FILES\Rezone Application\18-225 GRADING PLAN.dwg    PRINTED ON: 5/20/2022 9:12 AM    PRINTED ON: 5/20/2022 9:12 AM5/20/2022 9:12 AM

AutoCAD SHX Text
#201-284 MAIN STREET PENTICTON, B.C. V2A 5B2 PHONE: 250-492-2227 www.ecora.ca

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED FOR CONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY ENGINEER

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS-BUILT APPROVAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKS DIVISION Super.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRICAL DIV. Eng.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS Mgr.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE



145

173
172

171
170

169
168

167
166

165

164

163

162

161

151

152

153

154

155

156

157
158

159
160

540

545

555

560

560

525

530

535

535

52
2.

0

52
3.

0
52

4.
0

52
5.

0

53
0.

0

53
5.

0

523.0

52
3.

0
52

4.
0

52
6.

0

52
7.

0
52

8.
0

52
9.

0

53
1.

0

53
2.

0
53

3.
0

534.0

53
6.

0

54
5.

0

55
0.

0

55
5.

0

54
2.

0

54
3.

0

54
4.

0

54
6.

0

54
7.

0

54
8.

0

54
9.

0

55
1.

0

55
2.

0

55
3.

0

55
4.

0

55
6.

0

55
7.

0

52
0.

0
51

9.
0

52
1.

0

52
2.

0

52
3.

0

52
4.

0

53
0.

0

535.0

53
1.

0
53

2.
0

53
3.

0
53

4.
0

54
5.

0

55
0.

0

54
6.

0 54
7.

0 54
8.

0 54
9.

0 55
1.

0

55
5.

0

55
4.

0

532.0

555.0

552.0

553.0

554.0

556.0

557.0

CH'KDREVISIONDRNDATE (YY/MM/DD)NO.

Drawing  No. Rev.No
SCALE:

DATE:

CHECKED:

DESIGN:

DRAWN:

SEAL

RT

RT

-

2021/09/16

1:500
 

850 WILTSE BOULEVARD
850 WILTSE BOULEVARD

WILTSE HOLDINGS LTD.
GRADING PLAN SHEET 7 B18-225-C103.7

N

Scale: 1:10000
KEYPLAN1

CONT'D ON C103.8

CONT'D ON C103.6

- 337 -

AutoCAD SHX Text
40.233m R/W R.P. A-2766

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAWTHORNE

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLLECTOR 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD E

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAWTHORNE DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVENANT   K A P  6 7 9 9 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVENANT   K A P  6 7 9 9 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
EVERGREEN DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W KAP-64128

AutoCAD SHX Text
EVERGREEN DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
40.233m R/W R.P. A-2766

AutoCAD SHX Text
BARTON CRT

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W KAP-68492

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W KAP-68491

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W KAP-68491

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVENANT KAP-74210

AutoCAD SHX Text
C O V E N A N T   K A P - 7 4 5 9 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
C O V E N A N T     K A P - 7 4 5 9 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W KAP-74594

AutoCAD SHX Text
KAP-74595

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W KAP-76683

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAS KAP-82307

AutoCAD SHX Text
2m R/W KAP-84203

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARTRIDGE DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAWTHORNE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAWTHORNE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
84H9642

AutoCAD SHX Text
84H9647

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERLAND FLOW ROUTE

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
21/11/09

AutoCAD SHX Text
BD

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIMINARY DESIGN - FOR REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
RT

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
22/05/20

AutoCAD SHX Text
BD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
RT

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILE LOCATION: Y:\- 2018\18-225-WIT\04_drawings\04-01_working_dwgs\SHEET FILES\Rezone Application\18-225 GRADING PLAN.dwg    PRINTED ON: 5/20/2022 9:13 AMY:\- 2018\18-225-WIT\04_drawings\04-01_working_dwgs\SHEET FILES\Rezone Application\18-225 GRADING PLAN.dwg    PRINTED ON: 5/20/2022 9:13 AM    PRINTED ON: 5/20/2022 9:13 AM5/20/2022 9:13 AM

AutoCAD SHX Text
#201-284 MAIN STREET PENTICTON, B.C. V2A 5B2 PHONE: 250-492-2227 www.ecora.ca

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED FOR CONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY ENGINEER

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS-BUILT APPROVAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKS DIVISION Super.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRICAL DIV. Eng.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS Mgr.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE



175

174
173

176
177

178
179

180

181
182

183

535

540

540

545

550

555

54
0.

0

54
5.

0

55
0.

0

53
6.

0

53
7.

0

53
8.

0

53
9.

0

54
1.

0 54
2.

0 54
3.

0 54
4.

0

54
6.

0 54
7.

0 54
8.

0 54
9.

0 55
1.

0

54
0.

0

54
5.

0

55
0.

0

55
5.

0

54
1.

0

54
2.

0

54
3.

0

54
4.

0

54
6.

0

54
7.

0

54
8.

0

54
9.

0

55
1.

0

55
2.

0

55
3.

0

55
4.

0

535.0

535.0

535.0

533.0

534.0

CH'KDREVISIONDRNDATE (YY/MM/DD)NO.

Drawing  No. Rev.No
SCALE:

DATE:

CHECKED:

DESIGN:

DRAWN:

SEAL

RT

RT

-

2021/09/16

1:500
 

PENTICTON
850 WILTSE BOULEVARD

WILTSE HOLDINGS LTD.
GRADING PLAN SHEET 8 B18-225-C103.8

N

Scale: 1:10000
KEYPLAN1

CONT'D ON C103.7

CONT'D ON C103.9

- 338 -

AutoCAD SHX Text
40.233m R/W R.P. A-2766

AutoCAD SHX Text
2m R/W KAP-84203

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARTRIDGE DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD F

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVENANT   K A P  6 7 9 9 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVENANT   K A P  6 7 9 9 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
EVERGREEN DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W KAP-64128

AutoCAD SHX Text
EVERGREEN DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
40.233m R/W R.P. A-2766

AutoCAD SHX Text
BARTON CRT

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W KAP-68492

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W KAP-68491

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W KAP-68491

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVENANT KAP-74210

AutoCAD SHX Text
C O V E N A N T   K A P - 7 4 5 9 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
C O V E N A N T     K A P - 7 4 5 9 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W KAP-74594

AutoCAD SHX Text
KAP-74595

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W KAP-76683

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAS KAP-82307

AutoCAD SHX Text
2m R/W KAP-84203

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARTRIDGE DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAWTHORNE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAWTHORNE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
84H9642

AutoCAD SHX Text
84H9647

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERLAND FLOW ROUTE

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
21/11/09

AutoCAD SHX Text
BD

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIMINARY DESIGN - FOR REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
RT

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
22/05/20

AutoCAD SHX Text
BD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
RT

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILE LOCATION: Y:\- 2018\18-225-WIT\04_drawings\04-01_working_dwgs\SHEET FILES\Rezone Application\18-225 GRADING PLAN.dwg    PRINTED ON: 5/20/2022 9:13 AMY:\- 2018\18-225-WIT\04_drawings\04-01_working_dwgs\SHEET FILES\Rezone Application\18-225 GRADING PLAN.dwg    PRINTED ON: 5/20/2022 9:13 AM    PRINTED ON: 5/20/2022 9:13 AM5/20/2022 9:13 AM

AutoCAD SHX Text
#201-284 MAIN STREET PENTICTON, B.C. V2A 5B2 PHONE: 250-492-2227 www.ecora.ca

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED FOR CONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY ENGINEER

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS-BUILT APPROVAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKS DIVISION Super.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRICAL DIV. Eng.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS Mgr.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE



CH'KDREVISIONDRNDATE (YY/MM/DD)NO.

Drawing  No. Rev.No
SCALE:

DATE:

CHECKED:

DESIGN:

DRAWN:

SEAL

RT

RT

-

2021/09/16

1:500
 

PENTICTON
850 WILTSE BOULEVARD

WILTSE HOLDINGS LTD.
GRADING PLAN SHEET 9 B18-225-C103.9

N

Scale: 1:10000
KEYPLAN1

CONT'D ON C103.8

- 339 -

AutoCAD SHX Text
2m R/W KAP-84203

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARTRIDGE DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVENANT   K A P  6 7 9 9 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVENANT   K A P  6 7 9 9 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
EVERGREEN DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W KAP-64128

AutoCAD SHX Text
EVERGREEN DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
40.233m R/W R.P. A-2766

AutoCAD SHX Text
BARTON CRT

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W KAP-68492

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W KAP-68491

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W KAP-68491

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVENANT KAP-74210

AutoCAD SHX Text
C O V E N A N T   K A P - 7 4 5 9 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
C O V E N A N T     K A P - 7 4 5 9 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W KAP-74594

AutoCAD SHX Text
KAP-74595

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W KAP-76683

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAS KAP-82307

AutoCAD SHX Text
2m R/W KAP-84203

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARTRIDGE DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAWTHORNE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAWTHORNE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
84H9642

AutoCAD SHX Text
84H9647

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERLAND FLOW ROUTE

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
21/11/09

AutoCAD SHX Text
BD

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIMINARY DESIGN - FOR REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
RT

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
22/05/20

AutoCAD SHX Text
BD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
RT

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILE LOCATION: Y:\- 2018\18-225-WIT\04_drawings\04-01_working_dwgs\SHEET FILES\Rezone Application\18-225 GRADING PLAN.dwg    PRINTED ON: 5/20/2022 9:13 AMY:\- 2018\18-225-WIT\04_drawings\04-01_working_dwgs\SHEET FILES\Rezone Application\18-225 GRADING PLAN.dwg    PRINTED ON: 5/20/2022 9:13 AM    PRINTED ON: 5/20/2022 9:13 AM5/20/2022 9:13 AM

AutoCAD SHX Text
#201-284 MAIN STREET PENTICTON, B.C. V2A 5B2 PHONE: 250-492-2227 www.ecora.ca

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED FOR CONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY ENGINEER

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS-BUILT APPROVAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKS DIVISION Super.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRICAL DIV. Eng.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS Mgr.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE



49
5

50
0

50
5

51
0

51
5 52

0

52
5

53
0

53
5

53
5

54
0

54
0

54
5

545

54
0

54
5

55
0

55
5

55
5

56
0

560

53
5

54
0

54
5

550

55
5

555

56
0

560

565

56
5

565

530

535

540

545

550

555

560

565

535

54
0

545

545

54
5

54
5

510

515

520

525

53
0

510

51
0

510

515

515

520

52
0

52
5

52
5

530

530

51
5

520

525
550

55
5

555

52
5

52
5

53
0 535

53
0

53
5

535

52
0

52
5

53
0

51
0

51
5

B

B
C

C

1.6 m

1.8 m

2.0 m

2.4 m

2.4 m

MAX 2.4 m

MAX 2.0 m

0.6 m

0.5 m

0.3 m

0.3 m

0.7 m

2.5 m
1.2 m

2.2 m
2.4 m2.3 m

1.2 m

1.1 m
2.3 m

2.3 m

2.3 m

2.4 m

2.4 m

2.0 m

1.1 m

2.4 m

2.4 m

1.8 m

1.9 m

1.5 m

1.2 m

0.8 m

1.2 m

1.9 m

2.4 m

MAX 2.4 m

MAX 2.4 m

MAX 2.4 m

MAX 2.4 m

1.1 m1.3 m1.5 m
1.5 m

1.1 m

1.1 m

A

A

0.4 m

0.5 m

MAX 2.4 m

MAX 2.4 m

MAX 2.4 m

1.0 m1.1 m1.2 m1.2 m1.2 m1.1 m

1.5 m

MAX 2.4 m

CH'KDREVISIONDRNDATE (YY/MM/DD)NO.

Drawing  No. Rev.No
SCALE:

DATE:

CHECKED:

DESIGN:

DRAWN:

SEAL

RT

RT

-

2021/09/16

1:1750

PENTICTON
850 WILTSE BOULEVARD

WILTSE HOLDINGS LTD.
RETAINING WALL PLAN OVERVIEW B18-225-C113.0

N

Attachment E - Retaining Walls Plan - 340 -

AutoCAD SHX Text
40.233m R/W R.P. A-2766

AutoCAD SHX Text
2m R/W KAP-84203

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAWTHORNE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAWTHORNE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
84H9642

AutoCAD SHX Text
84H9647

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD G

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANE 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD A

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD D

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLLECTOR 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD G

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD B

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD A

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD D

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLLECTOR 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD F

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD C

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD C

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD E

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD E

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANE 5

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANE 6

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD B

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILTSE BLVD

AutoCAD SHX Text
EVERGREEN DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAWTHORNE DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANE 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANE 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD F

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED RETAINING WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
21/11/18

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIMINARY DESIGN - FOR REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
RT

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
22/05/20

AutoCAD SHX Text
BD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
RT

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILE LOCATION: Y:\- 2018\18-225-WIT\04_drawings\04-01_working_dwgs\SHEET FILES\Hillside DP\18-225 RETAINING WALL PLAN.dwg    PRINTED ON: 5/19/2022 2:55 PMY:\- 2018\18-225-WIT\04_drawings\04-01_working_dwgs\SHEET FILES\Hillside DP\18-225 RETAINING WALL PLAN.dwg    PRINTED ON: 5/19/2022 2:55 PM    PRINTED ON: 5/19/2022 2:55 PM5/19/2022 2:55 PM

AutoCAD SHX Text
#201-284 MAIN STREET PENTICTON, B.C. V2A 5B2 PHONE: 250-492-2227 www.ecora.ca

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED FOR CONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY ENGINEER

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS-BUILT APPROVAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKS DIVISION Super.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRICAL DIV. Eng.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS Mgr.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE



515

520

525

530

535

540

515

520

525

530

535

540

-0
+

02
0

0+
00

0

0+
02

0

0+
04

0

0+
06

0

0+
08

0

0+
10

0

0+
12

0

0+
14

0

0+
16

0

P
L

P
L

P
L

P
L

P
L

P
L

1.
10

m
 L

A
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

W
A

LL
 (

M
A

X
 1

.2
m

 T
Y

P
.)

1.
34

m
 R

E
T

. W
A

LL

1.
50

m
 R

E
T

. W
A

LL

1.
49

m
 R

E
T

. W
A

LL

1.
14

m
 L

A
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

W
A

LL
 (

M
A

X
 1

.2
m

 T
Y

P
.)

1.
10

m
 L

A
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

W
A

LL
 (

M
A

X
 1

.2
m

 T
Y

P
.)

LOT BUILDING PAD (TYP.)
2:1 SLOPE (TYP.)

485

490

495

500

505

510

515

485

490

495

500

505

510

515

0+
00

0

0+
02

0

0+
04

0

0+
06

0

0+
08

0

0+
10

0

0+
12

0

0+
14

0

0+
16

0

0+
18

0

0+
19

5

2:1 SLOPE (TYP.)

0.
58

m
 L

A
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

W
A

LL
 (

M
A

X
 1

.2
m

)

0.
44

m
 L

A
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

W
A

LL
 (

M
A

X
 1

.2
m

)

0.
26

m
 L

A
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

W
A

LL
 (

M
A

X
 1

.2
m

)

0.
34

m
 L

A
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

W
A

LL
 (

M
A

X
 1

.2
m

)

0.
43

m
 L

A
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

W
A

LL
 (

M
A

X
 1

.2
m

)

P
L

P
L

P
L

P
L

P
L

P
L

P
L

P
L

0.
29

m
 L

A
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

W
A

LL
 (

M
A

X
 1

.2
m

)

0.
62

m
 L

A
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

W
A

LL
 (

M
A

X
 1

.2
m

)

LOT BUILDING PAD (TYP.)

505

510

515

520

525

530

505

510

515

520

525

530

0+
00

0

0+
02

0

0+
04

0

0+
06

0

0+
08

0

0+
10

0

0+
12

0

0+
14

0

0+
16

0

P
L

P
L

P
L

P
L

P
L

P
L

LOT BUILDING PAD (TYP.)

2:1 SLOPE (TYP.)

0.
42

m
 L

A
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

W
A

LL
 (

M
A

X
 1

.2
m

)

2.
29

m
 R

E
T

. W
A

LL

2.
40

m
 R

E
T

. W
A

LL

2.
19

m
 R

E
T

. W
A

LL

CH'KDREVISIONDRNDATE (YY/MM/DD)NO.

Drawing  No. Rev.No
SCALE:

DATE:

CHECKED:

DESIGN:

DRAWN:

SEAL

RT

MAP

RT

2021/11/18

1:250H
1:250V

PENTICTON
850 WILTSE BOULEVARD

WILTSE HOLDINGS LTD.
RETAINING WALL TYPICAL SECTIONS B18-225-C113.1

TYPICAL LOT RETAINING WALL SECTION A-A
SCALE 1:250

TYPICAL LOT RETAINING WALL SECTION B-B
SCALE 1:250

TYPICAL LOT RETAINING WALL SECTION C-C
SCALE 1:250

- 341 -

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
21/11/18

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIMINARY DESIGN - FOR REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
RT

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
22/05/20

AutoCAD SHX Text
BD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
RT

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILE LOCATION: Y:\- 2018\18-225-WIT\04_drawings\04-01_working_dwgs\SHEET FILES\Hillside DP\18-225 RETAINING WALL PLAN.dwg    PRINTED ON: 5/19/2022 2:55 PMY:\- 2018\18-225-WIT\04_drawings\04-01_working_dwgs\SHEET FILES\Hillside DP\18-225 RETAINING WALL PLAN.dwg    PRINTED ON: 5/19/2022 2:55 PM    PRINTED ON: 5/19/2022 2:55 PM5/19/2022 2:55 PM

AutoCAD SHX Text
#201-284 MAIN STREET PENTICTON, B.C. V2A 5B2 PHONE: 250-492-2227 www.ecora.ca

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED FOR CONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY ENGINEER

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS-BUILT APPROVAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKS DIVISION Super.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRICAL DIV. Eng.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS Mgr.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE



4847
4645

44

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

72

71

70

69

68

67

66

65

64

63

62

61

60

59

58

57

56

55

54

53

52

51

50

49

96 95 94 93
92 91

90

89

88

87

86

85

84

83

82

81

80

79

78

77

76

75

74

73

107

106
105

104

103

102
101

100

98

99

97

117

116

115

114

113

112

111

110

108

128

129

130

131

132

133
134

135 136
137

138
139 140

141
142

143

144

145

175174173172171170169168167166165164
163

162
161

176 177 178 179 180 181 182
183

43
42

4140
39

109

146

147
148

149
150

151
152

153
154

155
156

157 158 159 160

118

119

120

121

122

123

124

125
126

127

CH'KDREVISIONDRNDATE (YY/MM/DD)NO.

Drawing  No. Rev.No
SCALE:

DATE:

CHECKED:

DESIGN:

DRAWN:

SEAL

RT

RT

-

2021/11/17

1:2000

CITY OF PENTICTON
850 WILTSE BOULEVARD

WILTSE HOLDINGS LTD.
SLOPE ANALYSIS PLAN D18-225-C114.0

N

Attachment F - Slope Analysis Plan - 342 -

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W KAP-67996

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W KAP-67995

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESERVOIR

AutoCAD SHX Text
40.233m R/W R.P. A-2766

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W KAP-68492

AutoCAD SHX Text
C O V E N A N T   K A P - 7 4 5 9 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
C O V E N A N T     K A P - 7 4 5 9 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
KAP-74595

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAS KAP-82307

AutoCAD SHX Text
2m R/W KAP-84203

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W KAP-67996

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W KAP-67995

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESERVOIR

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARTRIDGE DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAWTHORNE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAWTHORNE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
84H9642

AutoCAD SHX Text
84H9647

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
21/11/09

AutoCAD SHX Text
RT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIMINARY DEIGN - FOR REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
22/02/25

AutoCAD SHX Text
RT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
MDY

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
22/03/14

AutoCAD SHX Text
RT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
KM

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
22/05/20

AutoCAD SHX Text
BD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
RT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILE LOCATION: Y:\- 2018\18-225-WIT\04_drawings\04-01_working_dwgs\SHEET FILES\Hillside DP\18-225 SLOPE ANALYSIS.dwg    PRINTED ON: 5/19/2022 3:09 PMY:\- 2018\18-225-WIT\04_drawings\04-01_working_dwgs\SHEET FILES\Hillside DP\18-225 SLOPE ANALYSIS.dwg    PRINTED ON: 5/19/2022 3:09 PM    PRINTED ON: 5/19/2022 3:09 PM5/19/2022 3:09 PM

AutoCAD SHX Text
#201-284 MAIN STREET PENTICTON, B.C. V2A 5B2 PHONE: 250-492-2227 www.ecora.ca

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED FOR CONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY ENGINEER

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS-BUILT APPROVAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKS DIVISION Super.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRICAL DIV. Eng.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS Mgr.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
0% - 10% SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10% - 20% SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
20% - 30% SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
30%+ SLOPE



CH'KDREVISIONDRNDATE (YY/MM/DD)NO.

Drawing  No. Rev.No
SCALE:

DATE:

CHECKED:

DESIGN:

DRAWN:

SEAL

RT

RT

-

2021/11/08

1:2000

CITY OF PENTICTON
850 WILTSE BOULEVARD

WILTSE HOLDINGS LTD.
GREEN AND NATURAL AREAS PLAN D18-225-C109.0

N

Attachment G - Green Spaces Plan - 343 -

AutoCAD SHX Text
40.233m R/W R.P. A-2766

AutoCAD SHX Text
2m R/W KAP-84203

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAWTHORNE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAWTHORNE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
84H9642

AutoCAD SHX Text
84H9647

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD G

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANE 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD A

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD D

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLLECTOR 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD G

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD B

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD A

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD D

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLLECTOR 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD F

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD C

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD C

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD E

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD E

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD B

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILTSE BLVD

AutoCAD SHX Text
EVERGREEN DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAWTHORNE DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANE 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD H

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
21/11/09

AutoCAD SHX Text
RT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIMINARY DESIGN - FOR REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
22/02/25

AutoCAD SHX Text
RT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
MDY

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
22/03/14

AutoCAD SHX Text
RT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
KM

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
22/05/30

AutoCAD SHX Text
BD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
RT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILE LOCATION: Y:\- 2018\18-225-WIT\04_drawings\04-01_working_dwgs\SHEET FILES\Rezone Application\18-225 GREEN SPACES PLAN.dwg    PRINTED ON: 5/31/2022 3:35 PMY:\- 2018\18-225-WIT\04_drawings\04-01_working_dwgs\SHEET FILES\Rezone Application\18-225 GREEN SPACES PLAN.dwg    PRINTED ON: 5/31/2022 3:35 PM    PRINTED ON: 5/31/2022 3:35 PM5/31/2022 3:35 PM

AutoCAD SHX Text
#201-284 MAIN STREET PENTICTON, B.C. V2A 5B2 PHONE: 250-492-2227 www.ecora.ca

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED FOR CONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY ENGINEER

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS-BUILT APPROVAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKS DIVISION Super.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRICAL DIV. Eng.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS Mgr.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NATURAL/UNDISTURBED AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSERVATION AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC USEABLE GREEN AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRIVATE SLOPE AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILDLIFE CORRIDOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED TRAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING MOUNTAIN BIKE TRAIL



325
350
375
400
425
450
475
500
525
550
575
600
625
650
675
700

325
350
375
400
425
450
475
500
525
550
575
600
625
650
675
700

-0
+

05
0

0+
00

0

0+
05

0

0+
10

0

0+
15

0

0+
20

0

0+
25

0

0+
30

0

0+
35

0

0+
40

0

0+
45

0

0+
50

0

0+
55

0

0+
60

0

0+
65

0

0+
70

0

0+
75

0

0+
80

0

0+
85

0

0+
90

0

0+
95

0

1+
00

0

1+
05

0

1+
10

0

1+
15

0

1+
20

0

1+
25

0

1+
30

0

1+
35

0

1+
40

0

1+
45

0

1+
50

0

1+
55

0

1+
60

0

1+
65

0

1+
70

0

1+
75

0

1+
80

0

1+
85

0

1+
90

0

1+
95

0

2+
00

0

2+
05

0

2+
10

0

2+
15

0

2+
20

0

2+
25

0

2+
30

0

2+
35

0

2+
40

0

2+
45

0

2+
50

0

2+
55

0

2+
60

0

2+
65

0

2+
70

0

2+
75

0

2+
80

0

2+
85

0

2+
90

0

2+
95

0

3+
00

0

3+
05

0

3+
10

0

3+
15

0

3+
20

0

3+
25

0

3+
30

0

3+
35

0

3+
40

0

3+
45

0

3+
50

0

3+
55

0

3+
60

0

3+
65

0

SIGHT LINE TO CLOSEST PART OF DEVELOPMENT

SIGHT LINE TO FURTHEST PART OF DEVELOPMENT

PROP. DEVELOPMENT GRADING

OG (LiDAR 2017)

300
325
350
375
400
425
450
475
500
525
550
575
600
625
650
675
700
725
750

300
325
350
375
400
425
450
475
500
525
550
575
600
625
650
675
700
725
750

-0
+

05
0

0+
00

0

0+
05

0

0+
10

0

0+
15

0

0+
20

0

0+
25

0

0+
30

0

0+
35

0

0+
40

0

0+
45

0

0+
50

0

0+
55

0

0+
60

0

0+
65

0

0+
70

0

0+
75

0

0+
80

0

0+
85

0

0+
90

0

0+
95

0

1+
00

0

1+
05

0

1+
10

0

1+
15

0

1+
20

0

1+
25

0

1+
30

0

1+
35

0

1+
40

0

1+
45

0

1+
50

0

1+
55

0

1+
60

0

1+
65

0

1+
70

0

1+
75

0

1+
80

0

1+
85

0

1+
90

0

1+
95

0

2+
00

0

2+
05

0

2+
10

0

2+
15

0

2+
20

0

2+
25

0

2+
30

0

2+
35

0

2+
40

0

2+
45

0

2+
50

0

2+
55

0

2+
60

0

2+
65

0

2+
70

0

2+
75

0

2+
80

0

2+
85

0

2+
90

0

2+
95

0

3+
00

0

3+
05

0

3+
10

0

SIGHT LINE TO CLOSEST PART OF DEVELOPMENT

SIGHT LINE TO FURTHEST PART OF DEVELOPMENT

PROP. DEVELOPMENT GRADING

OG (LiDAR 2017)

325
350
375
400
425
450
475
500
525
550
575
600
625
650
675

325
350
375
400
425
450
475
500
525
550
575
600
625
650
675

-0
+

05
0

0+
00

0

0+
05

0

0+
10

0

0+
15

0

0+
20

0

0+
25

0

0+
30

0

0+
35

0

0+
40

0

0+
45

0

0+
50

0

0+
55

0

0+
60

0

0+
65

0

0+
70

0

0+
75

0

0+
80

0

0+
85

0

0+
90

0

0+
95

0

1+
00

0

1+
05

0

1+
10

0

1+
15

0

1+
20

0

1+
25

0

1+
30

0

1+
35

0

1+
40

0

1+
45

0

1+
50

0

1+
55

0

1+
60

0

1+
65

0

1+
70

0

1+
75

0

1+
80

0

1+
85

0

1+
90

0

1+
95

0

2+
00

0

2+
05

0

2+
10

0

2+
15

0

2+
20

0

2+
25

0

2+
30

0

2+
35

0

2+
40

0

2+
45

0

2+
50

0

2+
55

0

2+
60

0

2+
65

0

2+
70

0

2+
75

0

SIGHT LINE TO CLOSEST PART OF DEVELOPMENT

SIGHT LINE TO FURTHEST PART OF DEVELOPMENT

PROP. DEVELOPMENT GRADING

OG (LiDAR 2017)

425
450
475
500
525
550
575
600
625
650
675
700

425
450
475
500
525
550
575
600
625
650
675
700

-0
+

05
0

0+
00

0

0+
05

0

0+
10

0

0+
15

0

0+
20

0

0+
25

0

0+
30

0

0+
35

0

0+
40

0

0+
45

0

0+
50

0

0+
55

0

0+
60

0

0+
65

0

0+
70

0

0+
75

0

0+
80

0

0+
85

0

0+
90

0

0+
95

0

1+
00

0

1+
05

0

1+
10

0

1+
15

0

1+
20

0

1+
25

0

1+
30

0

1+
35

0

1+
40

0

1+
45

0

1+
50

0

1+
55

0

SIGHT LINE TO CLOSEST PART OF DEVELOPMENT

SIGHT LINE TO FURTHEST PART OF DEVELOPMENT
PROP. DEVELOPMENT GRADING

OG (LiDAR 2017)

CH'KDREVISIONDRNDATE (YY/MM/DD)NO.

Drawing  No. Rev.No
SCALE:

DATE:

CHECKED:

DESIGN:

DRAWN:

SEAL

RT

RT

-

2021/11/19

1:5000

PENTICTON
850 WILTSE BOULEVARD

WILTSE HOLDINGS LTD.
OFFSITE VIEWS D18-225-C116.0

Scale: 1:5000
CARMI AVE. - HOLDEN RD. INTERSECTIOND

Scale: 1:5000
INDUSTRIAL AVE. - MAIN ST. INTERSECTIONC

Scale: 1:5000
WALMART PARKING LOTB

Scale: 1:5000
GOVERNMENT ST. - ECKHARDT AVE. INTERSECTIONC

Attachment H - Offsite Views Plan - 344 -

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
21/11/19

AutoCAD SHX Text
RT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIMINARY DESIGN - FOR REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
22/02/25

AutoCAD SHX Text
RT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
MDY

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
22/03/14

AutoCAD SHX Text
RT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
KM

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
22/05/20

AutoCAD SHX Text
BD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
RT

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILE LOCATION: Y:\- 2018\18-225-WIT\04_drawings\04-01_working_dwgs\SHEET FILES\Hillside DP\18-225 SITE VIEWS.dwg    PRINTED ON: 5/19/2022 3:00 PMY:\- 2018\18-225-WIT\04_drawings\04-01_working_dwgs\SHEET FILES\Hillside DP\18-225 SITE VIEWS.dwg    PRINTED ON: 5/19/2022 3:00 PM    PRINTED ON: 5/19/2022 3:00 PM5/19/2022 3:00 PM

AutoCAD SHX Text
#201-284 MAIN STREET PENTICTON, B.C. V2A 5B2 PHONE: 250-492-2227 www.ecora.ca

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED FOR CONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY ENGINEER

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS-BUILT APPROVAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKS DIVISION Super.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRICAL DIV. Eng.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS Mgr.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE



ELEVATIONS

NUMBER

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

MINIMUM

-16.000

-12.000

-8.000

-4.000

-2.000

0.000

2.000

6.000

10.000

MAXIMUM

-12.000

-8.000

-4.000

-2.000

0.000

2.000

6.000

10.000

14.000

COLOUR

SUMMARY:
CUT: 620,104.17 m3

FILL: 376,494.78 m3

NET: 243,609.39 m3 CUT

Drawing  No. Rev.No
SCALE:

DATE:

CHECKED:

DESIGN:

DRAWN:

SEAL

RT

RT

-

2021/09/16

1:1750

CITY OF PENTICTON
850 WILTSE BOULEVARD

WILTSE HOLDINGS LTD.
CUT AND FILL PLAN D18-225-C104.0

N
CH'KDREVISIONDRNDATE (YY/MM/DD)NO.

Attachment I - Cut and Fill Plan - 345 -

AutoCAD SHX Text
40.233m R/W R.P. A-2766

AutoCAD SHX Text
2m R/W KAP-84203

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAWTHORNE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAWTHORNE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
84H9642

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD G

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANE 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD A

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD D

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLLECTOR 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD G

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD B

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD A

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD D

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLLECTOR 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD F

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD C

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD C

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD E

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD E

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD B

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILTSE BLVD

AutoCAD SHX Text
EVERGREEN DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAWTHORNE DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANE 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD H

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILE LOCATION: Y:\- 2018\18-225-WIT\04_drawings\04-01_working_dwgs\SHEET FILES\Rezone Application\18-225 CUT FILL.dwg    PRINTED ON: 5/20/2022 9:57 AMY:\- 2018\18-225-WIT\04_drawings\04-01_working_dwgs\SHEET FILES\Rezone Application\18-225 CUT FILL.dwg    PRINTED ON: 5/20/2022 9:57 AM    PRINTED ON: 5/20/2022 9:57 AM5/20/2022 9:57 AM

AutoCAD SHX Text
#201-284 MAIN STREET PENTICTON, B.C. V2A 5B2 PHONE: 250-492-2227 www.ecora.ca

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED FOR CONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY ENGINEER

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS-BUILT APPROVAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKS DIVISION Super.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRICAL DIV. Eng.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS Mgr.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
21/11/09

AutoCAD SHX Text
BD

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIMINARY DESIGN - FOR REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
RT

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
22/02/25

AutoCAD SHX Text
 RT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
MDY

AutoCAD SHX Text
 C

AutoCAD SHX Text
 22/03/14

AutoCAD SHX Text
RT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
 KM

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
22/05/20

AutoCAD SHX Text
RT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
RT



4847
4645

44

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

72

71

70

69

68

67

66

65

64

63

62

61

60

59

58

57

56

55

54

53

52

51

50

49

96 95 94 93
92 91

90

89

88

87

86

85

84

83

82

81

80

79

78

77

76

75

74

73

107

106
105

104

103

102
101

100

98

99

97

117

116

115

114

113

112

111

110

108

128

129

130

131

132

133
134

135 136
137

138
139 140

141
142

143

144

145

175174173172171170169168167166165164
163

162
161

176 177 178 179 180 181 182
183

43
42

4140
39

109

146

147
148

149
150

151
152

153
154

155
156

157 158 159 160

118

119

120

121

122

123

124

125
126

127

CH'KDREVISIONDRNDATE (YY/MM/DD)NO.

Drawing  No. Rev.No
SCALE:

DATE:

CHECKED:

DESIGN:

DRAWN:

SEAL

RT

RT

-

2021/11/18

1:2000

CITY OF PENTICTON
850 WILTSE BOULEVARD

WILTSE HOLDINGS LTD.
SITE INVENTORY PLAN D18-225-C115.0

N

Attachment J - Site Inventory Plan - 346 -

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W KAP-67996

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W KAP-67995

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESERVOIR

AutoCAD SHX Text
40.233m R/W R.P. A-2766

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W KAP-68492

AutoCAD SHX Text
C O V E N A N T   K A P - 7 4 5 9 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
C O V E N A N T     K A P - 7 4 5 9 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
KAP-74595

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAS KAP-82307

AutoCAD SHX Text
2m R/W KAP-84203

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W KAP-67996

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W KAP-67995

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESERVOIR

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARTRIDGE DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAWTHORNE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAWTHORNE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
84H9642

AutoCAD SHX Text
84H9647

AutoCAD SHX Text
40.233m R/W R.P. A-2766

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD G

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANE 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD A

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD D

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLLECTOR 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD G

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD B

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD A

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLLECTOR 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD F

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD C

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD C

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD E

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD E

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANE 5

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANE 6

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD B

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILTSE BLVD

AutoCAD SHX Text
EVERGREEN DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAWTHORNE DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANE 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANE 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD F

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
21/11/09

AutoCAD SHX Text
RT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIMINARY DESIGN - FOR REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
22/02/25

AutoCAD SHX Text
RT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
MDY

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
22/03/14

AutoCAD SHX Text
RT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
KM

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
22/05/20

AutoCAD SHX Text
BD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
RT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILE LOCATION: Y:\- 2018\18-225-WIT\04_drawings\04-01_working_dwgs\SHEET FILES\Hillside DP\18-225 SITE INVENTORY.dwg    PRINTED ON: 5/19/2022 3:04 PMY:\- 2018\18-225-WIT\04_drawings\04-01_working_dwgs\SHEET FILES\Hillside DP\18-225 SITE INVENTORY.dwg    PRINTED ON: 5/19/2022 3:04 PM    PRINTED ON: 5/19/2022 3:04 PM5/19/2022 3:04 PM

AutoCAD SHX Text
#201-284 MAIN STREET PENTICTON, B.C. V2A 5B2 PHONE: 250-492-2227 www.ecora.ca

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED FOR CONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY ENGINEER

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS-BUILT APPROVAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKS DIVISION Super.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRICAL DIV. Eng.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS Mgr.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOREST CLEARED FROM PREVIOUS FORTIS ROW 

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL PIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXPOSED BEDROCK

AutoCAD SHX Text
SMALL KNOLL

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEEP BANK (>30%)



 

 

 



Attachment K - Development Permit Analysis (staff)- 347 -



 

 

 

 

 

- 348 -



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- 349 -



 

 

 

 

 

- 350 -



 

- 351 -



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- 352 -



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- 353 -



- 354 -



R1

R2

RM1 AREA:
(SITE SPECIFIC)

13,165m2

R2

R1

RD2 R2

R2

A

RM2
(SITE SPECIFIC)
AREA: 7,727m2

RM3
AREA: 8,383m2

RM3
AREA: 8,338m2

PROP. STRATA ROAD

PROP. ROAD

PROP. ROAD

PROP. ROAD

TRAIL (TYP.)

PROP. ROAD

PROP. ROAD

RM3
AREA: 8,517m2

PROP. TEMPORARY
HAMMERHEAD

RM2
AREA: 26,515m2

RM2
AREA: 17,233m2

RM2
AREA: 8,614m2

P2
AREA: 28,938m2

PROP. LANE

PROP. EVERGREEN
RESERVOIR ACCESS ROAD

RM2
AREA: 17,551m2

R1

R2

R1

RM2
AREA: 11,538m2

RM3
AREA: 9,561m2

P1

SPORTS COURT

P2

P2

P2

P2

P2

PROP. ROAD

P2
AREA: 7,970m2

PROP. ROAD

P2
AREA: 11,370m2

PROP. STRATA ROAD
PROP. LANE

CH'KDREVISIONDRNDATE (YY/MM/DD)NO.

Drawing  No. Rev.No
SCALE:

DATE:

CHECKED:

DESIGN:

DRAWN:

SEAL

TJR

RT

-

2021/11/08

1:2500

CITY OF PENTICTON
850 WILTSE BOULEVARD

WILTSE HOLDINGS LTD.
CONCEPTUAL ZONING PLAN D18-225-C101.0

- R1 (LARGE LOT RESIDENTIAL)

- R2 (SMALL LOT RESIDENTIAL)

- RM3 (MEDIUM DENSITY MULITPLE HOUSING)

- P2 (PARKS AND RECREATION)

- P2 (CONSERVATION AREA)

 - A (AGRICULTURE)

- RD2 (DUPLEX HOUSING: LANE)

- RM2 (LOW DENSITY MULITPLE HOUSING)

N

- RM1 (BARELAND STRATA HOUSING)

- P1 (PUBLIC ASSEMBLY)

 - PROPOSED TRAIL

 - WILDLIFE CORRIDOR

Sch
edule 'A

' 

HSDP PL2021-9206

- 355 -

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W KAP-67996

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W KAP-67995

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESERVOIR

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVENANT   K A P  6 7 9 9 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVENANT   K A P  6 7 9 9 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W KAP-64128

AutoCAD SHX Text
40.233m R/W R.P. A-2766

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W KAP-68492

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W KAP-68491

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W KAP-68491

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAS. KAP-70036

AutoCAD SHX Text
KAP-70735

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVENANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVENANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
KAP-70888

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVENANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
KAP-71582

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVENANT KAP-74210

AutoCAD SHX Text
KAP-74488

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
C O V E N A N T   K A P - 7 4 5 9 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
C O V E N A N T     K A P - 7 4 5 9 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W KAP-74594

AutoCAD SHX Text
KAP-74595

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W KAP-76683

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAS KAP-82307

AutoCAD SHX Text
2m R/W KAP-84203

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W KAP-67996

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W KAP-67995

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESERVOIR

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
84H9642

AutoCAD SHX Text
84H9647

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD G

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANE 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD A

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD D

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLLECTOR 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD G

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD B

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD A

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD D

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLLECTOR 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD F

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD C

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD C

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD E

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD E

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD B

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILTSE BLVD

AutoCAD SHX Text
EVERGREEN DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAWTHORNE DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANE 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD H

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
21/11/09

AutoCAD SHX Text
 RT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIMINARY DESIGN - FOR REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
22/02/25

AutoCAD SHX Text
RT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
MDY

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
22/03/14

AutoCAD SHX Text
RT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
KM

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
22/05/20

AutoCAD SHX Text
BD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
RT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILE LOCATION: Y:\- 2018\18-225-WIT\04_drawings\04-01_working_dwgs\SHEET FILES\Rezone Application\18-225 REZONE LAYOUT.dwg    PRINTED ON: 5/19/2022 1:09 PMY:\- 2018\18-225-WIT\04_drawings\04-01_working_dwgs\SHEET FILES\Rezone Application\18-225 REZONE LAYOUT.dwg    PRINTED ON: 5/19/2022 1:09 PM    PRINTED ON: 5/19/2022 1:09 PM5/19/2022 1:09 PM

AutoCAD SHX Text
#201-284 MAIN STREET PENTICTON, B.C. V2A 5B2 PHONE: 250-492-2227 www.ecora.ca

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED FOR CONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY ENGINEER

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS-BUILT APPROVAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKS DIVISION Super.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRICAL DIV. Eng.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS Mgr.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE



²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²²²

²

²

²

²
²

²

²

²

²

²

²

² ²

²

²

²

² ²

²
²

²

²²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

² ²

² ²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²² ² ² ²²
²² ²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

MATCHLINE

CH'KDREVISIONDRNDATE (YY/MM/DD)NO.

Drawing  No. Rev.No
SCALE:

DATE:

CHECKED:

DESIGN:

DRAWN:

SEAL

TJR

RT

-

2021/11/08

1:1000

CITY OF PENTICTON
850 WILTSE BOULEVARD

WILTSE HOLDINGS LTD.
CONCEPTUAL LOT LAYOUT SHEET 1 D18-225-C102.1

N

RM1 AREA:
(SITE SPECIFIC)

13,165m2

RM3
AREA: 8,383m2

RM2
AREA: 26,515m2

PARK
AREA: 11,370m2

RM3
AREA: 8,338m2

RM3
AREA: 8,517m2

RM2
AREA: 11,538m2

RM2
AREA: 17,551m2

Sch
edule 'A

' 

HSDP PL2021-9206

- 356 -

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
84H9642

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD G

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANE 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD A

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD D

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLLECTOR 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD G

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD B

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD A

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD D

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD C

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANE 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANE 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD B

AutoCAD SHX Text
EVERGREEN DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD H

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
21/11/09

AutoCAD SHX Text
RT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIMINARY DESIGN - FOR REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
22/02/25

AutoCAD SHX Text
RT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
MDY

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
22/03/14

AutoCAD SHX Text
RT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
KM

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
22/05/20

AutoCAD SHX Text
BD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
RT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILE LOCATION: Y:\- 2018\18-225-WIT\04_drawings\04-01_working_dwgs\SHEET FILES\Rezone Application\18-225 REZONE LAYOUT.dwg    PRINTED ON: 5/19/2022 1:10 PMY:\- 2018\18-225-WIT\04_drawings\04-01_working_dwgs\SHEET FILES\Rezone Application\18-225 REZONE LAYOUT.dwg    PRINTED ON: 5/19/2022 1:10 PM    PRINTED ON: 5/19/2022 1:10 PM5/19/2022 1:10 PM

AutoCAD SHX Text
#201-284 MAIN STREET PENTICTON, B.C. V2A 5B2 PHONE: 250-492-2227 www.ecora.ca

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED FOR CONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY ENGINEER

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS-BUILT APPROVAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKS DIVISION Super.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRICAL DIV. Eng.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS Mgr.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE



²²
²

²

²

²

²

²

²

² ²
²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²²

²

²

²

²

²
²²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

²

² ² ²
²

²

M
A

T
C

H
LI

N
E

CH'KDREVISIONDRNDATE (YY/MM/DD)NO.

Drawing  No. Rev.No
SCALE:

DATE:

CHECKED:

DESIGN:

DRAWN:

SEAL

TJR

RT

-

2021/11/08

1:1000

CITY OF PENTICTON
850 WILTSE BOULEVARD

WILTSE HOLDINGS LTD.
CONCEPTUAL LOT LAYOUT SHEET 2 D18-225-C102.2

N

RM2
(SITE SPECIFIC)
AREA: 7,727m2

RM2
AREA: 17,233m2

RM2
AREA: 8,614m2

PARK
AREA: 28,938m2

RM2
AREA: 9,561m2

Sch
edule 'A

' 

HSDP PL2021-9206

- 357 -

AutoCAD SHX Text
40.233m R/W R.P. A-2766

AutoCAD SHX Text
C O V E N A N T   K A P - 7 4 5 9 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
C O V E N A N T     K A P - 7 4 5 9 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2m R/W KAP-84203

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
84H9647

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLLECTOR 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD F

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD C

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD E

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD E

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAWTHORNE DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
21/11/09

AutoCAD SHX Text
RT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIMINARY DESIGN - FOR REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
22/02/25

AutoCAD SHX Text
RT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
MDY

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
22/03/14

AutoCAD SHX Text
RT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
KM

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
22/05/20

AutoCAD SHX Text
BD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
RT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILE LOCATION: Y:\- 2018\18-225-WIT\04_drawings\04-01_working_dwgs\SHEET FILES\Rezone Application\18-225 REZONE LAYOUT.dwg    PRINTED ON: 5/19/2022 1:10 PMY:\- 2018\18-225-WIT\04_drawings\04-01_working_dwgs\SHEET FILES\Rezone Application\18-225 REZONE LAYOUT.dwg    PRINTED ON: 5/19/2022 1:10 PM    PRINTED ON: 5/19/2022 1:10 PM5/19/2022 1:10 PM

AutoCAD SHX Text
#201-284 MAIN STREET PENTICTON, B.C. V2A 5B2 PHONE: 250-492-2227 www.ecora.ca

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED FOR CONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY ENGINEER

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS-BUILT APPROVAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKS DIVISION Super.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRICAL DIV. Eng.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS Mgr.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE



 

 

 

Geohazard Assessment for  
Proposed North Wiltse Development,  
Penticton, BC 
Presented To: Wiltse Holdings Ltd. 

Dated: July 2019 

Ecora File No.: CP-18-225-WIT 

  

 

Sch
edule 'B

' 

HSDP PL2021-9206

- 358 -



Geohazard Assessment for  
Proposed North Wiltse Development, Penticton, BC File No: CP-18-225-WIT | July 2019 | Version 0  

 

 

201 - 284 Main Street, Penticton, BC  V2A 5B2 
| P: 250.492.2227 | F: 250.492.2135 | www.ecora.ca   

THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

Sch
edule 'B

' 

HSDP PL2021-9206

- 359 -



Sch
edule 'B

' 

HSDP PL2021-9206

- 360 -

blinnett
MJL



Geohazard Assessment for  
Proposed North Wiltse Development, Penticton, BC File No: CP-18-225-WIT | July 2019 | Version 0  

 

 
 

 

Limitations of Report 
This report and its contents are intended for the sole use of Wiltse Holdings Ltd., their agents and the 
applicable regulatory authorities. Ecora Engineering & Resource Group Ltd. (Ecora) does not accept 
any responsibility for the accuracy of any data, analyses, or recommendations contained or referenced 
in the report when the report is used or relied upon by any Party other than Wiltse Holdings Ltd., their 
agents, the applicable regulatory authorities or for any Project other than that described in this report. 
Any such unauthorized use of this report is at the sole risk of the user. 

Where Ecora submits both electronic file and hard copy versions of reports, drawings and other project-
related documents, only the signed and/or sealed versions shall be considered final and legally binding. 
The original signed and/or sealed version archived by Ecora shall be deemed to be the original for the 
Project. Both electronic file and hard copy versions of Ecora’s deliverables shall not, under any 
circumstances, no matter who owns or uses them, be altered by any party except Ecora. 

Ecora’s General Conditions are provided in Appendix A of this report. 

 

Sch
edule 'B

' 

HSDP PL2021-9206

- 361 -



Geohazard Assessment for  
Proposed North Wiltse Development, Penticton, BC File No: CP-18-225-WIT | July 2019 | Version 0  

 

 
 i 

 

Table of Contents 

1. Introduction ................................................................................................ 1 

1.1 General .............................................................................................................................................1 

1.2 Site Description ................................................................................................................................1 

1.3 Project Description ...........................................................................................................................1 

2. Desktop Study ............................................................................................ 2 

2.1 General .............................................................................................................................................2 

2.2 Available Geological Reports and Maps ..........................................................................................2 
2.2.1 Published Surficial Geology ............................................................................................................... 3 
2.2.2 Published Bedrock Geology .............................................................................................................. 3 

2.3 Aerial Photography ...........................................................................................................................3 

3. Field Investigation ...................................................................................... 4 

3.1 Field Geohazard Assessment ..........................................................................................................4 

4. Geohazard Assessment Methodology ........................................................ 4 

4.1 General .............................................................................................................................................4 

4.2 Method of Assessment .....................................................................................................................5 

4.3 Estimation of Geohazard Return Frequencies .................................................................................5 

5. Geohazard Assessment ............................................................................. 6 

5.1 Bedrock Geology ..............................................................................................................................6 

5.2 Preliminary Terrain Stability Mapping ...............................................................................................6 

5.3 Rock Fall Hazards ............................................................................................................................7 
5.3.1 R1 Rockfall Hazard ........................................................................................................................... 8 
5.3.2 R2 Rockfall Hazard ........................................................................................................................... 8 

5.4 Small Scale Landslides ....................................................................................................................8 

5.5 Potential Storm Drainage Channels .................................................................................................9 

5.6 Other Geotechnical Considerations .................................................................................................9 

5.7 Development Geohazard Zones ......................................................................................................9 

6. Recommendations for Further Works ....................................................... 10 

7. Closure ..................................................................................................... 10 

Sch
edule 'B

' 

HSDP PL2021-9206

- 362 -



Geohazard Assessment for  
Proposed North Wiltse Development, Penticton, BC File No: CP-18-225-WIT | July 2019 | Version 0  

 

 
 ii 

 

References ........................................................................................................ 11 

 

List of Tables in Text 

Table 2.1 Aerial Photographs Used in the Assessment ........................................................................................................ 3 
Table 4.1 Relative Terms and Ranges of Annual Probability of Hazard Occurrence ............................................................ 6 
Table 5.1 Terrain Hazard Classification Based on Slope Gradient Mapping ......................................................................... 7 
 

Appendix Sections 
Figures 

Figure 1.0 Photograph Locations and Site Plan 
Figure 2.0 Slope Angle Map 
Figure 3.0 Geohazard Map 
Figure 4.0 Development Hazard Zones 
 

Photographs 

Photo 1 Large boulder up-slope of BC Hydro line. 
Photo 2 Rockfall debris at the base of the slope. 
Photo 3 Large rock fall at the base of the Skaha Bluffs looking southeast. 
Photo 4 Large rock fall at the base of the Skaha Bluffs looking east. 
Photo 5 Large rock fall in the Skaha Bluffs. 
Photo 6 Rock fall below a smaller bluff. 
Photo 7 Stormwater runoff channel, looking downstream (west). 
Photo 8 Looking west towards the stormwater runoff channel and FortisBC gas main. 
Photo 9 Marshy area, F2 hazard, looking east. 
Photo 10 Lower energy rockfall in the southwest area of the subject property. 
Photo 11 Rock fall in the southwest area of the subject property. 
 

Appendices 

Appendix A 
 

General Conditions 
 

 

Sch
edule 'B

' 

HSDP PL2021-9206

- 363 -



Geohazard Assessment for  
Proposed North Wiltse Development, Penticton, BC File No: CP-18-225-WIT | July 2019 | Version 0  

 

 
 1 

 

1. Introduction 

1.1 General 

Ecora Engineering & Resource Group Ltd. (Ecora) has been retained by Wiltse Holdings Ltd. to undertake a 
geohazard assessment of the properties located at 850 Wiltse Boulevard and 160 Crow Place (North Wiltse), 
Penticton, BC. Ecora understands that Wiltse Holdings proposes to develop and subdivide the site into a mixture 
of single family residential, strata, and townhome lots. 

The purpose of the geohazard assessment was to identify the presence and extent of any geotechnical hazards 
with respect to soil, rockfall, drainage or topographical conditions that may pose risk to the proposed development 
of the property.  

This report summarizes our observations and provides preliminary geotechnical recommendations with respect to 
the design and construction of the proposed development. 

1.2 Site Description 

The property is legally described as: 

 Lot B District Lot 2710 Similkameen Division Yale District Plan 43260 except Plans KAP72732 and 
EPP74771 

 Lot A District Lot 2710 Similkameen Division Yale District Plan KAP70035 

Ecora understands that the planned development area is approximately 151.5 (Lot B) and 165.5 (Lot A) acres, 
respectively and it is currently zoned Agricultural (A) as part of the City of Penticton (COP). 

The subject property comprises an approximately rectangular shaped parcel of land situated to the southeast of 
downtown Penticton on the lower reaches of the valley sidewalls. Existing topography varies across the site, 
ranging from moderate to very steep slopes with the east and southeast sections increasing in slope. The site is 
bordered to the south by the expanded Skaha Bluffs Provincial Park and generally slopes to the west-northwest. It 
is bordered by residential properties to the west, a gravel pit owned by Cantex-Okanagan Construction Ltd. to the 
north, and Crown land to the east. The site is accessible from Wiltse Boulevard to the north and Evergreen Drive 
to the south. 

The site is bisected by a FortisBC high voltage transmission line extends northeast to southwest through the 
centre of the site 

Based on Ecora’s experience in the area, ground conditions are expected to range from exposed bedrock 
outcrops to a veneer or blanket of Glaciofluvial and/or colluvial deposits overlying bedrock. 

A site plan indicating the location of the property is presented as Figure 1.0. 

1.3 Project Description 

The presently an undeveloped, vegetated property, is proposed to be developed into a combination of single 
family, strata, townhome, and apartment lots. The current proposed development comprises: 

Sch
edule 'B

' 

HSDP PL2021-9206

- 364 -



Geohazard Assessment for  
Proposed North Wiltse Development, Penticton, BC File No: CP-18-225-WIT | July 2019 | Version 0  

 

 
 2 

 

 241 single residential lots; 

 36 bareland strata lots; 

 240 townhouse residential units; and, 

 39 four story apartment buildings. 

Significant site regrading, including rock cuts, is expected in some areas. 

Components and activities for the proposed residential subdivision development include: 

 Clearing and grading of the site including fills and rock excavation of less than 8 m in height; 

 Construction of roads and lanes; 

 Construction of a storm water system and possible detention structures; and, 

 Installation of utility services including sanitary and water. 

2. Desktop Study 

2.1 General 

The objective of the desktop study was to determine the surficial geology, bedrock geology, and to conduct terrain 
stability mapping and to identify any potential large scale geohazards. Information related to the project area 
includes topographic maps, aerial photos, and bedrock and surficial geology. 

2.2 Available Geological Reports and Maps 

Ecora reviewed the published geological reports and maps. This information was used as a tool to help identify 
large scale geologic features that would be difficult to identify in the field. The reviewed documents included the 
following: 

 Geology, Okanagan Watershed, British Columbia (Geological Survey of Canada, 2013); 

 Late Glacial History and Surficial Deposits of the Okanagan Valley, British Columbia (H. Nasmith 1962); 

 Okanagan Geology (Roed, 2014); and, 

Aerial photographs obtained from the UBC Geography Department Aerial Photography Library from 1951 to 2007, 
as summarized in Aerial Photographs used in the assessment of the subject site are summarized below in Table 
2.1. Large rockfall debris and drainage features are visible in the aerial photos, however no significant changes 
are noted over time. The FortisBC powerline is first visible in 1969. 

 Table 2.1. 

The information collected from the desktop study was used in conjunction with site reconnaissance results to 
derive recommendations for construction of “safe” buildable areas on the property. 

Sch
edule 'B

' 

HSDP PL2021-9206

- 365 -



Geohazard Assessment for  
Proposed North Wiltse Development, Penticton, BC File No: CP-18-225-WIT | July 2019 | Version 0  

 

 
 3 

 

2.2.1 Published Surficial Geology 

Geological Survey of Canada Map “Surficial Geology of Kootenay Lake” (1984) indicates that the surficial geology 
at subject site comprise light to dark grey and light brown variably calcareous silt, clay, sand, and gravel. The unit 
also included unmapped areas of glacial till, glaciofluvial, alluvial, and eolian sediments. The layer is generally 
shown as 5-10 m thick but may be up to 100 m thick locally. 

Clast lithologies reflect local bedrock which is chiefly crystalline metamorphic and granitic in character and locally 
includes unmapped areas of alluvial, glaciofluvial and glaciolacustrine deposits and areas of rock. 

2.2.2 Published Bedrock Geology 

The Geological Survey of Canada (2013) has the area mapped as Proterozoic to Paleozoic metamorphic rocks 
(Okanagan Gneiss) of the Shuswap assemblage and Early Cretaceous granodiorite to gneiss (Skaha Lake 
Pluton). No significant structures such as faults are marked on the bedrock geology map, however it should be 
noted that the map is large-scale and may not capture some features. 

Bedrock characteristics such as mineral composition and structure determine the shape and texture of its 
weathered material. These characteristics influence the shape and size of clasts and the matrix texture of surface 
materials (i.e., colluvium and till). 

2.3 Aerial Photography 

Aerial Photographs used in the assessment of the subject site are summarized below in Table 2.1. Large rockfall 
debris and drainage features are visible in the aerial photos, however no significant changes are noted over time. 
The FortisBC powerline is first visible in 1969. 

Table 2.1 Aerial Photographs Used in the Assessment 

Aerial Photo Date Aerial Photo Designation 

1951 BC1244:4 and 5 

1959 A16664-9 and 10 

1963 BC4171-062, 063, 096, and 097 

1969 BC5329-186 and 187 

1974 BC7571-0080, 0081, 0039, and 0038 

1980 BC80054-063 and 064 

1985 30BCC371 NO. 117 and 118, 30BCC362 NO. 101 and 102 

1990 30BCB 90004 NO. 73, 74, 87, and 86 

1996 30BCC96045 NO.021 and 22 30BCC96045 NO.188 and 189 

2001 15BCC01028 NO. 012 and 013 

2007 BCD0725_128_RGB_33_12b and BCD0725_129_RGB_33_12b 

 

Sch
edule 'B

' 

HSDP PL2021-9206

- 366 -



Geohazard Assessment for  
Proposed North Wiltse Development, Penticton, BC File No: CP-18-225-WIT | July 2019 | Version 0  

 

 
 4 

 

3. Field Investigation 

3.1 Field Geohazard Assessment 

The field assessment was planned and undertaken using the preliminary information collected during the desktop 
study. The purpose of the field assessment was to verify geological units, delineate geohazard zones, determine 
unstable or potentially unstable slope areas, erosion potential zones, and evaluate geomorphology features 
identified in the desktop study. The information collected during the field assessment was used to produce a 
geohazard map to guide the subdivision planning process. During this assessment the following were noted: 

 Changes to slope geometry from either natural geomorphic processes or human activities; 

 Evidence of water flow; 

 Evidence of erosion; and, 

 Presence of land slippage and/or rockfall. 

A limited ground reconnaissance of the project area was undertaken by Brittany Linnett, P.Eng, a Geological 
Engineer and Mr. Michael J. Laws, P.Eng. a Senior Geotechnical Engineer, both with Ecora, on November 22, 
2017. A further site survey was undertaken by horseback by Brittany Linnett, P.Eng. on November 27, 2017. The 
observations made during the field geohazard assessment included rockfall debris and source zones, and 
hydrogeological features. Observations are discussed further in Section 5. Select Photographs are included in the 
Photographs Appendix, and photo locations are noted on Figure 1.0. 

4. Geohazard Assessment Methodology 

4.1 General 

Ecora performed the geohazard assessment for the proposed subdivision in accordance with the Association of 
Professional Engineers and Geoscientists of BC’s Guidelines for Legislated Landslide Assessments for Proposed 
Residential Developments (updated 2010). Based on our involvement with previous studies for similar projects, a 
phased approach to the geohazard and geotechnical studies has been undertaken as outlined below: 

 Phase 1 – Geohazard desktop study based on available air photos, digital imagery, topography, and 
available geological mapping and existing geotechnical reports; and, 

 Phase 2 – A field geohazard assessment involving a site reconnaissance to review the proposed 
subdivision preliminary layout including access roads.  

The above mentioned tasks are followed by analysis and reporting to identify any areas within the subdivision with 
soil, rockfall, drainage, or topographical conditions that pose moderate, high or extreme risk to the safe 
construction of the proposed infrastructure or structures or any special considerations that may be required in the 
development of the subdivision.  

Sch
edule 'B

' 

HSDP PL2021-9206

- 367 -



Geohazard Assessment for  
Proposed North Wiltse Development, Penticton, BC File No: CP-18-225-WIT | July 2019 | Version 0  

 

 
 5 

 

4.2 Method of Assessment 

Considering the insufficient detailed long-term records of geotechnical hazards at the subject property, the 
potential for the occurrence of geohazards cannot be assessed by a review of historical events. Therefore, a 
qualitative assessment of the geohazards present on the subject property was undertaken based on the 
guidelines presented in the Association of Professional Engineers and Geoscientists of British Columbia 
(APEGBC) Guidelines for Legislated Landslide Assessments (2008), British Columbia Resource Inventory 
Committee (RIC 1996) and "Hazard Acceptability Thresholds for Development Approvals by Local Government" 
by Dr. Peter Cave (Cave 1993). In this assessment, Ecora has reviewed the hazards that could potentially affect 
the subject properties and provide recommendations for the safe use of the site. 

The Cave 1993 paper identified seven types of development based on their intensity of land use. They range from 
minor repair to major rezoning and community planning. Based on the nature of the proposed construction, this 
development falls under the category of “subdivision”. 

The Cave 1993 paper identified eight types of geotechnical hazards. Ecora assessed the subject area and 
immediate surroundings to determine its' susceptibility to the following potential geohazards: 

 Inundation by flood waters; 

 Mountain stream erosion and avulsion; 

 Debris flows and debris torrents; 

 Debris floods; 

 Small-scale landslides; 

 Snow avalanche; 

 Rock fall; and 

 Large scale landslides. 

4.3 Estimation of Geohazard Return Frequencies  

Based on review of historical air photographs (see Section 2.5), site observations during reconnaissance by 
members of Ecora’s geotechnical team, and consideration of the proposed development, we consider debris 
flows, debris floods, rock fall, and small scale landslides to be potential geohazards in certain areas of the subject 
property. Rock fall may become a geohazard issue in additional areas following completion of proposed rock cuts. 
Further discussions on these hazards are included in Section 5. 

Snow avalanches are not expected to impact the property due to the lack of accumulation of snow at this 
elevation. Inundation by floodwaters, and mountain stream erosion are also not expected to impact the property 
as the site is at a significant elevation above any creeks or sources for such events.   

Table 4.1 below outlines the qualitative rating of hazard frequencies developed by the British Columbia Resource 
Inventory Committee (RIC, 1996) utilized in this study to rank the identified geohazards above. 

Sch
edule 'B

' 

HSDP PL2021-9206

- 368 -



Geohazard Assessment for  
Proposed North Wiltse Development, Penticton, BC File No: CP-18-225-WIT | July 2019 | Version 0  

 

 
 6 

 

Table 4.1 Relative Terms and Ranges of Annual Probability of Hazard Occurrence 

Relative Terms 
of Probability 

Range of Annual 
Probability of 

Exceedance (Pa) 

Comments 

Very High >1/20 Indicates the hazard is imminent and well within the lifetime of a person 
or typical structure. Events occurring with a return interval of 1/20 or 
less generally have clear and relatively fresh signs of disturbance. 

High 1/100 to 1/20 Indicates that the hazard can happen within the appropriate lifetime of 
a person or typical structure. Events are clearly identifiable from 
deposits and vegetation but may not appear fresh. 

Moderate 1/475 to 1/100 Indicates that the hazard within a given lifetime is not likely, but 
possible. Signs of previous events, such as vegetation damage may 
not be easily noted. 

Low 1/2,475 to 1/475 Indicates the hazard is of uncertain significance. 

Very Low >1/2,475 - 

Table based on RIC 1996 “Terrain Stability Mapping in BC: A review and Suggested Methods for Landslide Hazard and Risk Mapping”. 

The geohazard frequencies provided Section 5 are estimated based on our engineering judgment, proposed 
development and site conditions at the time of preparation of this report. The estimated geohazard frequencies 
can be subject to change if man-made or natural activities change the site conditions such as site grading or there 
are changes in drainage profiles. 

5. Geohazard Assessment 

5.1 Bedrock Geology 

Several bedrock outcrops are apparent across the property. The site is predominantly underlain by Okanagan 
Gneiss. The exposed surface of the bedrock at all locations contains small fractures associated with weathering 
since the last glacial period. Significant shelling of the bedrock was noted in larger outcrops in the west and south 
sections of site, associated with weathered and freeze-thaw blistering. Rock fall debris zones were noted at the 
base of cliffs and in gullies throughout the subject area. 

5.2 Preliminary Terrain Stability Mapping 

Ecora has developed a preliminary terrain stability map based on the field reconnaissance, historical aerial 
photography and additional background information review. Slope gradients are shown on the attached Figure 2. 

Sch
edule 'B

' 

HSDP PL2021-9206

- 369 -



Geohazard Assessment for  
Proposed North Wiltse Development, Penticton, BC File No: CP-18-225-WIT | July 2019 | Version 0  

 

 
 7 

 

The following hazard scheme, presented in Table 4.2 below, was adopted based on Ecora's experience in 
forested terrain in similar climatic and hydrologic regions, and correlation with slope behaviour within the project 
area. 

Table 5.1 Terrain Hazard Classification Based on Slope Gradient Mapping 

Slope Gradient Terrain Hazard 

< 27° Very Low to Low - Varies depending on soil and ground water conditions. Terrain instability is 
rare and not typically expected in response to land use change 

27°-34° Low to Moderate - Varies depending on soil and ground water conditions. Ground 
disturbance has a moderate potential to initiate a landslide. Tree removal, road construction, 
or other linear developments across slopes of this gradient commonly experience cut/fill 
slope failures when cut and side cast construction is utilized. Special consideration should be 
given to drainage. Ravelling of soil slopes and erosion falls may occur. 

34°-45° Moderate to High - Varies depending on soil and groundwater conditions. Ground 
disturbance has a moderate to high potential to initiate a landslide. Road construction is 
generally avoided, or considerable additional costs are incurred. Ravelling of soil slopes and 
erosion falls are expected. 

45°-59° Very High to High - Varies depending on soil and groundwater conditions - Ground 
disturbance has a high potential to initiate a landslide. Road construction generally does not 
occur. 

> 60° Terrain typically consists of rock (Hungr, 2014), and terrain hazards are dominated by rock 
fall.  

The majority of the planned development is in very low to moderate terrain hazard areas. High to very high and 
rock terrain have been identified in the geohazard map in Figure 3. 

5.3 Rock Fall Hazards 

Ecora identified several rockfall source zones during the site walkovers and from aerial photo interpretation. 
Identified rockfall source zones typically consisted of rock cliffs up to 20 m in height, with signs of instability. 
These signs included but were not limited to: 

 Jointing; 

 Root jacking; 

 Shear zones; 

 Detached boulders; and 

 Presence of rockfall debris down slope of the source zones. 

Available lidar data from the City of Penticton and drone data was also used to build a slope angle map of the 
subject property to identify potential rockfall shadow areas (See Figure 2.0) The locations of the rockfall source 
zones identified during our investigation are shown on Figure 3.0. 

Rock fall debris was also observed during the site walkovers. Significant debris was noted with georeferenced 
photos and on georeferenced maps and later compared to debris zones visible on aerial photos. Significant 
rockfall run out areas identified during our site walkover are shown on Figure 3.0. However, the rockfall run out 
zones may extend further down slope than shown on the figure and small, localized rockfall zones may not have 
been identified as time and access constraints during the site walkover did not allow for investigation of the entire 
project area. Rockfall hazards were defined in two categories, R1 and R2, as discussed further below. 

Sch
edule 'B

' 

HSDP PL2021-9206

- 370 -



Geohazard Assessment for  
Proposed North Wiltse Development, Penticton, BC File No: CP-18-225-WIT | July 2019 | Version 0  

 

 
 8 

 

The additional rockfall hazard identified for the site comprise rolling rock (i.e., cobbles and small boulders) down 
the slope subsequent to site grading activities. Ecora recommends that cobbles and boulders within a minimum 
10 m wide strip upslope of these cut areas, be removed and a minimum set-forward distance be established 
between buildings and the toe of cut slope once final site grading and rock cut heights are established. Lot 
specific requirements should be reviewed by a qualified professional geotechnical engineer during construction. If 
this is deemed to be not practical, a berm or rock fence should be constructed. Ecora can provide a design of 
such structure if required. As site grading plans are not finalized, areas subject to potential additional rockfall 
hazard have not been identified at this time. 

5.3.1 R1 Rockfall Hazard 

A band of rock cliffs is present to the east of the proposed development. Significant rockfall debris was observed 
near the base of the cliffs along the east/southeast side of site, some of which appeared relatively fresh and 
unweathered. The majority of the debris falls within the rockfall shadow area denoted by a line dipping 27.5° from 
horizontal projected from the crest of the talus slope at the base of the cliff (Evans and Hungr, 1993) (see Rockfall 
R1 in Figure 5.2). In the case of large cliffs and potential instabilities, construction within the R1 rockfall hazard 
zone is not recommended as the hazard is considered to be high to very high, and is difficult to mitigate. 
Development is not planned for the area of site directly below the rock cliffs, which is dominated by tall rock bluffs 
and is generally high to very high rockfall hazard. Analysis did not include the eastern section of the site as no 
development is planned for this area. 

5.3.2 R2 Rockfall Hazard 

The majority of the site currently planned for development is relatively gently sloping, has shallow bedrock and/or 
till and therefore is not considered susceptible to land slippage, rock fall, or debris flood/debris flow. 

In the case of smaller rock outcrops and cliffs or rockfall debris source zones with long runout zones the areas are 
identified as R2 rockfall hazards in Figure 3.0, and vary in return frequency from moderate to very high. Mitigation 
measures for these areas may be feasible. Such measures may include but would no be limited to rockfall 
barriers (i.e. catchment fences), berms, and ditches. Site regrading may also reduce or eliminate some hazard 
zones. Detailed rockfall mitigation and planning should be undertaken by a qualified professional geotechnical 
engineer during planning and construction of the development.  

5.4 Small Scale Landslides 

No significant landslide features were noted during the field assessments or from aerial photography. However, 
terrain in the Low to Moderate and higher classifications (Table 4.2), or steeper than 27° (see Figure 2) in soil 
may be vulnerable to shallow landslides. Oversteepened soil cuts were noted in the north area of site which may 
be subject to small scale slides and surficial sloughing (See Photos 9 and 10). These areas are noted as “S” 
hazard in Figure 3.0 and should be addressed during site grading. Site grading may increase or decrease the risk 
of slides, and special consideration should be given to drainage during site grading design and construction of 
these areas. 

Additionally, a gravel pit is located north of the subject property (Photo 11). Care should be taken when designing 
site grading to maintain a safe distance from the crest of the slope into the pit, as well as from potential future 
excavation. Setback distances will be influenced by material type and bedrock depth, and should be established 
by a detailed geotechnical assessment prior to subdivision development. 

Sch
edule 'B

' 

HSDP PL2021-9206

- 371 -



Geohazard Assessment for  
Proposed North Wiltse Development, Penticton, BC File No: CP-18-225-WIT | July 2019 | Version 0  

 

 
 9 

 

5.5 Potential Storm Drainage Channels 

One significant and one minor storm runoff routes were noted in the subject area. The larger channel is steep, 
ranging from 15 to 20 degrees above the development area, and 5 to 10 degrees in the lower (west) section and 
bisects the property from east to west, near the south extent of the property (see Flood Hazard F1 in Figure 3.0). 
No water was observed during the site visit, however rounded cobbles, erosion channels, and other indicators of 
large scale flow events and possible debris flows were observed. Based on field observations the return 
frequency is expected to be high to very high, however this should be analysed further in future hydrological 
studies. This hazard zone is also fed by a depression and gully uphill (east) of the subject property (Photo 6). A 
smaller but also significant gully was noted on the west side of the subject property (Flood Hazard F1 in Figure 
3.0, Photo 5) In future works, potential runoff and storm events should be assessed by a qualified professional 
hydrological engineer.  

This also feeds into a low energy gully located in a gently graded to flat gully parallel to the transmission line (see 
Flood Hazard F2 in Figure 5.2). The F1 area appears to feed into F2 where they intersect in the southwest area of 
the site. Another F2 area was noted in the northeast area of the property (Photos 7 and 8). Evidence of 
groundwater such as ponded surface water, soft ground, soil type, and water intensive vegetation indicate a 
constant water supply, with high volumes of surface water during certain periods at a very high frequency.  During 
periods of freshet or major storm events it is expected that both the major stormwater channels, as well as smaller 
secondary drainage gullies around site, will have high flows. 

Appropriate stormwater systems for the development should be designed by a qualified professional engineer. 
Residential buildings shall not be constructed directly in the path of potential debris flows or high water events 
without mitigation designed by a qualified professional engineer. This includes both the identified F1 and F2 
hazard zones, as well as smaller, more localized hazard areas that may be identified during site regrading and 
construction. If infrastructure such as utilities and/or roads are constructed on or near the identified storm water 
gullies or in the path of potential debris flows, mitigation measures shall be designed by a qualified professional 
geotechnical engineer. 

5.6 Other Geotechnical Considerations 

During the site reconnaissance, areas of potential soft ground ranging from approximately 100 to 200 sq m were 
observed in what are likely infilled depressions in the bedrock profile. Such areas are likely to have a higher 
groundwater table than the majority of site and may require mitigation in order to be suitable for the construction 
of infrastructure or buildings. Potential issues will be identified in more detail by a site-specific geotechnical 
investigation. 

5.7 Development Geohazard Zones 

Identified geohazards zones were classed into three zones, depending on estimation of return frequencies, 
potential consequences, and expected difficulty of mitigation. The zones are shown on Figure 4, and are defined 
below: 

 H1 Hazard Zone: High to very high return period, with potentially catastrophic or life 
threatening events. This zone includes rockfall hazards zone R1, and the upper section of 
flood hazard zone F1, where the storm drainage channel is steeper and more constricted. 
Development is not recommended for this zone as mitigation is expected to be difficult to 
impossible. Currently shown proposed strata lots should be revisited to avoid this zone. 

Sch
edule 'B

' 

HSDP PL2021-9206

- 372 -



Geohazard Assessment for  
Proposed North Wiltse Development, Penticton, BC File No: CP-18-225-WIT | July 2019 | Version 0  

 

 
 10 

 

 H2 Hazard Zone: Moderate to very high return period, with potentially property damaging 
events. This zone includes the lower section of flood hazard zone F1 and all of F2. 
Development is possible in this zone, but mitigation may involve more costly engineered 
measures. 

 H3 Hazard Zone: Moderate to very high return period, with potentially property damaging 
events. This zone includes rockfall hazard zone R2. Mitigation for this zone is expected to be 
possible through a combination of site grading and protection measures (ie, ditches, berms, 
fences, etc). 

6. Recommendations for Further Works 
Based on Ecora's site reconnaissance and desktop review, the following further works are recommended once a 
subdivision plan is further developed. Further works should include: 

 Geotechnical field program, comprising a combination of boreholes and test pits. This should 
be undertaken in planned development areas to assess subsurface conditions and further 
define depth and extent of bedrock; 

 Development of site grading and stormwater management should include considerations for 
minimizing the creation of geohazards and mitigating existing hazards; and, 

 Detailed hydrological assessment of watersheds and drainage channels. This assessment 
should include field reviews of all creeks and major storm drainage channels to assess debris 
flow/debris flood potential and characterize expected flows. 

7. Closure 
We trust this report meets your present requirements. If you have any questions or comments, please contact the 
authors above.  

Sch
edule 'B

' 

HSDP PL2021-9206

- 373 -



Geohazard Assessment for  
Proposed North Wiltse Development, Penticton, BC File No: CP-18-225-WIT | July 2019 | Version 0  

 

 
 11 

 

References 
APEGBC (2010). “Guidelines for Legislated Landslide Assessments for Proposed Residential Developments in 

BC”. 

British Columbia Ministry of Transportation and Infrastructure (BC MOTI), 2017. “Technical Circular T-04/17: 
Geotechnical Design Criteria.” Dated March 22, 2017. 

Cave, P. W. (1992). Hazard Acceptability Thresholds for Development Approvals by Local Government. In 
Proceedings of the Geological Hazards Workshop, Victoria, BC,(ed.) Peter Bobrowsky (pp. 1992-15). 

Evans, S. G., and O. Hungr. "The assessment of rockfall hazard at the base of talus slopes." Canadian 
geotechnical journal 30.4 (1993): 620-636. 

Hungr. O., Lerouil. S., and Pacarelli. L. (2014). "The Varnes Classification of Landslide Types, an Update", 
Landslides, Volume 11, Issues 2, pp 167-194. 

Hungr, O., Evans, S.G., Bovis, M.J. and Hutchinson, J.N. (2001). A Review of the Classification of Landslides of 
the Flow Type. Environmental & Engineering Geoscience, Vol. 7 No.3, pp. 221-238 

Government of British Columbia. 2018. iMapBC. Available online at:  https://maps.gov.bc.ca/ess/hm/imap4m/.  

Nasmith, H., 1962. “Late Glacial History and Surficial Deposits of the Okanagan Valley, British Columbia,” 
Geological Survey of Canada, Bulletin 46. 

Okulitch, A.V. (2007-2011). “Geology, Okanagan Watershed, British Columbia,” Geological Survey of Canada, 
Open File 6839. 

Resource Inventory Committee (RIC) 1996. Terrain Stability Mapping in British Columbia: A Review and 
Suggested Methods for Landslide Hazard and Risk Mapping. Final Drafting Resource Inventory Committee, 
Government of British Columbia, Slope Stability Task Group, Earth Sciences Task Force, August 1996. 

 Sch
edule 'B

' 

HSDP PL2021-9206

- 374 -



Geohazard Assessment for  
Proposed North Wiltse Development, Penticton, BC File No: CP-18-225-WIT | July 2019 | Version 0  

 

 
 

 

Figures 
Figure 1.0 Photograph Locations and Site Plan 

Figure 2.0 Slope Angle Map 

Figure 3.0 Geohazard Map 

Figure 4.0 Development Hazard Zones 

 

Sch
edule 'B

' 

HSDP PL2021-9206

- 375 -



#*

#*

#*

#*#*

#*

#*

#*

#*

#*

#*

#*

Ell
is

Cr
ee

k

Evergreen Dr

Ba
lsa

m
Av

e

Corb
ittD

r

W
iltseDr

Redw
ood

Dr

BartonCrt

Pa
rtrid

ge
Dr

Cr
ow

Pl

Sto
cks

Cre
s

Stevens Cres

Pond
ero

sa Pl

Sto
cks

CrtSte
ve

ns
Cr

t

Cedar Rd

Evergreen Cres

Juniper Dr

Pin
evi

ew
Rd

Westview Dr

PenroseCrt
Ar

ms
tro

n g
D r

Wilts
eB

lvd

SKAHA
BLUFFS

PARK

Photo 11

Photo 10

Photo 6

Photo 11Photo 9

Photo 8

Photo 7
Photo 4

Photo 5

Photo 3

Photo 2

Photo 1

31
44

00

31
44

00

31
48

00

31
48

00

31
52

00

31
52

00

5482000548240054828005483200

Legend
#* Approximate Photo Locations

Fortis ROWs
Digital Atlas Roads
Fresh Water Atlas Streams
Property Boundary
Parks and Protected Areas
PMBC Legal Parcels

±

LOCATION MAP
Okanagan

Lake

Skaha
LakeHwy 97

Channel Pky

S Main St
Main St

SKAHA
BLUFFS

PARK

Penticton

0 100 200 300 400
Meters

1:6,000

Project No.: CP-18-225-WIT

NAD 1983 UTM Zone 11N

Date: 2019/07/18
Drawn: MT  Check: BL

Project
Location

GEOHAZARD ASSESSMENT
FOR PROPOSED 

WILTSE HOLDING DEVELOPMENT
PENTICTON, BC

Figure 1.0
Client: Wiltse Holdings Ltd.

PHOTOGRAPH LOCATIONS AND SITE PLAN

FortisBC Powerline ROW

Sch
edule 'B

' 

HSDP PL2021-9206

- 376 -



Rev.NoDrawing  No.

NORTH WILTSE DEVELOPMENT
SLOPE ANGLE MAP

FIGURE 2 0SCALE:

DATE:

CHECKED:

DESIGN:

CLDRAWN:

BL

BL

07/11/2019

1:500

SLOPE-ANGLE

4.0:1 (14.0°)

2.0:1 (26.6°)

1.5:1 (33.7°)

1.0:1 (45.0°)

0.6:1 (59.0°)

VERT.

COLOURMAX. SLOPE

HORZ.

4.0:1 (14.0°)

2.0:1 (26.6°)

1.5:1 (33.7°)

1.0:1 (45.0°)

0.6:1 (59.0°)

MIN. SLOPE

Sch
edule 'B

' 

HSDP PL2021-9206

- 377 -

AutoCAD SHX Text
40.233m R/W R.P. A-2766

AutoCAD SHX Text
284 MAIN STREET PENTICTON, B.C. V2A 5B2 PHONE: 250-492-2227 www.ecora.ca

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOUNDARY



Rev.NoDrawing  No.

NORTH WILTSE DEVELOPMENT

GEOHAZARD MAP

FIGURE 3 0SCALE:

DATE:

CHECKED:

DESIGN:

CLDRAWN:

BL

BL

07/19/2019

1:500

Sch
edule 'B

' 

HSDP PL2021-9206

- 378 -

AutoCAD SHX Text
40.233m R/W R.P. A-2766

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W KAP-67996

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W KAP-67995

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESERVOIR

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVENANT   K A P  6 7 9 9 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
EVERGREEN DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EVERGREEN DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W KAP-64128

AutoCAD SHX Text
EVERGREEN DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
40.233m R/W R.P. A-2766

AutoCAD SHX Text
BARTON CRT

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W KAP-68492

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W KAP-68491

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W KAP-68491

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAS. KAP-70036

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVENANT KAP-74210

AutoCAD SHX Text
C O V E N A N T   K A P - 7 4 5 9 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
C O V E N A N T     K A P - 7 4 5 9 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W KAP-74594

AutoCAD SHX Text
KAP-74595

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAS KAP-82307

AutoCAD SHX Text
2m R/W KAP-84203

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W KAP-67996

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W KAP-67995

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESERVOIR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CROW PL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARTRIDGE DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAWTHORNE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAWTHORNE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
84H9642

AutoCAD SHX Text
84H9647

AutoCAD SHX Text
284 MAIN STREET PENTICTON, B.C. V2A 5B2 PHONE: 250-492-2227 www.ecora.ca

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA NOT CONSIDERED IN THIS STUDY

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND: R1 HAZARD R2 HAZARD F1 HAZARD F2 HAZARD S HAZARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLOPE CREST FORTIS BC EASEMENT LOT LINE  BOUNDARY



Rev.NoDrawing  No.

NORTH WILTSE DEVELOPMENT
DEVELOPMENT HAZARD ZONES

FIGURE 4 0SCALE:

DATE:

CHECKED:

DESIGN:

CLDRAWN:

BL

BL

07/19/2019

1:500

Sch
edule 'B

' 

HSDP PL2021-9206

- 379 -

AutoCAD SHX Text
40.233m R/W R.P. A-2766

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W KAP-67996

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W KAP-67995

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESERVOIR

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVENANT   K A P  6 7 9 9 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
EVERGREEN DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EVERGREEN DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W KAP-64128

AutoCAD SHX Text
EVERGREEN DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
40.233m R/W R.P. A-2766

AutoCAD SHX Text
BARTON CRT

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W KAP-68492

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W KAP-68491

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W KAP-68491

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAS. KAP-70036

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVENANT KAP-74210

AutoCAD SHX Text
C O V E N A N T   K A P - 7 4 5 9 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
C O V E N A N T     K A P - 7 4 5 9 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W KAP-74594

AutoCAD SHX Text
KAP-74595

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAS KAP-82307

AutoCAD SHX Text
2m R/W KAP-84203

AutoCAD SHX Text
6m R/W KAP-67996

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W KAP-67995

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESERVOIR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CROW PL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARTRIDGE DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAWTHORNE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAWTHORNE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
84H9642

AutoCAD SHX Text
84H9647

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA NOT CONSIDERED IN THIS STUDY

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND: H1 HAZARD H2 HAZARD H3 HAZARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
284 MAIN STREET PENTICTON, B.C. V2A 5B2 PHONE: 250-492-2227 www.ecora.ca

AutoCAD SHX Text
FORTIS BC EASEMENT LOT LINE  BOUNDARY



Geohazard Assessment for  
Proposed North Wiltse Development, Penticton, BC File No: CP-18-225-WIT | July 2019 | Version 0  

 

 
 

 

Photographs 
Photo 1 Large rockfall debris below FortisBC line. 

Photo 2 Rockfall debris at the base of the slope. 

Photo 3 Potential rockfall source zone. 

Photo 4 Bedrock on surface may cause local hazard zones (R2). 

Photo 5 Stormwater runoff channel, looking downstream (west). 

Photo 6 Looking East at a potential stormwater catchment area upslope/east of the proposed development area. 

Photo 7 Soft ground, potential marshy area, F2 hazard, looking east. 

Photo 8 Soft ground, potential high groundwater, F2 hazard, looking south. 

Photo 9 Over steepened soil cut in the northwest area of the property. 

Photo 10 Over steepened soil cut in the northwest area of the property. Possible shallow bedrock visible, ongoing 
slope erosion. 

Photo 11 Gravel pit north of the subject property. 

Sch
edule 'B

' 

HSDP PL2021-9206

- 380 -



Geohazard Assessment for  
Proposed North Wiltse Development, Penticton, BC File No: CP-18-225-WIT | July 2019 | Version 0  

 

 
1 

 
 

 

Photo 1 Large rockfall debris below BC Hydro line. 

 

Photo 2 Rockfall debris at the base of the slope. 

 

Rockfall Debris 

Sch
edule 'B

' 

HSDP PL2021-9206

- 381 -



Geohazard Assessment for  
Proposed North Wiltse Development, Penticton, BC File No: CP-18-225-WIT | July 2019 | Version 0  

 

 
2 

 
 

 

Photo 3 Potential rockfall source zone. 

 

Photo 4 Bedrock on surface may cause local hazard zones (R2). 

Sch
edule 'B

' 

HSDP PL2021-9206

- 382 -



Geohazard Assessment for  
Proposed North Wiltse Development, Penticton, BC File No: CP-18-225-WIT | July 2019 | Version 0  

 

 
3 

 
 

 

Photo 5 Stormwater runoff channel, looking downstream (west). 

 

  

Photo 6 Looking East at a potential stormwater catchment area upslope/east of the proposed development area. 

 

Photo 7 Soft ground, potential marshy area, F2 hazard, looking east. 

Sch
edule 'B

' 

HSDP PL2021-9206

- 383 -



Geohazard Assessment for  
Proposed North Wiltse Development, Penticton, BC File No: CP-18-225-WIT | July 2019 | Version 0  

 

 
4 

 
 

 

Photo 8 Soft ground, potential high groundwater, F2 hazard, looking south. 

 

Photo 9 Over steepened soil cut in the northwest area of the property. 

Sch
edule 'B

' 

HSDP PL2021-9206

- 384 -



Geohazard Assessment for  
Proposed North Wiltse Development, Penticton, BC File No: CP-18-225-WIT | July 2019 | Version 0  

 

 
5 

 
 

 

Photo 10 Over steepened soil cut in the northwest area of the property. Possible shallow bedrock visible, 
ongoing slope erosion. 

 

Photo 11 Gravel pit north of the subject property. 

 

Sch
edule 'B

' 

HSDP PL2021-9206

- 385 -



Geohazard Assessment for  
Proposed North Wiltse Development, Penticton, BC File No: CP-18-225-WIT | July 2019 | Version 0  

 

 
 

 

Appendix A 
General Conditions 
 

Sch
edule 'B

' 

HSDP PL2021-9206

- 386 -



 Statement of General Conditions — Geotechnical

 

 1 
 

Standard of Care 
Ecora Engineering and Resource Group Ltd. (Ecora) has prepared this report in a manner consistent with that level of care 
and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the engineering and science professions currently practicing under similar 
conditions in the jurisdiction in which the services are provided, subject to the time limits and physical constraints applicable to 
this report. No other warranty, expressed or implied is made. 

Basis and Use of the Report 
This report and the recommendations contained in it are intended for the sole use of Ecora’s Client. Ecora does not accept any 
responsibility for the accuracy of any of the data, the analyses or the recommendations contained or referenced in the report 
when the report is used or relied upon by any party other than Ecora’s Client unless otherwise authorized in writing by Ecora. 
Any unauthorized use of the report is at the sole risk of the user. In order to properly understand the suggestions, 
recommendations and opinions expressed herein, reference must be made to the whole of the report. We cannot be 
responsible for use by any party of portions of the report without reference to the whole report. 

This report is subject to copyright and shall not be reproduced either wholly or in part without the prior, written permission of 
Ecora. Additional copies of the report, if required, may be obtained upon request. 

Alternate Report Format 
Where Ecora submits both electronic file and hard copy versions of reports, drawings and other project-related documents, 
only the signed and/or sealed versions shall be considered final and legally binding. The original signed and/or sealed version 
archived by Ecora shall be deemed to be the original for the Project. Both electronic file and hard copy versions of Ecora’s 
deliverables shall not, under any circumstances, no matter who owns or uses them, be altered by any party except Ecora. 

Soil, Rock and Groundwater Conditions 
Classification and identification of soils, rocks and geological units have been based upon commonly accepted systems and 
methods employed in professional geotechnical practice. This report contains descriptions of the systems and methods used. 
Classification and identification of the type and condition of these materials or units involves judgment, and boundaries 
between different soil, rock or geologic types or units may be transitional rather than abrupt. Accordingly, Ecora does not 
warrant conditions represented herein as exact, but infers accuracy only to the extent that is common in practice. 

Soil and groundwater conditions shown in the factual data and described in the report are the observed conditions at the time 
of their determination or measurement. Unless otherwise noted, those conditions form the basis of the recommendations in the 
report. Groundwater conditions may vary between and beyond reported locations and can be affected by annual, seasonal 
and meteorological conditions. The condition of the soil, rock and groundwater may be significantly altered by construction 
activities such as traffic, excavation, groundwater level lowering, pile driving, blasting on the site or on adjacent sites. 
Excavation may expose the soils to climatic elements such as freeze/thaw and wet /dry cycles and/or mechanical disturbance 
which can cause severe deterioration. Unless otherwise indicated the soil must be protected from these changes during 
construction. 

Environmental and Regulatory Issues 
The professional services retained for this project include only the geotechnical aspects of the subsurface conditions at the 
site, unless otherwise specifically stated and identified in the report. The presence or implication(s) of possible surface and/or 
subsurface contamination resulting from previous activities or uses of the site and/or resulting from the introduction onto the 
site of materials from off-site sources are outside the terms of reference for this project and have not been investigated or 
addressed. 

Sample Disposal 
Ecora will dispose all soil and rock samples for 30 days following issue of this report. Further storage or transfer of samples 
can be made at the Client’s expense upon written request, otherwise samples will be discarded. 

Sch
edule 'B

' 

HSDP PL2021-9206

- 387 -



 Statement of General Conditions — Geotechnical

 

 2 
 

Construction Services 
During construction, Ecora should be retained to perform sufficient and timely observations of encountered conditions to 
confirm and document that the subsurface conditions do not materially differ from those interpreted conditions considered in 
the preparation of Ecora’s report and to confirm and document that construction activities do not adversely affect the 
suggestions, recommendations and opinions contained in Ecora’s report. Adequate field review, observation and testing 
during construction are necessary for Ecora to be able to provide letters of assurance, in accordance with the requirements of 
many regulatory authorities. In cases where this recommendation is not followed, Ecora’s responsibility is limited to 
interpreting accurately the information encountered at the borehole locations, at the time of their initial determination or 
measurement during the preparation of the Report. 

Job Site Safety 
Ecora is responsible only for the activities of our employees on the jobsite. The presence of Ecora’s personnel on the site shall 
not be construed in any way to relieve the Client or any contractors on site from their responsibilities for site safety. The Client 
acknowledges that he, his representatives, contractors or others retain control of the site and that Ecora never occupy a 
position of control of the site. The Client undertakes to inform Ecora of all hazardous conditions, or other relevant conditions of 
which the Client is aware. The Client also recognizes that our activities may uncover previously unknown hazardous conditions 
or materials and that such a discovery may result in the necessity to undertake emergency procedures to protect our 
employees as well as the public at large and the environment in general. 

Changed Conditions and Drainage 
Where conditions encountered at the site differ significantly from those anticipated in this report, either due to natural variability 
of subsurface conditions or construction activities, it is a condition of this report that Ecora be notified of any changes and be 
provided with an opportunity to review or revise the recommendations within this report. Recognition of changed soil and rock 
conditions requires experience and it is recommended that Ecora be employed to visit the site with sufficient frequency to 
detect if conditions have changed significantly. Drainage of subsurface water is commonly required either for temporary or 
permanent installations for the project. Improper design or construction of drainage or dewatering can have serious 
consequences. Ecora takes no responsibility for the effects of drainage unless specifically involved in the detailed design and 
construction monitoring of the system. 

Services of Sub consultants and Contractors 
The conduct of engineering and environmental studies frequently requires hiring the services of individuals and companies 
with special expertise and/or services which we do not provide. Ecora may arrange the hiring of these services as a 
convenience to our Clients. As these services are for the Client’s benefit, the Client agrees to hold the Company harmless and 
to indemnify and defend Ecora from and against all claims arising through such hiring’s to the extent that the Client would incur 
had he hired those services directly. This includes responsibility for payment for services rendered and pursuit of damages for 
errors, omissions or negligence by those parties in carrying out their work. In particular, these conditions apply to the use of 
drilling, excavation and laboratory testing services. 

Sch
edule 'B

' 

HSDP PL2021-9206

- 388 -



Rev.NoDrawing  No.

NORTH WILTSE DEVELOPMENT

GEOHAZARD MAP

FIGURE 3 1SCALE:

DATE:

CHECKED:

DESIGN:

CL/RTDRAWN:

BL

BL

03/29/2022

1:500

ISSUED FOR
COMMENT

Sch
edule 'B

' 

HSDP PL2021-9206

- 389 -

AutoCAD SHX Text
40.233m R/W R.P. A-2766

AutoCAD SHX Text
284 MAIN STREET PENTICTON, B.C. V2A 5B2 PHONE: 250-492-2227 www.ecora.ca

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA NOT CONSIDERED IN THIS STUDY

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND: R1 HAZARD R2 HAZARD F1 HAZARD F2 HAZARD S HAZARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLOPE CREST FORTIS BC EASEMENT LOT LINE  PROPERTY BOUNDARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOUNDARY OF HAZARDS WHICH MAY IMPACT THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT AREA



Rev.NoDrawing  No.

NORTH WILTSE DEVELOPMENT

DEVELOPMENT HAZARD ZONES

FIGURE 4 1SCALE:

DATE:

CHECKED:

DESIGN:

CL/RTDRAWN:

BL

BL

03/29/2022

1:500

ISSUED FOR
COMMENT

Sch
edule 'B

' 

HSDP PL2021-9206

- 390 -

AutoCAD SHX Text
40.233m R/W R.P. A-2766

AutoCAD SHX Text
284 MAIN STREET PENTICTON, B.C. V2A 5B2 PHONE: 250-492-2227 www.ecora.ca

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA NOT CONSIDERED IN THIS STUDY

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND: H1 HAZARD H2 HAZARD H3 HAZARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FORTIS BC EASEMENT LOT LINE  PROPERTY BOUNDARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOUNDARY OF HAZARDS WHICH MAY IMPACT THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT AREA



CH'KDREVISIONDRNDATE (YY/MM/DD)NO.

Drawing  No. Rev.No
SCALE:

DATE:

CHECKED:

DESIGN:

DRAWN:

SEAL

RT

RT

-

2021/11/08

1:2000
 

CITY OF PENTICTON
850 WILTSE BOULEVARD

WILTSE HOLDINGS LTD.
GREEN AND NATURAL AREAS PLAN D18-225-C109.0

N

Sch
edule 'C

' 

HSDP PL2021-9206 

- 391 -

AutoCAD SHX Text
40.233m R/W R.P. A-2766

AutoCAD SHX Text
2m R/W KAP-84203

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAWTHORNE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAWTHORNE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
84H9642

AutoCAD SHX Text
84H9647

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD G

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANE 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD A

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD D

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLLECTOR 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD G

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD B

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD A

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD D

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLLECTOR 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD F

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD C

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD C

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD E

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD E

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD B

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILTSE BLVD

AutoCAD SHX Text
EVERGREEN DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAWTHORNE DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANE 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD H

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
21/11/09

AutoCAD SHX Text
RT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIMINARY DESIGN - FOR REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
22/02/25

AutoCAD SHX Text
RT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
MDY

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
22/03/14

AutoCAD SHX Text
RT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
KM

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
22/05/30

AutoCAD SHX Text
BD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
RT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILE LOCATION: Y:\- 2018\18-225-WIT\04_drawings\04-01_working_dwgs\SHEET FILES\Rezone Application\18-225 GREEN SPACES PLAN.dwg    PRINTED ON: 5/31/2022 3:35 PMY:\- 2018\18-225-WIT\04_drawings\04-01_working_dwgs\SHEET FILES\Rezone Application\18-225 GREEN SPACES PLAN.dwg    PRINTED ON: 5/31/2022 3:35 PM    PRINTED ON: 5/31/2022 3:35 PM5/31/2022 3:35 PM

AutoCAD SHX Text
#201-284 MAIN STREET PENTICTON, B.C. V2A 5B2 PHONE: 250-492-2227 www.ecora.ca

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED FOR CONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY ENGINEER

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS-BUILT APPROVAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKS DIVISION Super.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRICAL DIV. Eng.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS Mgr.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NATURAL/UNDISTURBED AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSERVATION AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC USEABLE GREEN AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRIVATE SLOPE AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILDLIFE CORRIDOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED TRAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING MOUNTAIN BIKE TRAIL



49
5

50
0

50
5

51
0

51
5 52

0

52
5

53
0

53
5

53
5

54
0

54
0

54
5

545

54
0

54
5

55
0

55
5

55
5

56
0

560

53
5

54
0

54
5

550

55
5

555

56
0

560

565

56
5

565

530

535

540

545

550

555

560

565

535

54
0

545

545

54
5

54
5

510

515

520

525

53
0

510

51
0

510

515

515

520

52
0

52
5

52
5

530

530

51
5

520

525
550

55
5

555

52
5

52
5

53
0 535

53
0

53
5

535

52
0

52
5

53
0

51
0

51
5

B

B
C

C

1.6 m

1.8 m

2.0 m

2.4 m

2.4 m

MAX 2.4 m

MAX 2.0 m

0.6 m

0.5 m

0.3 m

0.3 m

0.7 m

2.5 m
1.2 m

2.2 m
2.4 m2.3 m

1.2 m

1.1 m
2.3 m

2.3 m

2.3 m

2.4 m

2.4 m

2.0 m

1.1 m

2.4 m

2.4 m

1.8 m

1.9 m

1.5 m

1.2 m

0.8 m

1.2 m

1.9 m

2.4 m

MAX 2.4 m

MAX 2.4 m

MAX 2.4 m

MAX 2.4 m

1.1 m1.3 m1.5 m
1.5 m

1.1 m

1.1 m

A

A

0.4 m

0.5 m

MAX 2.4 m

MAX 2.4 m

MAX 2.4 m

1.0 m1.1 m1.2 m1.2 m1.2 m1.1 m

1.5 m

MAX 2.4 m

CH'KDREVISIONDRNDATE (YY/MM/DD)NO.

Drawing  No. Rev.No
SCALE:

DATE:

CHECKED:

DESIGN:

DRAWN:

SEAL

RT

RT

-

2021/09/16

1:1750

PENTICTON
850 WILTSE BOULEVARD

WILTSE HOLDINGS LTD.
RETAINING WALL PLAN OVERVIEW B18-225-C113.0

N

Sch
edule 'D

' 

HSDP PL2021-9206

- 392 -

AutoCAD SHX Text
40.233m R/W R.P. A-2766

AutoCAD SHX Text
2m R/W KAP-84203

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAWTHORNE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAWTHORNE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
84H9642

AutoCAD SHX Text
84H9647

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD G

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANE 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD A

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD D

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLLECTOR 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD G

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD B

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD A

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD D

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLLECTOR 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD F

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD C

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD C

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD E

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD E

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANE 5

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANE 6

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD B

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILTSE BLVD

AutoCAD SHX Text
EVERGREEN DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAWTHORNE DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANE 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANE 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD F

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED RETAINING WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
21/11/18

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIMINARY DESIGN - FOR REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
RT

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
22/05/20

AutoCAD SHX Text
BD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
RT

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILE LOCATION: Y:\- 2018\18-225-WIT\04_drawings\04-01_working_dwgs\SHEET FILES\Hillside DP\18-225 RETAINING WALL PLAN.dwg    PRINTED ON: 5/19/2022 2:55 PMY:\- 2018\18-225-WIT\04_drawings\04-01_working_dwgs\SHEET FILES\Hillside DP\18-225 RETAINING WALL PLAN.dwg    PRINTED ON: 5/19/2022 2:55 PM    PRINTED ON: 5/19/2022 2:55 PM5/19/2022 2:55 PM

AutoCAD SHX Text
#201-284 MAIN STREET PENTICTON, B.C. V2A 5B2 PHONE: 250-492-2227 www.ecora.ca

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED FOR CONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY ENGINEER

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS-BUILT APPROVAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKS DIVISION Super.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRICAL DIV. Eng.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS Mgr.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE



515

520

525

530

535

540

515

520

525

530

535

540

-0
+

02
0

0+
00

0

0+
02

0

0+
04

0

0+
06

0

0+
08

0

0+
10

0

0+
12

0

0+
14

0

0+
16

0

P
L

P
L

P
L

P
L

P
L

P
L

1.
10

m
 L

A
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

W
A

LL
 (

M
A

X
 1

.2
m

 T
Y

P
.)

1.
34

m
 R

E
T

. W
A

LL

1.
50

m
 R

E
T

. W
A

LL

1.
49

m
 R

E
T

. W
A

LL

1.
14

m
 L

A
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

W
A

LL
 (

M
A

X
 1

.2
m

 T
Y

P
.)

1.
10

m
 L

A
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

W
A

LL
 (

M
A

X
 1

.2
m

 T
Y

P
.)

LOT BUILDING PAD (TYP.)
2:1 SLOPE (TYP.)

485

490

495

500

505

510

515

485

490

495

500

505

510

515

0+
00

0

0+
02

0

0+
04

0

0+
06

0

0+
08

0

0+
10

0

0+
12

0

0+
14

0

0+
16

0

0+
18

0

0+
19

5

2:1 SLOPE (TYP.)

0.
58

m
 L

A
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

W
A

LL
 (

M
A

X
 1

.2
m

)

0.
44

m
 L

A
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

W
A

LL
 (

M
A

X
 1

.2
m

)

0.
26

m
 L

A
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

W
A

LL
 (

M
A

X
 1

.2
m

)

0.
34

m
 L

A
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

W
A

LL
 (

M
A

X
 1

.2
m

)

0.
43

m
 L

A
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

W
A

LL
 (

M
A

X
 1

.2
m

)

P
L

P
L

P
L

P
L

P
L

P
L

P
L

P
L

0.
29

m
 L

A
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

W
A

LL
 (

M
A

X
 1

.2
m

)

0.
62

m
 L

A
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

W
A

LL
 (

M
A

X
 1

.2
m

)

LOT BUILDING PAD (TYP.)

505

510

515

520

525

530

505

510

515

520

525

530

0+
00

0

0+
02

0

0+
04

0

0+
06

0

0+
08

0

0+
10

0

0+
12

0

0+
14

0

0+
16

0

P
L

P
L

P
L

P
L

P
L

P
L

LOT BUILDING PAD (TYP.)

2:1 SLOPE (TYP.)

0.
42

m
 L

A
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

W
A

LL
 (

M
A

X
 1

.2
m

)

2.
29

m
 R

E
T

. W
A

LL

2.
40

m
 R

E
T

. W
A

LL

2.
19

m
 R

E
T

. W
A

LL

CH'KDREVISIONDRNDATE (YY/MM/DD)NO.

Drawing  No. Rev.No
SCALE:

DATE:

CHECKED:

DESIGN:

DRAWN:

SEAL

RT

MAP

RT

2021/11/18

1:250H
1:250V

PENTICTON
850 WILTSE BOULEVARD

WILTSE HOLDINGS LTD.
RETAINING WALL TYPICAL SECTIONS B18-225-C113.1

TYPICAL LOT RETAINING WALL SECTION A-A
SCALE 1:250

TYPICAL LOT RETAINING WALL SECTION B-B
SCALE 1:250

TYPICAL LOT RETAINING WALL SECTION C-C
SCALE 1:250

Sch
edule 'D

' 

HSDP PL2021-9206

- 393 -

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
21/11/18

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIMINARY DESIGN - FOR REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
RT

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
22/05/20

AutoCAD SHX Text
BD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
RT

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILE LOCATION: Y:\- 2018\18-225-WIT\04_drawings\04-01_working_dwgs\SHEET FILES\Hillside DP\18-225 RETAINING WALL PLAN.dwg    PRINTED ON: 5/19/2022 2:55 PMY:\- 2018\18-225-WIT\04_drawings\04-01_working_dwgs\SHEET FILES\Hillside DP\18-225 RETAINING WALL PLAN.dwg    PRINTED ON: 5/19/2022 2:55 PM    PRINTED ON: 5/19/2022 2:55 PM5/19/2022 2:55 PM

AutoCAD SHX Text
#201-284 MAIN STREET PENTICTON, B.C. V2A 5B2 PHONE: 250-492-2227 www.ecora.ca

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED FOR CONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY ENGINEER

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS-BUILT APPROVAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKS DIVISION Super.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRICAL DIV. Eng.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS Mgr.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE



Council Report 

Date: September 6, 2022  File No: 5605-30 
To: Donny van Dyk, Chief Administrative Officer 
From: Len Robson, AScT, Public Works Manager  

Subject: Grant Application – Adaptation, Resilience, and Disaster Mitigation Program – Ellis # 4 
Dam Upgrades  

Staff Recommendation 

THAT Council direct staff to apply for the Green Infrastructure intake for Adaption, Resilience, and Disaster 
Mitigation grant in the amount of $6.6 million (73.33% of the total estimated cost)  for the purposes of 
rehabilitating the deficiencies that exist at the Ellis #4 Dam; 

AND THAT Council supports the project and commits to its share of (currently estimated at $2.4 million) of 
the project, as well as any cost overruns; 

AND FURTHER THAT Council authorize the General Manager of Infrastructure to sign and submit the grant 
application.   

Strategic priority objective 

Asset & Amenity Management: The City of Penticton will ensure the services we provide to our residents 
and visitors are reliable and cost effective by proactively investing into our natural and built assets. 

Community Safety: The City of Penticton will support a safe, secure and healthy community. 

Background 

Ellis #4 Dam is situated at the head of the north fork of Ellis Creek and is used by the City of Penticton to 
supply and control water for the Ellis (south) Irrigation system as well as manage flows in Ellis Creek for flood 
protection purposes. The water retaining dam was constructed in 1933 and was subject to failures 3 times in 
1936, 1941 and 1942 before undergoing repairs in 1943, 1960 and 1983. 

Following a Dam Safety Review undertaken in 2014, further upgrades are now required to address the 
possibility of failure that may result from earthquake vibrations, and to increase the discharge capacity for 
updated design floods.  These upgrades are required by the Ministry, and are not optional, and have been 
budgeted in the City’s financial plans accordingly.   

LATE ITEM - Agenda Item 7.17



 
Council Report  Page 2 of 3 

 

Since then, staff have engaged a professional engineering firm to commence with the various studies and 
design processes required to develop a cost effective design to address the dam’s deficiencies.  The detailed 
design is currently in the final stages and is being prepared for submission to the Ministry’s Dam Safety 
Branch for approval to proceed with construction in the fall of 2023.   

While completing the detailed design, staff became aware of a grant program through the Adaptation, 
Resilience & Disaster Mitigation (ARDM) that is well suited for this project, and this report brings forward the 
required Council resolution to submit an application to this grant fund.      

Financial implication 

The current estimated cost of the Ellis 4 Dam rehabilitation is $9.0 million.  The City’s 2022-2026 Financial 
Plan includes $8.3 million for this project currently slated to be funded through debt financing.  This 
updated cost would be included in the capital plan with revised funding and presented to Council during 
the 2023 budget deliberations.   

The Adaptation, Resilience & Disaster Mitigation sub-stream under the Green Infrastructure umbrella (Green 
ARDM) of the Integrated Bilateral Agreement will fund flood mitigation infrastructure projects for a value of 
up to $10 million for individual communities, and $20 million for joint applications submitted by multiple 
communities.  Green ARDM has a maximum of approximately $81.8 million Federal and Provincial dollars 
which will go towards supporting projects that increase structural capacity and/or increased natural capacity 
to mitigate and adapt to climate change impacts, natural disasters and/or extreme weather events with the 
intent of reducing, or even negating, the effects of flooding. 
 
Should the City be successful, the funding arrangement for this grant is as follows: 
 

• Government of Canada  Up to 40% 
• Province of BC   33.33% 
• Local Government   26.67%  

 
Climate Impact 

The upgrade design for this dam takes into account the effects of Climate Change for both flooding and 
drought conditions and has been designed to address these impacts.  

Analysis 

Ellis #4 Dam is a critical part of the City of Penticton’s flood control and agricultural water supply 
infrastructure.    The most recent Dam Safety Review has identified that the dam is in need of an upgrade to 
ensure it meets the associated regulations as identified in the Dam Safety Regulation administered by the 
Province of BC.  

Application for the Green Infrastructure intake for Adaption, Resilience, and Disaster Mitigation grant could 
result in a cost sharing arrangement between the Federal Government, the Provincial Government the City 
of Penticton for the funding for this project.  



 
Council Report  Page 3 of 3 

Alternate recommendations 

N/A  

Attachments 

N/A 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

Len Robson, AScT 
Public Works Manager 

 

Concurrence  

Director of 
Finance and 

Administration 

 
GM of Infrastructure 

 
KD 

 
Chief Administrative 

Officer 

AMC 
 
 
 

DvD 

 

 



 
 

Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-35  Page 1 of 1 
 

The Corporation of the City of Penticton 
 

Bylaw No. 2022-35 
  

A Bylaw to Amend Zoning Bylaw 2021-01 
 
WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton has adopted a Zoning Bylaw pursuant the Local Government Act; 
 
AND WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton wishes to amend Zoning Bylaw No. 2021-01;  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Municipal Council of the City of Penticton, in open meeting 
assembled, hereby ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 
  
1. Title: 
 
 This bylaw may be cited for all purposes as “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-35”. 
 
2. Amendment: 
 

2.1 Zoning Bylaw No. 2021-01 is hereby amended as follows: 
 

Rezone Lot 3 District Lots 2 and 4 Group 7 Similkameen Division Yale (Formerly Yale-Lytton) 
District Plan 1655 Except Plan B4197, located at 650 Eckhardt Ave W and That Part of Lot 3 
Shown on Plan B4197 District Lot 2 Group 7 Similkameen Division Yale (Formerly Yale-Lytton) 
District Plan 1655, located at 666 Eckhardt Ave W from C7 (Service Commercial) to C3 (Mixed 
Use Commercial) as shown on Schedule ‘A’.   
 

2.2 Schedule ‘A’ attached hereto forms part of this bylaw. 
 
READ A FIRST time this 5 day of July, 2022 

A PUBLIC HEARING was held this 19 day of July, 2022 

READ A SECOND time this 19 day of July, 2022 

READ A THIRD time this 19 day of July, 2022 

RECEIVED the approval of the 
Ministry of Transportation on the 

21 day of July, 2022 

ADOPTED this  day of , 2022 

 
Notice of intention to proceed with this bylaw was published on the 8th day of July, 2022 and the 13th day of July, 2022 in an online news 
source and the newspaper, pursuant to Section 94.2 of the Community Charter.  

 
 

      
 John Vassilaki, Mayor 
      

 
 

       
 Angie Collison, Corporate Officer 
  

- 394 -



�����
���	���
�������
���
�

�����
��
���
��� 
!"#$
%&
' (#")#%(
"*
+
, -%*"#%.$
%&
-/01")
"(&%.2+#"%(
"(
0%#�
-."(# ,
+(,
,"3"#+1
&%.24
�� 
*%/.) 5+))/.+)$
+(,
)%2-1 # ( **
%&
#�"*
"(&%.2+#"%(
6+." *4
7*
+
. */1#5
#� 
!"#$
,% *
(%#
8+..+(#
"(
+($
8+$
#� 
2+--"(3"(&%.2+#"%(
"()1/,"(3
#� 
+))/.+)$
%.
*/"#+0"1"#$
#� . %&4
�� 
/* .
%&
#�"*
"(&%.2+#"%(
,% *
*%
+#
#� ".
%8(
."*9
+(,*�%/1,
(%#
. 1$
/-%(
#� 
"(&%.2+#"%(
8"#�%/#
"(, - (, (#
6 ."&")+#"%(
+*
#%
#� 
+))/.+)$
%.
*/"#+0"1"#$
#� . %&4 :;<=> > ?>@?A # .*
BCD�
EFG
E�EE
HH�II��J
�K L����MD���
NO�����
P�Q
HRJF
LNSN
��K
T�D�
HHP

- 395 -

mcdonah
Typewritten Text
	

mcdonah
Typewritten Text
     

mcdonah
Typewritten Text
Zoning Amendment Bylaw 2022-35

mcdonah
Typewritten Text
Date:                             Signature:



 
 

City of Penticton 
171 Main St.   |  Penticton B.C.  |  V2A 5A9 

www.penticton.ca   |  ask@penticton.ca 
 

Development Variance Permit 

Permit Number: DVP PL2021-9198 

Owner Name 
Owner Address 

Conditions of Permit  

1. This permit is issued subject to compliance with all of the bylaws of the City, except as specifically 
varied or supplemented by this Permit. 

2. This permit applies to:  

Legal: Legal Description to be updated after lot consolidation 

Civic: Civic Address to be updated after lot consolidation 

PID: PID to be updated after lot consolidation 

3. This permit has been issued in accordance with Section 498 of the Local Government Act, to vary 
the following sections of Zoning Bylaw 2021-01 to allow for the construction of a 6 storey, mixed-
use development as shown in the plans attached in Schedule ‘A’: 

a. Section 11.3.2.5: to increase the maximum height from 18m to 21.1m, and 

b. Section 11.3.2.6: to reduce the minimum front yard from 3.0m to 2.0m. 

General Conditions  

4. In accordance with Section 501 of the Local Government Act, the lands subject to this permit shall 
be developed in general accordance with this permit and the plans attached as Schedule ‘A’.  

5. In accordance with Section 504 of the Local Government Act, if the holder of this permit does not 
commence the development authorized by this permit within 2 years of the date of this permit, this 
permit shall lapse. 

6. This permit is not a building permit.  In order to proceed with this development, the holder of 
this permit must hold a valid building permit issued by the Building Inspection Department.  

7. This permit does not constitute any other municipal, provincial or federal approval. The holder of 
this permit is responsible to obtain any additional municipal, federal, or provincial approvals prior 
to commencing the development authorized by this permit.  

8. This permit does not include off-site infrastructure costs that may be required at the building permit 
stage, such as Development Cost Charges (DCC’s), road improvements and electrical servicing. 
There may be substantial infrastructure and servicing costs payable at a later date. For more 
information on servicing and infrastructure requirements please contact the Development 
Engineering Department at (250) 490-2501. For more information on electrical servicing costs, 
please contact the Electric Utility at (250) 490-2535.    

DRAFT 

DVP PL2
02

1-9
19

8



Authorized by City Council, the ____ day of ____________, 2022. 

Issued this ____ day of ____________, 2022. 

_________________________ 

Angela Collison 
Corporate Officer 

DRAFT 

DVP PL2
02

1-9
19

8



UP

UP

G

G

1 1

9 9

A

A

2 2

3A

3A

11 11

12 12

B1

3 3

4 4

5 5

6 6

7 7

8 8

B

BF

C

C

9.
1 

m
30

'-0
"

2.
9 

m
9'-

6"
41

.0
 m

13
4'-

6"
13

.0
 m

42
'-6

"
13

.3
 m

43
'-6

"

79
.2

 m
26

0'-
0"

0.1 m
4" 9.1 m

30'-0"
9.8 m
32'-0"

1.8 m
6'-0"

7.9 m
26'-0"

9.8 m
32'-0"

0.1 m
4" 4.5 m

14'-10"
4.8 m

15'-7 3/4"
38.4 m
126'-0"

4.6 m
15'-2"

4.5 m
SIDE YARD SETBACK

14'-9 1/8"

2.
9 

m
9'-

6 
1/

8"

2.9 m ROAD DEDICATION

3.
0 

m
FR

O
NT

 Y
AR

D 
SE

TB
AC

K

9'-
10

 1
/8

"

2.
0 

m
6'-

6 
3/

4"
 P

RO
PO

SE
D 

FR
O

NT
 Y

AR
D 

SE
TB

AC
K

4.5 m
SIDE YARD SETBACK

14'-9 1/8"

12
.0

 m
39

'-6
"

SITE - BUILDING
FOOTPRINT
(15,704 SF)

PMT

53
.0

 m
17

4'-
0"

26
.2

 m
86

'-0
"

20.7 m
68'-0"

7.9 m
26'-0"

1.2 m
4'-0"

29.9 m
98'-0"

8.5 m
28'-0"

12
.0

 m
39

'-6
"

34
.0

 m
11

1'-
6"

6.
0 

m
19

'-8
"

1.
0 

m
3'-

4"

53
.0

 m
17

4'-
0"

26
.2

 m
86

'-0
"

1.8 m
6'-0"

A1.1

2A1.1
1

E

D

D

26
.2

 m
86

'-0
"

23.91 m23.88 m

2.
77

 m
81

.3
2 

m84
.2

2 
m

23.81 m 23.82 m

SECURITY GATE
SECURITY 
GATE

SURFACE 
PARKING

SURFACE 
PARKING

OPEN AIR 
PARKADE

345.88 m

345.88 m

345.88 m

345.88 m

345.88 m

1.5 m
5'-0"

1.5 m
5'-0"

ECKHARDT MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT

Current Zoning: Current REQUIRED PROVIDED PROVIDED

(DP Submission 21-NOV-21) (DP Submission 14-APR-22)

PRINCIPAL USE

C3 REZONED FROM C7 C3 C3

MIXED-USE COMMERCIAL MIXED-USE COMMERCIAL MIXED-USE COMMERCIAL

MULTI-UNIT RESIDENTIAL MULTI-UNIT RESIDENTIAL

PARCEL SIZE 1000 m² MIN. LOT 2 - 0.549 ac. + LOT 3 - 0.5 ac. LOT 2 - 0.549 ac. + LOT 3 - 0.5 ac.

4245 m²( 45,695 SF) 4245 m²( 45,695 SF)

LOT WIDTH 18.0 m MIN. 47.7 m 47.7 m

LOT DEPTH N/A 84 m 84 m

GFA (GROSS FLOOR AREA) 668.4 m² 7.195 m² (77,443 SF) 5,375 m² (57,860 SF)

NFA (NET FLOOR AREA) N/A 6,197 m² (66,701 SF) 5,202 m² (55,990 SF)

BUILDING FOOTPRINT N/A 1.778 m² (19,134 SF) 1,459 m² (15,704 SF)

FAR(FLOOR AREA RATIO) 2.0 1.5 1.3

LOT COVERAGE 50% 42% 34%

BUILDING HEIGHT (MAX) 18 m 20m (6 STOREYS) 20.5 m (6 STOREYS)

SETBACKS 

FRONT YARD - 3m FRONT YARD (NORTH) - 2m FRONT YARD (NORTH) - 2m

SIDE YARD - 4.5m SIDE YARD (EAST) - 4.9m SIDE YARD (EAST) - 4.5m

REAR YARD - 6m REAR YARD (SOUTH) - 13.4m REAR YARD (SOUTH) - 26.2m

SIDE YARD - 4.5m SIDE YARD (WEST) - 4.5m SIDE YARD (WEST) - 4.8m

AMENITY SPACE (10 m²" / DWELLING UNIT) 700 m² (7535 SF) 1,000  m² (10,766 SF) 799 m² (8,597 SF)

INDOOR AMENITY SPACE (MAX. 20%) 140  m² (1507 SF) 30.7 m² (330 SF) 38 m² (406 SF)

LANDSCAPING N/A REFER TO LANDSCAPING REFER TO LANDSCAPING

BICYCLE PARKING
CLASS 1 (0.5 / UNIT) = 35 72 (50 wall mounted, 22 ground 

mounted)
51 (12 wall mounted, 39 ground 
mounted)

CLASS 2 (0.1 / UNIT)  = 7 8 8

PARKING CALCULATIONS

UNIT TYPE (PARKING MULTIPLIER) REQUIRED PROVIDED PROVIDED

1 BEDROOM (1.0/UNIT) 1 7

1 BEDROOM + DEN (1.0/UNIT) 17 50

2 BEDROOM (1.0/UNIT) 52 13

TOTAL UNITS 70 70 70

COMMERCIAL (1.0/50sm) 250 - square meters 5 5

PARKING REDUCTION6.1.2.1(a) (+5 BIKES) -1.0 -1.0 -1.0

VISITOR PARKING (0.25/UNIT) 18 12 17

SMALL CAR (MAX 25%) 23 MAX. 22 23

REGULAR CAR (MIN 75%) 62 63

ACCESSIBLE PARKING 3 3 3

CASH-IN-LIEU OF PARKING -5.0 -3.0

PARKING PROVIDED 92 87.0 89.0

- THIS DRAWING MUST NOT BE SCALED.

- VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS AND DATUMS
PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF WORK.
REPORT ALL ERRORS AND OMMISIONS
TO THE ARCHITECT.

- VARIATIONS AND MODIFICATIONS ARE    
NOT ALLOWED WITHOUT WRITTEN 
PERMISSION FROM THE ARCHITECT.

- THIS DRAWING IS THE EXCLUSIVE
PROPERTY OF THE ARCHITECT.

- ANY REPRODUCTION MUST BEAR THEIR 
NAME AS ARCHITECT.

Revision Number

Scale

Date

Sheet Title

Project

Drawing Number

Client

Job Number

Seal

0

#100-1353 Ellis Street
Kelowna, BC V1Y 1Z9

p:236.420.3550

www.bluegreenarchitecture.com

Consultants

As indicated

20
22

-0
4-

29
 3

:4
6:

54
 P

M

A1.0

SITE PLAN + ZONING

MIXED-USE
DEVELOPMENT

21/11/02

ECKHARDT AVENUE, PENTICTON,
BC

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

21.957

NO. DATE DESCRIPTION

0 2021-11-02 ISSUED FOR DP

1 2022-04-14 ISSUED FOR DP -
COMMENTS

 1/16" = 1'-0"2 LEVEL 0 - SITE PLAN

GROSS FLOOR AREA (GFA)
LEVEL AREA

LEVEL 1 3,465 SF
LEVEL 1 242 SF
LEVEL 2 11,034 SF
LEVEL 3 10,857 SF
LEVEL 4 10,857 SF
LEVEL 5 10,857 SF
LEVEL 6 10,547 SF
Grand total 57,860 SF

UNIT COUNT SCHEDULE
NAME TYPE AREA # of UNITS

UNIT A 1 BDRM 675 SF 1
UNIT A1 1 BDRM 644 SF 1
UNIT A2 2 BDRM 3,100 SF 4
UNIT A3 2 BDRM 3,101 SF 4
UNIT A4 2 BDRM 3,875 SF 5
UNIT B1 1 BDRM 2,139 SF 4
UNIT B2 1 BDRM 506 SF 1
UNIT C 1 BDRM + DEN 32,500 SF 50
TOTAL UNITS: 46,540 SF 70

NET FLOOR AREA (NFA) SCHEDULE

UNIT # NAME AREA
OUTDOOR

AMENITY SF
LEVEL 1
100 VESTIBULE / LOBBY 560 SF
101 CRU 1 1,400 SF
102 CRU 2 1,211 SF
315 VESTIBULE 66 SF

3,236 SF 0 SF
LEVEL 2

CORRIDOR 1,253 SF
200 AMENITY 477 SF 816 SF
201 UNIT A 675 SF 265 SF
202 UNIT B2 506 SF 158 SF
203 UNIT A1 644 SF 104 SF
204 UNIT A4 775 SF 140 SF
205 UNIT C 650 SF 80 SF
206 UNIT C 650 SF 380 SF
207 UNIT C 650 SF 70 SF
208 UNIT C 650 SF 380 SF
209 UNIT C 650 SF 70 SF
210 UNIT C 650 SF 380 SF
211 UNIT C 650 SF 70 SF
212 UNIT C 650 SF 380 SF
213 UNIT C 650 SF 70 SF
214 UNIT C 650 SF 380 SF

10,830 SF 3,743 SF
LEVEL 3

CORRIDOR 1,136 SF
301 UNIT B1 535 SF 95 SF
302 UNIT A2 775 SF 160 SF
303 UNIT A3 775 SF 150 SF
304 UNIT A4 775 SF 140 SF
305 UNIT C 650 SF 70 SF
306 UNIT C 650 SF 70 SF
307 UNIT C 650 SF 70 SF
308 UNIT C 650 SF 70 SF
309 UNIT C 650 SF 70 SF
310 UNIT C 650 SF 70 SF
311 UNIT C 650 SF 70 SF
312 UNIT C 650 SF 70 SF
313 UNIT C 650 SF 70 SF
314 UNIT C 650 SF 70 SF

10,496 SF 1,245 SF
LEVEL 4

CORRIDOR 1,136 SF
401 UNIT B1 535 SF 95 SF
402 UNIT A2 775 SF 152 SF
403 UNIT A3 775 SF 150 SF
404 UNIT A4 775 SF 140 SF
405 UNIT C 650 SF 70 SF
406 UNIT C 650 SF 70 SF
407 UNIT C 650 SF 70 SF
408 UNIT C 650 SF 70 SF
409 UNIT C 650 SF 70 SF
411 UNIT C 650 SF 70 SF
412 UNIT C 650 SF 70 SF
413 UNIT C 650 SF 70 SF
414 UNIT C 650 SF 70 SF
415 UNIT C 650 SF

10,496 SF 1,167 SF
LEVEL 5

CORRIDOR 1,136 SF
501 UNIT B1 535 SF 95 SF
502 UNIT A2 775 SF 156 SF
503 UNIT A3 775 SF 135 SF
504 UNIT A4 775 SF 135 SF
505 UNIT C 650 SF 70 SF
506 UNIT C 650 SF 70 SF
507 UNIT C 650 SF 70 SF
508 UNIT C 650 SF 70 SF
509 UNIT C 650 SF 70 SF
510 UNIT C 650 SF 70 SF
511 UNIT C 650 SF 70 SF
512 UNIT C 650 SF 70 SF
513 UNIT C 650 SF 70 SF
514 UNIT C 650 SF 70 SF

10,495 SF 1,221 SF
LEVEL 6

CORRIDOR 1,136 SF
601 UNIT B1 535 SF 95 SF
602 UNIT A2 775 SF 156 SF
603 UNIT A3 775 SF 135 SF
604 UNIT A4 775 SF 135 SF
605 UNIT C 650 SF 70 SF
606 UNIT C 650 SF 70 SF
607 UNIT C 650 SF 70 SF
608 UNIT C 650 SF 70 SF
609 UNIT C 650 SF 70 SF
610 UNIT C 650 SF 70 SF
611 UNIT C 650 SF 70 SF
612 UNIT C 650 SF 70 SF
613 UNIT C 650 SF 70 SF
614 UNIT C 650 SF 70 SF

10,495 SF 1,221 SF
TOTAL NFA: 56,048 SF 8,597 SF

PARKING SCHEDULE
TYPE #  STALLS

ACCESSIBLE RESIDENT 2
ACCESSIBLE VISITOR 1
SMALL CAR RESIDENT 23
STANDARD COMMERCIAL 5
STANDARD RESIDENT 42
STANDARD VISITOR 16
TOTAL PARKING STALLS: 89

 12" = 1'-0"1 ZONING INFO

ISSUED FOR 
REVIEW

UNIT TYPE SCHEDULE
NAME TYPE AREA # of UNITS

<varies> 1 BDRM 3,964 SF 7
UNIT C 1 BDRM + DEN 32,500 SF 50
<varies> 2 BDRM 10,076 SF 13
TOTAL UNITS: 46,540 SF 70

DRAFT 

DVP PL2
02

1-9
19

8



UP

UP

A3.2

2

A3.1

2

A3.1 1

GG

1

1

9

9

AA

2

2

3A

3A

11

11

12

12

B1

3

3

4

4

5

5

6

6

7

7

8

8

BB

FF

CC

A3.21

A1.12

560 SF

VESTIBULE / LOBBY
100

1,400 SF

CRU 1
101

1,211 SF

CRU 2
102

77 SF

ELEVATOR

23 SF

MECH

983 SF

SECURE BIKE ROOM
105

179 SF

STAIR 2

1

ACCESSIBLE
RESIDENT

2

ACCESSIBLE
RESIDENT

3

STANDARD
RESIDENT

4

STANDARD
RESIDENT

5

STANDARD
RESIDENT

8

SMALL CAR
RESIDENT

9

SMALL CAR
RESIDENT

10

SMALL CAR
RESIDENT

11

SMALL CAR
RESIDENT

12

SMALL CAR
RESIDENT

13

SMALL CAR
RESIDENT

14

SMALL CAR
RESIDENT

15

SMALL CAR
RESIDENT

16

SMALL CAR
RESIDENT

17

SMALL CAR
RESIDENT

18

SMALL CAR
RESIDENT

19

SMALL CAR
RESIDENT

36

STANDARD
RESIDENT

37

STANDARD
RESIDENT

38

STANDARD
RESIDENT

79

SMALL CAR
RESIDENT

80

SMALL CAR
RESIDENT

81

STANDARD
VISITOR

82

STANDARD
VISITOR

83

STANDARD
VISITOR

84

STANDARD
VISITOR

85

STANDARD
VISITOR

86

STANDARD
VISITOR

78

SMALL CAR
RESIDENT

28

STANDARD
RESIDENT

27

STANDARD
RESIDENT

26

STANDARD
RESIDENT

25

STANDARD
RESIDENT

24

STANDARD
RESIDENT

23

STANDARD
RESIDENT

22

STANDARD
RESIDENT

76

STANDARD
RESIDENT

75

STANDARD
RESIDENT

74

STANDARD
RESIDENT

73

STANDARD
RESIDENT

72

STANDARD
RESIDENT

71

STANDARD
RESIDENT

70

STANDARD
RESIDENT

66

STANDARD
VISITOR

65

STANDARD
VISITOR

64

STANDARD
VISITOR

62

STANDARD
VISITOR

63

ACCESSIBLE
VISITOR

30

STANDARD
RESIDENT

31

STANDARD
RESIDENT

32

STANDARD
RESIDENT

33

STANDARD
RESIDENT

34

STANDARD
RESIDENT

42

STANDARD
RESIDENT

43

STANDARD
RESIDENT

44

STANDARD
RESIDENT

45

STANDARD
RESIDENT

46

STANDARD
RESIDENT

47

STANDARD
RESIDENT

48

STANDARD
RESIDENT

49

STANDARD
RESIDENT

50

STANDARD
RESIDENT

51

STANDARD
RESIDENT

53

SMALL CAR
RESIDENT

54

SMALL CAR
RESIDENT

55

STANDARD
RESIDENT

56

STANDARD
RESIDENT

57

STANDARD
COMMERCIAL

7.
0 

m
23

'-0
"

5.
8 

m
19

'-0
"

16
.9

 m
55

'-4
"

5.
6 

m
18

'-4
 1

/2
"

3.
4 

m
11

'-0
"

0.
3 

m
1'-

0"
2.

7 
m

9'-
0"

2.
7 

m
9'-

0"
0.

4 
m

1'-
2"

2.
7 

m
9'-

0"
2.

7 
m

9'-
0"

0.
3 

m
1'-

0"
0.

6 
m

1'-
10

"
3.

7 
m

12
'-2

 3
/8

"
1.

5 
m

4'-
11

 3
/8

"
3.

7 
m

12
'-2

 3
/8

" 7.
0 

m
23

'-0
"

5.
8 

m
19

'-0
"

5.
8 

m
19

'-0
"

7.
0 

m
23

'-0
"

190 SF

STAIR 1

150 SF

WATER
103

222 SF

ELECTRICAL
104

1.9 m
6'-2"

7.2 m
23'-6"

2.9 m
9'-6"

2.7 m
9'-0"

2.9 m
9'-6"

2.9 m
9'-6"

2.7 m
9'-0"

2.9 m
9'-6"

2.9 m
9'-6"

2.7 m
9'-0"

1.1 m
3'-8"

6.1 m
20'-0"

0.7 m
2'-4"

2.5 m
8'-2 3/8"

2.5 m
8'-2 3/8"

2.5 m
8'-2 3/8"

2.5 m
8'-2 3/8"

2.7 m
9'-0"

2.7 m
9'-0"

2.7 m
9'-0"

2.7 m
9'-0"

2.7 m
9'-0"

2.7 m
9'-0" 0.1 m

2 1/4"

2.8 m
9'-1 1/8"

2.7 m
9'-0"

2.9 m
9'-6"

2.9 m
9'-6"

2.7 m
9'-0"

2.9 m
9'-6"

2.9 m
9'-6"

2.7 m
9'-0"

2.9 m
9'-6"

2.7 m
8'-8 3/8"

2.7 m
8'-8 3/8"

1.7 m
5'-6"

3.7 m
12'-1 5/8"

2.7 m
9'-0"

2.7 m
9'-0"

2.7 m
9'-0"

2.7 m
9'-0"

2.7 m
9'-0"

2.7 m
9'-0"

2.7 m
9'-0"

1.8 m
5'-10 3/8"

5.7 m
18'-10"

8.7 m
28'-7"

8.5 m
28'-0"

8.5 m
28'-0"

8.5 m
28'-0"

5.3 m
17'-5"

SE
C

U
R

E 
PA

R
KI

N
G

 S
LI

D
IN

G
 D

O
O

R

CRU + RESIDENTIAL 
REFUSE & RECYCLING 

SCREENED ENCLOSURE
MAX. HEIGHT 2.0 m

9.1 m
30'-0"

2.9 m
9'-6"

1.5 m
5'-0"

0.5 m
1'-6"

2.5 m
8'-2 3/8"

2.5 m
8'-2 3/8"

2.5 m
8'-2 3/8"

2.5 m
8'-2 3/8"

2.5 m
8'-2 3/8"

2.5 m
8'-2 3/8"

2.5 m
8'-2 3/8"

2.5 m
8'-2 3/8"

2.5 m
8'-2 3/8"

2.5 m
8'-2 3/8"

2.5 m
8'-2 3/8"

2.5 m
8'-2 3/8"

2.5 m
8'-2 3/8"

2.5 m
8'-2 3/8"

2.5 m
8'-2 3/8"

1.5 m
4'-11 5/8"

2.7 m
9'-0"

2.7 m
9'-0"

2.7 m
9'-0"

2.7 m
9'-0"

2.7 m
9'-0"

2.7 m
9'-0"

2.7 m
9'-0"

2.7 m
9'-0"

2.7 m
9'-0"

1.5 m
5'-0"

29

STANDARD
RESIDENT

20

SMALL CAR
RESIDENT

35

STANDARD
RESIDENT

5.
8 

m
19

'-0
"

7

SMALL CAR
RESIDENT

67

STANDARD
VISITOR

58

STANDARD
COMMERCIAL

68

STANDARD
VISITOR

69

STANDARD
VISITOR

21

SMALL CAR
RESIDENT

39

SMALL CAR
RESIDENT

52

STANDARD
RESIDENT

59

STANDARD
COMMERCIAL

60

STANDARD
COMMERCIAL

77

SMALL CAR
RESIDENT

87

STANDARD
VISITOR

328 SF

BIKE LOCKER
106

30
'-0

"
64

'-0
"

32
'-0

"

1'-
8"

27
'-2

"
10

'-0
"

13
'-0

"
16

'-6
"

15
'-6

"
9'-

0"
10

'-0
"

13
'-0

"
9'-

2"
1'-

8"

6

STANDARD
RESIDENT

39 HORIZONTAL BIKE STALLS

BIKE 
WASH 
AREA

4.
5 

m
SID

E 
YA

RD
 SE

TB
AC

K

14
'-9

 1
/8

"

4.
5 

m
SID

E 
YA

RD
 SE

TB
AC

K

14
'-9

 1
/8

"

2.0 m
PROPOSED FRONT YARD SETBACK

6'-6 3/4"

2.
4 

m
7'-

10
 3

/4
"

41

STANDARD
RESIDENT

61

STANDARD
COMMERCIAL

88

STANDARD
VISITOR

89

STANDARD
VISITOR

SE
C

U
R

E 
PA

R
KI

N
G

 S
LI

D
IN

G
 D

O
O

R

PMT

RE
SI

D
EN

TIA
L 

RE
C

YC
LI

N
G

RE
SI

D
EN

TIA
L 

+ 
C

RU
 R

EF
US

E

CRU
RECYCLING

OUTLINE OF BUILDING ABOVE

O
UT

LI
N

E 
O

F 
BU

IL
D

IN
G

 A
BO

V
E

1.5 m
5'-0"

2.9 m
9'-6"

JANITOR 12
 V

ER
TI

C
AL

 B
IK

E 
ST

AL
LS

66 SF

VESTIBULE

40

SMALL CAR
RESIDENT

13.3 m
43'-6"

39.8 m
130'-6"

26.2 m
86'-0"

3
A1.1

A1.1
1

7.4 m
24'-4"

2.4 m
8'-0"

3.4 m
11'-2"

39.8 m
130'-6"

0.7 m
2'-4"

2.7 m
9'-0"

2.7 m
9'-0"

2.7 m
9'-0"

2.7 m
9'-0"

2.7 m
9'-0"

2.7 m
9'-0"

2.7 m
9'-0"

2.7 m
9'-0"

0.3 m
1'-1"

3.2 m
10'-6"

4.
8 

m
15

'-7
 3

/4
"

38
.4

 m
12

6'-
0"

4.
6 

m
15

'-2
"

1.
5 

m
5'-

0"
0.

9 
m

3'-
0"

4.
6 

m
15

'-0
"

3.
7 

m
12

'-0
"

2.
1 

m
7'-

0"
4.

9 
m

16
'-0

"
4.

1 
m

13
'-6

"
11

.4
 m

37
'-6

"
3.

0 
m

10
'-0

"
3.

7 
m

12
'-0

"
1.

5 
m

5'-
0"

12.0 m
39'-6"

40.0 m
131'-2"

27.2 m
89'-4"

4.
1 

m
13

'-4
"

4.
4 

m
14

'-6
"

0.
5 

m
1'-

6"
6.

0 
m

19
'-8

"

SECURE 
GATE

E

D

2.9 m
9'-6 1/8"

2.
9 

m
 R

O
A

D
 D

ED
IC

A
TIO

N

3.0 m
FRONT YARD SETBACK

9'-10 1/8"

0.
2 

m
6 

1/
2"

O
UT

LI
N

E 
O

F 
C

A
N

O
PY

 A
BO

V
E 

(T
YP

.)
-

-

- -

--

-

-

6.0 m
REAR YARD SETBACK

19'-8 1/4"

345.88 m

345.88 m

345.88 m

345.88 m

1.
8 

m
6'-

0"

2.4 m
8'-0"

0.6 m
2'-0"

0.6 m
2'-0"

- THIS DRAWING MUST NOT BE SCALED.

- VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS AND DATUMS
PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF WORK.
REPORT ALL ERRORS AND OMMISIONS
TO THE ARCHITECT.

- VARIATIONS AND MODIFICATIONS ARE    
NOT ALLOWED WITHOUT WRITTEN 
PERMISSION FROM THE ARCHITECT.

- THIS DRAWING IS THE EXCLUSIVE
PROPERTY OF THE ARCHITECT.

- ANY REPRODUCTION MUST BEAR THEIR 
NAME AS ARCHITECT.

Revision Number

Scale

Date

Sheet Title

Project

Drawing Number

Client

Job Number

Seal

0

#100-1353 Ellis Street
Kelowna, BC V1Y 1Z9

p:236.420.3550

www.bluegreenarchitecture.com

Consultants

 1" = 10'-0"

20
22

-0
4-

29
 3

:4
6:

59
 P

M

A2.1

FLOOR PLAN - LEVEL 1

MIXED-USE
DEVELOPMENT

21/11/02

ECKHARDT AVENUE, PENTICTON,
BC

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

21.957

NO. DATE DESCRIPTION

0 2021-11-02 ISSUED FOR DP

1 2022-04-14 ISSUED FOR DP -
COMMENTS

PARKING SCHEDULE
TYPE #  STALLS

ACCESSIBLE RESIDENT 2
ACCESSIBLE VISITOR 1
SMALL CAR RESIDENT 23
STANDARD COMMERCIAL 5
STANDARD RESIDENT 42
STANDARD VISITOR 16
TOTAL PARKING STALLS: 89 ISSUED FOR 

REVIEW

 1" = 10'-0"1 FLOOR PLAN - LEVEL 1

DRAFT 

DVP PL2
02

1-9
19

8



LEVEL 2
11' - 4"

LEVEL 3
21' - 8"

LEVEL 4
32' - 0"

LEVEL 5
42' - 4"

G

A

( 349.33 m )

( 352.48 m )

( 355.63 m )

( 358.78 m )

LEVEL 1
0"

LEVEL 6
52' - 8"

T.O. ROOF
63' - 2 1/4"

T.O. PARAPET
64' - 6 1/4"

B FC

L6 - T.O. PLATE
61' - 8 1/4"

1.0 m
3'-4"

1.8 m
6'-0"

0.9 m
3'-0"

3.0 m
10'-0"

0.9 m
3'-0"

2.1 m
7'-0"

0.9 m
3'-0"

1.8 m
6'-0"

0.9 m
3'-0"

3.8 m
12'-6"

0.9 m
3'-0"

4.1 m
13'-6"

0.9 m
3'-0"

3.0 m
10'-0"

0.9 m
3'-0"

2.1 m
7'-0"

0.9 m
3'-0"

7.3 m
24'-0"

1.0 m
3'-4"

( 345.88 m )

( 361.93 m )

( 365.14 m )

38.6 m
126'-8"

9.8 m
32'-0"

7.9 m
26'-0"

11.6 m
38'-0"

9.1 m
30'-0"

29.3 m
96'-0"

9.1 m
30'-0"

1.
4 

m
4'-

8 
7/

8"
0.

9 
m

2'-
10

"
2.

7 
m

9'-
0 

1/
4"

3.
1 

m
10

'-4
"

3.
1 

m
10

'-4
"

3.
1 

m
10

'-4
"

3.
1 

m
10

'-4
"

3.
5 

m
11

'-4
"

20
.4

 m
66

'-1
0 

1/
4"

0.
7 

m
2'-

4"
19

.7
 m

64
'-6

 1
/4

"

16
.1

 m
52

'-8
"

3.3 m
10'-10"

4.0 m
13'-0"

3.0 m
10'-0"

2.7 m
9'-0"

4.7 m
15'-6"

5.0 m
16'-6"

4.0 m
13'-0"

3.0 m
10'-0"

8.8 m
28'-10"

3.0 m
10'-0"

4.9 m
16'-0"

1.8 m
6'-0"

3.0 m
10'-0"

5.6 m
18'-6"

4.3 m
14'-0"

4.9 m
16'-0"

1.7 m
5'-6"

MID-POINT SHED DORMER
66' - 10 1/4"

1

312 6 2 7

11

29

6

MATERIAL LEGEND:

ACRYLIC STUCCO FINISH #1 
COLOUR: BM-SIDEWALK GREY (2133-60)
FINISH: SMOOTH 

1

FIBRE CEMENT PANELS 
COLOUR: ASPEN RIDGE (WOODTONE)
STYLE: 'CEDARMILL' BY HARDIE (OR EQUAL)
DRIP/TRIM: 'LIGHT TRIM' (OR EQUAL) COLOUR MATCH
NOTES: GRAIN ORIENTATION PER ELEVATION

5

3 ACRYLIC STUCCO FINISH #3
COLOUR: BM-NOVEMBER RAIN (2142-60)
FINISH: SMOOTH

4 EXPOSED ARCHITECTURAL CONCRETE
COLOUR: NATURAL
STYLE: MEDIUM DENISITY FACED FORM

ACRYLIC STUCCO FINISH #2
COLOUR: BM-PIGEON GREY (2133-50)
FINISH: SMOOTH

2

FIBRE CEMENT PANEL/FASCIA/TRIM
COLOUR: ASPEN CHOCOLATE 
STYLE: 'CEDARMILL' BY HARDIE (OR EQUAL)
DRIP/TRIM: COLOUR MATCH 

6

PRE-FINISHED ALUMINUM GUARD RAIL
COLOUR: GREY/SILVER TO MATCH 

WINDOW/STOREFRONT
STYLE: PICKET (42" HIGH)

7

8

12" STEEL CHANNEL ACCENT 
COLOUR: GREY/SILVER TO MATCH 

WINDOW/STOREFRONT
NOTES: AESS LEVEL 2 (CISC) 

9

FIBRE CEMENT PANEL COLUMN WRAP
COLOUR: ASPEN CHOCOLATE 
STYLE: 'CEDARMILL' BY HARDIE (OR EQUAL)
DRIP/TRIM: COLOUR MATCH 

PRE-FAB METAL SCREENING/GATE
MATERIAL: METAL FRAME 
INFILL: WOOD-LOOK (VERT/HORIZ AS SHOWN) 
FRAME COLOUR: GREY/SILVER TO MATCH 

WINDOW/STOREFRONT
INFILL COLOUR: WOOD LOOK TO MATCH    

10

5

ALU. STOREFRONT/METAL CLAD VINYL WINDOWS/DOORS
FINISH: CLEAR ANNODIZED ALUMINUM 

11

PRE-FINISHED METAL ROOFING
TYPE:  PROLOK 12 (OR EQUAL) 
FINISH: REGENT GREY (CASCADIA OR EQUAL) 

12

LEVEL 2
11' - 4"

LEVEL 3
21' - 8"

LEVEL 4
32' - 0"

LEVEL 5
42' - 4"

1 9

( 349.33 m )

( 352.48 m )

( 355.63 m )

( 358.78 m )

LEVEL 1
0"

2

LEVEL 6
52' - 8"

T.O. ROOF
63' - 2 1/4"

T.O. PARAPET
64' - 6 1/4"

4 5 6 7 8

L6 - T.O. PLATE
61' - 8 1/4"

( 361.93 m )

( 345.88 m )

0.
7 

m
2'-

4"
19

.7
 m

64
'-6

 1
/4

"
20

.4
 m

66
'-1

0 
1/

4"

16
.1

 m
52

'-8
"

9.1 m
30'-0"

8.8 m
29'-0"

7.0 m
23'-0"

7.0 m
23'-0"

7.0 m
23'-0"

7.0 m
23'-0"

7.0 m
23'-0"53.0 m

174'-0"

MID-POINT SHED DORMER
66' - 10 1/4"

0.
4 

m
1'-

4"
3.

2 
m

10
'-6

 1
/4

"
3.

1 
m

10
'-4

"
3.

1 
m

10
'-4

"
3.

1 
m

10
'-4

"
3.

1 
m

10
'-4

"
3.

5 
m

11
'-4

"

2 36 2 6 7

1 10 4 1

- THIS DRAWING MUST NOT BE SCALED.

- VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS AND DATUMS
PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF WORK.
REPORT ALL ERRORS AND OMMISIONS
TO THE ARCHITECT.

- VARIATIONS AND MODIFICATIONS ARE    
NOT ALLOWED WITHOUT WRITTEN 
PERMISSION FROM THE ARCHITECT.

- THIS DRAWING IS THE EXCLUSIVE
PROPERTY OF THE ARCHITECT.

- ANY REPRODUCTION MUST BEAR THEIR 
NAME AS ARCHITECT.

Revision Number

Scale

Date

Sheet Title

Project

Drawing Number

Client

Job Number

Seal

0

#100-1353 Ellis Street
Kelowna, BC V1Y 1Z9

p:236.420.3550

www.bluegreenarchitecture.com

Consultants

As indicated

20
22

-0
4-

29
 3

:4
8:

22
 P

M

A3.1

BUILDING ELEVATIONS

MIXED-USE
DEVELOPMENT

21/11/02

ECKHARDT AVENUE, PENTICTON,
BC

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

21.957

 1/8" = 1'-0"A3.1
NORTH ELEVATION1

NO. DATE DESCRIPTION

0 2021-11-02 ISSUED FOR DP

1 2022-04-14 ISSUED FOR DP -
COMMENTS

 1/8" = 1'-0"A3.1
WEST ELEVATION2

DRAFT 

DVP PL2
02

1-9
19

8



LEVEL 2
11' - 4"

LEVEL 3
21' - 8"

LEVEL 4
32' - 0"

LEVEL 5
42' - 4"

19

( 349.33 m )

( 352.48 m )

( 355.63 m )

( 358.78 m )

LEVEL 1
0"

23A

LEVEL 6
52' - 8"

T.O. ROOF
63' - 2 1/4"

T.O. PARAPET
64' - 6 1/4"

345678

L6 - T.O. PLATE
61' - 8 1/4"

( 345.88 m )

( 361.93 m )

( 364.68 m )

3.
5 

m
11

'-4
"

3.
1 

m
10

'-4
"

3.
1 

m
10

'-4
"

3.
1 

m
10

'-4
"

3.
1 

m
10

'-4
"

2.
7 

m
9'-

0 
1/

4"
1.

6 
m

5'-
2"

19
.7

 m
BU

ILD
IN

G
 H

EIG
HT

64
'-6

 1
/4

"

16
.1

 m
52

'-8
"

0.6 m
2'-0"

11.4 m
37'-6"

41.0 m
134'-6"

53.0 m
174'-0"

0.6 m
2'-0"

52.4 m
172'-0"

2" / 12"

9.1 m
30'-0"

2.9 m
9'-6"

5.9 m
19'-6"

7.0 m
23'-0"

7.0 m
23'-0"

7.0 m
23'-0"

7.0 m
23'-0"

2.9 m
9'-6 1/2"

4.1 m
13'-5 1/2"

0.9 m
3'-0 1/2"

7.0 m
23'-0"

0.6 m
1'-11 1/2"

8.5 m
28'-0"

2.9 m
9'-6"

5.9 m
19'-6"

7.0 m
23'-0"

7.0 m
23'-0"

7.0 m
23'-0"

7.0 m
23'-0"

7.0 m
23'-0"

3 68 2 11 3

20
.4

 m
66

'-1
0 

1/
4"

MATERIAL LEGEND:

ACRYLIC STUCCO FINISH #1 
COLOUR: BM-SIDEWALK GREY (2133-60)
FINISH: SMOOTH 

1

FIBRE CEMENT PANELS 
COLOUR: ASPEN RIDGE (WOODTONE)
STYLE: 'CEDARMILL' BY HARDIE (OR EQUAL)
DRIP/TRIM: 'LIGHT TRIM' (OR EQUAL) COLOUR MATCH
NOTES: GRAIN ORIENTATION PER ELEVATION

5

3 ACRYLIC STUCCO FINISH #3
COLOUR: BM-NOVEMBER RAIN (2142-60)
FINISH: SMOOTH

4 EXPOSED ARCHITECTURAL CONCRETE
COLOUR: NATURAL
STYLE: MEDIUM DENISITY FACED FORM

ACRYLIC STUCCO FINISH #2
COLOUR: BM-PIGEON GREY (2133-50)
FINISH: SMOOTH

2

FIBRE CEMENT PANEL/FASCIA/TRIM
COLOUR: ASPEN CHOCOLATE 
STYLE: 'CEDARMILL' BY HARDIE (OR EQUAL)
DRIP/TRIM: COLOUR MATCH 

6

PRE-FINISHED ALUMINUM GUARD RAIL
COLOUR: GREY/SILVER TO MATCH 

WINDOW/STOREFRONT
STYLE: PICKET (42" HIGH)

7

8

12" STEEL CHANNEL ACCENT 
COLOUR: GREY/SILVER TO MATCH 

WINDOW/STOREFRONT
NOTES: AESS LEVEL 2 (CISC) 

9

FIBRE CEMENT PANEL COLUMN WRAP
COLOUR: ASPEN CHOCOLATE 
STYLE: 'CEDARMILL' BY HARDIE (OR EQUAL)
DRIP/TRIM: COLOUR MATCH 

PRE-FAB METAL SCREENING/GATE
MATERIAL: METAL FRAME 
INFILL: WOOD-LOOK (VERT/HORIZ AS SHOWN) 
FRAME COLOUR: GREY/SILVER TO MATCH 

WINDOW/STOREFRONT
INFILL COLOUR: WOOD LOOK TO MATCH    

10

5

ALU. STOREFRONT/METAL CLAD VINYL WINDOWS/DOORS
FINISH: CLEAR ANNODIZED ALUMINUM 

11

PRE-FINISHED METAL ROOFING
TYPE:  PROLOK 12 (OR EQUAL) 
FINISH: REGENT GREY (CASCADIA OR EQUAL) 

12

LEVEL 2
11' - 4"

LEVEL 3
21' - 8"

LEVEL 4
32' - 0"

LEVEL 5
42' - 4"

G A

LEVEL 1
0"

B1

LEVEL 6
52' - 8"

T.O. ROOF
63' - 2 1/4"

T.O. PARAPET
64' - 6 1/4"

BF C

L6 - T.O. PLATE
61' - 8 1/4"

( 349.33 m )

( 352.48 m )

( 355.63 m )

( 358.78 m )

( 345.88 m )

( 361.93 m )

( 365.14 m )

16
.1

 m
52

'-8
"

19
.7

 m
BU

ILD
IN

G
 H

EIG
HT

64
'-6

 1
/4

"

0.
9 

m
2'-

10
"

2.
7 

m
9'-

0 
1/

4"
3.

1 
m

10
'-4

"
3.

1 
m

10
'-4

"
3.

1 
m

10
'-4

"
3.

1 
m

10
'-4

"
3.

5 
m

11
'-4

"

29.9 m
98'-0"

8.5 m
28'-0"

38.4 m
126'-0"

2.1 m
7'-0"

7.0 m
23'-0"

29.3 m
96'-0"

1.
8 

m
6'-

0"
0.

2 
m

8"

6.0 m
19'-7 5/8"

7.0 m
23'-0 3/8"

5.8 m
19'-0"

1.7 m
5'-8"

8.0 m
26'-4"

7.1 m
23'-5"

5.7 m
18'-8"

E D

5 6 2

110

- THIS DRAWING MUST NOT BE SCALED.

- VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS AND DATUMS
PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF WORK.
REPORT ALL ERRORS AND OMMISIONS
TO THE ARCHITECT.

- VARIATIONS AND MODIFICATIONS ARE    
NOT ALLOWED WITHOUT WRITTEN 
PERMISSION FROM THE ARCHITECT.

- THIS DRAWING IS THE EXCLUSIVE
PROPERTY OF THE ARCHITECT.

- ANY REPRODUCTION MUST BEAR THEIR 
NAME AS ARCHITECT.

Project File Name and Location:

MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

Revision Number

Scale

Date

Sheet Title

Project

Drawing Number

Client

Job Number

Seal

21.957

0

100-1353 ELLIS STREET
KELOWNA, BC V1Y 1Z9

236.420.3550

www.bluegreenarchitecture.com

Consultants

As indicated

C:\Users\malice\OneDrive - BlueGreen Architecture Inc\Documents\2022 PROJECTS\21.957 Eckhardt Mixed-Use - DP REVISION_mary.aliceDQCYH.rvt

20
22

-0
4-

29
 3:

48
:41

 P
M

ISSUED FOR DP -
COMMENTS

A3.2

BUILDING ELEVATIONS

MIXED-USE
DEVELOPMENT

04/11/22

ECKHARDT AVENUE,
PENTICTON, BC

NO. DATE DESCRIPTION

0 2021-11-0
2

ISSUED FOR DP

1 2022-04-1
4

ISSUED FOR DP -
COMMENTS

 1/8" = 1'-0"A3.2
EAST ELEVATION2

 1/8" = 1'-0"A3.2
SOUTH ELEVATION1

DRAFT 

DVP PL2
02

1-9
19

8



 
 

Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-43  Page 1 of 1 
 

The Corporation of the City of Penticton 
 

Bylaw No. 2022-43 
  

A Bylaw to Amend Zoning Bylaw 2021-01 
 
WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton has adopted a Zoning Bylaw pursuant the Local Government Act; 
 
AND WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton wishes to amend Zoning Bylaw No. 2021-01;  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Municipal Council of the City of Penticton, in open meeting 
assembled, hereby ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 
  
1. Title: 
 
 This bylaw may be cited for all purposes as “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-43”. 
 
2. Amendment: 
 

2.1 Zoning Bylaw No. 2021-01 is hereby amended as follows: 
 

Rezone Lot 49 District Lot 2 Group 7 Similkameen Division Yale (Formerly Yale Lytton) District 
Plan 1049 and Lot 48 District Lot 2 Group 7 Similkameen Division Yale (Formerly Yale Lytton) 
District Plan 1049, located at 747 and 755 Revelstoke Avenue from R2 (Small Lot Residential) to 
RD2 (Duplex Housing: Lane) as shown on Schedule ‘A’.  
 

2.2 Schedule ‘A’ attached hereto forms part of this bylaw. 
 
READ A FIRST time this 19 day of July, 2022 

A PUBLIC HEARING was held this 16 day of August, 2022 

READ A SECOND time this 16 day of August, 2022 

READ A THIRD time this 16 day of August, 2022 

RECEIVED the approval of the 
Ministry of Transportation on the 

18 day of August, 2022 

ADOPTED this  day of , 2022 

 
Notice of intention to proceed with this bylaw was published on the 5th day of August, 2022 and the 10th day of August, 2022 in an online 
news source and the newspaper, pursuant to Section 94.2 of the Community Charter.  

 
 

      
 John Vassilaki, Mayor 
      

 
 

       
 Angie Collison, Corporate Officer 
 
  

- 396 -



�����
���	
��	����������	�
�	��������������

 	!�"�#$"	�%&'()*+,-.'/*)0*,/)123'4,1)*,5+,-4678)0)/-,592*),/)/7,*&45)/*'32/33):)*28-,59;%&'1,650'<2006520+2/30,948'*'/'11,-*&)1)/-,592*),/=25)'1;>125'168*<*&'()*+3,'1/,*?2552/*)/2/+?2+*&'9244)/:)/-,592*),/)/0863)/:*&'2006520+,516)*27)8)*+*&'5',-;%&'61'5,-*&)1)/-,592*),/3,'11,2**&')5,?/5)1@2/31&,683/,*5'8+64,/*&')/-,592*),/?)*&,6*)/3'4'/3'/*='5)-)02*),/21*,*&'2006520+,516)*27)8)*+*&'5',-; ABCCD E FEAEG'*'51H���I�J������I���IKL M��!
����	��"�	��N�OIPQ�M�R�$ L���	IIN

- 397 -

mcdonah
Typewritten Text
Date:                                             Corporate Officer:



 

 
Memo 

 

   

 

 

Date: September 6, 2022     File No:    RMS/1603 Dartmouth Rd 
To: Donny van Dyk, Chief Administrative Officer 
From: Nicole Capewell, Planner II 
Address: 1603 Dartmouth Road  
 
Subject: Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-45 
 

Staff recommendation 

THAT Council give second and third reading as amended to “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-45” and 
revise the site specific wording to read “indoor recreation with a maximum building footprint of 1,300m2 
(14,000 square feet) shall be permitted.”; 

AND THAT “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-45” be adopted.  

Background 

Council on August 16, 2022 gave first reading to Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-45”, a bylaw that adds 
the use of “indoor amusement, entertainment and recreation” to the M1 (General Industrial) zone, specific to 
the subject property. The intent of the bylaw is to support the construction of an indoor baseball training 
facility at 1603 Dartmouth Road. Details of the proposal and full background is contained in the August 16, 
2022 report to Council.  

Since first reading of the bylaw and notification to the public of the associated September 6, 2022 Public 
Hearing, the Penticton Industrial Development Association (PIDA) and some neighbouring industrial 
properties have raised concerns regarding the scope of the proposed bylaw change. While there is general 
support from these groups for the baseball facility (as evidenced by PIDA’s letter of support for the project), 
the concern is that the use “indoor amusement, entertainment and recreation” is too broad and may allow 
for other uses in the future that are not complementary to the industrial park to occur. There was also some 
concern over the potential for a larger building than currently envisioned.  

Given this feedback, staff are proposing an amendment to the bylaw that will more narrowly define the use, 
from “indoor amusement, entertainment and recreation” to “indoor recreation” and to place a limit on the 
size of the facility to a maximum of 1,300 m2 (14,000 sq. ft.). Given that the lot is 17,551 m2 (188,920 sq. ft.) in 
area, staff consider the maximum size is appropriate (7% of the total lot area), to ensure the viability of 
industrial uses on the property for the long term.  

The applicant has reviewed these amendments and supports this direction.  

 

- 398 -



 
Council Report  Page 2 of 2 

Proposed amended Bylaw text 

Add the following to M1 – General Industrial site specific provision 12.1.4.4: “In the case of Lot 1 District Lots 
250, 2710, 3429S and 3821S Similkameen Division Yale District Plan 37288, located at 1603 Dartmouth Road, 
an indoor amusement, entertainment and recreation with a maximum building footprint of 1,300 m2 (14,000 
sq. ft.) shall be permitted.” 

Analysis 

After a public hearing, Council without further notice or hearing can adopt or defeat a bylaw or alter and 
then adopt the subject bylaw provided that the alteration does not alter the use or increase the density or, 
without the owner’s consent, decrease the density.   

Staff are proposing that Council consider giving Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-45 second and third 
reading as amended and adopt the bylaw. Support for the amendments will allow the project to proceed as 
planned, and address the concerns of PIDA over the any future changes.  

 Respectfully submitted, 

 

Nicole Capewell, RPP, MCIP 
Planner II 

 

Concurrence  

Director of 
Development Services 

Chief Administrative 
Officer 

BL 

 
DvD 

 
 

 

 

 

- 399 -



 
 

Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-45  Page 1 of 1 
 

The Corporation of the City of Penticton 
 

Bylaw No. 2022-45 
  

A Bylaw to Amend Zoning Bylaw 2021-01 
 
WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton has adopted a Zoning Bylaw pursuant the Local Government Act; 
 
AND WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton wishes to amend Zoning Bylaw No. 2021-01;  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Municipal Council of the City of Penticton, in open meeting 
assembled, hereby ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 
  
1. Title: 
 
 This bylaw may be cited for all purposes as “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-45”. 
 
2. Amendment: 
 

2.1 Zoning Bylaw No. 2021-01 is hereby amended as follows: 
 

Add the following to M1 – General Industrial site specific provision 12.1.4.4: “In the case of Lot 1 
District Lots 250, 2710, 3429S and 3821S Similkameen Division Yale District Plan 37288, located 
at 1603 Dartmouth Road, an indoor amusement, entertainment and recreation facility shall 
be permitted.” 
 

2.2 Schedule ‘A’ attached hereto forms part of this bylaw. 
 
READ A FIRST time this 16 day of August, 2022 

A PUBLIC HEARING was held this 6 day of September, 2022 

READ A SECOND time this  day of , 2022 

READ A THIRD time this  day of , 2022 

ADOPTED this  day of , 2022 

 
Notice of intention to proceed with this bylaw was published on the 26th day of August, 2022 and the 31st day of August, 2022 in an 
online news source and the newspaper, pursuant to Section 94.2 of the Community Charter.  

 
 

      
 John Vassilaki, Mayor 
      

 
 

       
 Angie Collison, Corporate Officer 
 
  

- 400 -



�����
���	
��	����������	�
�	��������������

 	!�"�#$"	�%&'()*+,-.'/*)0*,/)123'4,1)*,5+,-4678)0)/-,592*),/)/7,*&45)/*'32/33):)*28-,59;%&'1,650'<2006520+2/30,948'*'/'11,-*&)1)/-,592*),/=25)'1;>125'168*<*&'()*+3,'1/,*?2552/*)/2/+?2+*&'9244)/:)/-,592*),/)/0863)/:*&'2006520+,516)*27)8)*+*&'5',-;%&'61'5,-*&)1)/-,592*),/3,'11,2**&')5,?/5)1@2/31&,683/,*5'8+64,/*&')/-,592*),/?)*&,6*)/3'4'/3'/*='5)-)02*),/21*,*&'2006520+,516)*27)8)*+*&'5',-; ABA<CDD D EDFDG'*'51����"�H�I����HH�H��JK�L M��!
����	��"�	��N�OHPQJM�R�$ L���	HHN

- 401 -

mcdonah
Typewritten Text
Date:                                              Corporate Officer:  



 
 

Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-46  Page 1 of 1 
 

The Corporation of the City of Penticton 
 

Bylaw No. 2022-46 
  

A Bylaw to Amend Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 2019-08 
 
WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton has adopted an Official Community Plan Bylaw pursuant to the Local 
Government Act; 
 
AND WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton wishes to amend “Official Community Bylaw No. 2019-08”;  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Municipal Council of the City of Penticton, in open meeting assembled, 
hereby ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 
 
1. Title: 
 
 This bylaw may be cited for all purposes as “Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-46.” 
 
2. Amendment: 

 
“Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 2019-08” is hereby amended as follows: 

 
2.1 To change the following designations as follows:    

 
Amend Map 1: Future Land Use, to change future land use designation for Lot 1 District Lot 202 
Similkameen Division Yale District Plan EPP120346, located at 655 Ellis Street from ‘Ground 
Oriented Residential’ to ‘Urban Residential’ as shown on Schedule ‘A’. 
 

2.2 Schedule ‘A’ attached hereto forms part of this bylaw. 
 

READ A FIRST time this 16 day of August, 2022 

A PUBLIC HEARING was held this 6 day of September, 2022 

READ A SECOND time this  day of , 2022 

READ A THIRD time this  day of , 2022 

ADOPTED this  day of , 2022 

 
Notice of intention to proceed with this bylaw was published on the 26th day of August, 2022 and the 31st day of August, 2022 in an online 
news source and the newspaper, pursuant to Section 94.2 of the Community Charter.  
 
 
 

       
John Vassilaki, Mayor 

 
 

       
Angie Collison, Corporate Officer 

- 402 -



�����
���	
��	�������	�
�	��������������

�	 �!"#$!	�%&'()*+,-.'/*)0*,/)123'4,1)*,5+,-4678)0)/-,592*),/)/7,*&45)/*'32/33):)*28-,59;%&'1,650'<2006520+2/30,948'*'/'11,-*&)1)/-,592*),/=25)'1;>125'168*<*&'()*+3,'1/,*?2552/*)/2/+?2+*&'9244)/:)/-,592*),/)/0863)/:*&'2006520+,516)*27)8)*+*&'5',-;%&'61'5,-*&)1)/-,592*),/3,'11,2**&')5,?/5)1@2/31&,683/,*5'8+64,/*&')/-,592*),/?)*&,6*)/3'4'/3'/*='5)-)02*),/21*,*&'2006520+,516)*27)8)*+*&'5',-; ABCDD D EDFDG'*'51��H�!�I�J����II�I��KL�M �"" 
N���	��!�	��O�PIQRL��S�$�MT"�	IIO

- 403 -

mcdonah
Typewritten Text
Date:                                        Corporate Officer: 



 
 

Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-47  Page 1 of 1 
 

The Corporation of the City of Penticton 
 

Bylaw No. 2022-47 
  

A Bylaw to Amend Zoning Bylaw 2021-01 
 
WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton has adopted a Zoning Bylaw pursuant the Local Government Act; 
 
AND WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton wishes to amend Zoning Bylaw No. 2021-01;  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Municipal Council of the City of Penticton, in open meeting 
assembled, hereby ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 
  
1. Title: 
 
 This bylaw may be cited for all purposes as “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-47”. 
 
2. Amendment: 
 

2.1 Zoning Bylaw No. 2021-01 is hereby amended as follows: 
 

Rezone Lot 1 District Lot 202 Similkameen Division Yale District Plan EPP120346, located at 655 
Ellis Street from P1 (Public Assembly) to RM5 (Urban Residential) as shown on Schedule ‘A’. 

 
2.2 Schedule ‘A’ attached hereto forms part of this bylaw. 
 
READ A FIRST time this 16 day of August, 2022 

A PUBLIC HEARING was held this 6 day of September, 2022 

READ A SECOND time this  day of , 2022 

READ A THIRD time this  day of , 2022 

ADOPTED this  day of , 2022 

 
Notice of intention to proceed with this bylaw was published on the 26th day of August, 2022 and the 31st day of August, 2022 in an 
online news source and the newspaper, pursuant to Section 94.2 of the Community Charter.  

 
 
 

      
 John Vassilaki, Mayor 
      

 
 

       
 Angie Collison, Corporate Officer 
 
  

- 404 -



�����
���	
��	����������	�
�	��������������

 	!�"�#$"	�%&'()*+,-.'/*)0*,/)123'4,1)*,5+,-4678)0)/-,592*),/)/7,*&45)/*'32/33):)*28-,59;%&'1,650'<2006520+2/30,948'*'/'11,-*&)1)/-,592*),/=25)'1;>125'168*<*&'()*+3,'1/,*?2552/*)/2/+?2+*&'9244)/:)/-,592*),/)/0863)/:*&'2006520+,516)*27)8)*+*&'5',-;%&'61'5,-*&)1)/-,592*),/3,'11,2**&')5,?/5)1@2/31&,683/,*5'8+64,/*&')/-,592*),/?)*&,6*)/3'4'/3'/*='5)-)02*),/21*,*&'2006520+,516)*27)8)*+*&'5',-; ABCDD D EDFDG'*'51����"�H�I����HH�H���J�K L��!
����	��"�	��M�NHOJPL�Q�$ K���	HHM

- 405 -

mcdonah
Typewritten Text
Date:                                               Corporate Officer:



 
 

Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-48  Page 1 of 1 
 

The Corporation of the City of Penticton 
 

Bylaw No. 2022-48 
  

A Bylaw to Amend Zoning Bylaw 2021-01 
 
WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton has adopted a Zoning Bylaw pursuant the Local Government Act; 
 
AND WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton wishes to amend Zoning Bylaw No. 2021-01;  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Municipal Council of the City of Penticton, in open meeting 
assembled, hereby ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 
  
1. Title: 
 
 This bylaw may be cited for all purposes as “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-48”. 
 
2. Amendment: 
 

2.1 Zoning Bylaw No. 2021-01 is hereby amended as follows: 
 

Rezone Lot A District Lot 250 Similkameen Division Yale District Plan EPP116347, located at 221 
Nelson Avenue and Lot B District Lot 250 Similkameen Division Yale District Plan EPP116347, 
located at 241 Nelson Avenue from RD2 (Duplex Housing: Lane) to RD4 (Low Density Cluster 
Housing) as shown on Schedule ‘A’. 

 
2.2 Schedule ‘A’ attached hereto forms part of this bylaw. 
 
READ A FIRST time this 16 day of August, 2022 

A PUBLIC HEARING was held this 6 day of Sepetember, 2022 

READ A SECOND time this  day of , 2022 

READ A THIRD time this  day of , 2022 

ADOPTED this  day of , 2022 

 
Notice of intention to proceed with this bylaw was published on the 26th day of August, 2022 and the 31st day of August, 2022 in an 
online news source and the newspaper, pursuant to Section 94.2 of the Community Charter.  

 
 
 

      
 John Vassilaki, Mayor 
      

 
 

       
 Angie Collison, Corporate Officer 
 
  

- 406 -



�����
���	
��	����������	�
�	��������������

 	!�"�#$"	�%&'()*+,-.'/*)0*,/)123'4,1)*,5+,-4678)0)/-,592*),/)/7,*&45)/*'32/33):)*28-,59;%&'1,650'<2006520+2/30,948'*'/'11,-*&)1)/-,592*),/=25)'1;>125'168*<*&'()*+3,'1/,*?2552/*)/2/+?2+*&'9244)/:)/-,592*),/)/0863)/:*&'2006520+,516)*27)8)*+*&'5',-;%&'61'5,-*&)1)/-,592*),/3,'11,2**&')5,?/5)1@2/31&,683/,*5'8+64,/*&')/-,592*),/?)*&,6*)/3'4'/3'/*='5)-)02*),/21*,*&'2006520+,516)*27)8)*+*&'5',-; ABCDE E FEAGH'*'51����"�I�J����II�������K L��!
����	��"�	��M�NIO�PL�Q�$ K���	IIM

- 407 -

mcdonah
Typewritten Text
Date:                                              Corporate Officer:



 
 

City of Penticton 
171 Main St.   |  Penticton B.C.  |  V2A 5A9 

www.penticton.ca   |  ask@penticton.ca 
 

Development Variance Permit 

Permit Number: DVP PL2022-9411 

Owner Name 
Owner Address 

Conditions of Permit  

1. This permit is issued subject to compliance with all of the bylaws of the City, except as specifically 
varied or supplemented by this Permit. 

2. This permit applies to:  

Legal: Lot A District Lot 250 Similkameen Division Yale District Plan EPP116347; and 
Lot B District Lot 250 Similkameen Division Yale District Plan EPP116347 

Civic: 221 Nelson Avenue; and 
241 Nelson Avenue 

PID: 031-631-584; and 
031-631-592 

3. This permit has been issued in accordance with Section 498 of the Local Government Act, to vary 
the following sections of Zoning Bylaw 2021-01 to allow for the construction of a four-unit 
development on each lot, as shown in the plans attached in Schedule ‘A’: 

a. Section 10.7.3.1: to allow vehicle access to be from the street. 

General Conditions  

4. In accordance with Section 501 of the Local Government Act, the lands subject to this permit shall 
be developed in general accordance with this permit and the plans attached as Schedule ‘A’.  

5. In accordance with Section 504 of the Local Government Act, if the holder of this permit does not 
commence the development authorized by this permit within 2 years of the date of this permit, this 
permit shall lapse. 

6. This permit is not a building permit.  In order to proceed with this development, the holder of 
this permit must hold a valid building permit issued by the Building Inspection Department.  

7. This permit does not constitute any other municipal, provincial or federal approval. The holder of 
this permit is responsible to obtain any additional municipal, federal, or provincial approvals prior 
to commencing the development authorized by this permit.  

8. This permit does not include off-site infrastructure costs that may be required at the building permit 
stage, such as Development Cost Charges (DCC’s), road improvements and electrical servicing. 
There may be substantial infrastructure and servicing costs payable at a later date. For more 
information on servicing and infrastructure requirements please contact the Development 
Engineering Department at (250) 490-2501. For more information on electrical servicing costs, 
please contact the Electric Utility at (250) 490-2535.    

DRAFT

- 408 -



Authorized by City Council, the ____ day of ____________, 2022. 

Issued this ____ day of ____________, 2022. 

_________________________ 

Angela Collison 
Corporate Officer 

DRAFT

- 409 -



DRAFT

- 410 -


	1. Call to Order
	The Mayor called the Regular Council Meeting to order at 1:00 p.m.
	3. Adoption of Agenda
	4. Adoption of Minutes:
	5. Consent Agenda:
	6. Staff Reports:
	7. Bylaws and Permits:
	8. Public Question Period
	9. Recess into a Closed Meeting
	10. Reconvene the Regular Council Meeting following the Public Hearing at 6:00 p.m.
	11. Bylaws and Permits:
	12. Notice of Motion
	13. Business Arising
	14. Public Question Period
	15. Council Round Table
	16. Adjournment
	5.1 - 2022-08-16 Public Hearing Minutes - Package No. 1.pdf
	1. Call to order

	5.1.a - 2022-08-16 Public Hearing Minutes - Package No. 2.pdf
	1. Call to order

	5.1.b - 2022-08-16 Public Hearing Minutes - Package No. 3.pdf
	1. Call to order

	5.2 - 2022-08-17 - CSAC Minutes - Draft.pdf
	Community Sustainability Advisory Committee Meeting

	7.2.a - Attachment A - Skaha Marina - Architectural Set_DP Replacement_Sheets.pdf
	Sheets
	A-050 - Architectural Site Info
	AD-101 - DEMOLITION PLAN & RCP - LEVEL 01
	A-101 - OVERALL PLAN - LEVEL 01


	7.3.a - Attachment A - Report from WRH.pdf
	Introduction
	Official Community Plan
	Role of the City’s Social Development Department
	Achievements of the Social Development Department
	Our Process to Create a Social Framework

	Social Framework Context
	What is a Social Framework?
	Benefits of creating a Social Framework
	Opportunities to enhance the Social Development Department’s impact
	Collaborative partners in supporting social sustainability

	Establishing Guiding Principles
	Guiding Principles for the Social Framework (from brainstorming)

	Establishing Social Development Priorities for the City
	Areas where the City should take a primary role in responding
	Areas where the City should share responsibility in responding
	Areas where the City has a complementary role in responding:

	Next Steps in the Development of a Comprehensive Social Framework

	7.10.a - Attachment D - F.pdf
	Attachment F - 1050 Spiller Road Engagement Report.pdf
	1.0 Overview
	2.0 Community Participation
	3.0 Feedback Form Results
	4.0 Information Sessions and Open Houses
	5.0 Penticton Indian Band, Government and Stakeholder Consultation
	6.0  Conclusions
	Appendix A - Engagement Timeline
	Appendix B – Penticton Indian Band
	Appendix C – Interior Health
	Appendix D – Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen
	Appendix E - Society for the Preservation of the Naramata Bench
	Appendix F – First Things First Okanagan


	7.13.b - 2022-09-06 DRAFT DVP (603 Main St).pdf
	Landscape DP Set Resubmission 603 Main 12Aug2022.pdf
	24x36-Development Permit Plan
	Viewport-A1-main
	Viewport-A2-scale bar
	Viewport-A3-notes
	Viewport-A4-plant list
	Viewport-1

	24x37-Development Permit Plan
	Viewport-B1-main
	Viewport-B2-scale bar
	Viewport-B3-notes
	Viewport-B4-plant list


	220819 - MHS 603 Main - parking options.pdf
	Sheets
	A1.01 - Floor plan - L1


	Architecture DP drawing set -14 parking stalls 603 Main 18Aug2022.pdf
	Sheets
	G0.00 - Cover sheet
	G0.01 - Project information & drawing list
	G0.02 - Legends and abbreviations
	A0.03 - Survey & grades
	A0.10 - Site plan
	A0.11 - Site axonometric and site sections
	A0.20 - Shadow study
	A1.01 - Floor plan - L1
	A1.02 - Floor plan - L2
	A1.03 - Floor plan - L3
	A1.04 - Floor plan - L4
	A1.05 - Floor plan - L5
	A1.06 - Roof plan
	A2.01 - Building elevations
	A2.02 - Building elevations
	A3.01 - Building sections



	7.13.c - 2022-09-06 DRAFT DP (603 Main).pdf
	220819 - MHS 603 Main - parking options.pdf
	Sheets
	A1.01 - Floor plan - L1


	Architecture DP drawing set -14 parking stalls 603 Main 18Aug2022.pdf
	Sheets
	G0.00 - Cover sheet
	G0.01 - Project information & drawing list
	G0.02 - Legends and abbreviations
	A0.03 - Survey & grades
	A0.10 - Site plan
	A0.11 - Site axonometric and site sections
	A0.20 - Shadow study
	A1.01 - Floor plan - L1
	A1.02 - Floor plan - L2
	A1.03 - Floor plan - L3
	A1.04 - Floor plan - L4
	A1.05 - Floor plan - L5
	A1.06 - Roof plan
	A2.01 - Building elevations
	A2.02 - Building elevations
	A3.01 - Building sections


	Landscape DP Set Resubmission 603 Main 12Aug2022.pdf
	24x36-Development Permit Plan
	Viewport-A1-main
	Viewport-A2-scale bar
	Viewport-A3-notes
	Viewport-A4-plant list
	Viewport-1

	24x37-Development Permit Plan
	Viewport-B1-main
	Viewport-B2-scale bar
	Viewport-B3-notes
	Viewport-B4-plant list


	Landscape DP Set Resubmission 603 Main 12Aug2022.pdf
	24x36-Development Permit Plan
	Viewport-A1-main
	Viewport-A2-scale bar
	Viewport-A3-notes
	Viewport-A4-plant list
	Viewport-1

	24x37-Development Permit Plan
	Viewport-B1-main
	Viewport-B2-scale bar
	Viewport-B3-notes
	Viewport-B4-plant list



	7.14.a - DRAFT DVP PL2022-9389.pdf
	DRAFT DVP PL2022-9389
	Schedule A

	7.15.a - 2022-09-06 DVP PL2022-9363.pdf
	2022-07-08 Updated Site Plan.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	A2.00



	7.16.a - Attachments C-K.pdf
	Attachment C
	2022-04-05 Hillside DP Letter
	Pages from 2022-03-17 Hillside DP Letter

	Attachment D
	Sheets and Views
	18-225 GRADING PLAN-C103.0
	18-225 GRADING PLAN-C103.1
	18-225 GRADING PLAN-C103.2
	18-225 GRADING PLAN-C103.3
	18-225 GRADING PLAN-C103.4
	18-225 GRADING PLAN-C103.5
	18-225 GRADING PLAN-C103.6
	18-225 GRADING PLAN-C103.7
	18-225 GRADING PLAN-C103.8
	18-225 GRADING PLAN-C103.9


	Attachment E
	Sheets and Views
	18-225 RETAINING WALL PLAN-C113.0
	18-225 RETAINING WALL PLAN-C113.1


	Attachment F
	Sheets and Views
	C114.0


	Attachment G
	Sheets and Views
	C109.0


	Attachment H
	Sheets and Views
	C116.0


	Attachment I
	Sheets and Views
	C104.0


	Attachment J
	Sheets and Views
	C115.0


	Attachment K

	7.16.b - DRAFT HSDP PL2021-9206.pdf
	DRAFT HSDP PL2021-9206
	Schedule A
	Sheets and Views
	18-225 REZONE LAYOUT-C101.0
	18-225 REZONE LAYOUT-C102.1
	18-225 REZONE LAYOUT-C102.2


	Schedule B
	2019-07 Geohazard Assessment
	18-225 SLOPE ANALYSIS-SLOPE ANGLE.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	SLOPE ANGLE


	18-225 SLOPE ANALYSIS-GEOHAZARD.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	GEOHAZARD


	18-225 SLOPE ANALYSIS-DEVELOPMENT ZONE.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	DEVELOPMENT ZONE



	2022-04-01 Addenda to Geohazard Assessment
	18-225 GEO FIGURES - FIGURE 3
	Sheets and Views
	GEOHAZARD


	18-225 GEO FIGURES - FIGURE 4
	Sheets and Views
	GEOHAZARD




	Schedule C
	Sheets and Views
	C109.0


	Schedule D
	Sheets and Views
	18-225 RETAINING WALL PLAN-C113.0
	18-225 RETAINING WALL PLAN-C113.1



	8.1.b - 2022-06-22 DRAFT DVP (650 Eckhardt Ave W).pdf
	2022-05-03 Plans.pdf
	Sheets: A0.0 - COVER SHEET
	Sheets: A0.1 - SITE INFO + SURVEY
	Sheets: A1.0 - SITE PLAN + ZONING
	Sheets: A1.1 - SITE DETAILS
	Sheets: A2.1 - FLOOR PLAN - LEVEL 1
	Sheets: A2.2 - FLOOR PLAN - LEVEL 2
	Sheets: A2.3 - FLOOR PLAN - LEVEL 3
	Sheets: A2.4 - FLOOR PLAN - LEVEL 4
	Sheets: A2.5 - FLOOR PLAN - LEVEL 5
	Sheets: A2.6 - FLOOR PLAN - LEVEL 6
	Sheets: A2.7 - ROOF PLAN
	Sheets: A3.0 - BUILDING PERSPECTIVE + COLOUR SCHEME
	Sheets: A3.1 - BUILDING ELEVATIONS
	Sheets: A3.2 - BUILDING ELEVATIONS
	Sheets: A4.0 - BUILDING SECTIONS





